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about the theme
our theme
EPCL believes in being in a constant state of evolution that
requires quick adaptation skills in order to achieve long-term
growth for the organization and consequently for our people
and our nation!

3. Governance
Covers EPCL’s governance structure with
the profiles of our board, management
committee, the director’s report along with the reviews
of the Chairman and CEO.

This past year, we managed to resiliently remain on course,
showed agility and adaptation that paved way for
successes, despite the challenges that the pandemic
posed. We also made considerable strides in the past year
and accomplished the completion of PVC III in March 2021,
marking new growth opportunities for the many years to
come.

4. External Environment & EPCL

Hence, this Annual Report is in celebration of that journey,
and in celebration of our aim of taking our people and our
nation along with us.

5. Sustainability & Corporate
Social Responsibility

aim and scope
Our Annual Report for 2020 aims to present itself as a
consolidated document that gives a bird’s eye view of the
company’s portfolio in coherence with a detailed
run-through of our strategies, financial performance, and
external parallels.
Throughout this report we will be uncovering how the
company has and continues to create and sustain value
over time through short-term, medium, and long-term
approaches, thereby aligning said approach with the
methods and practices of an integrated reporting structure.
We also hope to equip our stakeholders with information
that is necessary and comprehensive, thus facilitating their
evaluation of what our organization currently entails and our
ability to do more in the coming years.
Our report will be broken into nine sections and will be
organized in a composition as follows:

1. Organizational Overview
and Strategy
In this section we will be looking at
EPCL’s overall business, the values it upholds, major
achievements and a brief overview of company’s
strategy in place.

Assess EPCL in terms of the domestic
market, thereby analyzing its current
positioning along with the assessment of risks and
opportunities.

adopted framework
This Report has been prepared in compliance with the
following frameworks:
• International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017 (the
Act);
• Provision of and directives issued under the Companies
Act, 2017.
•

Reporting requirements of the listed companies Code of
Corporate Governance, 2019 and listing regulations of
Pakistan Stock Exchange.

We will cover various initiatives undertaken
by EPCL under the ambit of corporate social
responsibility and its alignment with the UN’s
sustainable development goals.

6. Moving Forward
Sheds light on the outlook of the company
and the status of the projects in progress.

7. Financial Performance & Position

•

Best practices on corporate reporting promoted by joint
committee of Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan (ICAP) and Institute of Cost and Management
Accountants of Pakistan (ICMAP) and South Asian
Federation of Accountants (SAFA).

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Act
differ from the IFRSs, the provisions of and directives
issued under the Act have been followed.

approval of the board
The Board of Directors of Engro Polymer & Chemicals
Limited acknowledges its responsibility to ensure the
integrity of this Annual Report. The Directors’ Report and
financial statements included in the report have been
approved by the Board for circulation in its meeting held on
February 10, 2021.

external review
Review Report on Compliance with Code of Corporate Governance

A. F. Ferguson & Co. Chartered Accountants

Independent Auditor’s Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

A. F. Ferguson & Co. Chartered Accountants

Independent Assurance Report on Statement of Compliance with
the Sukuk (Privately Placed) Regulations, 2017

A. F. Ferguson & Co. Chartered Accountants

Entity Credit Rating

PACRA

We will present a detailed financial analysis
of the company’s performance, rationalizing
major variations from prior periods.

8. Financial Statements
Present EPCL’s standalone & consolidated
financial statements.

9. Shareholder’s Information
Provides secretarial information like AGM
notice, proxy form and accounts circulation
request form for the facilitation of our shareholders.

2. Stakeholder Engagement
and Relationship
Looks at EPCL’s policies and approach
towards building healthy relationship with our
stakeholders.

evolve | adapt | grow

annual report 2020

sustainability & corporate
social responsibility

contents
table of

03

Strategy &
Resource
Allocation

25

35

Sustainability
Highlights
2020

128

UN Sustainable
Development
Goals

129

Sustainable
Use of PVC

131

PVC
Downstream
Applications

132

Financial
Capital

135

Human
Capital

136

Natural
Capital

138

Social
Capital

140

Integrated
Reporting

142

145

Analysis of
Previous Year
Forward Looking
Statement

145

Status of
Projects

145

Organization’s
Capability in
Responding to
Challenges

146

Forward
Looking
Statement
Mission

05

EPCL at a
Glance

07

Core
Values

23

stakeholder engagement
& relationship
Stakeholders’
Engagement
Process & Policy

127

moving forward

organizational
overview & strategy
Vision

Sustainability
Strategy &
Focus

Frequency of
Engagement

37

Wealth
Distribution to
Stakeholders

38

financial performance
& position
Six-Year Summary
of Financial Position
with Horizontal and
Vertical Analysis

149

Six-Year Summary
of Financial
Performance with
Horizontal and
Vertical Analysis

151

Key
Figures

152

Consolidated
Cash Flows Direct Method

153

Six-Year Summary
of Consolidated
Statement of Cash
Flows - Indirect
Method
Analysis of Variation
in Interim Accounts
with Final Accounts

154

Consolidated
Free Cash
Flows

154

Consolidated
Statement
of Economic
Value Added

154

Quarterly
Analysis

155

156

Segment
Analysis

159

Key
Financial
Ratios

163

Financial
Statement Analysis
with Graphical
Representation

165

Share
Price
Sensitivity

172

DuPont
Analysis

173

Compliance
with International
Financial Reporting
Standards

174

Methods and
Assumptions Used
in Compiling the
Indicators

174

Business Rationale
for Capital
Expenditures

174

179

180

Auditor’s Report
on Sukuk (Privately
Placed) Regulations
2017

181

241

Consolidated
Financial
Statements

245

304

Compliance
with ICAP’s
BCR

307

governance
Board of
Directors

CEO’s Review

41

Board &
Functional
Committees

57

Directors’
Report

47

Management
Committee

59

Statement of
Best Practices

49

Chairman’s
Review

55

93

Our Code
of Conduct

93

financial statements
Governance
Exceeding Legal
Requirements

Internal Audit

93
104

Governance
Framework

Enterprise Risk
Management

94
107

Board Approved
Policies

Business
Continuity Plan

98
108

Shariah Advisor

104

Pandemic
Recovery
Plan & Policy
Statement

109

external environment
& EPCL
Business
Model
Competitive
Landscape &
Market
Positioning

113
120

Value Chain

Risks and
Opportunities

115

SWOT Analysis

117

121

Composition of
Local Versus
Imported Material

124

Significant
Factors Affecting
the External
Environment

Statement of
Compliance with
COCG

177

Review Report
on Statement of
Compliance
with COCG

Auditor’s Report
on Standalone
Financial Statements

183

Standalone
Financial
Statements

187

Statement of
Compliance with
Sukuk (Privately
Placed) Regulations
2017
Auditor’s Report
on Consolidated
Financial Statements

Standard
Request
Form

302

Proxy
Form

shareholder’s information

118

Notice of
Annual General
Meeting

299

Directors’
Report (Urdu)

344

01

evolve | adapt | grow

annual report 2020

02

Lead Pakistan in polymers & allied chemicals
with international footprint.
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To achieve innovative growth which creates value for country,
stakeholders, customers and employees. Our commitment
is to maintain the highest standards of ethics, safety and
environmental responsibility.
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EPCL at a glance
Engro Polymer & Chemicals Limited (EPCL) is the only integrated chlor-vinyl chemical
complex in Pakistan.
EPCL is the sole manufacturer of PVC resin in Pakistan. Besides this the company also
produces Chlor Alkali products like Caustic Soda, Sodium Hypochlorite and
Hydrochloric Acid. It is a subsidiary of Engro Corporation, involved in the
manufacturing, marketing and distribution of PVC under the brand name ‘SABZ’ and
other quality Chlor-Vinyl allied products.
EPCL’s triple bottom line philosophy – People, Planet and Profit are critical and
indispensable elements for its growth and success.
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history of major events
1997
Engro Asahi Polymer
& Chemicals Limited
established

1999
PVC-I Plant
commissioned with
100 KT capacity

2010
Back-integration
completed
Commercial production
declared in 2010

2017
Further debottlenecking
increased plant
capacity to 195 KT
Announcement of an
extensive expansion plan
including increase of PVC
capacity by 100 KT &
VCM by 50 KT

2019
Commencement of
Caustic Flakes plant with
a capacity of 20 KT
Announcement of HTDC
efficiency and LABSA
diversification projects

2020
Highest ever profitability
in EPCL’s history
Preference shares
issuance of Rs. 3 billion.
IPO was oversubscribed
by 5.4 times

2006

2008

Expansion / backward
integration project
launched

PVC-II plant (50 KT)
started up in Q4 2008

Asahi Glass divested
its shareholding

Listed on the stock
exchange in 2008

2014
Completed
debottlenecking of
PVC capacity to
174 KT

2018
Announcement of
Hydrogen Peroxide
diversification project
Rights shares issuance of
Rs. 5.4 billion
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organizational overview & strategy

polyvinyl chloride (PVC)
Raw Material Exporting
Countries

Ethylene
Middle East,
Europe, USA, South
East Asia, and
Singapore

Ethylene
Dichloride (EDC)
Middle East,
USA, and
Europe

PVC Importing
Countries

Polyvinyl
Chloride

Kenya, Sri Lanka,
Bangladesh,
Nepal

PVC Products

The Company
manufactures and
markets four grades (AU
60, AU 67 R, AU 67 S, AU
72) of suspension PVC
under the brand name
‘SABZ’

PVC Domestic Market Landscape
Karachi

Larkana

Multan

Faisalabad

Lahore

Sukkur

Bahawalpur

Gujranwala

Hattar

Islamabad

Peshawar

Gadoon

Rawalpindi

Hyderabad

Quetta

Gujrat

PVC & Intermediary Plant
Capacities

Swat

PVC
195 KTA
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204 KTA
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caustic & allied chemicals
Raw Material

Salt is our
primary raw
material for
caustic and allied
chemicals.

1

1
Caustic
Soda / Flakes

Dyeing and mercerizing in
textile sector, free fatty
acids removal from edible
oil & ghee, soap and water
purification

2

2

Production Design Capacities

Hydrogen

Used in the manufacturing
of terephthalic acid

3

Caustic Liquid

106 KTA

Hypo

30 KTA

HCL

60 KTA

Caustic Flakes

20 KTA

Hydrochloric
Acid

Pickling, oil well acidizing,
water treatment, cleaning,
food processing and
medicine

4
Sodium
Hypochlorite

4

Water treatment, detergents,
denim bleaching and paper
bleaching

3

domestic market landscape
Caustic Soda
Karachi

Hydrogen
Karachi

Hub
Hyderabad
Multan
Rahim Yar Khan
Faisalabad
Lahore
Daharki
Gujranwala
Quetta
Rawalpindi

Hydrochloric Acid
Hyderabad
Hub
Guddu
Muzaffargarh
Multan
Sadiqabad
Mirpur Khas

Sodium Hypochlorite
Karachi
Hyderabad
Hub
Ghotki
Sadiqabad
Daharki

13

evolve | adapt | grow

annual report 2020

14

organizational overview & strategy

company information
Board of Directors
Mr. Ghias Khan
Mr. Jahangir Piracha
Mr. Nadir Salar
Mr. Eram Hasan
Mr. Rizwan Masood Raja
Mr. Feroz Rizvi
Mr. Noriyuki Yoga
Mr. Nazoor Ali Baig
Ms. Ayesha Aziz

Bankers
Allied Bank Ltd.
Askari Bank Ltd.
Al-Baraka Bank (Pakistan) Ltd.
Bank Alfalah Ltd.
Bank Al Habib Ltd.
Bank Islami Pakistan Ltd.
Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan Ltd.
Faysal Bank Ltd.
Habib Bank Ltd.
Industrial & Commercial Bank of China Ltd.
JS Bank Ltd.
MCB Bank Ltd.
MCB Islamic Bank Ltd.
Meezan Bank Ltd.
National Bank of Pakistan
Standard Chartered Bank Pakistan Ltd.
Samba Bank Ltd.
The Bank of Punjab
United Bank Ltd.
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CEO Message (Video Link)
www.engropolymer.com/knowledge-center/media-gallery/

Company Secretary
Mr. Khawaja Haider Abbas

Auditors

Share Registrar

A.F. Ferguson & Company
Chartered Accountants
State Life Building No. 1-C,
I.I. Chundrigar Road, Karachi-74000,
Pakistan.
Tel: +92(21) 32426682-6 / 32426711-5
Fax: +92(21) 32415007 / 32427938

M/s. FAMCO Associates (Pvt) Limited
8-F, Next to Hotel Faran, Block-6,
PECHS, Shahrah-e-Faisal Karachi Pakistan.
Tel: +92(21) 34380104-5, 34384621-3
Fax: +92(21) 34380106

Plant
Registered Office
12th Floor, Ocean Tower, G-3, Block 9,
Clifton, Khayaban-e-Iqbal,
Karachi-75600
PABX: +92-21-35166863-64
UAN: 111 411 41

EZ/1/P-ii-1, Eastern Zone, Bin Qasim,
Karachi.

Lahore Office
Office No. 601, 6th Floor, Haly Tower,
Lalik Chowk, DHA, Lahore.
UAN: 111 211 211

Website

www.engropolymer.com
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organizational
structure

corporate structure
reflecting direct and
indirect ownership

Board of
Directors

Dawood
Hercules
Corporation

Engro
Corporation
(37.22%)

Board Audit
Committee

Internal
Audit

CEO

Public
Affairs

Manufacturing

Operation

Production

Engro
Foundation

Supply
Chain

Commercial
Division

Contracts &
Services

PVC

HSE
Training

Allied
Chemicals

Procurement
Contacts

Finance

Human
Resource

Finance &
Business
Planning

Rewards &
HR Services

Treasury &
Insurance

Training
& OD

Projects
& Business
Development

Engro
Fertilizer
(56.54%)

Engro
Polymer
(56.19%)

EFERT
Agritrade
(100%)

Engro
Peroxide
(100%)

Digitization

Friesland
Campina
Engro
(39.93%)

Elengy
Terminal
(56%)

Engro
Elengy
Terminal
(100%)

Engro
Vopak
(50%)

Engro
Infiniti
(100%)

Engro
Eximp
Agriproducts
(100%)

Engro
Enfrashare
(100%)

Engro
Powergen
Thar
(50.1%)

Engro
Digital
(100%)

Kolachi
Portgen
(100%)

Engro
Plasticizer
(100%)

Plant
Administration

Maintenance

Instrument
& Electrical

Training
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Market &
Business
Development

Raw
Material

Commercial
Excellence

Expansion
Procurement

Recruitment

Logistics &
PM & S

Administration

Accounting
& Taxation

Reports functionally
Reports administratively

Engro
Eximp
FZE
(100%)

Engro
Foundation
(Trust)

Engive
(S.42
Company)

Engro
Powergen
Qadirpur
(68.8%)

Think PVC
(100%)

Technical

Engro
Energy
(100%)

Corporate
Communications

Engro
Energy
Services
(100%)

Pakistan
Energy
Gateway
(33%)

Legend

Listed
Company

Parent
Company

Associates
(Subsidiaries /
Associates /
JVs of Holding
Company)

Siddiqsons
Energy
(19%)

The
Company

Subsidiary
of the
Company

Sindh
Engro
Coal Mining
(11.9%)

JV Companies:

Thar
Foundation
(100%)

Thar
Power
Company
(100%)
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key highlights
& major achievements

Engagement survey
83% response
rate

Efficient and
effective COVID
management

Annual report
award by ICAP
and SAFA

Formation of
digitization
division

Highest
ever
profitability

Strong credit rating
reflects investors’
confidence in the
company

Preference shares
issuance, IPO
oversubscribed
by 5.4 times

Serving the community
Two new TCF
schools

PVC III completed,
VCM DBN project
entered final
stages

19
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organizational overview & strategy

awards, achievements & accreditations

credibility

QMS – ISO 9001 certification

OHSAS – ISO 45001 certification

PACRA credit ratings

The Company has been ISO 9001 (Quality Management
System) certified since 1999, which meant increased
customer satisfaction via documented systems and
procedures. The company continues to remain ISO 9001
certified for Manufacturing and Sales of PVC Resin and
Allied Chlor Vinyl Products vide the certification audit carried
out by URS in 2020 according to the latest standard
(ISO 9001:2015), during which no non-compliance was
reported.

The Company implemented OHSAS ISO 18001
(Occupational Health & Safety Administrative Series) in
2013. The company was audited in 2020 according to the
latest standard (ISO 45001:2015), during which no
non-compliance was reported.

Owing to the Company’s promising fundamentals and
strong liquidity, PACRA maintained “AA_ / A1+”
long-term / short-term credit ratings of EPCL, which is
the highest ever in the history of the Company. Strong
rating is a testimony to the fact that the Company has
achieved operational consolidation and has
promising fundamentals.

Chlorine Institute Membership
In 2020, EPCL received membership from The Chlorine
Institute (CI). This membership will be highly beneficial for
the company in terms of operation safety, and the
production of chlorine, sodium and potassium hydroxides,
and sodium hypochlorite. Moreover, the CI guidelines are
being used to achieve excellence in process safety
understanding and implementation.

EMS – ISO 14001 certification

Annual Report Award
Third position awarded by ICAP in chemical and fertilizer
sector and merit certificate by SAFA.

CSR awards
EPCL was awarded 4 CSR awards at the 13th National
Forum for Environment & Health International CSR
awards. Winning categories were Public Health,
Education & Scholarship, Community Development &
Services, and Waste Management / Recycling. EPCL
also won 3 awards at 10th International Corporate Social
Responsibility Summit & Awards in the categories
of Education / Scholarship, Public Health and
Corporate Community Scholarships.

The Company is ISO 14001 (Environment Management
System) certified by a credible third party (URS).
Accordingly, the organization has amplified its focus on
Health, Safety and Environmental Policies through
re-certification. The company was audited in 2020
according to the latest standard (ISO 14001:2015),
during which no non-compliance was reported.
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organizational overview & strategy

Has impeccable
character and lives
by highest
standards of
integrity and
accountability

our

core values

Nurtures passion
to serve country,
community and
company, with
strong belief in the
dignity and value
of people

Cares deeply about
environmental
impact and safety
of people

23
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organizational overview & strategy

strategy &
resource allocation
objective and strategy
At EPCL, we believe that strategy is the core of any
business. In this regard, extensive deliberations are
done at management and board levels. In line with the
strategy, objectives are developed and cascaded down
to divisions.

operational efficiency projects successfully within
Board-approved timelines

Strategic Objectives

5. Create value for Pakistan by increasing import
substitution
6. Ensure availability of talent base and motivated
employees for achieving organizational objectives
7. Deliver a common set of business processes,
standard master data, and quality information in a
timely fashion, all of which will improve the speed of
decision-making, especially:

corporate objectives
1. Manage and utilize resources and operations in a
way that ensures the health and safety of our
people, neighbors, customers, and visitors
2. Enhance site reliability and ensure product availability

a. Execute digitization strategy with the objective to
make EPCL a model and agile organization with
digitized and automated business processes
leveraging the latest technologies

Medium-term

b. Implementation of state-of-the-art end to end
ERP “SAP S4 HANA”, including FIORI and
success factors

Enter new markets to diversify
product base

The company is entering into new products i.e.
Hydrogen Peroxide and LABSA while study of
other businesses is underway. In order to
ensure social distancing measures at projects
site, work on LABSA project is currently on
hold.

Maintain and enhance plant reliability
by ensuring regular maintenance

Conduct plant turnaround within aligned time
frames and allocated resources. Preventive
maintenance and testing of critical equipment
is done

Develop domestic PVC markets by
introducing the latest applications

Establish PVC Branded Outlet, a concept
which showcases the latest PVC applications
to retail consumers and sells PVC products of
our downstream customers with the view of
broadening their acceptance in Pakistan.
Launch of outlet is targeted in early 2021.

Ensure manufacturing excellence

Introduce efficient processes in our
manufacturing to ensure maximum utilization of
resources. Work on our earlier announced
efficiency projects is on track with targeted
COD in 2021.

Identify and monitor enterprise risks.
Also implement adequate mitigating
measures.

Remain cognizant of changes in internal and
external environment to identify key risks being
faced by the entity and development of
mitigating factors to eliminate or reduce the risk
to an acceptable level

Corporate social responsibility

Focusing on improving the quality of life of
communities residing near Port Qasim

Automation and digitization of
business processes

Detailed strategy with 4 pillars already executed
(i.e. going paperless, wireless systems upgrade,
workplace agility enhancement, and automation
of sales operations). Digital transformation
division has been formed with specific focus on
digitizing plant reliability processes

Develop & retain talent, and
increase workforce diversity

Attrition rates and diversity ratios are monitored
and reported regularly. Job rotations /
enrichment are planned to ensure retention of
talent and diverse workforce

3. Execute Board-approved capital structure
4. Execute expansion, diversification, sustainability and

Short-term

25

Strategic Objectives

Strategic Actions

Continuity of safe operations while
minimizing the risk of COVID-19
transmission

Adequate measures such as continuous
testing, housing facility at site, medical staff
deployment, rota system to ensure stringent
implementation of COVID-19 protocols

Develop marketing strategies for
additional PVC volumes and other
upcoming products

Remain in constant touch with our potential
customers and appraise them of product
quality and benefits

Optimize sales mix to ensure
maximum value creation for all
stakeholders

Continuously monitor product margins and
recalibrate product mix as per business needs

Focus on overheads and create cost
efficiencies

Conduct in-depth analysis of cost structure to
identify potential savings opportunities and
realize them in a timely manner

evolve | adapt | grow

Long-term

Strategic Actions
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functional objectives and strategies
Based on the corporate objectives, functional objectives are set for all divisions and strategy is crafted.

Health, Safety and Environment

Objectives

Ensure a safe working environment
Carry out external independent assessments about Health, Safety and Environment (HSE)
Ensure HSE standards are maintained for expansion and operational efficiency projects
Minimize environmental impact

Manufacturing

Objectives

Reduced Total Recordable Incident Rate (TRIR) and Fleet Accident Frequency Rate (FAFR)
DuPont Ratings

Critical
Performance
Indicator

Strategy

Future
Relevance

Resource
Allocation

27
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Keeping all safety ratios intact during completion of expansion projects
Performance is measured against several international benchmarks and is also verified by external
authorities

Implementation of best practices as prescribed by DuPont Framework and regular monitoring of
numbers at management / BoD levels
Carry out DuPont Audit and implement findings accordingly
A new team has been assigned responsibility for maintaining high safety standards with tangible KPIs
and regular reporting to the management
Environmental impact studied for all projects and implementation is carefully planned to ensure
compliance with stringent environmental benchmarks

The CPIs shall remain relevant in the future

Human capital, manufactured capital, and financial capital

Critical
Performance
Indicator

Strategy

Future
Relevance

Resource
Allocation

Maintain and enhance plant reliability
Maintain optimal production levels at benchmark costs
Maintain and optimize raw material / energy consumption ratios
Satisfactory completion of growth, efficiency and reliability projects

Number of unplanned shutdowns, production loss and tasks completed
Production targets are set for all products
Raw material and energy consumption ratios have been set for all products against which
performance would be compared
Progress report / status is monitored by senior management and BoD regularly

Conduct plant turnaround within specific time frames and allocated resources. Preventive maintenance is done
and critical equipments are tested for reliability regularly
Monitoring the production facility / processes on a timely basis to identify and eliminate bottlenecks
Regular monitoring of production / consumption ratios is done at all levels and an action plan is devised in case of
deviation for immediate rectification
Strategic milestones are established and performance is measured against them to ensure satisfactory completion
of projects within prescribed time and resources. Post completion analysis is also conducted and reported

The CPIs shall remain relevant in the future

Human capital, manufactured capital, and financial capital
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Marketing

Objectives

Critical
Performance
Indicator

Maximize profitability across businesses by increasing customer engagement & optimizing sales mix
Ensure strategic alignment to future market gaps and organizational aspirations
Ensure customer satisfaction through timely product & service availability
Capacity building of all stakeholders

Customer retention & delight
Position to venture into prospective businesses

Human Resources

Objectives

Critical
Performance
Indicator

Evaluation of market segments & their drivers
Ensuring optimum sales mix

Strategy

Future
Relevance

Resource
Allocation

29
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Market development to identify areas for growth
Customer voice through survey & relationship management

The CPIs shall remain relevant in the future

Human capital, manufactured capital, financial capital, and social & relationship capital

Strategy

Future
Relevance

Resource
Allocation

Develop & retain talent, and increase workforce diversity
Improve diversity & inclusion
Improve employee engagement
Availability of requisite human resources in all aspects of operations

Attrition ratios and diversity ratio
Employee Engagement Survey
Uninterrupted operations in all departments

Attrition rates and diversity ratios are monitored and reported regularly. Job rotations /
enrichment is planned to ensure retention of talent and to ensure diverse workforce
Implement action items from previous employee surveys to ensure better employee
engagement. CEO conducts regular open house sessions with employees to discuss
potential concerns and to encourage conducive workplace environment
Development of a succession plan for all key positions within the organization

The CPIs shall remain relevant in the future

Human capital, financial capital, and social & relationship capital
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resource
allocation plan
Finance & Digitization

Objectives

Execute approved capital structure
Automation and digitization of business processes
Focus on overheads and cost efficiencies
Identify and monitor enterprise risks. Also implement adequate mitigating measures.

At EPCL, the focus is always to realize the maximum
potential of our resources with the ultimate objective of
increasing the shareholder value, customer satisfaction
and the development of resources. For each of the
above strategic objective, the Company has put in
place a stringent resource allocation process which
scrutinizes various aspects including criticality of
objective, resource availability, and potential synergies,
before the resource is dedicated towards an objective.
Thereafter, the management continues to monitor the
changes in external and internal environment to
capitalize on better resource allocation opportunities.
The Company aims to become Pakistan’s leading player
in polymer & allied chemicals with international footprint.
To achieve this, we will utilize the most optimal mix of
our resources and leverage our rich experience in
manufacturing and marketing of chemical products in
Pakistan as well as in international markets.

Capital structure and financial ratios targets
Automation of major processes and a significant reduction in paper usage

Critical
Performance
Indicator

Strategy

Future
Relevance

Resource
Allocation

Social &
Relationship
Capital

Cost optimization and reduction
Earlier identification of critical risks that may arise and adoption of measures to eliminate those risk or
reduce them to an acceptable level

Robust cash flow projections-based financing plan is conducted to meet cash requirements. The company also
secured LTTF at SBP concessionary rate and issued pref shares with the view of funding various projects.
Detailed strategy with 4 pillars (i.e. going paperless, wireless systems upgrade, workplace agility enhancement,
and automation of sales operations). Digital transformation division has been formed with specific focus on
digitizing plant reliability process
Reviewing fixed and variable costs for each division and identify areas of improvement to ensure reduction in
fixed cost
Continuous cross departmental collaboration and cognizant of changes in internal and external environment to
identify key risks being faced by the entity

The CPIs shall remain relevant in the future

Human capital, financial capital, and intellectual capital

Financial
Capital
Human
Capital

Strategic
Objectives

Manufactured
Capital

Intellectual
Capital

strategy to overcome
liquidity problems
Cashflow projections are regularly monitored and
analyzed for the identification of either short-term and
long-term financing needs or investment opportunities.
The Company remains on the look out for optimized
means of financing & invest time to ensure optimal
costs on this front.
Cash generated from operating activities is optimally
invested to ensure ready availability without significant
compromise on investment returns. The Company has
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readily available bank lines to meet any short-term
liquidity gaps whereas long-term financing arrangements
are also in place for funding of existing expansion and
efficiency projects. The Company successfully
drew-down the subsidized Islamic Long Term Finance
Facility loan this year enabling low-cost financing for its
expansion project. The company’s product offtake is
majorly skewed toward cash-based sales, and
generation of operating cash flows are robust enough to
ensure comfortable debt servicing. In addition, the
options of getting extended supplier credit and
discounting the credit sales have been tested and are
utilized as per business needs.

significant plans and
decisions
During the year, the Company made significant strides
on earlier announced expansion, diversification and
efficiency projects despite the manning and other
logistical challenges imposed by the COVID-19
pandemic. The Company decided to put one of
diversification projects “LABSA” temporarily on hold to
ensure social distancing protocols at project site.
With the company having established its strong foothold
in upstream PVC product line over the years, we now
plan to leverage our experience and expertise and
promote downstream PVC market in Pakistan. We
believe there is a huge potential in downstream market
given the low per capita PVC consumption of our
country and low penetration of a diverse range of PVC
applications. To take our plan forward, we have invested
in our THINK PVC branded outlet project which is in its
final stages of completion.
The outlet will act as a platform to introduce and
promote various PVC applications for all downstream
stakeholders including retail consumers, builders,
interior designers etc. The launch of the outlet is
targeted in Q1 2021.

significant changes
in objectives and
strategies from prior
years
The Company remains cognizant of changes in the
internal and external environment, which may call for
change in objectives or strategic adjustments. In
FY2020, in light of significant developments that took
place on the global and domestic landscape, the
Company added prevention of COVID-19 transmission
while ensuring continuity of safe operations in its
short-term objectives and risk identification and
development of mitigating measures as its long-term
objectives.
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stakeholder engagement & relationship

Host Communities
(local to our facilities
and throughout
Pakistan)

engaging stakeholders
Policy for Engaging Stakeholders

Suppliers and
Customers

Engro Polymer & Chemicals Limited recognizes the
significance of its stakeholders and has therefore
devised a policy that looks to engage them both
formally and informally, periodically and regularly.

We consider ourselves responsible
for our host communities and hold
regular interactions in order to
understand how we can improve
our relationships. The Company is
extremely active in health,
education, livelihood, and
environmental projects for the
betterment of these communities.

Our suppliers and customers are
engaged through periodic formal
and informal meetings /
conferences. We regularly provide
them with technical assistance
related to their businesses, to
benefit both the industry and the
economy in which we operate.

Investors, Lenders
and Shareholders

3

Investors, lenders and
shareholders look forward to our
Annual General Meeting as well as
Corporate Reports (Annual and
Sustainability Reports), which
include comprehensive information
on both financial and non-financial
matters related to the organization.

Employees
EPCL concentrates on employee
engagement as it is key to
performance. A survey is carried
out every year to assess the levels
of engagement and motivation at
the workplace and based on
feedback, areas of weakness are
improved and strengths held
stable.

4

Regulators

5
2

6
Media
Our engagement with print and
visual media takes place through
regular press releases on key
achievements and activities as
well as through informal
conversations on Company news
and updates throughout the year.
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The Company complies with all
regulatory requirements and in this
regard maintains close
coordination with relevant
regulators including the Pakistan
Stock Exchange, Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan
(SECP), and FBR.

Analysts

1

7

EPCL engages analysts from
security markets by conducting
analyst briefings at the end of each
quarter at least, exceeding the
regulatory requirement. EPCL also
coordinates with the analysts as
and when needed through formal
meetings and discussions.
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details of analyst briefings held during the year
Period

Place

Q4 2019 / FY 2019

February 6, 2020

Harbour Front Building,
Karachi

Q1 2020

April 17, 2020

Video link facility

Q2 2020

August 10, 2020

Video link facility

Q3 2020

October 19, 2020

Video link facility

brief summary of
matters discussed
during analyst briefings
Matters discussed during the briefings normally pertain
to an overview of the performance of the Company from
a financial and operational perspective, ECPL’s stance
on any significant ongoing issue that has implications
for the wider industry, an update on the Company’s
projects under progress, and an outlook of the market
dynamics. In addition, a comprehensive Q & A session
also takes place to address queries and clarifications
from the attendees.

management actions
to encourage minority
shareholders
The notice of the annual general meeting and
extraordinary general meetings are sent to all
shareholders of the company at least twenty-one days
prior to the meeting. The notice is published in both
Urdu and English, in at least one issue of a daily
newspaper with nationwide circulation for each
respective language. Further, a notice of the AGM is
sent to the exchange and is also placed on the
Company’s website. The Company encourages
minority shareholders to also participate in quarterly
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Consolidated Statement
of Value Added

analyst briefing sessions, the date of which are
announced through the stock exchange.
The company entertains meeting requests from minority
shareholders where their queries are addressed and
they are also encouraged to attend general meetings.

investors’ relations
section

(Amounts in million)

2019

2020

Revenue
Rs. 45,171

Revenue
Rs. 42,630

Purchases
Rs. 25,710

Purchases
Rs. 19,282

Wealth
Generated
Rs. 19,461

For investor queries or complaints please find our
contact details on the company information page of this
report or go to the investor relations webpage of our
website by using the link below:

Rs. 1,972

10%

Wealth
Distributed
Employees
as remuneration

Wealth
Generated
Rs. 23,348
Rs. 2,063

9%

www.engropolymer.com

Rs. 57

AGM issues and
responses

0%

Society

Rs. 818

Shareholders
as dividend

Rs. 182

Rs. 10,424

Government
as taxes and duties

Rs. 11,586

Rs. 1,794

Providers
of finance

Rs. 2,191

Rs. 4,397

Retained
with business

Rs. 7,314

The Company’s Annual General Meeting (AGM) was
held on April 23, 2020, which was attended by the
Chairman of the Board, Chairman of Board Audit
Committee, Chief Executive Officer and other senior
management of the Company to address queries and
clarifications sought by the shareholders. During the last
AGM, queries and clarifications were sought on the
Company’s financial statements, which were resolved
to the satisfaction of the Shareholders. Apart from the
said queries, no significant issues or concerns were
raised by the shareholders.

Direct taxes - Rs. 1,343
Indirect taxes - Rs. 6,404
Duties and others - Rs. 2,677

4%

54%
9%

23%

Rs. 12

0%
1%

50%

Direct taxes - Rs. 2,504
Indirect taxes - Rs. 6,119
Duties and others - Rs. 2,963

9%

31%
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board of directors
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Ghias Uddin Khan

Nadir Salar Qureshi

Chairman

Period

Place

Ghias Uddin Khan is the Chief Executive Officer of Engro Corporation Limited. Before
being appointed President and CEO on December 1, 2016, he had held several
executive and board roles across Dawood Hercules Group of companies.
Joining Dawood group via acquisition in 2005, Ghias was the CEO of Inbox Business
Technologies, one of Pakistan’s largest technology companies. During his 15 years at
Inbox, Ghias grew the employees to over 1,900 and pivoted the company from a
computer manufacturer to a systems integrator and then again to a technology enabled
digital services company.
Most recently, Ghias was the Executive Director & Head of the Chairman’s Corporate
Office at Dawood Hercules. He was the principal aide of the Chairman of the Group on
a range of matters of institutional importance including, but not limited to, board
governance, communications, external relationships, and special projects. Ghias also
served as Chairman of Elixir Securities from 2011-2014. Ghias is a strong believer in
social enterprise and the responsibility of businesses to environmental and human
wellbeing. Ghias holds an MBA from the Institute of Business Administration in Karachi.
He also serves on the boards of the following companies:

•
•
•
•

Engro Corporation Limited (CEO)
Engro Eximp Agriproducts (Private) Limited
Karachi School of Business Leadership (KSBL)
Sindh Engro Coal Mining Company Limited

•
•
•
•

Thar Power Company Limited
Engro Fertilizers Limited
Engro Foundation (Trustee)
Engro Digital Limited

Jahangir Piracha
Chief Executive Officer

Jahangir Piracha is the Chief Executive Officer for Engro Polymer & Chemicals Limited.
In his most recent role, Jahangir served as Chief Executive Officer of Engro Vopak
Terminal Limited and Engro Elengy Terminal Limited since March 2017. Earlier, he
served as the Chief Executive Officer for Engro Powergen Qadirpur Limited.

•
•
•

Director

Nadir Salar Qureshi is the Chief Executive Officer of Engro Fertilizers Limited, since
December 2018. He joined Engro Corporation Limited in March 2017 as Chief Strategy
Officer. He completed his MBA from Harvard Business School, and his Bachelors and
Masters degrees in Nuclear Engineering from MIT. He brings with him expertise in multiple
sectors across the GCC, Turkey, Australia, ASEAN, and the EU. He is also experienced in
consulting, private equity, and finance. Nadir began his career with Engro Chemical Pakistan
Limited as a Business Analyst and then moved on to organizations such as Hub Power
Company, Bain & Company, Carrier Corporation, and Abraaj Capital, leading up to his most
recent role as Chief Investment Officer at Makara Capital in Singapore. Nadir also serves as
a director on the boards of:
•
•
•

Engro Fertilizers Limited - CEO
Efert Agritrade (Pvt.) Limited
Pakistan Energy Gateway Limited

•
•

Engro Infinity (Pvt.) Limited
Engro Enfrashare (Pvt.) Limited
Engro Energy Limited

Eram Hasan
Director

Eram Hasan joined Engro as the Chief Information and Transformation Officer (CITO) in
November 2019. Eram is responsible for managing and developing the following operating
functions in line with Engro’s central idea – IT, ECTD, Admin, Procurement, and Engro
Foundation – in addition to the special transformation projects such as OneSAP and Catalyst.

Jahangir has 25 years of corporate experience in functions like Manufacturing, Human
Resource and Procurement. He received his bachelors’ degree in Chemical Engineering
from the University of Engineering and Technology, Lahore, Pakistan.

Eram joins with over 25 years of international general management experience in diverse areas
of Operations, Digitalization, Strategy, Business Development, Sales, Customer Services, and
Supply Chain. He last served as the Chief Strategy Officer / Managing Director at K-Electric. In
his previous roles, he was associated with Coca-Cola Beverages Pakistan Ltd. as Chief
Operating Officer and Unilever Pakistan as Head of Sales & Operations. He was also associated
with Alcoa, USA, as Business Director and Alcoa Asia / Middle East as Regional Vice President.
Eram holds a MBA degree from Harvard Business School and a Masters and Bachelors in
Materials Science & Engineering from MIT.

He also serves on the boards of the following companies:

He also serves on the board of Engro Enfrashare (Pvt.) Ltd.

Prior to that, he served as Vice President – Manufacturing, and General Manager
Human Resource & Corporate Services at Engro Polymer & Chemicals Ltd. He has also
previously worked as the Production and HSE Manager at Engro Fertilizers Limited. Prior
to joining Engro, he worked for ICI Pakistan Ltd.

•
•
•
•
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Arabian Sea Country Club
Reon Energy
Green Go (Pvt.) Limited
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•
•
•
•

Engro Vopak Terminal Limited
Engro Energy Limited

Pakistan Energy Gateway
Engro Peroxide (Pvt.) Limited
Engro Plasticizer (Pvt.) Limited
Think PVC (Pvt.) Limited
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Rizwan Masood Raja
SVP & Chief People Officer

Rizwan Masood Raja joined Engro Corporation as SVP & Chief People Officer in
February 2019.
Rizwan’s experience spans over 25 years. He was with SCB for over 15 years and,
prior to that, with Jaffer Group for 9 years. He has held multiple senior roles within HR
with a focus on Retail Banking, SME Business, Financial Crime Compliance & Talent
Acquisition across strategic markets such as Pakistan, Hong Kong, Singapore, China,
Taiwan and South Korea. Prior to his HR career, he managed businesses P&L and
finance for Jaffer Group’s companies based in Pakistan.
Prior to joining Engro, Rizwan was serving as the Managing Director and Head of HR
for Retail Banking and Wealth Management, Greater China and North Asia, at SCB.
Always driven by new challenges, Rizwan was instrumental in developing and
delivering projects on strategic workforce planning, leading multiple Transformation
projects related to client-centricity & digitalization for Retail Bank, and being part of the
Global HR transformation’s design team. One of the key achievements was the
successful build up of the Virtual Bank in Hong Kong; a first for SCB globally.
Rizwan speaks regularly at various forums on topics close to his heart, such as future
of work & evolution of HR function in the digital age. He is passionate about
community development and is an avid cricketer.
He also serves on the board of the following companies:
•
•

Engro Enfrashare (Pvt.) Limited
Karachi School of Business Leadership (KSBL)

Noriyuki Koga
Director

Noriyuki Koga joined Mitsubishi Corporation in 1992 and has held several positions
during his time there. He is currently the General Manager of Mitsubishi Corporation's
Chlor-Alkali Department and has a degree in Law from Keio University in Japan. He
joined the EPCL Board in 2017.
He also serves on the board of the following companies:
•
•
•

Mitsukojima Transshipment Co. Ltd.
Kashima Chemicial Co. Ltd.
Exportadora De Sal S.A. DE C.V

•
•
•
•

Baja Bulk Carriers S.A.
Philippine Resins Industries, Inc.
PT. Asahimas Chemical
AGC Chemicals Vietnam Company Ltd.

Nazoor Ali Baig
Director

Mr. Baig is a retiree from Detroit Edison Company a subsidiary of DTE Energy
Company and currently associated with Hubco since 2014. He is an Electrical
Engineer by profession and has worked in the utility industry for over 30 years.
His experience includes working in Operations, Maintenance, Engineering,
Project Management, Outage Management, Coal handling facility with state of
the art blending systems, Business Management,
Large Systems Change Management, etc.
He also serves on the board of Hub Power Services Ltd.

Ayesha Aziz

Director

Ayesha Aziz has over 25 years of financial sector experience in senior roles with proven
track record of establishing operations and creating value for stakeholders. She comes
with a broad based experience in strategy, origination and management of businesses
across diverse areas including Project and Structured Finance, Debt Capital Markets
and Private Equity. She has a BBA and MBA from the Institute of Business
Administration Karachi, and is a CFA. She’s held several board positions in various
organizations such as: Pakistan Mercantile Exchange Ltd., Punjab Board of Investment
and Trade, Sindh Enterprise Development Board, Awwal Modaraba Management Ltd.,
Primus Leasing Ltd. etc. She is also a member of the CFA Society Pakistan, Corporate
Leaders Advisory Board, Institute of Business Administration Management Committee,
Overseas Investors Chamber of Commerce and Industry
Intellectual Property Rights Committee.
She also serves on the boards of the following companies:
•
•
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Pak Brunei Investment Company
(Managing Director)
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•
•

Feroz Rizvi
Director

Feroz qualified as a Chartered Accountant from England and Wales.
On his return to Pakistan, he joined ICI Pakistan Ltd. and moved through
various businesses and functions, including a period of secondment to the
ICI Head Office in London and retired from the company as Finance Director.
Mr. Rizvi has vast experience in the field of Corporate Finance, Strategy, Corporate
Restructuring, Mergers and Acquisitions. He has worked in Pakistan, the UK and
Saudi Arabia. He also serves on the boards of the following companies:
•

Honda Atlas Cars (Pakistan) Limited

•

Pakistan Oxygen Limited

•

Al Meezan Investment Management Ltd.

•

POL Pension Fund (Trustee)

KSB Pumps Company Limited
Primus Leasing Limited
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Principal Board Committees
Board Audit Committee (BAC)
The Board Audit Committee meets at
minimum once every quarter and assists
the Board in fulfilling its oversight
responsibilities, primarily in reviewing and
reporting financial and non-financial
information to shareholders, systems of
Internal Control, Risk Management, and the
Audit Processes. The BAC has the power to
call for information from the Management
and to consult directly with external
auditors or their advisors, as considered
appropriate. The Chief Financial officer and
the Head of Internal Audit regularly attend
BAC meetings by invitation to discuss
matters relating to financial statements and
audits. The Committee also frequently
meets with external auditors independently.
The Members of the Committee are as
follows:

Mr. Feroz Rizvi
Independent Director
Mr. Eram Hasan
Non Executive Director

Functional Committees
Board People’s Committee (BPC)
(Human Resource and Remuneration Committee)

The Board People’s Committee meets with
the aim of reviewing and recommending all
elements of the compensation system, as
well as, the organization and employee
development policies relating to Senior
Executives, including Members of the
Management Committee. It reviews the key
human resource initiatives and the
organisational structure of the Company.
The Members of the Committee are as
follows:

Mr. Feroz Rizvi
Independent Director
Mr. Rizwan Masood Raja
Non Executive Director
Mr. Nadir Salar Qureshi
Non Executive Director
Mr. Salman Hafeez
Secretary

Management Committee

Corporate HSE

Inquiry Committee

Jahangir Piracha
(Chairman)

Jahangir Piracha
(Chairman)

(Harassment of Women at the
Workplace Act 2010)

Jahangir Waheed
(Member)

Jahangir Waheed
(Member)

Jahangir Waheed
(Chairman)

Syed Abbas Raza
(Member)

Syed Abbas Raza
(Member)

Kalimuddin Khan
(Secretary)

Syed Ali Akbar
(Member)

Syed Ali Akbar
(Member)

Salima Hasham
(Member)

Fahd Khawaja
(Member)

Fahd Khawaja
(Member)

Salman Hafeez
(Member)

Salman Hafeez
(Member)

Aneeq Ahmed
(Member)

Aneeq Ahmed
(Member)

Mahmood Siddiqui
(Member)

Mahmood Siddiqui
(Member)

Asghar Ali Khan
(Member)

Asghar Ali Khan
(Member)

Salima Hasham
(Secretary)

Zeshan Bukhari
(Secretary)

Mr. Noriyuki Koga
Non Executive Director
Mr. Nazoor Ali Baig
Non Executive Director
Mr. Kalimuddin A. Khan
Secretary
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Jahangir Piracha

Syed Abbas Raza

Jahangir Piracha is the Chief Executive Officer for Engro Polymer & Chemicals Limited.
In his most recent role, Jahangir was serving as Chief Executive Officer of Engro Vopak
Terminal Limited and Engro Elengy Terminal Limited since March 2017. Earlier, he
served as the Chief Executive Officer for Engro Powergen Qadirpur Limited.

Abbas is an experienced professional with degrees in Management Accounting, Business
Administration and Electrical Engineering. Prior to joining EPCL, he worked for General Mills, a
US multinational, as Finance Director for their South East Asia business. Before General Mills,
he had a distinguished career with Procter & Gamble spanning almost 2 decades during
which he worked in various senior positions in Pakistan, Middle East, Europe and Africa. His
last position was CFO, Procter & Gamble, Pakistan.

Chief Executive Officer

Prior to this, he served as Vice President – Manufacturing, and General Manager
Human Resource & Corporate Services at Engro Polymer & Chemicals Ltd. He has also
worked as the Production and HSE Manager at Engro Fertilizers Limited. Prior to joining
Engro, he worked for ICI Pakistan Ltd.

Chief Financial Officer

Jahangir has 25 years of corporate experience in functions like Manufacturing, Human
Resource and Procurement. He received his bachelor’s degree in Chemical Engineering
from the University of Engineering and Technology, Lahore, Pakistan.

Syed Ali Akbar

Vice President Operations
Ali has been associated with EPCL since 1998, he has held several positions in the
Company including Services and Training Manager, Operations Manager and Commissioning and Startup Manager. He has a Bachelors in Chemical Engineering from
Dawood College of Engineering and Technology.

Jahangir Waheed

Vice President Business
Development and Projects
Jahangir Waheed is Vice President Business Development and Projects at
Engro Polymer & Chemicals. He brings with him almost 30 years of
manufacturing experience, and has held key positions at Engro Fertilizer,
Engro Powergen and SAFCO KSA. Jahangir completed his Masters in
Chemical Engineering with specialization in Research in Industrial
Computerized Control from King Fahd University KSA in 1987.

Salman Hafeez

General Manager Human Resources
Salman has over 12 years of experience in Talent Acquisition, Learning & Organization
Development, Employee Relations as well as HR Business Partnership in FMCG, Banking
and Telecommunication Industry.
Prior to joining EPCL, he was associated with Jazz (previously known as Mobilink) as
Regional Head HR (South). He has also worked at Standard Chartered Bank as Senior
Talent Acquisition Manager and for Philip Morris Pakistan as a HR Business Partner.
He holds a Masters degree from Iqra university.
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Aneeq Ahmed

Vice President Supply Chain
Aneeq Ahmed started his career at Engro Polymer & Chemicals as
graduate trainee engineer and is currently heading the Company’s Supply
Chain Division. In his illustrious career spanning over 16 years, he has held
several key positions and roles in the Company including Unit Manager
Stationary and Rotary Equipment Maintenance, Maintenance
Department Head, and PVC / VCM Plants’ Debottlenecking
and Capacity Enhancement Project Lead.
Aneeq has a bachelor’s degree in Mechanical Engineering from
N.E.D University of Engineering and Technology and a master’s degree
in Business Administration from Institute of Business Administration.

Mahmood Siddiqui

Fahd Khawaja

Vice President Commercial
Fahd Khawaja is currently serving as the Vice President of Commercial at Engro Polymer
& Chemicals. Prior to joining EPCL, Fahd was associated with Efert as VP Global
Sourcing & Commercial Head Phosphates Business, where he conceived the idea of
making Phosphates a business unit and formulated and implemented business strategy,
which resulted in the highest ever PAT for the business in 2018.
Fahd brings with him extensive experience of working in various leadership roles in
Business Management, Marketing & Sales, Supply Chain, Global Sourcing and Trading.
He has also worked as Department Head for Sales, Specialty Fertilizer Business and
Supply Chain in the Commercial Division. Fahd is also an ASQ certified Six Sigma Black
Belt and holds a master’s degree in Business Administration with concentration in
Marketing and Finance.

Asghar Ali Khan

Vice President Manufacturing

General Manager Digital Transformation

Mahmood Siddiqui started his career with Engro Chemicals Pakistan Limited as a
graduate trainee engineer and is currently leading Engro Polymer & Chemicals’
Manufacturing division as the Vice President. With over 25 years of operations,
commissioning, health & safety, and business development experience, he has
immensely contributed in building the backbone of Engro’s health & safety systems of all
the subsidiaries, manufacturing operations of Engro Polymer and Engro Fertilizers, new
projects at fertilizers, energy, digital and foods segments of Engro.

Asghar is serving as the General Manager for Digital Transformation at EPCL. He has
brought a wealth of diverse and extensive professional experience as he has worked in
the Maintenance, Planning, Warehouse and Workshop functions at all three major
fertilizer companies of Pakistan. Some of his key achievements include the full
automation of safety gloves manufacturing as Head of Business at Midas Safety,
integration of 17 robots for the manufacturing process in Hi-Tech Alloy Wheels as Chief
Operating Officer and two SAP implementations as Project Manager
at Sabic and Engro Fert Daharki.

Apart from leading business departments and divisions at Engro, Mahmood has also
led Engro’s key community programs including Sahara Welfare Society, schools in
Kacha, Community Emergency Response program and Engro Model School.
Mahmood is a Chemical Engineer from University of the Punjab.
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With a bachelor’s in industrial engineering from Purdue University USA, Asghar has also
completed PMP certification from PMI.
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safe operations in all areas of business.
Amidst the COVID-19 induced bearish market
sentiments, the Company successfully
concluded preference shares pre-IPO
placement and IPO listing, which is a
one-of-a-kind event in the history of PSX, the
IPO was oversubscribed by 5.4 times. With
PVC expansion expected to come online in
early 2021 and with completion of other
announced efficiency projects, we believe the
Company is optimally positioned to bring
exciting possibilities to the domestic
polymer market.

chairman’s review
Dear Shareholders,
I am pleased to present to you the financials of Engro
Polymer & Chemicals Limited (“EPCL”) for the period
ended December 31, 2020. The outgoing year proved to
be one of the most challenging years in our history on
multiple fronts. On the economic side, Pakistan’s smooth
progress towards stability after a turbulent 2019 was
severely affected as the COVID-19 pandemic hit Pakistan
late in February 2020. It dampened the overall demand
and resulted in massive supply chain disruptions. Weak
macro-economic environment, owing to the COVID-19
pandemic, led to a contraction in Pakistan’s real GDP in FY
2020. Thereafter, due to the commendable measures
adopted by Government, including smart lockdowns,
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industry stimulus package, and various other regulatory
interventions, the economy showed recovery, which is
evident from the improved fiscal and external numbers as
well as buoyancy in the Large Scale Manufacturing sector.
We hope that the government’s resolve to bring
institutional reforms will restore business and consumer
confidence in the economic prospects of the country.
For EPCL, 2020 proved to be a year of resilience and
agility. These traits helped us rise above the challenges
posed by COVID-19 and achieve the highest ever
profitability in the Company’s history. Proactive and timely
measures adopted by the management for stringent
implementation of COVID-19 protocols not only resulted in
zero cross transmission, but also ensured continuity of

During the year, an unfortunate isolated event
of chlorine leakage occurred at our plant site.
The affected personnel were immediately
provided sufficient and appropriate medical
treatment. Subsequently, the incident was
thoroughly investigated by an independent
committee. I am pleased to report that we
have achieved significant progress in the
closure of the majority of the proposed
recommendations. Here, I would like to
reaffirm our commitment to ensuring the safety
of our people and operations, and to take all
necessary steps to ensure the implementation
of the highest safety measures throughout
the organization.
While we remain focused and vigilant on our
commitment to maximize stakeholder value
and to play an active part in the economic
progress of Pakistan, our efforts need
Government support in crucial matters, such
as strict measures to curtail PVC dumping and
continuous gas availability. The Government’s
recently announced guidelines on gas supply
to captive power plants are quite encouraging
and we feel it will enable us to consistently
supply to all our export oriented caustic
soda customers.

We are looking forward to a proactive
approach by the Government to create an
enabling business environment in the country.
I am pleased to report that the EPCL Board
remained steadfast in steering the company
through the challenging year. In addition,
EPCL’s Board continues to deliver the best
governance practices through our Board
People’s Committee (BPC) and Board Audit
Committee (BAC).
Moving ahead, EPCL will continue its journey
towards value addition for all its stakeholders
while adhering to the highest standards of
business ethics and safety practices.
I would also like to take this opportunity to
thank Imran Anwer who after taking charge as
EPCL’s CEO in 2015 completed his term in
April 2020. During this time, he played a
pivotal role in making EPCL a major player in
the chemicals sector in Pakistan by
spearheading numerous growth and efficiency
related initiatives.
On behalf of the board,
I would like to thank him for his invaluable
contributions to the success of the company.
I would also like to welcome our new board
members and look forward to working with
them in enabling the company to deliver
higher shareholder value.

Mr. Ghias Uddin Khan
Chairman - Board of Directors
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competent team of independent
experts and we are pleased to inform
that all major recommendations have
been implemented and significant
steps are being taken to avoid any
such incidents in the future.

ceo’s review
The outgoing year, 2020,
proved to be a year of
unparalleled challenges and
unmatched resilience.
The COVID-19 pandemic tested the
agility and grit of organizations as
never experienced before in recent
times. I am proud to share that EPCL,
banking on the strength of its people
and able leadership, not only
embraced all these challenges but
also produced results that speak
volumes about resilience, adaptability,
and the character of our team.
Starting with profitability, the
Company posted its highest ever
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profit after tax of Rs. 5,730 million
against profit after tax of Rs. 3,696
million posted last year. Historically
high levels of international PVC prices
in the later part of the year, effective
COVID-19 management, and
stringent cost control measures were
primary drivers in achieving this
landmark.
On the COVID-19 front, the Company
demonstrated the highest level of
commitment towards strict
implementation of preventive
measures and protocols that helped
us achieve zero cross transmission at
the manufacturing facility, smooth
operations in other aspects of the
business and continuity of
construction activities at our
expansion site.

We are pleased to report that despite
a challenging macro-economic
environment, the Company achieved
major milestones in securing long
term finances. We obtained a LTFF
facility of Rs. 2 billion at
concessionary SBP rate and
successfully closed a one-of-a-kind
preference shares IPO listing on the
PSX, which was oversubscribed by
5.4 times.
With all these achievements, the year
also witnessed an isolated
unfortunate event of chlorine leakage
at our plant. All affected employees
were provided timely medical
treatment, the majority of whom
required only minor medical
assistance. The incident has been
thoroughly investigated by a

On the international front, the PVC
market remained extremely volatile
throughout the outgoing year, with 1H
2020 witnessing international prices
plummeting to historically low levels
caused by demand erosion and low
ethylene prices which crashed to an
all time low in April 2020. The
2H 2020, however, proved, to be
different, with the resumption of
economic activities after the easing of
lockdowns and the push towards
construction activities by several
countries leading to improved
demand. This situation gained further
impetus due to supply side
constraints caused by hurricanes in
the US, production issues with Asian
& European suppliers resulting in the
declaration of force majeure events,
and high freight rates due to global
port congestions. The collective
impact of all these factors drove the
PVC global prices upward with prices
touching historic highs. The domestic
market followed the same trend with
recovery in demand in 2H driven by
positive Government measures to
boost economic activities, and the
announcement of a construction
package.
On the chlor-alkali front, the global
demand contracted by ~5% in 2020
as key operators reduced their
operating rates owing to global
slowdown in downstream industry
caused by the COVID-19. Domestic
market also demonstrated
considerable volatility with changing
dynamics, with 1H 2020 severely
affected by sluggish global demand
and lockdowns, and 2H 2020
showing demand improvement driven

by the diversion of orders due to
Pakistan’s early recovery from the
pandemic.
As per Government’s recently
announced guidelines on gas supply
to captive power plant based on
energy audits, we are confident of the
continuity of gas supply as we
operate one of the most efficient
co-generation power plants in the
country, which in turn will help us to
supply consistently to all our
export-oriented caustic soda
customers, as it remains an important
feedstock for this sector.
To improve efficiencies of business
processes, the Company has taken
several measures to build the skills
and learning of our human resource
and adapt to the new norms of
working with technology. On the
technological front, our efforts to
digitize our operations bore fruit, and
to further streamline our technological
initiatives, a dedicated team for digital
transformation has been put in place,
which will continue to work on
leveraging artificial intelligence
applications and to implement
industry 4.0 practices to enhance
productivity.
EPCL also remains committed to
serving communities around Port
Qasim, where our plant is located. In
collaboration with TCF, EPCL
established two new purpose-built
schools which started operating in
October 2020, and through this
network of four schools, we shall
continue to play an active role in the
provision of quality education to
students of the Ghaghar Phatak area.
Alongside, our health care facility
established in collaboration with SINA
continues to provide free health care
services to ~100 patients every day.
The Company has also established 5
water filtration plants which provide
more than 5000 households access

to clean drinking water.
On the expansion front, the project
progressed at a steady pace after the
resumption of activities
post-lockdown, which had affected
the completion deadlines of these
projects. Alhamdulillah, PVC-III has
commenced commercial operations
in March 2021 and VCM DBN is in
the final stages with expected COD
in 2Q 2021. Progress on the
efficiency projects is also on track with
expected completion in the current
year. Work on Hydrogen Peroxide is
also underway with expected
commissioning in the second half of
2022. The LABSA project is currently
on hold. We will update our
shareholders on future developments
regarding this project.
As your company, we would like to
reiterate our commitment towards
contributing to economic prosperity,
creating shareholder value, adhering
to world class HSE standards and
investing in sustainability driven and
environment-friendly practices. Lastly,
I would like to express my gratitude to
all our stakeholders, including but not
limited to our shareholders,
customers, employees, suppliers,
technology providers, business
partners, regulatory bodies and
Government for putting their trust in
us, and we look forward to building an
even stronger company in the
coming years.

Mr. Jahangir Piracha
Chief Executive Officer
CEO Message (Video Link)
www.engropolymer.com/knowledge-center/media-gallery/
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The Directors of Engro Polymer & Chemicals Limited are pleased to submit the
annual report and audited accounts for the year ended December 31, 2020.
During the year, the Company posted Revenue of Rs. 35,331 million, against
Rs. 37,837 million and Profit After Tax of Rs. 5,730 million as compared to
Rs. 3,696 million last year, translating into earning per share of Rs. 6.30 per share
against Rs. 4.07 per share last year. The Board of Directors approved final cash
dividend of Rs. 1.247 per ordinary share and Rs. 0.042 per preference share.
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principal activities
Engro Polymer & Chemicals Limited (“EPCL” or “The
Company”) is a subsidiary of Engro Corporation Limited
(“ECL” or “The Holding Company of EPCL”), which is a
subsidiary of Dawood Hercules Corporation Limited
(“DH Corp” or “The Holding Company of ECL”). EPCL
was incorporated in 1997 as a Public Limited Company
under the Repealed Companies’ Ordinance 1984 and

commenced commercial operations in 1997. Shares of
the Company are listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange.
The principal activity of the Company is to produce and
market Chlor-Vinyl products which include Polyvinyl
Chloride (PVC), Vinyl Chloride Monomer (VCM), Caustic
Soda Liquid, Caustic Soda Flakes, Hydrochloric Acid
and Sodium Hypochlorite. The Company’s flagship
brand ‘SABZ’ has become synonymous with quality
PVC in the country. EPCL strongly endorses its triple
bottom line philosophy – People, Planet and Profit.

nature of business & business model
Engro Polymer & Chemicals Limited operates in the Chlor-Vinyl segment and its profitability is a function of the business
context within which it operates.

Operational
Efficiencies

Vinyl Market
Dynamics
International
Vinyl Chain
Prices

Macroeconomic
Scenario

Chlor Alkali
Market
Dynamics

Energy &
Chemical
Prices

Growth and Meeting
Stakeholder Expectations
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macroeconomic
environment
The journey of Pakistan’s economy towards stability
from the challenging times of 2019 was well on track in
Q1 2020 through prudent monetary and fiscal policies.
It was further complemented by IMF’s Extended Fund
Facility program. However, just as the promising
economic recovery indicators in the form of contraction
in twin deficits and restoration of consumer and
business confidence started to emerge, the coronavirus
pandemic hit the country and the first case was
reported on February 26, 2020.
The containment measures adopted by the government
in response to COVID-19, which included lockdowns
that followed tightening fiscal and monetary policies
prior to outbreak, severely affected the industries and
the economy at large. The effects translated into a
contraction in real GDP by 0.4%, the first ever in
decades. The contraction was mainly driven by the
large-scale manufacturing sector, which contracted by
10% in FY 2020 due to the high policy rates prior to the
pandemic, and the plunging domestic and global
demand thereafter. On the fiscal front, due to a decline
in economic activity, growth of tax revenues were
inevitably dented in March–June 2020 period, and a
considerable rise in government spending on social
safety and health care needs, the primary surplus
accumulated in the first three quarters turned into a
deficit. On the other hand, current account deficit
shrunk from 4.8% of GDP in FY2019 to 1.1% in FY
2020. Improvement in balance of payment mainly owed
to falling imports as the crude prices crashed globally
and increased workers’ remittances. However, it was
slightly offset by contracting exports, which declined by
7.5% in FY 2020 as limited retail sales in advanced
economies led to a fall in export orders. On the inflation
front, CPI rose to 10.7% in FY 2020 vs. an average of
6.8% in FY 2019. The major factors contributing to the
increase were food inflation, hikes in administered
energy prices, and a weaker rupee, which depreciated
~5% against the US dollar in FY 2020.

and rolled out multiple schemes to extend support,
which included deferment of principal repayments,
subsidized financing for firms to pay salaries to their
employees, relaxations in operational criteria for export
related refinance schemes, and concessionary finance
facilities for investment projects and hospitals.
Effective national level strategy and policy measures
adopted by the government and regulatory bodies not
only helped contain the virus in Pakistan but also helped
the economy recover from the pandemic. During H2
2020, the LSM sector showed encouraging signs of
buoyancy, as the construction package announced by
the government helped cement dispatches and growth
of allied industries, and as export orders were diverted
to Pakistan. The external and fiscal sector indicators
improved as well, as the current account recorded a
surplus of USD 1.1 billion for the first six months of
FY2021 as compared to a deficit of over USD 2 billion
during 6MFY 20.
During the outgoing year, Supreme Court issued
judgement on Gas Infrastructure Development Cess
(GIDC) where it declared GIDC as intra vires to the
constitution and disposed all the cases and stay orders
against the recovery. Since the company continued to
record provision in previous years, the impact of this
decision on the Profit and Loss statement is curtailed to
the extent of financial charges on cash outflows
because of this decision. However, the Company has
currently obtained a stay order from Sindh High Court
on the plea that it does not pass on the GIDC impact to
its customers. For a more comprehensive view of the
matter, please refer to note 20 of standalone financial
statements.
With recent development on gas supply to captive
power plants, we remain hopeful for continuity of gas
supply as the operators of one of the most efficient
cogeneration power plants in the industry. We also
reaffirm our commitment to work towards further
improving our operational efficiencies and reduce gas
consumption per ton to minimize the impact of gas
prices and availability on overall business.

In response to the pandemic, the Economic
Coordination Committee (ECC) approved a fiscal
stimulus of Rs. 1.2 trillion on March 30, 2020. The SBP
reduced the monetary rates by 625 bps over 3 months
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Undoubtedly, the novel coronavirus brought changes to
almost every aspect of life: work from home, the shift
towards e-commerce, supply chain localization,
changing government spending priorities etc. It was not
just another turn of the business cycle, it was the dawn
of a “new normal”. As the new normal paved its way, it
presented numerous social, health and economic
challenges. EPCL was no exception to those
challenges. The most pressing issues that we faced
were:
•

Suspension of operations during lockdown at base
plant and expansion sites, as per Govt. of Sindh
directives

•

Plant situated in Karachi declared COVID-19
hotspot

•

Management of over 1,000 manpower at site

•

Sourcing of critical raw material amid global supply
chain disruptions

•

Ensuring timely outbound and inbound logistics to
ensure consistent supplies to customers

pandemic recovery plan
As our economy started to recover from
the pandemic, our leadership put together
a plan to ensure EPCL’s smooth journey
through the recovery. Some of the plan
highlights are:
•

•
•
•
•
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Establishing rota system at site and
HO to ensure stringent implementation
and monitoring of SOPs
Enhancing customer engagement
activities to reinforce relationships
Normalizing the sourcing of raw
material through contract management
Obtaining financing facilities at
subsidized rate
Departmental task force formation to
continuously monitor the situation
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Through our strong leadership, committed workforce
and unparalleled resilience, EPCL undertook several
timely measures to ensure the health and safety of our
people along with continuity of our operations. Some of
our key responses were:
•

Formation of dedicated COVID-19 oversight
committee

•

Establishment of on-site accommodation for
workforce

•

Establishment of in-house rapid testing facility

•

Early adoption of preventive measures prior to the
announcement of the lockdown

•

Deployment of Work Safe Analytics software, which
helps to monitor and control COVID-19 SOP
implementation

•

Arranged sourcing of key raw materials from
alternate sources

•

Held virtual customer meetings during lockdowns

•

Managed cash flow issues in a robust fashion

Effective implementation of measures helped us
through the most critical times and we are proud to
share that the outgoing year was the most profitable
one in the history of EPCL.

vinyl market overview
Global PVC demand declined by 6% in 2020 as havoc
caused by the pandemic brought economic activities
almost to a halt. Furthermore, in the latter half of 2020,
when the global economy started to recover, the
international PVC market was hit with severe supply
tightness as major PVC producers in the US and

Europe faced production issues due to hurricanes in
the US. Supply tightness was further aggravated due to
port congestions and shortage of containers, especially
in Asia. The worsening demand-supply gap was
prominently reflected on international price trends,
which remained on upward trajectory throughout the
second half of 2020. Going forward, given the current
global supply dynamics, prices are expected to remain
firm in short run.

Global PVC Demand
Million metric ton

EPCL and COVID-19
pandemic rising above
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The COVID-19 pandemic impacted PVC demand in
North America unlike any other past event, not even the
2008/09 recession. New construction activity dropped
by more than 20% in March with declining builder
confidence. COVID-19 induced decline in demand led
to many converters reducing rates, while others were
forced to shut down facilities in compliance with
lockdown restrictions imposed by the government. In
2H 2020, construction activities started to pick up, after
the lifting of lockdown restrictions, owing to the boom in
the US housing sector due to low mortgage rates,
which helped in keeping the average annual decline in
regional demand to ~6.8% versus 2019.

Asia is an important market for PVC owing to its historic
contribution to the overall demand growth where
developing economies like China and India have
provided growth impetus. Regional demand followed
the global trend and contracted in 2020 mainly due to
slow down of Chinese and Indian economies owing to
series of lockdown policies from the end of March to
early June. The extended monsoon season in India and
heavy floods in China further contracted demand. After
the lifting of lockdown restrictions, accelerated recovery
was observed as many countries executed policies to
boost demand and floated stimulus packages.

Supply was largely impacted in 2H by hurricanes in 2H
2020 which resulted in Westlake Chemicals, the
second largest PVC producer representing 25% of the
total regional capacity, declaring force majeure, which
remained in effect for the rest of the year. In addition,
Formosa Plastics USA, also one of the major world
producers, declared force majeure in August amidst
operational issues. The dynamics led to dip in regional
operating rates to ~75% in 2020 as compare to 87% in
2019 on an annual average basis.

Asian PVC prices started an upward trajectory from the
beginning of the second half and continued until the
end of the year as global supply tightness kept the
pressure on the regional market. High freight cost due
to port congestions and shortage of containers,
especially in India, also supported the price hike. Going
forward, given the current global supply dynamics,
prices are expected to remain firm in short run.
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south asia
The region’s PVC demand declined by 10% in 2020
due to the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic. The
lengthy monsoon season in India, which accounts for
86% of the region’s consumption, also contributed to
the demand contraction. Average operating rates of
regional producers also posted a sharp drop from 85%
to 77% in 2020 owing to lockdown measures adopted
by countries in the region. Regional demand recovery
from the pandemic started in September as
governments turned their focus to construction and
infrastructure development activities to stimulate
respective economies. However, increasing demand
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could not be matched by the supply due to production
issues faced by global suppliers and heavy
maintenance period of regional producers, which led to
historically high prices. The outlook for the market
recovery is still very optimistic, as it will be supported by
recently announced Indian government initiatives to
develop the country’s infrastructure and the
construction package announced by Government of
Pakistan.
South Asia continues to be a crucial market in the vinyl
world due to its large supply deficits both for PVC and

feedstocks, and serves as an important lever in
balancing the global vinyl supply and demand.
The potential for growth in the region remains enormous
for at least the next decade based on the large
population of over 2 billion and a per capita
consumption of only 2 kg which in comparison with
global average of 6 kg per person is considerably low.
The importance of agriculture in the region cannot be
emphasized enough in terms of PVC demand. Pipes
and fitting account for 73% of total PVC regional
demand, which considerably outweighs the global
proportion of 45%. Other applications like chlorinated

PVC pipes, wire and cable, and PVC profiles continue
to gain wider acceptance in the region owing to their
better value proposition compared to competitive
products. The PVC industry in Pakistan is also slowly
diversifying and is developing a wider range of finished
products such as PVC flooring, garden hose, garden
furniture, PVC roofing, wall panels and ceiling.
Therefore, outlook for demand growth remains healthy
in the region on the back of low per capita
consumption, increasing construction activities and
further introduction of new applications.
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Per Capita PVC Consumption
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The domestic PVC market in the first half of 2020 saw a
decline of 15% YoY due to the national lockdown
imposed by the government in response to the
pandemic and the diversion of government spending
from development projects to COVID-19 prevention
and support programs. However, a remarkable
recovery was observed in the second half on the back
of the stimulus package announced by the government
and containment of the virus through effective
implementation of preventive measures (smart
lockdowns). The PVC market recorded an increase of
38% from the first half, which translated into overall
market increase of 3.3% in 2020 in comparison to a 7%
decline in 2019.
Major highlight of the domestic market in 2020 was the
highest ever imports of 90KT as PVC importers
capitalized on historically low global prices amidst the

international commodity crash and lower domestic
production because of the lockdown. Despite the
imports, domestic sales remained robust and we sold
all the product we produced. We are pleased to share
that our additional capacity of 100KT will be coming
online soon and would like to reaffirm our commitment
to supporting the economic development, saving the
country’s valuable foreign exchange, and ensuring that
we meet domestic demand.
Moving forward, in view of the government’s focus on
affordable housing, expected improvement in economic
growth and our continued efforts to develop
downstream applications, we are hopeful that the
country’s per capita PVC consumption will increase in
the years to come and converge towards international
levels.

Profiles & Tubes
Floorings
Coatings
All Others
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market development
activities
Market Development faced unprecedented challenges
in 2020 because of the COVID-19 pandemic and the
imposition of lockdowns and travel restrictions across
Pakistan. However, the resilience of our team resulted
in important breakthroughs in promoting PVC as a

material of choice across various sectors. Our major
focus areas remained construction, sanitation, and
irrigation sectors, for which various meetings were held
with higher government authorities on the inclusion of
PVC applications. These applications include PVC
doors and windows, flooring in construction, U-PVC
and spiro pipes in sanitation and PVC geomembrane in
irrigation.
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of 2H 2020, a healthy increase in demand was
observed but it could not be met as major suppliers
went offline on account of planned maintenance,
operational issues and disruptions caused by
hurricanes in the US, which at one point resulted in
global capacity loss of ~18%. In addition, freight cost
also recorded considerable increase (almost 3 times the
usual rates) due to port congestions and shortage of
containers due to global shipping line disruptions.
Therefore, on the back of severe supply constraints and
inflated freight cost, prices remain firm throughout the
2H of 2020 amidst healthy demand.

branded outlet
THINK PVC Branded Outlet is the flagship project of
EPCL – a retail outlet dedicated to PVC Downstream
products showcasing the versatility of the material and
becoming a platform for engaging stakeholders in the
construction sector including builders, developers,
interior designers and furniture makers. Major
construction activities of the outlet were completed in
2020, with stringent implementation of SOPs in place,
with the official launch in the first quarter of 2021.

Ethylene, the primary raw material for PVC is also used
in the production of other polymers including
Polyethylene. During the outgoing year, the price war on
crude oil between Russia and Saudi Arabia and the
decline in demand caused by the pandemic resulted in
crude prices hitting historic lows. Being a derivative of
crude oil, Ethylene prices also hit record low level.
However, prices showed sharp improvement due to
supply tightness as major crackers went offline for
maintenance and the slight recovery of crude prices
during 2H20.

international vinyl chain
prices
Despite being a globally traded commodity, PVC prices
vary across regions. For Pakistan the relevant pricing
benchmark is South Asian prices (applicable in
India/Pakistan/Bangladesh/Sri Lanka). PVC prices
crashed in Q1 2020 when the overall demand dropped
globally due to the pandemic. Although, from the onset

PVC International Prices (South Asia)
USD MT

outlook
Operational issues, longer than expected turnarounds,
disruptions caused by hurricanes and higher freight
cost have kept PVC prices on an upward trend. Moving
ahead, given the current global supply dynamics, prices
are expected to remain firm in short run. Ethylene prices
are also expected to follow suit.

chlor alkali market
Chlor alkali market followed suit of all other commodities
market trends and was significantly impacted by the
pandemic. On the back of a fall in demand of key
derivatives, caustic soda demand contracted by an
estimated 5.2% in 2020. International prices followed
downward trajectory throughout the year as demand
remained sluggish in different sectors including textile,
alumina, pulp and paper, and finished goods
manufacturing. Sector exception to weak demand
included medical equipment, viscose staple fiber,
pharmaceutical manufacturing and food industries.
However, demand lift from these sectors was
insufficient to offset overall weakness in demand.
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lockdown at the regional and global levels, which
impacted caustic soda demand. Moving on, as the
lockdowns started easing off, demand began
recovering towards the end of Q2. In late 2H 2020,
domestic demand received a significant impetus on the
back of considerable increase in textile sector operating
rates. Major factors that contributed to the increase in
operating rates were export orders for PPEs and
hospital supplies, steady exports to US due to
US–China trade war and extended lockdowns in
Bangladesh and India diverting export orders to
Pakistan.
Sodium Hypochlorite and Hydrochloric Acid form part of
the company’s Chlor-Alkali portfolio. The former is used
mainly by the textile industry as a bleaching agent, while
its other applications include disinfectant and as water
treatment agent. In Pakistan, HCL is used in steel
galvanizing industry, water waste treatment, power
plants, gelatin segment amongst others. Moving ahead
we recognize growth potential in the downstream
applications of these chemicals may come from the
water purification segment and expansion in power
sector for Sodium Hypochlorite and Hydrochloric Acid
respectively.

Demand-Supply equilibrium took another dive around
August 2020 when Asian producers came back online
after the maintenance period. To improve the situation,
the producers tried cutting the output deliberately. This
phenomenon, on one hand, caused production cuts on
chlorine derivatives causing price surge in the EDC
market, while, on the other hand, caustic soda prices
remained lull as the inherent product demand was not
supporting the dynamics.

outlook

The demand situation, however, started improving in
Q4 2020 with the easing of lockdowns and amid
packages announced by governments globally to boost
economic activities. Although bulls took over the
consumer markets, no uptick could be seen in the
alumina sector, which accounts for the highest
consumption of caustic soda.

operational efficiencies

Overall, the domestic caustic soda market declined by
~10% from its 2019 level. 2020 was a year of
considerable volatility in the domestic market. It started
off on a high note as the textile sector drove the
demand on the back of increased export orders in Q1.
However, as the pandemic swept across the world,
textile exports suffered due to the impact of the

Local industry dynamics drive domestic Chlor-Alkali
prices and, therefore, they do not move in line with
international prices. Moving forward, the domestic
market provides a bullish outlook because of factors
such as the worsening trade war between the US and
China, the extension of GSP plus status until 2022, and
the recovery in large-scale manufacturing sector.

Improving operational efficiencies is a key business
focus at EPCL as it contributes positively to the
environment and to the bottom line. In relation to this,
EPCL completed hydrogen venting project this year.
The project helps in utilizing gas as fuel which was
previously being vented.
Moreover, the biggest turnaround in EPCL history was
also performed to improve reliability and efficiency of the
plant.
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energy management
and conservation
At EPCL, we strive to achieve maximum environmental
conservation and efficiency in resource utilization to
deliver maximum value for all stakeholders and
contribute positively towards sustainability efforts.
Considering maximum energy conservation, we are also
currently working on two efficiency projects, i.e. Transfer
Line Exchangers (TLEx) and Oxy Vent Recycle (OVR).
These projects are expected to reduce the company’s
energy requirement thereby reducing the drain on the
country’s depleting gas reserves and improve raw
material efficiency thereby limiting imports. This will also
offer the company some shield from gas price hikes
and future PKR devaluation. EPCL also made progress
on previously announced High Temperature Direct
Chlorination (HTDC) project, which will bring further
energy efficiencies and reduce carbon dioxide
emissions by 2022.

financial overview
and management
In 2020, EPCL’s revenue decreased by ~7% in
comparison to 2019, mainly on account of the decline
in PVC and Caustic volumes by 15% and 27% YoY,
respectively, due to prolonged turnaround, gas incident
and plant shutdown during the lockdown. The fall in
volumes were slightly offset by higher PVC prices (7%
YoY), which rallied throughout 2H 2020 on account of
global supply constraints.
domestic sales (KT)
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Caustic Soda

163
61
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83
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100%

profitability
The Company recorded highest ever profitability in its
history clocking at Rs. 5,730 million owing to high PVC
prices and the management’s vigilant focus on cost
control. The extraordinary performance was also a result
of adaptive and proactive management on various
fronts amidst the COVID-19 challenges.
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Considering the recent events and developments in the
GIDC case (including the judgement and the review
petition decision), the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of Pakistan (ICAP) released financial reporting guidance
on the "Accounting of GIDC" via Circular No. 1/2021
dated January 19, 2021 (the Circular), which discusses
key accounting considerations for gas consumer
companies. Keeping in view the financial reporting
guidelines of ICAP and giving due consideration to the
latest available information and the expected timing of
the settlement (i.e. monthly installment rather than lump
sum amount), the Company has remeasured its
previously undiscounted provision at its present value to
incorporate the effect of time value of money arising
from the expected settlement based on an installment
plan, and has accordingly recognized remeasurement
gain on the provision for GIDC amounting to
Rs. 681 Mn.

dividend
The Board of Directors of the company have approved
a final cash dividend of Rs. 1.247 per ordinary share
and Rs. 0.042 per preference share.
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one-time item

Additionally, the Company successfully concluded the
issuance of Perpetual, Cumulative, Callable, Convertible
and Listed Preference shares of Rs. 3,000 million. This
is the first time any company has successfully issued
Preference shares on non-rights basis. Proceeds from
the issuance would support the Company in availing tax
credit under section 65E of Income Tax Ordinance,
2001.

credit rating
In 2020, Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited
(PACRA) awarded EPCL a long-term and short-term
rating of AA- and A1+, respectively. This rating implies
low credit risk, based on the company’s ability to meet
its financial commitments in a timely manner.

capital structure
The assets of the Company were financed by debt and
equity in the ratio of 47:53, as compared to 57:43 in
2019. The shift in capital structure comes as EPCL
makes further strides towards the implementation of our
previously announced projects for which the company
has raised funding.

contribution to
national exchequer
liquidity and cash flows

financing
During the year, the Company raised Rs. 1,950 million
from the SBP’s subsidized financing scheme of
Long-Term Finance Facility (LTFF). The loan has a tenor
of 10 years with a grace period of 2 years.

EPCL launched its Lean Enterprise Risk Management
(ERM) framework in 2011. It is the policy of the
company to view risk management as integral to the
creation, protection and enhancement of shareholder
value by managing the uncertainties and risks that may
possibly influence the achievement of our corporate
goals and objectives.
We recognize that the company operates in a complex
business environment and it mandates assessment of
the organization’s strategy and quantum of risk that the
entity is willing to accept by adequately assigning
responsibilities throughout the organization. EPCL
entrusts accountability at all levels and requires
monitoring, communicating and reporting changes in
the risk environment and the effectiveness of actions
taken to manage identified risks on an ongoing basis.
Risks are identified across the organization and are
ranked based on their impact on probability. Upon
identification of risks, a strategy is devised to mitigate its
impact which is regularly monitored by the Management
Committee. Risk Management process is led by Chief
Risk Officer (CRO) and endorsed by the Board Audit
Committee (BAC).

Strategy

During 2020, EPCL contributed over Rs. 9.6 billion to
the government treasury in the form of taxes, excise
duty, custom duty, income tax and sales tax.

During the year, the Company generated Rs. 12.5
billion from operations. A strong liquidity position allowed
the Company to withstand the pressure posed by the
pandemic. Excess short-term cash was invested in
debt market instruments and TDRs for efficient cash
management.

risk management
framework

Disruption
in Plant
Operations

The company has a strong maintenance regimen to ensure smooth
functioning of the facility (also undertook biggest turnaround in 2020).
Furthermore, the company continues to invest in world-class technological
solutions to improve efficiency and focus on predictive analysis.

Result

Plant ran smoothly throughout the year despite an isolated chlorine
leakage incident on which company has implemented majority of
recommendations.

Strategic
Risk

Strategy

Resurgence
of Global
Pandemic or
Lockdown
on Plant
Operations

The company has strategized its functions to cope with possible
challenges posed by the resurgence of the virus. A dedicated committee
has also been formed which continuously monitors the situation.

Result

Smooth and safe running of operations at the plant as well as on
projects. Zero transmission of cases at site. Furthermore, we
managed continuous operations in marketing and supply chain with
minimum disruptions.
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business continuity plan
Strategy

International
Commodity
Prices

Strengthen internal business intelligence and established network with
international olefins analysts to have better insight of international price
trend and fundamentals defining market dynamics.

Result

The management regularly evaluates pricing trends of final products and
primary raw materials. Based on these analyses, pricing / procurement
strategies are developed to capitalize on market dynamics.

Strategy

Commercial /
Operational
Risk

Energy
Prices

Study and implement energy efficiency projects to reduce consumption
and identify cheaper energy options.

Result

The impact of recent increase in gas price is being managed through
operational efficiency enhancement.

We recognize our responsibility towards consistent
operations while ensuring adequate measures to
safeguard against any potential disruption. With this
vision and intent, we initiated our Business Continuity
Plan in 2013 and have upgraded it regularly. The plan
was tested from the onset of the lockdown imposed by
the Government in response to the pandemic, and was
successfully implemented by the management to
ensure smooth and safe continuity of operations.
The plan ensures smooth functioning of critical
business processes in the event of an unforeseen
disaster and has the following objectives:
•

To provide a framework for building resilience and
the capability for an effective response that
safeguards the interests of key stakeholders,
company reputation and brand image, and value
creating activities

•

To assess the risks to our operations and to
understand the impact of the risks if they materialize
while considering business priorities and
organizational interdependency

Strategy

Gas
Availability

In addition to working on alternate sources for long-term gas
availability, we have effectively communicated our stance to various
authorities that being a feedstock provider to export-oriented sector,
curtailment of gas to EPCL puts operations of the wider industry at risk.

Result

We have ensured continuity of supply of gas with minimal curtailment in
peak winter season.

Strategy

Liquidity Risk /
Interest Rate
Risk

During the year EPCL raised 1.95 Bn through SBP’s long term finance
facility. The loan has a base rate of 2% has a tenor of 10 years with
grace period of 2 years. In addition, concluded Preference share issue
of Rs. 3 Bn.

Financial
Risk
Strategy

Closely follow key macro-economic indicators to identify potential risks
and work with banks to hedge foreign exchange exposure.

Result

Reduced impact of PKR devaluation by delaying USD drawdown and
efficiently managed intl. supplier credit.
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To manage the response to and aftermath of any
potential disruption, in an effective and appropriate
manner to minimize business impact

•

To recover business operations to an acceptable
level as quickly as possible in a pre-determined
time window, should an incident result in disruption
to our critical business operations or support
services

•

To test and review at regular intervals, and revise
as required, the plans supporting business
continuity

Result

The company has optimized the financing cost through fixed rate
concessionary borrowing and has also ensured even distribution of
principal repayments.

Foreign
Exchange
Risk

•

responsible citizenship
& CSR activities
EPCL is a socially responsible organization with a
well-crafted CSR strategy. EPCL has heavily focused
its efforts towards uplifting the standard of living in
Ghaggar Pathak, a community close to the Port Qasim
Plant. These are elaborated below

education
School Construction Program with TCF
In collaboration with The Citizens Foundation, EPCL
established two new purpose-built schools at a cost of
Rs. 50.5 million to benefit the children of less-privileged
communities of Ghaggar Phattak villages and adjoining
areas. These two schools started operating in October
2020. EPCL will be playing an active role in the
provision of quality education in Ghaggar Phattak area
for more than 1,000 students through a total of four
schools.

Extracurricular Activities for TCF Students
EPCL employees actively engaged TCF Engro students
in various activities and learnings that went beyond the
classroom. From carrying out educational field trips, to
setting up libraries and organizing celebratory events,
students were given various platforms to enhance their
knowledge and showcase their potential.

The plan encompasses our response strategy,
minimum operating requirements, BCP team
organization, damage assessment, and primary site
restoration activities. It ensures preservation of critical
data by mapping out key elements of the process of
disaster recovery. Our management regularly evaluates
the threats to its business and infrastructure and has
developed a strategy to adequately respond to any
unpredictable challenges it might face.
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healthcare
Collaboration with SINA
EPCL has established a primary healthcare clinic for the
nearby community residents of Ghaggar Phattak
villages, Bin Qasim Town to improve their health
conditions with a spending of approximately Rs. 16
million to date. The services include screening, OPD,
doctor’s consultation, immunization, lab collection point,

and lab testing. The facility also includes an ultrasound
facility, a pharmacy for prescribed medicines with a
range of 150 medicines, preventive healthcare on
diabetes and a hypertension, eye and TB program with
its partners.
The clinic started operations in July 2019 and is
operating 6 days providing 100% free-of-cost services
to approximately 100 patients every day. EPCL has also
installed solar power systems at the clinic to fulfill the
electricity needs of the facility.

business ethics and
anti-corruption

•

8 paramedics and doctors employed at site

•

Frequent COVID-19 audits in line with international
guidelines

Business ethics is fundamental to EPCL and lies at the
heart of what we do. The board of directors of the
Company has unequivocally set down the acceptable
business practices and behaviors in the “Code of
Conduct” to ensure that all our business dealings are
undertaken whilst maintaining highest standards of ethical
values. We uphold a zero-tolerance policy against all
sorts of unethical practices, no matter how adverse the
outcome. This is ascertained through the implementation
of effectively designed and executed audit plans and
assurance procedures, which proscribe all sorts of
unethical behaviors and highlight matters causing
concerns regarding business conduct. In addition,
multiple channels are available to our stakeholders to
speak out, and identify practices and behaviors that are
unacceptable to our fundamental and core values.

By the grace of almighty and unparalleled resilience
shown by our people, we exceedingly succeeded in our
efforts and ensured zero transmission of COVID-19 on
site. However, during the year, unfortunately one of our
colleagues succumbed to the illness. We deeply
sympathize the loss of valuable life and pray that Allah
blesses the soul with eternal peace.

Corporate governance affects the way we direct our
company and the relationships we have with interested
parties. Management has placed due emphasis on
transparency and ethical practices, which play a
fundamental role in developing our employees and those
dealing with us in the capacity of vendors and customers
as responsible professionals and corporate citizens.

Water Purification Plants in Partnership
with The Water Foundation
Five water filtration plants have been successfully
installed at various locations across Ghaggar
Phattak to provide clean drinking water to over
5,000 households. Clean drinking water is a
luxury for many living in remote villages and far
flung areas. EPCL took on this responsibility and
established long-term solutions. All these water
filtration plants are based on solar power.

health, safety and
environment
COVID-19 presented the most unprecedented
challenges to HSE ever. The most pressing of the issues
that EPCL confronted this year were:
•

Ensuring compliance with COVID-19 protocols

•

Managing daily logistical movement of heavy
workforce

•

Accommodating the expansion workforce at site to
reduce outside exposure

With the safety of our people remaining our prime focus,
we undertook various proactive and timely measures to
subdue the challenges posed by the pandemic. Some of
the highlights of those measures include:
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•

Implementation of preventive measures before the
announcement of the lockdown

•

Development of in-house testing facility, which
conducted over 3,000 tests on site

In the beginning of 2020, an unfortunate isolated event of
chlorine leakage occurred at site. The company ensured
all affected staff had timely access to appropriate medical
care. In relation to the incident, a complete investigation
has been conducted by a competent incident review
committee and most of the recommendations proposed
by the committee have been implemented. We would like
to reiterate our resolve to ensure the safety of our people
and will take all necessary steps to ensure
implementation of the highest safely measures throughout
the organization. Demonstrating our commitment, EPCL
undertook several key HSE measures during the year,
which included:
•

benchmarking of practices and procedures with
international standards to improve our SOPs

•

Hosted MARSH Audit, IMS external audit new
standards of ISO 9001, ISO 14001 and OHSAS
45001, Opera audit by ECTD and EMS 2nd party
audit at site. Achieved satisfactory level in safety
performances

•

Several firefighting training sessions were conducted
by external fire chiefs. New fire truck for site was also
procured

EPCL is committed to green practices and pursue
continuous development for environment. In addition to
the carbon neutrality exercise this year, EPCL has also
conducted multiple environment audits and acquire
several approvals from SEPA, such as:
•

Environment impact assessment (EIA) for H2O2
along with NOC for Construction phase

•

Received NOC Renewal of Hazardous substance
license from SEPA

•

Approval of initial environment examination for TDS
extension

•

Received NOC for PVC – III operation
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information systems
EPCL has always maintained its reputation as an
organization that keeps up with the latest technology
and does not shy away from creativity and innovation.
As the world moves towards digitization, EPCL is
making sure it stays on top on this front as well.
In 2020, Digital Transformation Department was formed
with the aim of digitizing and automating each
department to improve their efficiency, make each
process more secure, improve productivity, reduce
human intervention, and go paperless so that each
process/operation is accessible to its employees from
anywhere, anytime and on any device. Keeping up with
EPCL’s vision, Digital Transformation Team was able to
deploy several state-of-the-art digital solutions in
technical and non-technical areas.
To cope with the pandemic and to encourage the
observance of government issued SOPs, an AI-based
solution called Work Safety Analytics was deployed.
This system alerts the relevant authorities when SOPs
are violated.

Social Distancing
Violations

Mask
Violations

Heat
Map
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To pursue the idea of Paperless Engro, the daily
logging/checklists were made digital using Digital Log,
by logging the same data on tablets rather than on
paper. Thus, reducing the paper usage and storing the
valuable plant data for future usage.
Similarly, Virtual Info Center was launched so that all
documents are available on one portal for users to
access from anywhere, at any time. It is not only a step
towards Paperless Engro but also an initiative to ease
and improve remote work.
The sales department was also automated to minimize
human intervention and improve the efficiency of sales
processes by implementing Salesforce, a digital
platform for customers to generate orders in real time
and for our internal users to approve, dispatch and
close orders on the go.
EPCL will continue to work with the same enthusiasm in
the coming years to improve each and every process by
introducing the latest digital technologies and becoming
an exemplary digital industry in Pakistan.

human resources
With an aim for continuous business excellence, EPCL
was quick to adapt, and has remained successful in
carrying out, work from home, without any compromise
to our business and our people. We launched several
new business initiatives and projects with an imperative
focus on learning and development, that too virtually.
With a persistent focus on e-learning, we renewed our
partnership with Harvard Manage Mentor and the
learning platform has proven beneficial and successful
because of its applicability and convenience. A total of
761 courses have been completed (an average of 3.2
courses per day) by different learners since the
distribution of licenses in September 2019.
To further leverage the knowledge and learning provided
by the platform, and to engage our people, EPCL HR
initiated a series of Learning Podcasts comprising of
six-hour long episodes on different business essential
topics. The idea of a learning podcast is based on the
concept of andragogy, which means adult learning and
learning from each other. Each episode has a separate
Management Committee executive acting as a learning
facilitator. The role of the facilitator is to enable learning
on a particular topic by sharing pertinent stories,
experiences, and examples. The podcast series has
been a huge success and the aggregate rating of all the
episodes has been 4 out of 5 stars.

There were keen efforts towards the development and
engagement of our people, and regardless of the
distance we attained executional excellence by
strengthening organization-level communications, and
the consequent achievement of business goals.
Initiatives such as gratitude day, celebration of national
and international days and positive tips on working from
home remained at the heart of the virtual employee
engagement strategy. Moreover, our flagship program
EPCL Cares, which was earlier suspended due to
COVID-19, was resumed in September. EPCL Cares
comes as a wholesome project that goes beyond
corporate experiences and is about celebrating
important moments in our employees’ lives including
their families.
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Moreover, our recruitment successfully managed to pull
off virtual information sessions, and virtual onboarding of
our Graduate Trainees for 2020. In what seemed
impossible at first, we also managed to successfully
carry out the first ever Virtual Internship series. We
managed to get the best talent from all over Pakistan in
a learning environment with exciting projects, and
though the entire internship was remote and virtual, the
learning outcomes were not compromised!
With the ‘new normal’ and virtual technologies in place,
it is also essential to mention the shift to digitized HR
services, to a mobile based application platform, the
aim of which is to make processes easier, smoother,
and more efficient at both ends. It is anticipated that
nearly 200,000 sheets of paper will be saved
throughout the year. As part of the digitization, a
performance management program was also
automated during the year on Success Factors, where
goal-setting, mid-year review, and final-year review are
all online.

stakeholder
engagement and
relations
EPCL believes in engaging with stakeholders across all
levels. During the past year we have used several
platforms including quarterly securities analyst briefings,
press releases, plant visits, disclosure to the stock
exchange on strategic matters and informal
conversations to this effect.
To comply with all regulatory requirements, the
company remains in close coordination with relevant
authorities including tax agencies, stock exchange and
Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).
We use formal and informal media such as meetings
and conferences to interact with our vendors and
customers. Our interactions with customers often
include technical assistance and business development
related to their businesses in our effort to benefit the
industry.
Employees are a core driving force behind the
company’s growth and, therefore, EPCL measures
employee motivation on regular intervals, benchmarks
its findings against industry standards, and shares them
with respective managers to formulate appropriate
strategies.

support required from
government
The Company seeks government support on the
following matters:

Gas Price Increase: Since 2018, the domestic industry
has already experienced multiple rounds of gas price
increases, with the most recent one in late 2020, which
impaired shareholder value. To ensure the local
industry’s competitiveness against international players,
and continued growth in domestic industrial base, it is
imperative for the government to control the continuous
increase in energy prices.

Gas Availability: Uncertainty over availability of gas
especially during the winter season exposes the
company and the wider industry to severe operational
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risks. It also has potential adverse impact on the
country’s exports on the back of shortage of feedstock.
Therefore, it is essential for the government to pursue
long-term solutions to this burning issue, so that
continuity of operations of the local industry can be
ensured.

GIDC case: During the year, the Supreme Court issued
an order on the GIDC matter, as a result of which the
Company is liable to make GIDC payment in equal
monthly installments. A review petition in this regard was
also dismissed by the honorable court. We would like to
highlight that, EPCL does not pass on the impact of
GIDC to customers as our PVC pricing is benchmarked
against international prices, whereas Caustic prices are
determined through demand-supply forces. Currently, a
stay order has been obtained from Sindh High Court
against the recovery of GIDC on the grounds of no
pass-through. We request the government to intervene
in this matter and hold effective negotiations with all
stakeholders for mutually beneficial resolution of the
issue.

Dumping of PVC: The country continues to
experience the dumping of PVC despite imposition of
final anti-dumping duty on products from China, Taiwan,
South Korea and Thailand. This has happened because
importers have started to venture into other regions,
such as Europe, North America and other Asian
countries. The government’s support in this area will
allow the company to serve the nation by way of import
substitution.

Definition of Greenfield Projects: The government
had announced, with retrospective impact via Finance
Amendment Ordinance, a definition of greenfield
project, which stipulates the requirement of a
completely new process or technology, whereas no
such requirement was laid out in the original bill. We
request the government to reconsider the measure or to
stop retrospective application of this definition.

Duty on PVC imports: With reference to recent
discussion among government authorities relating to
tariff rationalization. There is expectation that duty will
also be rationalized on PVC resin products. We would
like to highlight that, EPCL has invested ~USD 150
million on various growth and efficiency projects to
enhance domestic manufacturing of PVC and to add to
the economic growth of our country.
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We believe tariff rationalization will seriously impact our
investment and dent the investor confidence in the
long-term. Therefore, we request the government to
keep the current level of duty structure intact and
support us in our resolve to save valuable foreign
exchange for the country.

serve through our Caustic product line. The project
is ongoing and we will continue to keep
shareholders updated on the timelines.
•

future outlook
Despite various challenges posed by the pandemic,
which included lesser on-site manning and suspension
of operations during lockdown, EPCL continued to work
towards execution of its previously announced projects,
while continuing its endeavors to identify new projects
and markets. The timelines of the projects already under
progress have inevitably been impacted, however, our
commitment towards completion remains intact. The
driving force behind these efforts emanates from our
vision to lead Pakistan in polymers and allied chemicals
with an international footprint.
Update on projects are as follows:
•

•

•
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PVC / VCM Expansion: The expansion entails
additional PVC plant capacity of 100,000 MT (total
capacity of 295,000 MT post completion) and VCM
plant de-bottlenecking for incremental capacity of
50,000 MT. PVC III has achieved commercial
operations in March 2021, while work on VCM
project has entered its final stages and is expected
to be completed in Q2 2021.
Oxygen-based VCM Production: Operational
efficiency is a core focus of the company owing to
its positive impact on shareholder value.
Resultantly, the Board of Directors approved this
project with the objective of shifting VCM
production form an air-based to oxygen-based
process. This will reduce the overall raw material
consumption by ~2%. The project is underway and
is expected to be completed in 2021.
Hydrogen Peroxide: The Company generates
hydrogen as a by-product of its caustic
manufacturing process, which is currently being
used as fuel in our power plant. After completion of
the project, hydrogen will be diverted to this
manufacturing process, which will generate higher
value as compared to its utilization as fuel.
Hydrogen peroxide is mainly used as a bleaching
agent in the textile industry, a sector we already
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•

Linear Alkyl Benzene Sulphonic Acid (LABSA):
EPCL has continuously looked to create a
diversified product base to create new profit
streams and ensure it against commodity cycle
risks. To this end, the Board of Directors decided to
enter the LABSA market via a greenfield venture.
(LABSA is an integral part of powder detergent
recipe.) To ensure implementation of COVID-19
protocols, especially social distancing of human
resource at expansion site, we have currently put
this project on hold. We will update our
shareholders on future developments regarding the
project.
High Temperature Direct Chlorination (HTDC):
EPCL is always in search of energy efficient
solutions and also to optimize its energy
consumption. HTDC is an outcome of the
company’s efforts towards this objective. After
completion, this will reduce the company’s carbon
footprint and bring further energy efficiency. The
project is expected to come online in 2022

Looking ahead, the completion of the aforementioned
projects will remain the core focus of EPCL. These will
enable the company to continue its strong operational
and financial performance.

board evaluation
The Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019 mandatorily requires evaluation of the
Board of Directors as a whole, its committees and the
contribution of each director to the strategic direction
and steerage of the Company. In this regard, a comprehensive range of self-evaluation surveys were conducted in the Company with respect to the performance of
its Board of Directors and Board Committees. Equally
emphasized, the individual contribution of each Director
was assessed and evaluated during the year by the
Chairman of the Board.

corporate review
The shareholding in the company as at December 31, 2020 is as follow:

S No.

Shareholders Category

No. of Shareholders

No. of Shares

Percentage

1

Directors, Chief Executive Officer,
and their spouse and minor children

10

14,207

2

Associated Companies, Undertakings,
and related Parties

3

611,827,854

67.31

3

NIT and ICP

-

-

-

4

Banks, Development Financial Institutions,
Non-Banking Financial Institutions

12

17,133,696

1.89

5

Insurance Companies

13

28,329,388

3.12

6

Mutual Funds

90

102,051,402

11.23

7

Shareholders holding 10%

2

610,787,014

67.20

8

General Public:
27,003
-

119,735,485
-

13.17
-

194

29,831,301

3.28

27,325

908,923,333

100.00

a. local
b. foreign
9

Other
Total (excluding share holders holding 10%)

0

Information of Shareholding required under the reporting framework is as follows:
1. Associated Companies, Undertaking and Related Parties

Shareholders' Category

No. of Shares Held

Engro Corporation Limited

510,733,451

Mitsubishi Corporation

100,053,563

EPCL Employees’ Trust

1,040,840
611,827,854

annual report 2020

82

directors’ report

2.

Mutual Funds

Name

Holding

Name

Holding

ABL ISLAMIC DEDICATED STOCK FUND

303,690

JS LARGE CAP. FUND

112,000

ABL ISLAMIC PENSION FUND - EQUITY SUB FUND

78,199

JS PENSION SAVINGS FUND - EQUITY ACCOUNT

103,000

JS VALUE FUND

315,000

KSE MEEZAN INDEX FUND

956,271

ABL ISLAMIC STOCK FUND
ABL PENSION FUND - EQUITY SUB FUND
ABL STOCK FUND

71,699
3,589,370

LAKSON EQUITY FUND

2,133,042

AKD AGGRESSIVE INCOME FUND - MT

110,000

LAKSON INCOME FUND - MT

195,500

AKD INDEX TRACKER FUND

75,097

LAKSON ISLAMIC TACTICAL FUND

244,053

16,000

LAKSON TACTICAL FUND

244,778

3,073,041

MCB DCF INCOME FUND

AL AMEEN ISLAMIC DEDICATED EQUITY FUND
AL MEEZAN MUTUAL FUND
AL-AMEEN ISLAMIC ASSET ALLOCATION FUND
AL-AMEEN ISLAMIC RET. SAV. FUND-EQUITY SUB FUND
AL-AMEEN SHARIAH STOCK FUND

1,500

522,390

MCB PAKISTAN ASSET ALLOCATION FUND

695,490

MCB PAKISTAN STOCK MARKET FUND

4,215,155

5,197,472

610,036

MEEZAN ASSET ALLOCATION FUND

1,026,261

ALFALAH GHP ALPHA FUND

446,000

MEEZAN BALANCED FUND

1,378,454

ALFALAH GHP ISLAMIC DEDICATED EQUITY FUND

208,000

MEEZAN DEDICATED EQUITY FUND

ALFALAH GHP ISLAMIC STOCK FUND

1,262,500

637,144

MEEZAN ISLAMIC FUND

21,640,721
3,488,709

ALFALAH GHP STOCK FUND

957,000

MEEZAN TAHAFUZ PENSION FUND - EQUITY SUB FUND

ALFALAH GHP VALUE FUND

266,000

NAFA ISLAMIC PRINCIPAL PROTECTED FUND - II

51,529

ALHAMRA ISLAMIC ASSET ALLOCATION FUND

1,214,248

NBP BALANCED FUND

575,123

ALHAMRA ISLAMIC STOCK FUND

1,836,114

NBP FINANCIAL SECTOR INCOME FUND - MT

404,000
43,500
443,416
49,500

APF-EQUITY SUB FUND

122,000

APIF - EQUITY SUB FUND

153,500

NBP INCOME OPPORTUNITY FUND - MT
NBP ISLAMIC ACTIVE ALLOCATION EQUITY FUND

ASKARI ASSET ALLOCATION FUND

141,500

NBP ISLAMIC REGULAR INCOME FUND

ATLAS INCOME FUND - MT

304,000

NBP ISLAMIC SARMAYA IZAFA FUND

2,130,500

ATLAS ISLAMIC DEDICATED STOCK FUND

82,000

NBP ISLAMIC STOCK FUND

4,309,980

ATLAS ISLAMIC STOCK FUND

859,000

NBP MAHANA AMDANI FUND - MT

617,000

ATLAS STOCK MARKET FUND

2,126,500

NBP SARMAYA IZAFA FUND

530,857

AWT INCOME FUND

33,000

FAYSAL ASSET ALLOCATION FUND

193,000

FAYSAL ISLAMIC STOCK FUND
FAYSAL ISLAMIC DEDICATED EQUITY FUND
FAYSAL MTS FUND - MT
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2,418,675

NBP SAVINGS FUND - MT
NBP STOCK FUND

51,000
12,134,974

1,221,000

NIT INCOME FUND - MT

501,500

6,189,000
160,000

PAK OMAN ADVANTAGE ASSET ALLOCATION FUND

124,000

PAK OMAN ISLAMIC ASSET ALLOCATION FUND

222,500
145,687

FAYSAL STOCK FUND

922,500

PAKISTAN CAPITAL MARKET FUND

FIRST HABIB ASSET ALLOCATION FUND

78,000

PAKISTAN INCOME ENHANCEMENT FUND

FIRST HABIB ISLAMIC STOCK FUND

91,000

PAKISTAN INCOME FUND

FIRST HABIB STOCK FUND

70,000

PICIC GROWTH FUND

365,199

HBL - STOCK FUND

536,079

PICIC INVESTMENT FUND

265,462

HBL EQUITY FUND

187,500

HBL IPF EQUITY SUB FUND

80,885

TRUSTEE JS GROWTH FUND
UBL ASSET ALLOCATION FUND

835,000
137,368

HBL ISLAMIC ASSET ALLOCATION FUND

40,431

UBL DEDICATED EQUITY FUND

15,113

HBL ISLAMIC DEDICATED EQUITY FUND

16,000

UBL INCOME OPPORTUNITY FUND

77,000

HBL ISLAMIC EQUITY FUND

121,952

UBL RETIREMENT SAVINGS FUND - EQUITY SUB FUND

HBL ISLAMIC STOCK FUND

286,566

UBL STOCK ADVANTAGE FUND

HBL MULTI - ASSET FUND

57,000

UNIT TRUST OF PAKISTAN

HBL PF EQUITY SUB FUND

65,500

Total

JS ISLAMIC DEDICATED EQUITY FUND (JSIDEF)

24,902

JS ISLAMIC FUND

277,500

JS ISLAMIC PENSION SAVINGS FUND-EQUITY ACCOUNT

35,000
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5,000
500

690,872
3,150,898
56,000
102,051,402
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3. Directors and their spouses and minor children

9. Pattern of Shareholding – As at December 31, 2020

Shareholders' Category

No. of Shares Held

MR. GHIAS UDDIN KHAN

1

MR. ERAM HASAN

1

MR. NADIR SALAR QURESHI

1

MR. NORIYUKI KOGA

1

MR. RIZWAN MASOOD RAJA

1

4,000,374

1,001

5,000

5,232,553

526

5,001

10,000

4,109,803

190

10,001

15,000

2,497,301

128

15,001

20,000

2,372,636

97

20,001

25,000

2,238,229

65

25,001

30,000

1,835,083

48

30,001

35,000

1,596,779

23

35,001

40,000

873,919

25

40,001

45,000

1,074,157

44

45,001

50,000

2,151,338

26

50,001

55,000

1,384,827

17

55,001

60,000

987,454

12

60,001

65,000

759,112

15

65,001

70,000

1,033,982

No. of Shares Held

14

70,001

75,000

1,035,987

-

11

75,001

80,000

858,999

10

80,001

85,000

823,119

9

85,001

90,000

786,282

5

90,001

95,000

466,672

26

95,001

100,000

2,585,969

2

100,001

105,000

205,746

5

105,001

110,000

546,328

3

110,001

115,000

338,788

5

115,001

120,000

587,946

8

120,001

125,000

991,248

2

130,001

135,000

268,159

9

135,001

140,000

1,241,349

13,699

TOTAL

14,207

4. Executives
No. of Shares Held

Executives

460,711

5. Public sector companies and corporations

Public sector companies and corporations

6. Banks, Development Finance Institutions, Non-Banking Finance Companies, Insurance,
Takaful & Pension Funds
No. of Shares Held
45,463,084

7. Shareholding five percent or more voting interest in the Company
No. of Shares

Percentage of Holding

3

140,001

145,000

427,445

510,733,451
100,053,563

56.19
11.01

6

145,001

150,000

895,687

4

150,001

155,000

608,182

6

155,001

160,000

952,683

3

160,001

165,000

491,500

1

165,001

170,000

170,000

5

170,001

175,000

866,478

2

175,001

180,000

358,500

3

180,001

185,000

551,248

3

185,001

190,000

567,000

2

190,001

195,000

387,500

8

195,001

200,000

1,595,500

1

200,001

205,000

205,000

8. Details of purchase/sale of shares by Directors, Executives and their spouse/minor children
Shares Purchased

Shares Sold

Rate

500

-

48.26

Ayesha Aziz
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8,371,213

2,124

MRS. KULSUM ASHFAQ W/O Mr. ERAM HASAN

Names

13,193

500

1

Engro Corporation Limited
Mitsubishi Corporation

100
1,000

MR. NAZOOR ALI BAIG

Names of holders

Total Shares

501

1

Banks, Development Financial Institutions, Non-Banking Finance Companies, Insurance,
Takaful & Pension Funds

1

To

101

501

Shareholders' Category

From

5,469

MR. FEROZ RIZVI

Shareholders' Category

515

Size of Holding

17,689

MS. AYESHA AZIZ

Shareholders' Category

No. of Shareholders

Date of Purchase / Sale
11.12.2020
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Size of Holding

No. of Shareholders
2

From

To

205,001

210,000

No. of Shareholders

Size of Holding
From

To

Total Shares

417,592

1

570,001

575,000

575,000

575,001

580,000

1,154,909

2

210,001

215,000

424,500

2

2

215,001

220,000

437,500

2

595,001

600,000

1,200,000

2

220,001

225,000

447,500

1

610,001

615,000

610,036

683,542

1

615,001

620,000

617,000

464,404

1

635,001

640,000

637,144

680,001

685,000

1,369,956

3
2

225,001
230,001

230,000
235,000

1

235,001

240,000

237,000

2

2

240,001

245,000

488,831

1

685,001

690,000

689,088

250,000

1

690,001

695,000

690,872

695,001

700,000

695,490

1

245,001

250,000

2

250,001

255,000

504,146

1

2

255,001

260,000

513,121

1

740,001

745,000

743,500

1,069,902

1

745,001

750,000

750,000

1,095,071

1

760,001

765,000

763,000

780,001

785,000

785,000

4
4

265,001
270,001

270,000
275,000

2

275,001

280,000

553,770

1

1

280,001

285,000

280,991

1

790,001

795,000

792,041

1,150,864

1

820,001

825,000

821,973

830,001

835,000

835,000

4

285,001

290,000

2

295,001

300,000

600,000

1

3

300,001

305,000

912,690

1

845,001

850,000

846,905

305,493

1

855,001

860,000

859,000

628,324

1

865,001

870,000

869,278

895,001

900,000

900,000
914,462

1
2

305,001
310,001

310,000
315,000

1

315,001

320,000

318,500

1

3

325,001

330,000

985,052

1

910,001

915,000

336,995

1

920,001

925,000

922,500

955,001

960,000

1,913,271

1

335,001

340,000

2

345,001

350,000

696,500

2

1

350,001

355,000

352,000

1

965,001

970,000

968,500

995,001

1,000,000

1,000,000

1

365,001

370,000

365,199

1

1

390,001

395,000

390,441

1

1,000,001

1,005,000

1,000,500

3

395,001

400,000

1,195,999

1

1,025,001

1,030,000

1,026,261

404,000

1

1,040,001

1,045,000

1,040,840

1,226,328

1

1,065,001

1,070,000

1,067,000

1,195,001

1,200,000

1,200,000

1
3

400,001
405,001

405,000
410,000

1

410,001

415,000

410,986

1

1

435,001

440,000

439,500

1

1,210,001

1,215,000

1,214,248

1,220,001

1,225,000

1,221,000

1

440,001

445,000

443,416

1

2

445,001

450,000

896,000

1

1,260,001

1,265,000

1,262,500

1,374,138

1

1,365,001

1,370,000

1,369,956

1,375,001

1,380,000

1,378,454

3

455,001

460,000

1

475,001

480,000

480,000

1

4

495,001

500,000

2,000,000

1

1,385,001

1,390,000

1,388,000

1,001,534

1

1,405,001

1,410,000

1,405,016

1,725,001

1,730,000

1,728,199

2

500,001

505,000

1

505,001

510,000

509,000

1

1

510,001

515,000

513,335

1

1,805,001

1,810,000

1,807,000

522,390

1

1,835,001

1,840,000

1,836,114

1,061,030

2

1,995,001

2,000,000

4,000,000

2,125,001

2,130,000

2,126,500

1
2

87

Total Shares

520,001
530,001

525,000
535,000

2

535,001

540,000

1,075,579

1

1

540,001

545,000

542,714

2

2,130,001

2,135,000

4,263,542

1

550,001

555,000

552,500

1

2,415,001

2,420,000

2,418,675
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Size of Holding

No. of Shareholders

Total Shares

From

To

1

2,680,001

2,685,000

2,683,000

1

3,060,001

3,065,000

3,065,000

1

3,070,001

3,075,000

3,073,041

1

3,150,001

3,155,000

3,150,898

1

3,485,001

3,490,000

3,488,709

1

3,585,001

3,590,000

3,589,370

1

4,215,001

4,220,000

4,215,155

1

4,305,001

4,310,000

4,309,980

1

4,600,001

4,605,000

4,600,345

1

4,760,001

4,765,000

4,763,582

1

5,195,001

5,200,000

5,197,472

1

5,660,001

5,665,000

5,662,501

1

6,185,001

6,190,000

6,189,000

1

8,465,001

8,470,000

8,465,196

1

12,130,001

12,135,000

12,134,974

1

21,640,001

21,645,000

21,640,721

1

25,155,001

25,160,000

25,159,000

1

32,165,001

32,170,000

32,167,000

1

100,050,001

100,055,000

100,053,563

1

510,725,001

510,735,000

510,733,451

27,325

908,923,333

board meetings and attendance

In 2020, the Board of Directors held 9 meetings to cover its complete cycle of activities. The attendance record of the
Directors is as follows:
Director's Name
Ghias Uddin Khan
Eram Hasan
Nadir Salar Qureshi
Noriyuki Koga
Rizwan Masood Raja*
Ayesha Aziz*1
Feroz Rizvi
Nazoor Ali Baig*
Jahangir Piracha*2
Hasnain Moochhala*3
Imran Anwer*3
Rahat Kaunain Hassan*4
* Elected as Director with effect from April 23, 2020
*1 Co-opted as Director on November 5, 2020 in place of Ms. Rahat Kaunain Hassan
*2 Appointed as CEO on April 23, 2020
*3 Retired on completion of tenure on April 23, 2020
*4 Elected as Director with effect from April 23, 2020 and Resigned from board with effect from July 10, 2020
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Meeting Attended
9
9
8
7
3
1
8
4
4
5
5
1

board composition
Male
Female

8
1

Categories

Names
Mr. Feroz Rizvi
Mr. Nazoor Ali Baig
Ms. Ayesha Aziz

Independent
Executive – CEO

Mr. Jahangir Piracha
Mr. Ghias Khan
Mr. Eram Hasan
Mr. Nadir Salar Qureshi

Non-Executive

Mr. Noriyuki Koga
Mr. Rizwan Masood Raja
Board Audit Committee
Mr. Feroz Rizvi
Mr. Eram Hasan
Mr. Noriyuki Koga
Mr. Nazoor Ali Baig

Chairman
Member
Member
Member

Board Compensation Committee*
Mr. Nadir Salar Qureshi
Mr. Rizwan Masood Raja
Mr. Feroz Rizvi

Member
Member
Member

* Post resignation of Ms. Rahat Konain (Ex-Chairman BPC) during the year, Chairman of BPC will be appointed in the next meeting.

directors’ remuneration

accounting standards

The remuneration paid to the members of the Board for
attendance of Board and Committee meetings has been
duly approved by the Board of Directors. The details of
the aggregate amount of remuneration paid to the
directors is disclosed in the financial statement.
The Board of Directors have duly approved the policy
and procedure for remuneration of the Directors for
attendance of Board and Committee meetings in
accordance with the Companies Act, 2017 and the
listed companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019.

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards
as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting
standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

major judgment areas

Where provisions of and directives issued under the
Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRSs, the
provisions of, and directives issued under, the
Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

Main areas related to Income Taxes, provisions,
contingencies/commitments, Deferred Tax Assets, and
other areas involving subjective judgements that have
material impact on financial statements are detailed in
the notes to the financial statements.

•

•

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act,
2017; and
Provision of, and directives issued under, the
Companies Act, 2017.
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provident fund
In 2013, the Company replaced its provident fund with
the provident fund (the Fund) operated and managed
by Engro Corporation Limited, the Holding Company.

Accordingly, the following information is based on the
latest audited financial statements of the Fund
maintained by the Holding Company as at June 30,
2020 and unaudited financial statements as at
December 31, 2020.

board’s policy on
gender diversity
The board fosters gender diversity at all levels with the
organization. In relation to this, Ms. Ayesha Aziz was
appointed as an independent director on EPCL board
during the outgoing year.

compliance with
corporate governance
The Board of Directors reviews all significant matters of
the Company. This includes, but is not limited to, the
Company’s strategic direction, annual business plans
and targets, decisions on long-term investment and
borrowings. The Board of Directors is committed to
maintaining high standards of corporate governance.
The Board of Directors is pleased to report that:
•

91

The financial statements prepared by the
management present fairly its state of affairs, the
results of its operations, cash flows and changes in
equity

•

Proper books of accounts have been maintained

•

Appropriate accounting policies have been
consistently applied in preparation of financial
statements and accounting estimates are based
on reasonable and prudent judgment

•

International Accounting Standards, as applicable
in Pakistan, have been followed in preparation of
financial statements and any departure therefrom
has been adequately disclosed
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•

•

December 31, 2020

June 30, 2020

security clearance
of foreign director

5,214,009,648
4,955,254,959
95.04%
5,086,128,397

4,723,723,111
4,555,980,251
96.45%
4,699,070,565

The Company follows the SECP guidelines for
appointment of any foreign director and subject to
issuance of security clearance from the Ministry of
Interior, foreign directors are appointed.

Details of the fund are as follows:
Total Assets
Cost of Investments
Percentage of Investment made
Fair value of Investments

briefed about the market dynamics that impact the
company, its operations and its long-term strategy.
They are also informed of their fiduciary responsibilities
towards all stakeholders.

•

The system of internal control is sound in design
and has been effectively implemented and
monitored

•

There are no significant doubts about the ability of
the Company to continue as a going concern

•

There have been no departures from the best
practices of corporate governance, as detailed in
the listing regulations

board’s assessment of
the principal risks
The Board has reviewed the risks facing the company,
including but not limited to those that would threaten
the business model, future performance, solvency or
liquidity.

training program for
directors
The Directors Training program has been completed by
Mr. Ghias Khan, Mr. Feroz Rizvi, Mr. Nadir Salar
Qureshi, Mr. Eram Hasan, Ms. Ayesha Aziz during the
preceding years from recognized institutions of
Pakistan, approved by the SECP. Training of Mr.
Rizwan Masood Raja was delayed due to COVID-19
and was held in January 2021.

board and
management
decision matrix
(How the Board operates)
The board of the company sets the strategic direction
for the company and monitors its implementation plans
and progress. Meanwhile the core responsibility of the
management is to ensure the implementation of the
strategies approved by the board. The management is
empowered by the board to take necessary decisions
to manage the operations of the company and
execution of strategies.

implementing
governance practices
exceeding legal
requirements
Being a responsible corporate citizen, the Company
has always conducted itself in a responsible and clear
manner. To foster transparency the Company:

•

•

•

•
•

benchmarks reporting requirements against ICAP /
ICMAP and SAFA prescribed guidelines
has adopted a stringent insider trading policy which
goes beyond the legal requirement
holds quarterly analyst briefings and regularly
interacts with all stakeholders
Implementation of health, safety, and environment
policy as a testimony of our commitment to protect
our people, community, and environment.
Undertaking several health and education projects
for improving the livelihood of surrounding
communities
Obligation on employees of group companies to
follow the close period requirements
Privately owned subsidiaries of the Company
comply with benchmark governance practices

shares traded and
average prices
During the year 836 million shares of the Company
were traded on Pakistan Stock Exchange. The average
price of the Company’s share, based on daily closing
rates, was Rs. 34.38. The 52-week low-high during
2020 was Rs. 22.47 – 49.17 per share, respectively.

dividends
The Board of Directors declared final cash dividend of
Rs. 1.247 per ordinary share and Rs. 0.042 per
preference share and is to be approved by the
shareholders in Annual General meeting.

auditors
The present auditors, M/s A.F. Ferguson & Co. retire,
and offer themselves for reappointment. The Board
Audit Committee has recommended the reappointment
and the Board of Directors has endorsed the
recommendation.

director orientation
The company’s director come from diverse
backgrounds and bring a wealth of experience with
them. At the induction of a new director, they are

Mr. Jahangir Piracha

Mr. Feroz Rizvi

Chief Executive Officer

Director
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our statement of best
practices
•

Overall, work towards creating an environment
which promotes the realization of our Vision and
Values, by focusing on behavioral modification and
systematic changes

•

Challenge the status quo by experimenting and
taking reasonable and calculated risks

•

Think EPCL, by placing Company interest above
individual, sectional and departmental interests

•

Collectively develop clear, concise and realistic
goals, also agreeing on the process of achieving
these before implementation

•

Balance task, team and individual needs, by
keeping the helicopter view

•

Work through teams, by valuing all ideas and
effectively committing people through consensus
building and active involvement

•

Remind each other on the importance of using
participatory processes, just as much as
emphasizing attention on safety, quality and
continuous improvement

•

Recognize individual needs and help fulfill them

•

Trust each other by delegating authority and
decision making to the lowest possible level

•

Encourage sharing clear, consistent, and timely
feedback for learning and growth

•

Give everyone a chance by listening patiently and
thinking before speaking

•

Recognize team and individual efforts to change by
celebrating both lessons and successes

our code of conduct
The policy of EPCL is one of the strict observances of
all laws applicable to its business. Our policy does not
stop there. Even where the law is permissive, EPCL
chooses the course of the highest integrity. Local
customs and traditions differ from place to place, and
this must be recognized. But honesty is not subject to
criticism in any culture. Shades of dishonesty simply
invite demoralizing and reprehensible judgments. A
well-founded reputation for scrupulous dealing is itself a
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priceless Company asset.
An overly-ambitious employee might have the mistaken
idea that we do not care how results are obtained, as
long as they get results. They might think it’s best not to
tell higher management all that they are doing, not to
record all transactions accurately in their books and
records, and to deceive the Company’s internal and
external auditors. They would be wrong on all counts.
We do care about how we get results. We expect
compliance with our standards of integrity throughout
the organization. We will not tolerate an employee who
achieves results at the cost of violation of laws or
unscrupulous dealing. By the same token, we support
and we expect you to support, an employee who
passes up an opportunity or advantage which can only
be secured at the sacrifice of principle.
Equally important, we expect candor from managers at
all levels and compliance with accounting rules and
controls. We don’t want employees to misrepresent
facts, whether they are misrepresenting in a mistaken
effort to protect us or to make themselves look good.
One of the kinds of harm that result when a manager
conceals information from higher management and the
auditors is that subordinates within his organization think
they are being given a signal that Company policies and
rules, including accounting and control rules, can be
ignored whenever inconvenient.
This can result in corruption and demoralization of an
organization. Our system of management will not work
without honesty, including honest bookkeeping, honest
budget proposals and honest economic evaluation of
projects.
It has been and continues to be EPCL’s policy that all
transactions shall be accurately reflected in its books
and records. This, of course, means that falsification of
its books and records and any off-the-record bank
accounts are strictly prohibited.

implementing
governance practices
exceeding legal
requirements
Being a responsible corporate citizen, the Company
has always conducted itself in a responsible and clear
manner. To foster transparency the Company:

•

Benchmarks reporting requirements against ICAP /
ICMAP and SAFA prescribed guidelines

•

Has adopted a stringent insider trading policy which
goes beyond the legal requirement

•

Holds quarterly analyst briefings and regularly
interacts with all stakeholders

•

Implementation of health, safety, and environment
policy as a testimony of our commitment to protect
our people, community, and environment.

•

Undertaking several health and education projects
for improving the livelihood of surrounding
communities

•

Obligation on employees of group companies to
follow the close period requirements

•

Privately owned subsidiaries of the Company
comply with benchmark governance practices

governance framework
Our Governance Framework is designed to ensure that
the Company embodies its core values and principles,
institutionalizing excellence in everything that we do.
Driven by the highest standards of integrity,
transparency and zeal to protect stakeholders' value,
EPCL has benchmarked its Governance Framework on
the industry's best practices. The Board of Directors
and Senior Management place significant emphasis on
internal controls, which trickles down to each and every
employee in the Company.
Our Corporate Governance is grounded on the basis of
proper management policies and the organization
conforms to accepted guidelines of Pakistan Stock
Exchange Limited as well as the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP). The Board
of Directors is committed to honest, ethical,
knowledgeable and comprehensive management and
to implement good Corporate Governance as a means
of accomplishing maximum success and effectiveness
for the Company. Corporate Governance is a tool for
enhancing and reinforcing our values and sustainable
growth. Developing good Corporate Governance is an
iterative process and aims to incorporate standards that
are universally practiced and appreciated.

the internal environment
The organization is structured in a way that corresponds
well to its business plan, and responsibilities are clearly

assigned to each department. High-quality personnel
are hired and given continuous opportunities to develop
knowledge, competencies and represent the
Company's commitment to ethical and professional
business standards. The organization also encourages
employees to participate as well as understand their
work, while instilling in them the responsibility of
reducing risk. Work is consistently being upgraded,
improved and fashioned in such a way that internal
controls form an integral part of operations. Operating
manuals of key functions have been produced to
ensure efficiency of operations and avoid duplication of
effort.

internal control
framework
Responsibility
The Board is ultimately responsible for EPCL's system
of internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness.
Such a system is designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure in achieving business
objectives and provides reasonable assurance against
material misstatements or losses that the Company
could possibly face.
The Board, whilst maintaining its overall responsibility for
managing risk within the Company, has delegated the
detailed design and operation of the system of internal
controls to the Chief Executive Officer.

Framework
An established control framework is maintained by the
organization, constituting clear structures, authority limits
and accountabilities. All policies and standard operating
procedures are properly documented in operating
manuals. Both corporate strategy and the Company's
business objectives are established by the Board, after
which they are integrated by divisional management into
business strategies with supporting financial objectives.

Risk Assessment
EPCL conducts its operations keeping in view the risks
involved and has instituted measures to control risk and
ensure that it remains manageable. In this way, damage
due to risk is minimized and stability is ensured.
Long-term and annual plans are designed ensuring that
concrete measures of success can be obtained. Audit
operations and insurance measures are also
continuously improved with the help of various tools in
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the effort to reduce risk.

Control Activities
The Company has determined a number of control
activities that are in accordance with the nature of
business operations and has assigned responsibilities
in such a way that mutual supervision is in effect.

Operating Paradigm of EPCL Board
The Board of the Company sets the strategic direction
for the Company and monitors its implementation plans
and progress. Meanwhile, the core responsibility of the
management is to ensure the implementation of the
strategies approved by the Board. The management is
empowered by the Board to take the necessary
decision to manage the operations of the company.

evaluation of board,
committees, CEO and
the chairman
As at December 31, 2020 the Board comprises of one
Executive Director, three Independent Directors, and
five Non-Executive Directors, four of whom are
executives in other Engro Group companies, who have
the collective responsibility for ensuring that the affairs
of the Company are managed competently and with
integrity.

Governance) Regulations 2019 mandatorily requires
evaluation of the Board of Directors as a whole, its
Committees, and the contribution of each Director to
the strategic direction and steerage of the Company. In
this regard, a comprehensive range of self-evaluation
surveys were conducted in the Company with respect
to the performance of its Board of Directors and Board
Committees. Purposive feedback from all Board
members was solicited on areas of strategic clarity &
beliefs, direction of business plan, and functional
adequacy of its role.
Equal emphasis is given to evaluating and assessing
the individual contribution of each Director during the
year by the Chairman of the Board, highlighting
significant areas of development for them.
The evaluation of the members of the Board and its
committees (i.e. Board Audit Committee and Board
Peoples Committees) is carried out internally on the
following premise:
•

•

•

A Non-Executive Director, Mr. Ghias Uddin Khan, chairs
the Board and the Chief Executive Officer is
Mr. Jahangir Piracha. Biographical details of the
Directors are given on pages 43 to 46 of the annual
report.
A Board of Directors’ meeting calendar is issued
annually that schedules the matters reserved for
discussion and approval. The Board met 9 times this
year and discussed matters relating to inter alia current
year performance and long-term planning, giving
consideration both to the opportunities and risks of
future strategy.
All Board members are given appropriate
documentation in advance of each Board meeting. This
normally includes a detailed analysis on businesses and
full papers on matters where the Board will be required
to make a decision or give its approval.

Evaluation
The Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
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•

Timeliness: The Board Members receive timely
meeting notices, clearly describing the agenda of
the meetings, followed by the duly circulation of its
minutes.
Preparedness: The Board Members are provided
with the well-structured financial and non-financial
reports on significant matters at least seven days
before the meeting.
Participation and inclusivity: The Board meetings
are conducted in a manner that ensures open
communication, meaningful participation, and timely
resolution of issues. The Board Members respect
the difference between the Board’s policy- making
role and CEO’s management role.
Transparency: The Board Members determine
goals, expectation and concerns, and ensure its
due communication to the CEO.

The evaluation of CEO and Chairman is also carried out
on above criteria.

new Board member. The orientation plan is devised to
familiarise the new member with the business. Each
Divisional Head of the Company takes them through a
presentation pertaining to their own divisions, and
macro-level policies are discussed. During the year,
orientations of Ms. Ayesha Aziz, Mr. Nazoor Ali Baig and
Ms. Rahat Kaunain Hassan were conducted by the
Management.

of the Company’s CEO. The CEO is entrusted with the
general management of the Company’s operations and
to do all acts which include:

training program for
directors
The Directors Training program has been completed by
Mr. Ghias Khan, Mr. Feroz Rizvi, Mr. Nadir Salar
Qureshi, Mr. Eram Hasan and Ms. Ayesha Aziz during
the preceding years from recognized institutions of
Pakistan, approved by the SECP. Training of Mr. Rizwan
Masood Raja was delayed due to COVID and was held
in January 2021.

role of chairman and
CEO

The Human Resource department chalks out a formal
orientation plan, which is followed at the induction of a

Compliance with regulations and best practices

•

Ensuring effective functioning of internal control
system

•

Identifying risks and designing mitigation strategies

•

Safeguarding of Company’s assets

•

Development of human capital and good investor
relations

•

Sustainable growth of shareholder value

•

Identification of potential diversification / investment
projects

•

Implementation of projects approved by the Board

•

Preservation and promotion of the Company’s
image

•

Endorse quarterly, half-yearly, and annual financial
statements, after external auditors initials in case of
half-yearly and annual financial statements, prior to
placing and circulating for consideration and
approval of the Board

•

Placement of significant issues for the information,
consideration, and decision, as the case may be,
to the Board or its committees

Responsibilities of the Chairman
Every meeting of the Board is to be headed by a
Chairman. The Chairman of a Board is responsible to
lead the Board and its proceedings and ensure that it
plays an effective role in fulfilling its responsibilities. The
Chairman is empowered and responsible to:
•

Issue letter to directors setting out their role,
obligations, powers, and responsibilities in
accordance with the Company’s Act, 2017, and
the Articles of Association, their remuneration, and
entitlement;

•

Set the agenda of the Board meetings and ensure
sufficient time is allocated for discussion of the
same;

•

Ensure that statutory requirements are fulfilled
including the issuance, authentication and
maintenance of the minutes of meetings of the
Board of Directors; and

•

Regulate and monitor the process of voting,
including making demand of a poll.

The overall performance of the Board, its committees,
Chairman and CEO measured based on approved
criteria remained satisfactory.

formal orientation of
our board

•

Responsibilities of the Chief Executive Officer
(CEO)

presence of chairman
at the annual general
meeting
The Company’s Annual General Meeting (AGM) was
held on April 23, 2020 which was attended by the
Chairman of the Board along with the other Board
members including CEO and other senior management.

external consultancy
for appointment of the
chairman
No external search consultancy has been used in the
appointment of the Chairman or Non-Executive
Directors.

The Board of Directors set the role and responsibilities
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chairman’s significant
commitments
Mr. Ghias Khan was reappointed as a Non-Executive
Director and Chairman of the Board of EPCL on April
23rd, 2020. Mr. Ghias is the CEO of Engro Corporation
Limited and serves on the boards of several
companies. The details of his other engagements as
Director, and Trustee are given in his profile. He does
not have any significant commitment other than the one
mentioned in his profile.

sponsors, directors
and executives
shareholding
Information relating to shares held by Sponsor,
Directors and Executives has been disclosed in
Directors Report on page 85.

companies where
executive directors
are serving as
non-executive directors
Mr. Jahangir Piracha is the only Executive Director of
the Company. The details of his directorships on the
Board of other companies are mentioned in his
respective profile on page 43 of this report.

Mr. Salman Hafeez – General Manager Human
Resoruce.

The terms of reference of the Committee include the
following:

The Chief Executive Officer is invited to attend the
Committee’s meetings as appropriate.

•

Determination of appropriate measures to
safeguard the Company’s assets;

The terms of reference of the Committee include the
following:

•

Review of quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial
statements of the listed company, prior to their
approval by the Board of Directors;

•

•

Ensuring coordination between the internal and
external auditors of the Company; and

Recommend to the Board the right HR
Management policies and practices aligned to
deliver best-in-class talent for Engro companies
(and future portfolio needs);

•

Monitoring management’s compliance with all
Company’s policies including complaints received
through the Speak Out – Whistle Blower System

•

Recommend to the Board the right compensation
framework for the CEO and direct reports, and an
overall compensation philosophy that serves as the
strategic driver for the organization;

Attendance of Board Audit Committee

Director’s name

Meetings attended

Mr. Feroz Rizvi

7

Mr. Nazoor Ali Baig

3

Mr. Eram Hasan

3

Mr. Noriyuki Koga

4

Mr. Hasnain Moochhala

4

Ms. Rahat Kaunain

0

board audit committee
Following Directors served in the Board Audit
Committee during the year:

Following Directors served in the Board People’s
Committee during the year:

•

Mr. Feroz Rizvi – Chairman

•

Mr. Nazoor Ali Baig – Member from April 23, 2020

•

Mr. Eram Hasan – Member

•

Mr. Noriyuki Koga – Member

•

Mr. Hasnain Moochhala – Member untill
April 23, 2020

•

Ms. Rahat Kaunain – Member till July 10, 2020
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•

During the year, seven meetings were held out of which
four were conducted virtually:

board people’s
committee

The committee appoints secretary of the committee
who shall either be the Company Secretary or Head of
Internal Audit. Presently, this role is exercised by Mr.
Kalimuddin A. Khan – General Manager Internal Audit.
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The Chief Financial Officer is invited to attend the
Committee’s meetings as appropriate.

• Mr. Feroz Rizvi – Member
• Mr. Nadir Salar Qureshi – Member
• Mr. Rizwan Masood Raja – Member
from April 23, 2020
• Mr. Ghias Uddin Khan – Member till April 23, 2020
• Ms. Rahat Kaunain – Chairman & Member
till July 10, 2020
The Secretary of the Committee is nominated by the
Chairman and is either the Chief People’s Officer (or
duly authorized delegate) or the Company Secretary to
the Board. Presently, this role is exercised by

Recommend to the Board the selection,
separation, and compensation of statutory positions
(CEO, Company Secretary, CFO, and Head of
Internal Audit);

•

Recommend to the Board a compensation
framework for directors and

•

Recommend to the Board matters relating to the
succession planning of key senior management
positions reporting to the CEO.

Attendance of Board People’s Committee
During the year, four meetings were held out of which
three were conducted virtually:

Director’s name

Meetings attended

Mr. Feroz Rizvi

4

Mr. Nadir Salar Quershi

2

Mr. Rizwan Masood Raja

0

Mr. Ghias Uddin Khan

3

Mr. Rahat Kaunain

0

details of board
meetings held outside
Pakistan during the year

beneficial (including
indirect) ownership
and flow chart of group
shareholding
Complete disclosure of Engro Polymer & Chemicals
Limited shareholders has been provided in Director’s
Report on page 82. In addition, group shareholding and
direct & indirect ownerships of the Company are
demonstrated on page 18.

compliance with best
practices of code of
corporate governance
Information relating to compliance with the best
practices of code of Corporate Governance have been
provided on pages 177 - 179.

board approved
policies
Board remuneration policy
The remuneration paid to the members of the Board for
attendance of Board and Committee meetings has
been duly approved by the Board of Directors. The
details of the aggregate amount of remuneration paid to
the Directors is disclosed in the Financial Statement.
The Board of Directors has duly approved the policy
and procedure for remuneration of the Directors for
attendance of Board and Committee meetings in
accordance with the Companies Act, 2017 and the
listed companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019.
The remuneration of Directors is determined by the
Board considering the following parameters:
a)

The remuneration shall be appropriate and
commensurate with the level of responsibility and
expertise of the Directors;

b)

It shall be aimed at attracting and retaining the
Directors needed to govern the Company
successfully and to encourage value addition;

c)

It shall not be at a level that could be perceived to

During 2020, all Board meetings were held in Pakistan.
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d)

e)

f)

compromise or influence in any way the
independence of the Director;

conflict of interest policy

No Director shall determine his/her own
remuneration nor of a Director who may be a
related party;

At Engro Polymer & Chemicals Limited, every
employee, Director, and Executive is required to avoid
any direct or indirect interests, which might conflict with
the interests of the Company when dealing with
customers, suppliers, contractors, competitors or any
other person or organization doing or seeking to do
business with the Company or any affiliate.

No remuneration shall be paid to Executive
Directors, Chief Executive Officer and
Non-Executive Directors who are employees in
other Engro entities, for attending meetings of the
Board and its committees; and
The Board, if deems appropriate, may engage
independent consultant to determine the
appropriate level of remuneration of its Directors
and recommend to the Board for consideration and
approval.

policy for security
clearance of foreign
directors
The Company follows the SECP guidelines for
appointment of any foreign Director and subject to
issuance of security clearance from the Ministry of
Interior, foreign Directors are appointed.

contracts /
transactions with
related parties
The Company has an established and approved policy
of governing transactions between the Company and its
Related Parties, in compliance with the requirements of
Section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017 and the
Companies (Related Party Transactions and
Maintenance of Related Records) Regulations, 2018.
The policy provides a framework for governance and
reporting of Related Party Transactions, and is intended
to ensure due and timely approval, disclosure including
its pricing policy and reporting of transactions between
the Company and any of its Related Parties in
compliance with the applicable laws.
During the period, the Company has not entered into
any contract or arrangement, other than ordinary course
of business on an arm’s length basis, with its related
parties.

Additionally, in the event of such conflicts arising in the
conduct of employees', executives' or directors'
personal affairs, including transactions in securities of
the Company, of any affiliate, or any unaffiliated
company having a business relationship with Company
interests, full compliance with the restrictions and set of
disclosures requirements laid down by the
Management should be ensured. A robust mechanism
to report exceptions, if any, has been established within
the Company.

investor relations
policy
Engro Polymer & Chemicals Limited. strives to develop
and maintain trustworthy relations with its stakeholders,
including shareholders and investors. It recognizes the
importance of timely and fair disclosure of all material
information to them, without advantage to any particular
investor, group or investment advisor / analyst, in order
to enable them to make informed decisions about
investing in the Company’s equity and other debt
instruments. Accordingly, the Board has approved
investor relations policy to manage the relationships with
all stakeholders. The policy requires the Company to;
•

•

•

Establish a portal to handle shareholders / other
investors’ complaints and tackle any problems that
they may be facing with regard to their investments
or access to relevant corporate communications
Disclose all material information in a fair and
transparent manner in compliance with legal
requirements and listing regulations of the Pakistan
Stock Exchange where it is listed
Disclose, through designated spokespersons,
other financial or non-financial information that it
considers useful for enhancing stakeholders
understanding. This may be done through analysts
briefings, press releases, television programs or
postings on the Company’s website

•

Observe a “quiet period” prior to the announcement
of quarterly / annual results, during which it will
decline to respond to inquiries about its business
performance and related matters to prevent
information leaks and maintain fairness in disclosure

investors’ grievance
policy
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During the meeting, several questions pertaining to the
Company’s business were asked by the shareholders
which were answered satisfactorily by the CEO & CFO.
Thereupon, the meeting was concluded without any
pending query on the unresolved issue.

The Company values the relationship it has with all its
stakeholders and continuously strives to take measures
to strengthen the same. To facilitate all stakeholders
and provide them with access to communicate any
query or complaint to the Company, a dedicated
investor complaint section is maintained at Company’s
website www.engropolymer.com and Company contact
details are also disclosed in “Company Information”
section of this report. In addition, Corporate
Communication department of the Company
dedicatedly monitors all the queries and resolves them it
timely manner. The complaints which mandate attention
of the senior management are timely escalated to the
relevant individuals with complete details.

policy for safety
records of the company

communication
to investors

•

Roles and responsibilities of all functions and
departments to ensure that a proper mechanism is
in place within their department for backup of
electronic data and digitization and archival of
critical hard copy documents.

•

Arrangements for storage of ERP systems and
business data at secure location with
state-of-the-art protections against physical
deterioration, fire, natural disasters.

•

Availability of suitable alternate site for backup of
critical information systems including defining the
methodologies for replication of applications on the
alternate site based on industry‘s best practices.

•

Mechanism and arrangements for digitization
(through a Document Management Solution) and
archival of critical hard copy data and for backup of
critical electronic data.

The investors’ relations section on the Company’s
website (www.engropolymer.com) is updated regularly
to provide detailed and latest company information
including financial highlights, investor information and
other requisite information. In addition, the Company
quarterly holds analyst briefings where the CFO of the
Company Brief the stakeholders about the financial and
operational performance of the Company and holds a
comprehensive Q&A session to address all queries and
clarifications.
Period

Date

Place

Q4 2019 / FY 2019

February 6,
2020

Harbour Front
Building, Karachi

Q1 2020

April 17,
2020

Video link facility

Q2 2020

August 10,
2020

Video link facility

Q3 2020

October 19,
2020

Video link facility

The Company holds its Annual General Meeting (AGM)
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of the shareholders considering the Companies Act,
2017, Rule Book of Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX),
Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance
Regulations), 2019 and its Articles of Association.

The Company has a policy in place relating to records
retention for periods that exceeded the minimum
requirement prescribed by Companies Act, 2017 and
other applicable regulatory requirements. The Company
has also strived to retain documents electronically
through its Digitization drive.
The Company also has a policy governing the safety of
business records maintained in the ERP system which
covers following the aspects:

Moreover, the Company has a structed and an
approved Business Continuity Plan (BCP) to deal with
unforeseen circumstances disrupting the operations of
the Company. This plan encompasses our response
strategy, minimum operating requirements, BCP team
organization, damage assessment, and primary site
restoration activities. It ensures preservation of critical
data by mapping out key elements of the process of
disaster recovery.

annual report 2020

100

governance

IT governance policy
Information Technology (IT) Governance is an integral
part of enterprise governance and consists of the
Leadership, Organizational Structures and Processes at
EPCL. IT Governance aims to ensure that IT activities
are aligned with business objectives and that
stakeholder requirements of Value Delivery, Risk
Optimization, and Resource Optimization are
addressed. The Enterprise IT Governance Framework
aims to achieve the following objectives:
•

Alignment of IT goals with business

•

Meet stakeholders’ requirements relating to risk
optimization, resource optimization and value
delivery

•

Support the decision-making process regarding
governance and management of IT by providing
sufficient information and reports

•

•

•

Achieve effective and prudent IT project
management and IT resources management
processes

to not only abide by the Company’s Code of Business
Conduct but also encourages all to speak out about
any concerns they have regarding business ethics
including corruption, frauds, incorrect financial reporting,
violation of applicable Health, Safety & Environmental
standards, harassment, discrimination, other unfair
employment practices, or other possible breaches of
applicable laws and corporate policies.
All complaints and concerns should be reported on the
Speakout platform at Speakout@engro.com for
confidential investigation.

human resource
management policies
EPCL’s Human Resource policy is designed to attract,
induct, develop, retain and motivate high caliber talent
who are qualified, capable and willing to contribute
towards the company’s long-term and short-term
objectives. To accomplish this, the HR policies have
been developed encompassing the following principles:
•

Equal Opportunity

Enabling enterprise business strategies by
developing technological infrastructure and
information systems

•

Training and Development

•

Performance Management

Ensure the necessary protection of assets through
optimization of IT Risk Management

•

Compensation and Benefits

•

Diversity and Non-Discrimination

•

Comply with legal and regulatory requirements,
internal controls and monitoring, and related
policies and procedures

•

Maximize the satisfaction level of end user with
respect to IT services

•

Employ a comprehensive sourcing strategy to
manage third parties/vendors relationship

whistleblower policy
Speak Out – the whistleblowing system has been
established by the Board as an integral part of
governance at EPCL and it acts as an additional
measure to promote and strengthen high standards of
governance and business conduct.
EPCL expects all employees, suppliers and contractors

succession planning
Every year at Engro Polymer & Chemicals Limited,
"Talent Review Sessions” are conducted. The main
objective of talent review process is to map the
succession plan of a department with the capacity,
potential, and career development needs of employees
in order to develop a comprehensive Talent
Management Plan. Talent review process is a series of
structured, facilitated discussions where employees’
performance (direct reports) are reviewed in terms of
their key strengths, career goals, stage of readiness,
and areas for development and action plans. Outcome
of these sessions has helped the Company in
increasing the rate of internal moves as well as
replacements.

diversity at EPCL

HSE policy

We at EPCL believe that we want to ‘Deliver through
Diversity.’ And we embrace all forms of diversity.

“To be recognized as a world class
performer in the field of Health, Safety
& Environmental Management.”

However, to begin with we are focusing on the biggest
contender from our demographics and that is women.
As we look back at the last year, we have come a long
way. Our Diversity ratio increased to 5.5% in our overall
population (including Trainees/Graduate Trainee
Engineers and contractual staff).
We have been quite vocal about our Diversity agenda
and it is through strong communication that we have
established our seriousness towards it. Our strength in
communication has been recognized by external bodies
as well, as we have won an award from Global Diversity
and Inclusion Benchmark (GDIB) for the same.
We will continue to strive towards this end, and we
envision a day not very far off when our workforce will
be representative of current external environment and
demographics as we are striving to make our culture
more and more inclusive, by creating affinity networks
and bonds across the business.
To achieve this aim, internally D & I would continue to
be a key agenda item on the table whenever we are
discussing hiring, promotions, development, retention,
and engagement. Externally, we will be focusing on
building relationship and strategic partnerships with
diverse associations and universities to enhance our
talent outreach.

EPCL will:
•

Conduct its business in a manner that protects the
health and safety of employees, contractors, others
involved in our operations, and the community in
which we operate.

•

Continuously improve environmental performance
to achieve sustainable development.

•

Strengthen its business by making Health, Safety, &
Environment (HSE) considerations an integral part
of all business activities.

•

Comply with all relevant laws & regulations.

•

Practice transparent public reporting of the HSE
performance.

•

Ensure that HSE is a major responsibility of
appropriately trained, empowered, & accountable
employees & management.

•

Promote a culture of learning & practicing HSE
management among employees and contractors.

•

Encourage off-the-job HSE awareness among
employees and families.

social and
environmental
responsibility policy
The Company’s community development and uplift
policy focuses mainly on education, environment and
water conservation-related initiatives. It has various
diversified programs in place and is on its way to create
visible social impact on communities within which it
operates. It invests in programs that address the
environmental and social challenges faced by its
business, thus mitigating impact of its operations
through taking these initiatives.
It also focuses on the element of sustainable business
development and that is what is most visible in its key
social investments.
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To achieve these objectives,
EPCL shall:

health
• Identify and evaluate health risks related to its
operations that could potentially affect its employees,
contractors, or the public.
• Provide structured, risk-based occupational health
and industrial hygiene program, with a focus on
health promotion and prevention, reporting, and
investigation of occupational illness.
• Implement programs and appropriate protective
measures to control such risks, including appropriate
monitoring of its potentially affected employees.
• Carry out pre-employment and periodic medical
check-up of its employees.
• Provide or arrange for medical services necessary
for the treatment of employees’ occupational
illness or injuries and for handling medical
emergencies.

safety

shariah advisor

• Mandatory to report all on-the-job unsafe acts /
conditions, near misses and incidents.

Ehsan Shariah Advisor and Consultants (ESAAC) are
the shariah advisor of the Company.

• Mandatory to follow Company Policies, Safety Rules,
and all applicable laws. Contractors engaged by the
Company shall strictly adhere and cause its
employees to strictly adhere to Company Policies,
Safety Rules, and all applicable laws.

Profile of Shariah Advisor

• Ensure that there is no violation of work at height
protocols (not latching harness, not using protection
like handrails, nets, lifelines, etc.).

internal audit

• Quality and continuous improvement are fostered in
the Company’s control process.

At EPCL, Internal Audit is an independent department
functionally reporting to the Board Audit Committee and
administratively to the CEO.

• Risks are appropriately identified and managed.

• Wear mandatory PPEs in designated areas.
• Bypassing Safety Critical device without authorization
is prohibited.
• Lighting a flame without authorization is prohibited.

• Engaging in or provoking horseplay or fighting within
Company premises is prohibited.
• Damaging Company property intentionally is
prohibited.

• Institutionalize behavioral safety practices using the
Personnel Safety Management System.

• Bringing weapon or any form of intoxicant on site is
prohibited.

• Comply with all applicable environmental laws,
regulations, and apply responsible standards where
laws and regulations do not exist.
• Conserve natural resources & energy by
continuously improving our production processes
and measuring performance.
• Continuously improve our processes to minimize
pollution and waste
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Internal Audit provides independent, objective
assurance, and advisory services to evaluate and
improve the effectiveness of the control environment,
risk management, and compliance processes, and
assesses whether these are adequate and functioning
appropriately as intended to ensure:

• Walking under a suspended load is prohibited.

• Work with a valid work permit.

• Sleeping & carrying mobile phones in Plant operating
areas are prohibited.

environment

salient features of
internal audit charter

Ehsan Shariah Advisor and Consultants (ESAAC) is a
Management Consulting & Shariah Advisory firm,
providing innovative Ethical / Shariah based solutions &
services. ESAAC offers proficient customized services
to its clients by blending Shariah knowledge of scholars
with financial skills of professionals. ESAAC works with
leading organizations and offers its services to
full-fledged Islamic Banks, Islamic Micro Finance Banks,
Islamic Banking Divisions of Conventional Banks,
Takaful Operators, Re-Takaful Companies, Islamic
Mutual Funds, and Islamic Asset Management
Companies.

• Implement a rigorous system of Process Safety Risk
Management.

• Keep abreast of the latest international codes,
standards and practices, and adopting the same
where applicable.
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cardinal rules

• Making a video or taking a picture of plant site areas
is not allowed.
Willful negligence of all above protocols will be treated
as misconducts and liable to penalties / accountability
as per company’s progressive motivation principals or
any other action as the Company may deem fit.

The Internal Audit department is responsible for
impartially assessing the key risks of the Organization,
appraising and reporting on the adequacy and
effectiveness of EPCL’s Risk Management and Internal
Controls in financial, information systems, and other
business and operational areas. Internal Audit at EPCL
provides recommendations which are taken up by the
Management to remediate control lapses. The
observations are shared on a regular basis with Board
Audit Committee, Chief Executive Officer and the
concerned Divisional Management.

• Significant financial, managerial, and operating
information, is accurate, reliable, and timely.
• Significant statutory or regulatory issues impacting
the Company are recognized and addressed
appropriately.
• Resources are acquired economically, used
efficiently, and protected adequately.

• Employees’ actions are in compliance with policies,
standards, procedures, and applicable laws and
regulations.

Internal Audit is also responsible for monitoring and
reporting of ethical issues. All allegations in relation to
breach of the Company’s Code of Business Conduct
are thoroughly investigated by Internal Audit in
cooperation with management and subsequently
reported to the Audit Committee.
It works in collaboration with the Business by taking up
coaching responsibilities, driving performance
improvement initiatives, and closing internal control
gaps. The role of Internal Audit Function continues to
change in reaction to events, risk, and regulation
affecting the Company while ensuring that its mandate
is aligned with the organizational objectives and risks.
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audit committee report
Dear Shareholder,

On behalf of the Board, I am pleased to present the Audit Committee’s Report for the financial year ended December
31, 2020. Our key focus was to assist the Board of Directors in fulfilling their governance and stewardship
responsibilities, ensuring integrity of financial reporting and robustness of internal controls and risk management
process at Engro Polymer & Chemicals Limited.

composition of the committee
Mr. Feroz Rizvi (Chairman) - Independent Director
Mr. Eram Hasan (Member) – Non-Executive Director
Mr. Nazoor Ali Baig (Member) - Independent Director
Mr. Noriyuki Koga (Member) - Non-Executive Director
Mr. Kalimuddin A. Khan (Secretary) - Head of Internal Audit
During the year, the BAC completed its tenure and new Audit Committee was formed, where Mr. Hasnain Moochhala
left the BAC and Mr. Eram Hasan and Mr. Nazoor Ali Baig joined the BAC as members.
These Committee members possess sufficient business and commercial knowledge and have extensive experience in
the field.

meetings of board audit committee

Audit Committee meetings take place ahead of Board meetings and the Audit Committee Chairman provides an
update to the Board on the key issues discussed during each Audit Committee meeting. The minutes of Audit
Committee meetings are provided to the Board on regular basis and also to the External Auditor on request. The CFO
and other departmental Heads are invited on a need basis for matters pertaining to their respective areas.
During the year 2020, the Committee met seven times. Furthermore, as required by the Code, the Committee also
independently met external and internal auditors during the year.

charter of the committee

The terms of the Audit Committee's mandate are governed by the Board of Directors and the Code of Corporate
Governance. The terms of reference of the Committee are clearly defined in the Charter of the Committee which is duly
approved by the Board of Directors. The salient features are stated below:
• To recommend to the Board the appointment and removal of external auditors;
• To review quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial statements;
• To review the internal control systems and internal audit function;
• To monitor management’s compliance with all Company’s policies including complaints received through the
Speak Out – Whistle Blower System; and
• To monitor compliance of statutory requirements.

role of audit committee

The Committee assists the Board to effectively carry out its supervisory oversight responsibilities on risk management,
internal controls, financial reporting, compliance, and internal & external audit functions. The Audit Committee believes
that it has carried out all its responsibilities, in accordance with the Terms of Reference approved by the Board. The
evaluation of the Board performance, which also included members of the Audit Committee, was carried out
separately and is included in the Annual Report.

• Reviewed Related Party Transactions, ensuring that the pricing methods used were on terms equivalent to those
that prevail on arm's length basis
• Ensured that proper, accurate, and adequate accounting records have been maintained by the Company
• Recommended the appointment of the external auditors to the Board to be confirmed by the Company
shareholders in the Annual General Meeting
• Reviewed new policies / modifications to existing policies and Management's compliance with all Company's
policies, procedures, and guidelines
• Reviewed and investigated whistleblower complaints lodged during the year
• The Company’s system of internal control is sound in design and has been continually evaluated for effectiveness
and adequacy
• Closed periods were duly determined and announced by the Company, preventing the directors, executives and all
employees of all Engro companies from dealing in the shares of the Company, prior to each Board meeting.

risk management and internal control

The Company has developed a sound mechanism for identification of risks, assigning appropriate criticality level and
devising appropriate mitigation measures, which are regularly monitored and implemented by the management across all
major functions of the Company and presented to the Audit Committee for information and review. The Company has
devised and implemented an effective internal control framework which also includes an independent internal audit
function. The Internal Audit department is responsible for monitoring of compliance, inherent and other risks associated
with operations of the Company.

external audit

The statutory auditors of the Company, A. F. Ferguson & Co., Chartered Accountants, have completed their audit of the
Company’s financial statements and the statement of compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance for the year
ended December 31, 2020 and shall retire on the conclusion of the 23rd Annual General Meeting. Being eligible for
reappointment under the Code of Corporate Governance, the Committee has recommended to the Board the
reappointment of A.F. Ferguson and Co., Chartered Accountants for the year 2021. A resolution to this effect has been
proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.
The Committee has reviewed and discussed audit observations with the external auditors; a meeting was also held with
the external auditors in the absence of the management.
The external auditors have direct access to the Committee and Internal Audit Department, thereby ensuring the
effectiveness, independence, and objectivity of the audit process.
A.F. Ferguson & Co., Chartered Accountants also provided taxation services to the Company; the statutory auditors have
no financial or other relationship of any kind with the Company except that of External Auditor and Taxation Consultant.
The performance, cost and independence of the external auditors is reviewed annually by the Committee. The Audit
Committee obtained confirmation from the external auditors in its meeting that the engagement team, other partners and
staff in the firm, and the firm have complied with the applicable requirements regarding independence.

financial statements 2020

The Committee assessed the 2020 Financial Statements as fair, balanced, and understandable, and that it provided
sufficient information to enable the shareholders to assess the performance.

During 2020, the following key responsibilities were satisfactorily carried out by the Audit Committee:
• Ensured compliance with the listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations 2019
• Reviewed quarterly, half-yearly, and annual financial statements of the Company prior to their approval by the Board
of Directors, focusing on major judgmental areas, financial estimates, going concern assumption, compliance of
accounting standards, local regulations, and other statutory / regulatory requirements
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entity risk management
EPCL has Lean Enterprise Risk Management (ERM). It
is the policy of EPCL to view Risk Management as
integral to the creation, protection, and enhancement of
shareholder value by managing the uncertainties and
risks that could possibly influence the achievement of
our corporate goals and objectives.

Risk

Dumping of PVC
Resin in Pakistan

Curtailment of
gas supply

Impact
Dumped products are available at
less than market competitive rates
hampering the pricing capability for
EPCL.

Gas curtailment would lead to
disruption in operations which will
impact the Company’s bottom line

Operating in a highly dynamic environment mandates
assessment of organization strategy and quantum of
risks that the entity is willing to accept by adequately
assigning responsibilities throughout the organization. It
is a continuous cycle led by the Chief Risk Officer
(CRO), endorsed by the Board of Directors and
Management, with the objective of proactively
managing risks across the company over the years.

Strategy
EPCL presented its case to NTC, because of
which final Anti-Dumping Duty has been
imposed on China, Taiwan, South Korea and
Thailand during 2018. However, dumping has
started from other regions. Company is closely
monitoring the situation.
In addition to working on alternate sources for
long term gas availability solution, we have
effectively communicated our stance to various
authorities that being feed stock provider to
export oriented sector, curtailment of gas to
EPCL puts operations of wider industry at risk

Disruptions in
plant
operations

Disruptions in plant operations will
impact availability of product and
profitability

The Company has strong maintenance
paradigm (undertook biggest turnaround in
history this year) to ensure smooth function of
plant operations. Furthermore, we also have
Business Interruption Insurance policy to
neutralize the adverse impacts of unanticipated
disruptions.

Volatility in
international
commodity
prices

The Company’s margin are a
function of global PVC and
ethylene prices where a decline
in international core delta will
directly impact profitability.

The Company has established strong network
with international olefins analysts which helps
in gaining better insight on international market
dynamics. Meanwhile, we remain committed to
our diversification projects to enter new
markets.

Rationalization
of Tariff on
PVC products

Reduction in import duties on
PVC resin products will lead to
higher imports and will impact
domestic market

EPCL continues to liaison with government
through different forums such as Pakistan
Business Council, OICCI to maintain the
protective duties on PVC products

treasury management
liquidity risk management
Liquidity Management is a crucial aspect of our
business owing to a combination of various external
factors including volatility in international commodity
prices, currency exchange rate, and gas prices. The
company diligently monitors its current and future cash
position, keeping in perspective these variables that
pose liquidity risk. Frequent cash forecasting enables
the company to determine liquidity requirements, with a
clear distinction between short term and long-term
funding. Long term cash requirements are measured in
our Corporate Planning Cycle over a 5-year horizon
which comprehensively covers for shocks via scenario
& stress testing. Peak cash cycles are mitigated using
approved lines of credit. Excess cash is placed in
various Board approved investment instruments to earn
the best possible returns which include savings
accounts, government securities and mutual fund units.
Overall, the working capital cycle in days of the
company, remains positive as our sales are mostly cash
based while we enjoy credit from our raw material
suppliers

foreign exchange
risk management
EPCL’s revenues and import liabilities are subject to
foreign exchange volatility. PVC revenue is determined
in US Dollars with reference to international PVC pricing.
PVC Revenue determination mechanism provides a
natural hedge against foreign exchange fluctuation,
specifically exposure on USD denominated liabilities.
Furthermore, the company frequently monitors its net
foreign currency liabilities exposure and takes decisions
accordingly to restrict the downside from currency
devaluation by hedging FCY loans and booking forward
contracts on usance import LCs (in case they are
available). The company also entered into a first of its
kind landmark Shariah compliant synthetic FX hedge
arrangement for its foreign currency long-term financing
of $35 Mn.

interest rate
risk management
The company’s capital structure involves sizeable
leverage, mainly to fund expansion and efficiency
projects, exposing EPCL to an interest rate risk. As of
December 31, 2020 outstanding KIBOR based
borrowings stood at Rs.14,067 Mn. whereas
outstanding long term LIBOR based borrowings stood
at US$ 35 Mn. As part of treasury operations, the
company will continue to evaluate various options to
hedge against interest rate risk (in case they are
available).
The Company mitigated some of its interest rate
fluctuation risk by successfully sourcing the Islamic
Long Term Finance Facility (ILTFF) of Rs 1,950 Mn. at
SBP’s concessionary rate for our expansion project.

credit risk management
The company diligently monitors and manages the
credit quality of its financial assets. Exposure to credit
risk is minimal as unsecured receivables from
customers and advances to vendors are restricted.
Most of trade debt is secured by bank guarantees
accepted only through financial institutions with good
credit ratings. Credit risk with regards to investments is
limited, as the Company places its idle funds in
government securities and with institutions approved by
the Board or with institutions possessing minimum
credit ratings as approved by the Board.

business
continuity plan
EPCL recognizes its responsibility towards consistent
operations while ensuring adequate measures to
safeguard against any potential disruption. With this
vision and intent, we initiated our Business Continuity
Plan in 2013 and have upgraded it regularly since
2018. The plan was tested from the onset of lockdown
imposed by the Government in response to COVID-19
pandemic and successfully implemented by the
management to ensure smooth & safe continuity of
operations.
The plan ensures smooth functioning of critical business
processes in the event of an unforeseen disaster and
has the following objectives:
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•

To provide a framework for building resilience and
the capability for an effective response that
safeguards the interests of key stakeholders,
company reputation and brand image, and value
creating activities

•

To assess the risks to our operations and to
understand the impact of the risks if they materialize
whilst considering business priorities and
organizational inter-dependency.

•

To manage the response to and aftermath of any
potential disruption, in an effective and appropriate
manner to minimize business impact

•

To recover business operations at an acceptable
level as quickly as possible in a pre-determined
time window, should an incident result in disruption
to our critical business operations or support
services

•

To test and review at regular intervals and revise as
required, the plans supporting the Business
Continuity

The plan encompasses our response strategy,
minimum operating requirements, BCP team
organization, damage assessment, and primary site
restoration activities. It ensures preservation of critical
data by mapping out key elements of the process of
disaster recovery. Our management regularly evaluates
the threats to its business and infrastructure & has
developed a strategy to adequately respond to any
unpredictable challenges it might face. The plan is
reviewed by the Board and changes are suggested,
if any.

pandemic recovery
plan
As our economy has started to recover from the
pandemic, our leadership put together a plan to ensure
EPCL smooth journey through the recovery. Some of
the plan highlights are;
•

Establishing rota system at site and HO to ensure
stringent implementation and monitoring of SOPs

•

Enhancing customer engagement activities to
reinforce relationships

•

Normalizing the sourcing of raw material through
contract management

•

Obtaining financing facilities at subsidized rate
Departmental task force formation – to continuously
monitor the situation
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our approach towards
value creation

business model
our business
manufacturing, marketing, and distribution of quality chlor-vinyl allied products

Our Board of Directors is representative of our
shareholders’ interests and works with the CEO in
deciding the overall strategic vision and direction of the
Company.

our focus
maximizing shareholder value

improving livelihood of our community

protecting environment

social

Two principal Board Committees assist the Board in
making decisions related to business management and
compensation. Furthermore, there are numerous
Functional Committees acting at the operational level in
an advisory capacity to the CEO, providing suggestions
and recommendations related to business, environment
and employee matters.

Customers - technical support, participation in
trade fairs, promotion of alternate applications
in Pakistan

Relationships with customers, suppliers,
communities around our plant and other
stakeholders

Community - 4 TCF Schools, 5 Water Filtration
Plants, Sina Clinic

human
Total Employees: 563
(480 at plant)

Functional Heads provide advice and recommendations
in their capacities and concerning their respective
business areas. These include health and safety,
technical matters relating to the plants, marketing and
sales, finance, employee matters, supply chain,
information technology, and logistics.
The Senior Management of the Company considers
feedback as a significant contributor to the review of
objectives and for the development of future plans and
strategies.

Strong human resource development
programs such as Harvard ManageMentor
and the learning podcasts

Competencies, Capabilities and
Experience of Human Resource

EPCL strongly believes in enviromental
conservation and has therefore
undertaken HTDC project which will
reduce our carbon footprint and
improve energy effeiciency

Air, Water, Land, Minerals, Energy
and Forests
Biodiversity and Eco-system

finance
Profit after Taxation: 5.73 Bn
Earnings per Share: 6.30
Earning per share Diluted: 6.23
Dividend per ordinary share: 1.247

Equity: 26.1 Bn
Long-term Debt: 21.6 Bn

outputs

inputs

natural

manufactured

PVC Capacity: 195 KTA
Caustic Soda Capacity: 106 KTA
Expansions: PVC III (incremental 100 KTA)
Diversification: Hydrogen Peroxide
Effeciency Projects: Oxygen Based VCM,
High Temperature Direct Chlorination (HTDC)

PVC Production 153 KTA
Caustic Soda Production 77 KTA
Improved Production Effeciencies

intellectual
Experience of operating in polymer and
chemical space in Pakistan
Company reputation as an honest member
of the corporate community
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Strong Brand Image of SABZ which has
become synonymous to quality PVC in the
country
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v a l u e

c h a i n

value creation remains the driving force of our existence

Raw Material
Sourcing
Critical raw materials include
Ethylene, EDC, VCM &
natural gas

Manufacturing
PVC production: 153 KTA
Caustic Soda: 77 KTA
PVC expansion: 100 KTA

Finished
Goods
PVC suspension resin (primary
product), caustic soda &
allied chemicals

Warehousing
Sufficient storage to ensure
product availability
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Downstream
Consumer Products

Customer

PVC pipes, windows, doors,
profiles, textile products &
detergents

Trusted business partnering
and strong technical
support
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Transportation
Strong logistics team and
infrastructure across Pakistan
ensuring safe & timely
product delivery
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significant factors affecting
the external environment

swot analysis

One aspect of maximizing the shareholder value is to remain vigilant towards ever changing political, social and
environment factors that affect the organization and take proactive measures to mitigate the risk or capitalize on
opportunities presented by the changing factors. Below provides the picture of how efficiently we do that at EPCL.

strengths

Sole PVC resin manufacturer in Pakistan
Integrated production facility capable of operating at high capacity utilization
Established brand name and diversified product portfolio
Strong human resource base and unique technical expertise in Chlor-Vinyl business
Established domestic presence and access to global export markets
Strong credit ratings reflecting financial strength and management depth

Factors

weaknesses
High exposure to volatility in international commodity prices limiting pricing power
Dependence on consistent supply of imported raw material, such as Ethylene and EDC
Over supplied caustic market
Dependence on depleting natural resource for energy i.e natural gas

opportunities

Lower per capita PVC consumption in the country to lead to demand growth
Uptick in PVC demand with Government’s focus on construction industry
Diversified downstream integration and new market segments development
Increasing Caustic demand due to GSP plus extension till 2022
Diversification into new product lines like Hydrogen peroxide leveraging
existing manufacturing & marketing strengths
Alternate energy and operational efficiency projects
Sourcing raw material domestically or backward integration

Rationalization in tariff and duty structures
Uncertainty over continuous gas availability
Dumping of PVC from regions where Anti-Dumping Duty has not been imposed
Price war from Caustic players leading reduced margins
Political domestic landscape and regional geopolitical unrest leading to
difficulty in importing critical raw materials
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Political

threats

Economic

Organizational Response

Government policies on import duties
and tariff structures impact the
imports of products manufactured by
the Company

The Company vigilantly monitors the
dumping practice of global players and
timely notifies NTC to undertake measures
to safeguard domestic industry

Government export promotion strategies
positively influence the demand of our
chlor alkali products which are mostly
used by export-oriented textile sector

Through our proactive and efficient planning
we ensure availability of products as per the
changing market demand dynamics

Government spending on
infrastructure development and public
spending on construction activities
impact the demand of PVC products

The Company remains in touch with
government authorities and general public
(THINK PVC outlet) for awareness and
inclusion of various PVC applications

Measure being considered by
government on gas supply to industry
impacts our operations

The Company keeps on highlighting its
stance of being a key feedstock provider to
export oriented sector on various forums
meanwhile work on exploring long term
energy solution is also underway

Improved macro-economic scenario
will lead to higher business and
consumer confidence in domestic
market which ultimately improves
overall demand

The Company has invested ~ 150 mn
USD on various growth, efficiency &
diversification projects to enhance local
manufacturing and therefore save precious
foreign exchange of our country

Gas price hikes by the government
impacts the profitability of the
Company as it forms major part of
cost of production

The Company remain focused on
improving operational efficiencies to reduce
gas consumption per ton to minimize the
impact

Interest rate variation impacts the cost
of borrowing of the company

The Company has taken steps to
optimized its financing cost including fixed
rate concessionary borrowing
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Factors
Rising population level will provide
impetus to housing demand which in
turn will spur demand for PVC products

Social

Technological

Environmental

Legal
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Organizational Response
With our PVC-III expansion coming online we are
optimally positioned to serve the increasing market
demand

competitive
landscape and market
positioning
EPCL operates the only integrated chlor-vinyl complex
and is the sole manufacturer of PVC resin in Pakistan.
Our competitive landscape and market position vary in
Vinyl and Chlor alkali product lines.

Changing consumer patterns to
converge per capita PVC consumption
in Pakistan to international standards

Through our flagship THINK PVC retail outlet, we
intend to showcase the versatility of PVC
applications to all consumers class which will help
in developing PVC market domestically

competitive rivalry

Introduction of various technological
tools and applications in operations
can impact the profitability of the
company

In our strive to maximize operational efficiencies
by leveraging technology we have now
developed a dedicated digitization team to
automate processes, improve productivity and
reduce human intervention

In Chlor alkali products, our major competitors are
commercial manufacturers of Caustic soda and allied
chemicals. The Competitors are mostly North based,
and we serve as the only major Caustic player in
southern region of Pakistan. Caustic market remains
highly competitive which drives an imminent risk of price
war among players.

Pakistan remain one of the most
vulnerable countries to climate
change. Extreme & extended
monsoon season, rising fog levels in
winters and scarcity of water exposes
businesses to operational risk

The company has invested in several projects
including HTDC and OVR with the view of
improving its environmental impact. Meanwhile
minimizing CO2 emissions remain one of the
most important KPIs

threat of new entrants into the
industry

The GIDC decision announcement by
honorable supreme court impacts the
liquidity position of the company

The Company efficiently presented its stance
to Sindh High Court that it does not pass on
GIDC impact to customers, on the basis of
which a stay order has been issued in the
favor of the Company

Tariff rationalization measures being
considered by government authorities
may impact the domestic PVC
market

The Company remains in coordination with
various authorities to highlight the fact that
such measures will severely dampen the
investor confidence in domestic market and
will also impact our committed investments of
~ USD 150 Mn
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In Vinyl product line, the Company is the sole domestic
manufacturer and serve ~80% of total PVC market in
Pakistan. Rest of the demand is met through imports.
There is no major competition in Vinyl product line.

Prospects of new player entering Vinyl products market
remain remote owing to highly specialized nature of
plant, capital intensiveness and scarcity of key raw
material. The new entrant would require heavy financial
and specialized human resources for setting up and
operating the plant along with access to global
suppliers for critical raw materials. Furthermore, high
saturation and robust competitive nature of chlor
alkali market creates further barrier for potential
new entrants.

relationship ensures smooth and timely delivery of
materials at mutually beneficial terms.
Furthermore, the strong capability of Company to timely
meet its financial commitments as also endorsed by the
commendable credit rating of A1+ for short term and
AA- for long term, enable us to negotiate better credit
rates and terms with our credit suppliers.

power of customers
Despite being the sole manufacturers of PVC resin in
the country, we always strive for higher value delivery to
our customers through up to the mark product quality
and after sale services. We are cognizant of the fact
that our customers remain a key to our success,
therefore, we look to build customer relationships
beyond the commercial measures of discounts and
credit terms.

threat of substitute products
PVC remain the choice of customers especially in pipes
and fittings application over substitute products owing
to its significantly better value proposition in terms of
strength, durability, and weather resistance. The
Company is also launching its first retail outlet in early
2021 with a brand name of THINK PVC, the outlet will
be dedicated to showcasing the various applications of
PVC and their better value proposition over substitute
products.

power of suppliers
Suppliers hold a key position in our entire
value chain due to scarcity of resources
which are critical to our business.
The Company has invested
considerably in building resilient
business relationship with our
key suppliers. The strong
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Risk: Unfair practices exercised by global players impact
the domestic business environment and shareholder
value

risks and opportunities

Mitigating risk: The Company continuously monitors the
developments on this front and notifies National Tariff
Commission in this regard on timely basis. As a result,
Anti-Dumping Duty was imposed on China, Taiwan,
South Korea, and Thailand in 2018. However, dumping
has started from other regions which the Company is
evaluating and will approach NTC accordingly.

Potential Negative Impact

Risks

Risk of
Lockdown
on Operations
Due to COVID
Resurgence

volatility in international prices

Dumping
of PVC in
Pakistan

Capital impacted: Financial capital, social and
relationship
Nature: Long term
Source: external

Disruption
in Plant
Operations

Volatility in
International
Commodity
Prices

Availability of
Gas / Increase in
Gas Prices

Rationalization
of Tariff on PVC
Resin Imports

Risk: The Company’s margin are a function of global
PVC and ethylene prices where a decline in international
core delta will directly impact profitability.
Mitigating risk: The Company has established strong
network with international olefins analysts which helps in
gaining better insight on international market dynamics.
Meanwhile, we remain committed to our diversification
projects to enter new markets.

availability of gas

Nature: Short-term
Source: external
Risk: Increase in gas prices can have substantial
adverse impact on Company’s profitability
Mitigating risk: EPCL has implemented several energy
conservation projects and is in the process of executing
several other energy efficiency projects which would
partially insulate the bottom line from the impact of
increasing natural gas prices. Meanwhile, the company
is also exploring other energy sources.

rationalization of tariff
on PVC products
Capital impacted: Financial capital, manufactured
capital, social and relationship capital
Nature: Medium term
Source: external
Risk: Reduction in import duties on PVC resin products
will lead to higher imports and will impact domestic
market
Mitigating risk: EPCL continue to liaison with
government through different forums such as Pakistan
Business Council, OICCI to maintain the protective
duties on PVC products.

Capital impacted: Financial capital, manufactured
capital, social and relationship capital
Nature: Short term

Probability

risk of lockdown on plant
operations due to COVID
resurgence

Mitigating risk: The Company has strategized its
functions to cope with possible challenges posed by
the resurgence of the virus. A dedicated committee has
also been formed which continuously monitors the
developments on this front.

Capital impacted: Financial capital, social and
relationship capital

dumping of PVC resin
in Pakistan

Nature: Short term
Source: External
Risk: Imposition of lockdown induce by resurgence of
COVID – 19 pandemic can jeopardize plant operations
as well as project works.
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Capital impacted: Financial capital, social and
relationship capital

Source: external
Risk: Acute gas shortage in winter season may lead to
curtailment of gas supply to EPCL which can impact our
volumes and profitability.
Mitigating risk: The Company remains in coordination
with government authorities to highlight that being a
feedstock provider to export oriented textile sector, any
disruptions in our operations will impact the export
sector as well. Meanwhile, we continue to work on
alternate sources of energy for long term gas solution.

increase in gas prices
Capital impacted: Financial capital, manufactured
capital, social and relationship capital

Nature: Short term
Source: External
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Nature: Medium term

Opportunities

Potential Positive Impact

Source: External
Opportunity: Increasing growth in PVC consumption in
South Asia with well below production capacity to
match the demand opens an opportunity to export and
strengthen international footmark for EPCL. With our
new capacity coming online, we are optimally
positioned to capitalized on this opportunity.

Low Per
Capital PVC
Consumption

recent housing scheme
announced by government
Capital impacted: Financial Capital

Value Added
Products in
Chemical
Business

Regional
PVC Demand
Outpacing
Production
Capacity

Recent Govt
Announced
Housing
Schemes

Alternative
Energy Sources
and Energy
Efficiency
Projects

Nature: Medium term
Source: External
Opportunity: Recently announced housing scheme by
the government promises growth for construction
sector which directly impact our primary PVC segment
of pipes and fittings. Our additional capacity coming
online will help us meet the potential increase in
demand and earn higher profitability.

alternative energy sources and
energy efficiency
Capital impacted: Financial Capital, Manufactured
Capital, Natural Capital

Probability

Nature: Long-term
Source: Internal
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low per capita PVC
consumption

value added products in
chemical business

Capital impacted: Financial capital, social and
relationship capital

Capital impacted: Financial Capital, Manufactured
Capital, Intellectual Capital

Nature: Long term

Nature: Medium term

Source: external

Source: Internal

Opportunity: The per capita consumption of PVC for
Pakistan is the lowest in the South Asian region
standing at ~1.12KG / capita. This presents an
opportunity to introduce other than conventional
applications of PVC. In relation to this, the Company
has invested considerably in THINK PVC branded outlet
which is in its final stages. The outlet will act as a forum
to introduce new PVC products including PVC Foam
Board, PVC Wood Plastic and PVC Wall Panels to all
stakeholders of downstream PVC market. Launch of
outlet is targeted in early 2021.

Opportunity: EPCL remains on course to develop its
footmark not only in polymer market landscape but also
in allied chemicals as well. In 2019, the Company
commissioned its caustic flakes plant. Meanwhile, we
remain committed to hydrogen peroxide diversification
project to broaden our product portfolio and diversify
risk.
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Opportunity: The Company is currently exploring
alternative energy sources for its business as it looks to
reduce its power cost and mitigate from the risk of a
gas availability and price increase. Meanwhile, EPCL
has announced efficiency projects to reduce power
consumption in the manufacturing process.

risk management
policies established
by board

regional PVC demand
outpacing production capacity

EPCL has lean Enterprise Risk Management (ERM)
framework. It is the policy of the company to view risk
management as integral to the creation, protection and
enhancement of shareholder value by managing the
uncertainties and risks that may possibly influence the
achievement of our corporate goals and objectives.

Capital impacted: Financial Capital

We recognize that the company operates in a complex

business environment and it mandates assessment of
the organization’s strategy and quantum of risk that the
entity is willing to accept by adequately assigning
responsibilities throughout the organization. EPCL
entrusts accountability at all levels and requires
monitoring, communicating and reporting changes in
the risk environment and the effectiveness of actions
taken to manage identified risks on an ongoing basis.
Risks are identified across the organization and are
ranked based on their impact on probability. Upon
identification of risks, a strategy is devised to mitigate its
impact which is regularly monitored by the Management
Committee. Risk Management process is led by Chief
Risk Officer (CRO) and endorsed by the Board Audit
Committee (BAC).

board’s assessment of
the principal risks
The Board has reviewed the risks facing the company
including but not limited to those that would threaten the
business model, future performance, solvency or
liquidity.

inadequacy in the capital
structure and plans to address
such inadequacy
EPCL has maintained an optimal capital structure during
outgoing year

composition of local vs
imported material and
sensitivity analysis due to
foreign exchange fluctuations
The major raw material required for PVC production is
being imported by the Company. However, foreign
exchange volatility impact on raw material prices does
not affect the Company on net profit basis, as our PVC
pricing is also benchmarked with international PVC
prices. Caustic production is mainly locally sourced and
is therefore protected from forex fluctuations.

significant changes from prior
years (regarding the information
disclosed in this section)
Significant changes from prior years are disclosed in
relevant sections.
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sustainability performance

sustainability
strategy & focus

2020 highlights

Our global future depends upon sustainability. By
finding innovative ways to reduce harmful impact on our
environment we move towards attaining greater
sustainability for the future.
We achieve this through our sustainability strategy
which is centered on our triple bottom line approach;
People, Planet and Profit. Our focus goes beyond profit
to provide sustainability for the people who are directly
or indirectly connected to us and the planet we live on.

Community
Members Served

We are committed to take a wider view of sustainability
and ensure that each step we take is in line with our
core values. We strive to deliver profits to our
stakeholders, but we do so by ensuring that we are
able to invest in the needs of our broader shareholder
community as well as the planet we live on.

~30,000 (clinic, schools & water
filtration plants)

The Company invests in innovative ideas that result in
improved solutions and services. We understand the
importance of the health and safety of our people and in
preserving and protecting natural capital for own
sustainability and the society as a whole for generations
to come. The Company trains its employees through
various educational programs that educate them on
operational safety standards. Our management has
been devoted to sustaining safe business processes by
following world class safety systems such as DuPont
Personal Safety Management & Process Safety and
Risk Management.

Learning
& Training
Harvard ManageMentor,
the learning podcast &
+19,000 training hours
at plant

Shareholder
Value
Net Profit: PKR 5.7 Bn
EPS: 6.3

Profitability
14,000

31

12,000

22

Rs. in Mn.

Recognition by
The Professionals
& National Forum for
Environment & Health

COVID
Management
+3,000 tests, 8 doctors &
residential facility for
+1,300 personnel

35

14

13

4,000

8
1,874
(644)

7

3
660

16

15

10

10
5

3,074

2,053 5,149

4,930 7,609

3,696 8,106

5,730 10,949

2017

2018

2019

2020

(3)

2015

2016
Gross profit

20

No. of times

6,000

2,000
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Awards

25

21

19

8,000

(2,000)

~5 million

30

10,000

0

Safe Man-hours

Net profit

Gross profit ratio
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0
(5)

Net profit ratio
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UN sustainable

development goals
Engro Polymer and Chemicals and the UN’s
Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) seek to
address the world’s biggest challenges, including
ending poverty, improving health and education, making
cities sustainable and tackling climate change.
Governments are responsible for prioritizing and
implementing approaches that meet the SDGs, and
many have started to articulate plans to meet the goals.
But achieving these tasks will require unprecedented
collaboration and collective action with business and
civil society.
Engro Polymer and Chemicals welcomes the SDGs and
believes that we have an important role to play in
supporting these goals. All the SDGs are relevant to our
business to varying degrees and we are already
contributing to many of these goals.
Some of the key goals we are supporting are:
Goal 1: No Poverty
Goal 8: Decent Work and Economic Growth
Employment generation is the backbone of any
country’s economy and we fulfil our responsibility
towards this goal by providing jobs and following
applicable labour, health and safety standards. We
encourage local
businesses to be part of
our supply chain and
seek to ensure our
suppliers meet our
standards. Our
Expansion, Efficiency and
Diversification projects
have generated
employment for various
labor classes and
professionals. We work
with governments and
others to offer training to
build local skills and
expertise. We support
downstream industries
through various
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programmes like setting up the first PVC Branded Outlet
in Pakistan which will help new entrepreneurs by
developing the PVC market and introducing new
usages. We also contribute to economic growth by
paying taxes to local governments and helping in import
substitution.
Goal 3: Good Healthcare and Well-being
Engro Polymer and Chemicals has invested in the local
communities to work towards this goal and promote
good healthcare and well-being for local residents.
EPCL has established a primary healthcare clinic for
nearby community residents of Ghaggar Phattak
villages, Bin Qasim Town to improve their health
conditions. The services being offered include
screening, OPD / doctor consultation, immunization, lab
collection point, lab testing, ultrasound facility, pharmacy
for prescribed medicines with a range of 150
medicines, preventive healthcare on diabetes,
hypertension & eye, TB program with its partners, EPI
vaccination programs for children under one year, and
electronic medical record systems with complete history
of each patient.
The clinic commenced operations from July 2019 and
is operating 6 days a week and all facilities being
provided are 100% free of cost. The clinic is treating
around 100 patients per day totaling to around 2,500
patients per month. The clinic is operating under an
installed solar power system.

Goal 4: Quality Education
Education is an integral component for healthier
societies and a long-term investment for sustainable
economic development. Our interventions in the field of
education help in uplifting the education level and the
socio-economic development of the surrounding
communities of Port Qasim.
In collaboration with The Citizens Foundation, the
company has established two new purpose-built
schools. The campuses will benefit the children of
lesser-privileged communities of Ghaggar Phattak
villages and adjoining areas. These two new schools
have started operations in October, 2020. With the start
of these schools EPCL is providing quality education in
Ghaggar Phattak area for more than 1,000 students
through a total of four schools.
Goal 6: Clean Water and Sanitation
Clean drinking water is a luxury for many of our citizens
living in remote villages and far flung areas. Engro
Polymer and Chemicals has established five water
filtration plants with The Water Foundation to help make
clean drinking water accessible to people living in such
areas. More than 5,000 residents are benefiting from
clean water from these water filter plants. All these water
filter plants are based on a solar power system.
Goal 9: Industry, Innovation, and Infrastructure
Leveraging technology with our manufacturing and
operational expertise has remained our focus over the
time. Furthering this, we formed a dedicated digitization
team in 2020 with the objective of digitizing and
automating each department to improve their efficiency,
make each process more secure, improve productivity,
reduce the human intervention, and go paperless so
each process/operation is accessible to its employees
from anywhere, anytime and any device thus bridging
the digital gap and promoting innovation across all
processes to facilitate sustainable development.
Goal 5: Gender equality
We at EPCL believe that we want to ‘Deliver through
Diversity.’ And we embrace all forms of diversity.
However, to begin with we are focusing on the biggest

contender from our demographics and that is women.
As we look back at the last year, we have come a long
way. Our Diversity ratio increased to 5.5% in our overall
population (including Trainees/Graduate Trainee
Engineers and contractual staff).
We have been quite vocal about our Diversity agenda
and it is through strong communication that we have
established our seriousness towards it. Our strength in
communication has been recognized by external bodies
as well, as we have won an award from GDIB on the
same.
We will continue to strive towards this end, and we
envision a day not very far off when our workforce will
be representative of current external environment and
demographics as we are striving to make our culture
more and more inclusive, by creating affinity networks
and bonds across the business.
Goal 12: Responsible Consumption and Production
We stand cognizant towards responsible consumption
in order to create a sustainable environment for the
generations to come. In relation to this, we have made
significant investments in projects like Oxy Vent Recycle
(OVR), High Temperature Direct Chlorination (HTDC)
and Transfer Line Exchangers (TLEx). These projects
are expected to reduce the company’s energy
requirement thereby reducing the drain on the country’s
depleting gas reserves, reduce Company’s carbon
footprint and improve raw material efficiency.
Goal 13: Climate Action
EPCL is committed towards green practices and pursue
continuous development for environment. In addition to
carbon neutrality exercise this year, EPCL has also
conducted multiple environment audits and acquire
several approvals from SEPA. Such as;
• Environment impact assessment (EIA) for H2O2
along with NOC for Construction phase
• Received NOC Renewal of Hazardous substance
license from SEPA
• Approval of initial environment examination for TDS
extension
• NOC for PVC – III operation
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sustainable
use of PVC
2020 was an unprecedented year globally especially for
developing countries like Pakistan where health care
system as well as the economy were put under severe
pressure by the COVID-19 pandemic. Lockdown brought
economic activities across the country to a halt and
negatively affected domestic PVC market and impacted
PVC business at EPCL as well. However, reduction in
COVID-19 cases coupled with Prime Minister’s package
for construction industry provided much needed boost to
PVC market in second half of the year.
Amongst recent developments in PVC downstream
applications in the domestic market are foam boards, wall
and ceiling panels, roofing, flooring and door / window
profiles, which have the benefit of being durable, easy to
maintain, environmentally friendly, as well as, fire, pest,
corrosion and water resistant, while possessing good
insulation and sound proofing properties. Globally, most
of these applications are well-recognized as being
environmentally friendly & high on health and safety
standards. Not only these products are suitable for areas
with high moisture content such as kitchens, bathrooms,
public partitions, and ceilings but are also beneficial for
office and home furniture.
The extraordinary challenges posed by external factors to
the PVC business did not deter EPCL from continuing its
activities for promotion of PVC Downstream products. We
worked on the design and prototype of PVC based

portable structures including homes, offices, toilets etc
through collaboration with young entrepreneurs. These
portable structures incorporate PVC Downstream
products ranging from pipes & fittings to wall, panels,
flooring, roofing and others items, all made from PVC.
EPCL is also installing such structures as part of a pilot
project on its plant site at Port Qasim, Karachi and aims
to promote them in public and private sector for
addressing poor sanitation and housing issues impacting
our country.
Meanwhile, our pilot THINK PVC outlet project has also
entered its final stage with COD targeted in early 2021.
The outlet, dedicated to PVC Downstream products
showcasing the versatility of the material, will be a
platform for engaging stakeholders in the construction
sector including builders, developers, interior designers
and furniture makers.
Through EPCL’s rigorous efforts, there has been rapid
growth and increased market penetration of downstream
products in recent years. EPCL continues to focus on
contributing towards the promotion of sustainable and
durable PVC products in Pakistan.
As the graph below shows the largest share under the
PVC applications in Pakistan has remained with the pipes
and fittings component in line with global segmentation.
We, at EPCL, are cognizant of the value and importance
of this sector and are therefore quite strategically focused
on its development and sustainability.

PVC with its rich array of applications has

entered the lives of many around the world.
Has it entered yours?
We are proud to provide the foundation of such
applications and be a part of so many lives.
8%

Pipe & Fittings

4%

Profiles

5%

Film & Sheet - Flexible

45%

12%

Bottles
Wire & Cable
Film & Sheet - Rigid
Profiles & Tubes

7%

Floorings

1%

Coatings
All Others

6%

10%

global PVC usage

2%

11%

Pipes & Fittings

7%

Profile

3%

Cable Compound

52%
17%

Other
Film, Sheet, Artificial Leather
Flexible hose
Shoe

4%
7%
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The strength, durability, light weight and
versatility of PVC make it an ideal choice
for a wide range of products.
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financial capital

bringing efficiency and sustainability to our growth.
Timelines of these project during the year were
impacted due to COVID-19 induced lockdown.

At EPCL, we operate with the view of creating
sustainable financial value for all our stakeholders
including but not limited to the shareholders and
government. During the outgoing year, the company's
profitability came in at Rs. 5.7 Bn as compared to
earnings of Rs. 3.7 Bn last year.

Being cognizant of our position as key feedstock
suppliers to major industries in Pakistan like construction
and textile. We remain committed in playing our part in
driving economic growth of the country through serving
the entire domestic PVC market, resultantly saving
outflow of precious foreign exchange.

Over the time, EPCL has made significant investment of
~USD 150 million in expansion, efficiency, and
diversification projects. These projects include state of
the art technology and infrastructure which will help in

During the year ended December 31, 2020, the wealth
generation and distribution were made as shown below.

Distribution of value added - 2020

0%

10%

Retained within business

3%

Shareholders

52%

Employees
Society

0%

9%

10%
4%
54%

Shareholders
Employees
Society
Providers of Finance
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23%

At EPCL, we believe in accelerating, not managing,
performance. Creating the right experience for our
employees allows our workforce to feel valued and
empowered to perform at their best.

We at EPCL believe in learning and constant growth;
Harvard ManageMentor is an effort towards that journey.
Harvard ManageMentor is a globally recognized
program consisting of a suite of 41 essential business
topics ranging from developing employees to stress
management, and delivering critical management skills
when and where you need them. It also provides
in-depth expertise which will develop our people and
help them grow, that will ultimately aid in achieving the
vision of Engro Polymer. With that belief, we partnered
with Harvard Business School Publishing and
purchased 100 licenses that were assigned to our
employees. Total courses completed last year were
750.

Government
Retained within business

The Company is an equal opportunity employer and
there is no discrimination based on gender or employee
category. Each employee has an objective setting
session at the beginning of the year, charting out the
performance targets of the year. These objectives and
the employee’s performance are reviewed at half-yearly
appraisals. Any shortcomings identified in the
performance are highlighted and guidance is given on
how to correct it.

learning & development

17%

Providers of Finance

Distribution of value added - 2019

Performance Appraisal Program is managed for all
permanent employees of Engro Polymer & Chemicals
Limited, who received regular performance and career
developments through quarterly appraisals, mid-year
reviews, and year end appraisals.

At the end of the annual cycle, 100% permanent
employees go through a stringent appraisal cycle, and
are ranked based on their performance throughout the
year.

7%
Government

human capital

diversity & equal opportunity
In line with our HR strategy, we strive to
be an equal opportunity employer. Engro
Polymer and Chemicals is committed to
encouraging greater diversity and
ensuring equal opportunities for

individuals based on merit. This belief is driven by our
core value to ‘Nurture passion to serve country,
community and company, with strong belief in the
dignity and value of people’.

process safety
Process Safety at the EPCL site is built
up by major key elements. Mechanical
Integrity is to assure that all safety critical
systems and devices are functional and
their corrective and preventive
maintenance is in place. Management of Change
observes the safety management through which
changes and modifications are made at the plant site.
Safety culture looks after the effectiveness of
departmental committees, also incorporating
housekeeping and inherent safety audits into them.
Operating and Maintenance Procedures checks and
ensures Work-Permit, Lock out Tag out Procedures,
and the Job Cycle Check Plan and its compliance.
Lastly, Process Safety Training and Compliance
quantifies the training compliances and the skill
certifications of employees at the site.
Recommendation waivers and near miss events are
debited accordingly.
Lagging indicators are reflected by the Process Safety
Incident Rate (PSTIR) which is a measure of the number
of Process Safety Incidents at the site and are run
through corporate targets that have to be met.

personnel safety
Personnel Safety Standards at EPCL plant
are measured through Behavioral Leading
Indicators with its elements being
Management Safety Audit, its quality and
its observations, Incident Report reviews,
Housekeeping and ERP drill scores, role statements
and their compliances.
Personnel Safety can be quantified by Total Recordable
Injury Rate (TRIR) that is an estimate of the number of
recordable injuries per 100 employees and by safe man
hours that is the number of working man hours since
the last Lost Work Day Injury.
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OHIH
EPCL has adapted DuPont OHIH system and quantifies
its leading indicators by multiple important
substructures. OH and IH Leading Indicators are
gauged separately. Occupational Health Indicators
include the Health Surveillance Program, Epidemiology
study and its implementation, and fitness, to work with
employees annual medical check-up and their
compliance to return to work.
Industrial Hygiene is checked through Toxic Chemical
Monitoring where TLV concerns are raised, Drinking
Water and its management, Catering and Hygiene with
its audit compliance and recommendation closures,
PPE compliance and their audits, and Health Risk
Assessment Plan. IH is also gauged through Noise and
Air Quality.

COVID management
With unprecedented healthcare challenges caused by
COVID – 19 pandemic, EPCL was confronted with
huge task of ensuring the safety of our personnel at

operations. The challenge was further amplified owing to
our plant location in Karachi (Karachi was declared as
COVID hotspot) and logistical management of over
1000 workforce at plant. Through our strong leadership,
committed workforce and unparalleled resilience, EPCL
undertook several timely measures to ensure health and
safety of our people along with continuity of our
operations. Some of our key responses were:
•

Formation of dedicated COVID-19 oversight
committee

•

Establishing on-site accommodation for workforce

•

Establishment of Inhouse rapid testing facility

•

Early adoption of preventive measures prior to
announcement of lockdown

•

Deployment of Work Safe Analytics” software which
helps to monitor & control COVID SOP
implementation

•

Deployment of additional paramedics and doctors
at site

Effective implementation of measures helped us through
the most critical times and we are proud to share that
we recorded zero cross transmission at site.

natural capital
Our organization has been a torch bearer
in valuing its operating environment from
mere reactive compliance to proactive
environmental stewardship.

environmental indicators
Total expenditures and investments made in the area of
Occupational Health and Safety Management.This also
include salaries and benefits of staff responsible for
Occupational Health and Safety Management.
Environment KPIs are also monitored with its major
elements being Effluent and Emission Quality with its
compliance to Monitoring Control Limits and Sindh
Environment Quality Standards, Waste Generation,
Generation of CO2 in ratio with products, and
Environment related recommendations. EPCL has its
own Combined Cycle Power Plant run through natural
gas to produce its own energy.

(Rs. in millions)
Nature of Investment /
Expenditure

2019

2020

Expenses on HSE
Investments on HSE

40
46

35
30

environmental conservation
The Company over the years has made
multiple efforts to help conserve the
environment including waste emission
and effluent handling with proper
classification of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste, complying to its
proper disposal. Other measures include heavier
hydrocarbons and hydrogen being used as fuel, waste
being used as fertilizer, and effective daily monitoring of
all Environment KPIs. EPCL also uses Hydrogen gas as
an alternative source of Energy and has announced
High Temperature Direct Chlorination (HTDC) project
which will bring further energy efficiencies and reduce
carbon dioxide emissions.
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environmental impact
assessment
EPCL has adapted a stringent Environment
Management System that helps to identify
environmental risks, vulnerabilities, and their impact.
Efforts are made to reduce impact of carbon footprints
and help conserve water resources. EMS is audited by
ISO-14001.
During 2020, EPCL conducted multiple environment
audits and acquired several approvals from SEPA. Such
as;
• Environment impact assessment (EIA) for H2O2
along with NOC for Construction phase
• Received NOC Renewal of Hazardous
substance license from SEPA
• Approval of initial environment examination for
TDS extension
• NOC for PVC – III operation
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Environmental impacts of transporting products and
other goods and materials used for the organization’s
operations, and transporting members of the workforce.
Logistics Support handles the products for delivery to
customers and also for transfer within warehouses.
EPCL is striving for safe deliverance by maintaining the
quality of products and logistics.
The Company takes the following measures:

Route Hazard Analysis is on-road assessment of
identification of issues and is done to mitigate the
impact of said issues by training drivers to avoid such
situations.
Fleet Accident Frequency Rate (FAFR) is an index which
measures the accidents happening during driving on
roads, it’s the number of accidents per 1 Million KMs.

social capital
EPCL’s vision of providing a safe, healthy, and
educated environment goes beyond its closed doors, it
is deep seated into the will of making a difference and
empowering communities that are largely ignored by the
city, communities that go unheard, and communities
that lack basic human rights. The belief of developing
Ghaggar Pathak to an extent that it becomes a model
village for even the government to take inspiration from
and pursue, is not an easy goal, it is long-term and will
come with its challenges. Nonetheless, it is a goal that
EPCL is keen on achieving and will not back down till
the entire community of Ghaggar Pathak is empowered
and has access to a life that is not in constant danger of
health, education, and safety deprivation.
Hence, we have launched several programs to benefit
the local community:
•

Solar Lights Illumination Project at Ghaghar Phatak

•

Community Park & Mosque

•

Water Filtration Plants in Ghaggar Pathak

•

Blood Donation Campaigns

•

Winter Clothes Distribution

•

4 TCF Schools for Ghaggar Pathak residents

•

SINA Clinic

education
In collaboration with The Citizens
Foundation, the company has
established two new purpose-built
schools in 2020. The campuses will
benefit the children of lesser-privileged
communities of Ghaggar Phattak villages and adjoining
areas. With start of these school EPCL is playing an
active role in provision of quality education in Ghaggar
phattak area for more than 1,000 students in through a
total of four schools.
These schools have been successful in keeping a
number of children off the streets, inculcating a sense of
civic responsibility in them, and most importantly, in
providing quality education and developing a thirst for
knowledge.
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healthcare
In order to provide for healthcare facilities
EPCL, in partnership with SINA,
constructed a hospital at the cost of Rs.
15.7 Mn in the heart of Ghagghar Phattak
area. The clinic provides multiple services
free of cost.The SINA hospital has a daily round of 100
patients and all those patients who have so far received
medical assistance and treatment at the clinic are not
only content but are more than thankful to EPCL for
providing them with a fully equipped healthcare unit.
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integrated reporting

clean water facilities
A major health hazard which EPCL
addressed, was the absence of clean
and safe drinking water for the residents
of the Ghagghar Phattak community.
Most of these communities received
water through the public water supply
system, which was not only irregular and scarce in
supply, but also extremely contaminated with
life-threatening microbial bacteria.
The entire issue had become a major public health
concern because such waterborne diseases are
responsible for a significant amount of human and

economic losses; these losses include the loss of
millions of working hours of productivity in total, and of
course, associated costs for healthcare. Hence, EPCL,
on its mission to make Ghagghar Phattak a safe and
healthy living space, has successfully installed 5 water
filtration plants at Ghagghar Phattak and Razzakabad in
partnership with the Water Foundation.
The daily consumption of water lies between 4,500 5,000 liters per day. The improvement in the quality of
water from the water filtration plants compared to normal
tap water have not gone unnoticed and most of the
residents have switched to this alternative and have
consequently experienced better health conditions.

EPCL holds timely and effective communication with
shareholders in high regards. We endeavor to provide
insightful information relating to our markets, business and
operations which could assist our shareholders in their
respective decision making. The core focus of our
communication is to exhibit the value generated,
measures adopted by EPCL to generate value and
potential for future value generation. Furthering this
resolve, EPCL is committed to adopt International
Integrated reporting framework to benchmark our
corporate reporting with best international practices.
Therefore, we have mapped our information provided in
this annual report in following content elements;
•

Organizational overview and external environment

•

Governance

•

Business model

•

Risks and opportunities

•

Strategy and resource allocation

•

Performance

•

Outlook

•

Basis of presentation

With our firm commitment towards adoption of
framework, we will continue to shape our corporate
reporting more shareholder centric for better facilitation of
their decision making.
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moving forward

forward looking
statement
COVID-19 pandemic brought significant disruptions to
Pakistan’s economic and social landscape in 2020. Not
only it forced layoffs and business closures but also
brought many people in extreme poverty. Although
economy has started to recover post lifting of lockdown
measures and development of vaccine, but it will take
time before we recoup the progress that we lost during
the COVID-19 induced challenging times.
Development and commencement of COVID-19
vaccination poses positive signs for global and
domestic economy. The overall demand is expected to
show healthy growth as more and more economic
activities restore to normal levels. However, the increase
in aggregate demand will put inflation, policy rate and
exchange rate under pressure, which will require timely
and effective stabilizing measures by the government.
Domestic PVC market is expected to perform well on
the back of construction package and housing
schemes announced by the government. As major
application of PVC in Pakistan remains pipes and
fittings. With our additional capacity coming online, we
believe EPCL is optimally positioned to capitalized on
the upcoming opportunities in the domestic market.
With turnarounds coming up for major PVC producers
and peak construction season reaching in April / May,
we believe global PVC prices are expected to remain
firm in short run.
Caustic domestic market already demonstrated
significant recovery towards the end of outgoing year
owing to the COVID situation in regional countries and
US-China trade war. With extension in GSP plus status
till 2022, the market is expected to gain further
momentum and presents a bullish outlook for 2021.
Moving on, with continued government support
including continuity of gas supply and dedication of our
people, EPCL remain committed on creating exciting
possibilities in domestic PVC and caustic markets and
maximizing value for our shareholders.

analysis of last year’s
forward looking
statement
The Company recorded healthy performance and
achieved noticeable milestones in the outgoing year
despite the unparalleled challenges presented by the
pandemic. 2020 was the year of highest profitability of
Rs. 5.7 billion in EPCL history. Driving factors behind the
profitability were historically high PVC prices and
stringent cost control measure adopted by the
government. On COVID-19 front, the Company
demonstrated highest level of commitment towards
strict implementation of preventive measures and
protocols that helped us achieve zero cross
transmission at manufacturing facility, smooth
operations in other aspects of business and continuity
of construction activities at our expansion site. We are
pleased to report that despite a challenging
macro-economic environment, the Company achieved
major milestones in securing long term finances. We
obtained a LTFF facility of Rs. 2 billion at concessionary
SBP rate and successfully closed one-of-a-kind
preference shares IPO listing on PSX which was
oversubscribed by 5.4 times

status of the projects
disclosed in previous
year
Despite various challenges posed by the pandemic
which included lesser on site manning and suspension
of operations during lockdown, EPCL continued to work
towards execution of its previously announced projects
while continuing its endeavors to identify new projects
and markets. Timelines of the projects already under
progress has inevitably been impacted, however, our
commitment towards completion remain intact. The
driving force behind these efforts emanate from our
vision to Lead Pakistan in Polymers & Allied Chemicals
with International Footprint.
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•

•

•

Oxygen based VCM Production: Operational
efficiency is a core focus of the company owing to
its positive impact on shareholder value.
Resultantly, the Board of Directors approved this
project with the objective of shifting VCM
production form air based technology to oxygen
based process. This will reduce the overall raw
material consumption by ~2%. The project is
underway and is expected to be completed in
2021.
Hydrogen Peroxide: The company generates
hydrogen as a by-product of its caustic
manufacturing process which is currently being
used as fuel in our power plant. Post completion of
the project, hydrogen will be diverted to this
manufacturing process which will generate higher
value as compared to its utilization as fuel.
Hydrogen Peroxide is mainly used as a bleaching
agent in textile industry, a sector we already serve
through our Caustic product line. The project is
ongoing and we will continue to keep shareholders
updated on timelines.
Linear Alkyl Benzene Sulphonic Acid (LABSA): EPCL
has continuously looked to create a diversified
product base to create new profit streams and
ensure it against commodity cycle risks. To this
end, the company Board of Directors decided to
enter the LABSA, an integral part of powder
detergent recipe, market via a greenfield venture.
To ensure implementation of COVID protocols
especially social distancing of manning at
expansion site, we have currently put this project on
hold. We will update our shareholders on future
developments regarding the project.

The company had announced the following projects
inprior years which were discussed in last years forward
looking statements:

High Temperature Direct Chlorination (HTDC):
EPCL is always in search of energy efficient
solutions and also to optimize its energy
consumption. HTDC is an outcome of the
company’s efforts towards the same objective. Post
completion, this will reduce the company’s carbon
footprint and also bring further energy efficiency.
The project is expected to come online in 2022.

PVC / VCM Expansion: The expansion entails
additional PVC plant capacity of 100,000 MT (total
capacity of 295,000 MT post completion) and VCM
plant de-bottlenecking for incremental capacity of

Looking ahead, the completion of the projects will
remain the core focus of EPCL. These will enable the
company to continue its strong operational and financial
performance.

•
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50,000 MT. PVC III has achieved commercial
operations in March 2021, while work on VCM
project has entered its final stages and is expected
to be completed in Q2 2021.

•

source of information
and assumptions
used for projections /
forecasts
Engro Polymer utilizes a well-defined process to analyze
and assess the assumptions that are being used for
quantitative and qualitative analysis and forecasts. The
company has an established network with international
olefins analysts to have better insight of international
market dynamics. Assumptions relating to
macroeconomic factors are sourced from publications
issued by State bank of Pakistan and Pakistan bureau
of statistics. The company also relies heavily on primary
sources of information where we conduct customer
surveys, market visits and other activities to develop an
understanding of the domestic market and use this for
the purpose of our forecasts.
All assumptions used in forecast and projects are
vigilantly monitored and discussed by the top
management in decision making processes.

organization’s
capability in
responding to
potential critical
challenges and
uncertainties
EPCL remains cognizant of changing internal and
external environment which may bring challenges to
business. We have put in place a thorough enterprise
risk management practices through which the
Company identifies various risks and uncertainties and
develops mitigating actions for those risk and
uncertainties. The key identified risk along with their
mitigating plans are presented and reviewed by the
Board of directors. In addition, being mindful of our
responsibilities to operate and ensure protection of
business operations from any potential disruption. we
initiated our Business Continuity Plan in 2013 and have
upgraded it regularly. The plan was tested from the
onset of lockdown imposed by the Government in
response to COVID-19 pandemic and successfully
implemented by the management to ensure smooth &
safe continuity of operations.
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six-year summary of financial
position with horizontal and vertical analysis
2020
ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use asset
Intangible assets
Financial assets at amortised cost
Long-term loans and advances
Deferred tax asset
Stores, spares and loose tools
Stock-in-trade
Trade debts - considered good
Loans, advances, deposits, prepayments
and other receivables
Income tax payments less provision
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at amortized cost
Current maturity of financial assets at amortised cost
Cash and bank balances
TOTAL ASSETS
EQUITY
Ordinary share capital
Preference shares
Share premium
Hedging reserve
Unappropriated profits

LIABILITIES
Long-term borrowings
Lease liabilities
Derivative financial instruments
Provisions
Deferred tax liability
Current portion of long term borrowings
Current portion of lease liabilities
Derivative financial instruments
Provisions
Service benefit obligations
Short-term borrowings
Trade and other payables
Unclaimed dividend
Unpaid dividend
Income tax payments less provision
Accrued interest / mark-up

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
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2019

2018

2017

2016

2015

Amount
In Mn.

Horizontal

Vertical

Amount
In Mn.

Horizontal

Vertical

Amount
In Mn.

Horizontal

Vertical

Amount
In Mn.

Horizontal

Vertical

Amount
In Mn.

Horizontal

Vertical

Amount
In Mn.

Horizontal

Vertical

37,614
2,306
102
4,661
29
1,785
6,195
586

20
(16)
29
(14)
(60)
(100)
6
42
25

54
4
7
3
9
1

31,433
2,748
79
5,421
72
116
1,678
4,350
470

21
(26)
(14)
7
21
9

55
5
9
3
8
1

19,398
107
84
1,563
3,581
430

21
2
11
(100)
(2)
(3)
(15)

54
4
10
1

16,011
105
76
11
1,602
3,681
505

15
9
(98)
4
22
11

66
7
15
2

16,008
91
70
549
1,546
3,024
456

(1)
1
6
(40)
3
4

66
2
6
12
2

16,249
90
66
908
1,539
2,942

(4)
73
(6)
4
(25)

67
4
6
12

315
159
13,432
964
946
69,094

(64)
87
43
19180
19
20

20
1
1
100

879
85
9,391
5
792
57,519

(48)
49
(100)
(42)
60

2
16
1
100

1,700
6,298
1,500
1,362
36,023

149
(100)
2524
99
48

5
18
4
4
100

683
767
240
683
24,364

56
(32)
(68)
82
-

3
3
1
3
100

437
1,124
740
376
24,421

10
1
147
122
1

2
5
3
2
100

437
396
1,116
300
169
24,212

(21)
(27)
2
37
(69)
(8)

2
2
5
1
1
100

9,089
3,000
3,875
10,162
26,126

111

13
4
6
15

9,089
3,875
4,812
17,776

26

16
7
8

9,089
3,875
3,832
16,796

37
302
2280

25
11
11

6,635
964
161
7,760

(100)
(110)

27
4
1

9 6,635
964
(1)
(1,593)
6,005

(92)
(29)

27
4
(7)

6,635
964
(12)
(2,253)
5,334

(60)
40

27
4
(9)

19,790
3,614
2,991
1,183
1,837
1,081
2,456
80
9,483
28
425
42,968

2
(20)
10
(57)
31
(100)
45
(10)
16

28
5
3
2
3
2
4
14
1

19,389
4,544
987
5,658
61
2,159
6,548
31
366
39,743

159
(100)
22
11
2
15
(100)
(100)
463

34
8
1
10
4
11
1

7,500
390
4,639
55
6,436
27
26
89
65
19,227

(14)
49
20
42
(29)
(52)

21
1
13
18
-

8,750
3,112
46
4,523
38
135
16,604

(100)
(100)
46
(100)
(33)
1127

36
12
19
-

8,750
417
2
2,130
46
329
6,731
11
18,416

66
(100)
(86)
(92)
85
18
(89)
7
(80)

36
2
9
1
28
-

5,263
17
3,064
24
1,149
39
2,957
6,310
55
18,878

(14)
(61)
2
(80)
13
(3)
393
(32)
(41)

22
13
5
12
26
-

69,094

20

100

57,519

60

100

36,023

48

100

24,364

-

100

24,421

1

100

24,212

(8)

100

1
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key figures

six-year summary of financial performance
with horizontal and vertical analysis
2020
Amount
In Mn.

Net revenue
Cost of sales
Gross profit
Distribution and marketing expenses
Administrative expenses
Other expenses
Other income
Operating profit / (loss)
Finance costs
Profit / (loss) before taxation
Taxation
Profit / (loss) after taxation

35,331
(24,382)
10,949
(294)
(550)
(860)
1,180
10,425
(2,191)
8,234
(2,504)
5,730

2019

Horizontal

Vertical

In %

(7)
(18)
35
(26)
(3)
(31)
27
53
22
63
86
55

100
(69)
31
(1)
(2)
(2)
3
29
(6)
23
(7)
16

Amount
In Mn.

37,837
(29,731)
8,106
(396)
(566)
(1,241)
930
6,833
(1,794)
5,039
(1,343)
3,696

2018
Amount
In Mn.

Net revenue
Cost of sales
Gross profit
Distribution and marketing expenses
Administrative expenses
Other expenses
Other income
Operating profit / (loss)
Finance costs
Profit / (loss) before taxation
Taxation
Profit / (loss) after taxation

35,272
(27,663)
7,609
(385)
(577)
(828)
1,250
7,069
(606)
6,463
(1,533)
4,930

Net revenue
Cost of sales
Gross profit
Distribution and marketing expenses
Administrative expenses
Other expenses
Other income
Operating profit / (loss)
Finance costs
Profit / (loss) before taxation
Taxation
Profit / (loss) after taxation

Horizontal

Vertical

In %

27
23
48
(6)
(1)
133
812
80
(26)
107
44
140

100
(78)
22
(1)
(2)
(2)
4
21
(2)
18
(4)
15
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7
7
7
3
(2)
50
(26)
(3)
196
(22)
(12)
(25)

100
(79)
21
(1)
(1)
(3)
2
18
(5)
13
(4)
9

Sales
revenue

Profit
after tax

Earning per
share - basic

Earning per
share - diluted

(Rs. in million)

(Rs. in million)

(in Rs.)

(in Rs.)

2020

2020

2020

2020

35,331

5,730

6.30

6.23

2019

2019

2019

2019

37,837

3,696

4.07

4.07

Amount
In Mn.

27,731
(22,582)
5,149
(411)
(584)
(356)
137
3,935
(820)
3,115
(1,062)
2,053

Horizontal

Total
assets

Total
equity

Market
capitalization

Price
per share

(Rs. in million)

(Rs. in million)

(Rs. in million)

(in Rs.)

2020

2020

2020

2020

69,094

26,126

43,183

47.51

2019

2019

2019

2019

57,519

17,776

30,185

33.21

Total
number of
employees

Total average
number of
employees

Total number
of plant
employees

Total average
number of plant
employees

2020

2020

2020

2020

563

537

480

456

2019

2019

2019

2019

508

483

435

467

Vertical

In %

21
14
68
29
13
137
552
87
(11)
162
102
211

100
(81)
19
(2)
(2)
(1)
14
(3)
11
(4)
7

2015

Horizontal

Vertical

In %

3
(3)
64
2
1
(54)
(67)
169
(20)
(430)
86
(202)

Vertical

In %

2017

2016
Amount
In Mn.
22,854
(19,780)
3,074
(319)
(519)
(150)
21
2,107
(920)
1,187
(527)
660

Horizontal

100
(87)
13
(1)
(2)
(1)
9
(4)
5
(2)
3

Amount Horizontal Vertical
In Mn.
In %
22,264
(7)
100
(20,390)
(12)
(92)
1,874
214
8
(313)
(7)
(1)
(515)
4
(2)
(326)
5
(1)
63
(23)
783
(269)
4
(1,143)
7
(5
(360)
(76)
(2)
(284)
(168)
(1)
(644)
(42)
(3)
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consolidated cash flows - direct method
2020

(amounts in million)

2019

2018

2017

2016

2015

41,333
(28,870)

37,799
(28,729)

35,347
(24,989)

27,671
(24,937)

22,835
(18,528)

22,382
(22,153)

Cash generated from operations

12,463

9,070

10,358

2,734

4,307

229

Long term loans and advances
Retirement benefits paid
Income tax paid

43
(35)
(1,279)

12
(45)
(1,280)

(9)
(155)
(278)

(6)
(104)
(167)

(4)
(138)
(181)

(162)
(264)

Net cash flow from operating activities

11,192

7,757

9,916

2,457

3,984

(197)

Purchase of operating assets and intangibles
Proceeds from disposal of operating assets
Investment in Term Deposit Receipt
Income on investments and bank deposits

(7,318)
(6)
1,072

(13,114)
3
(5,421)
852

(4,260)
346

(1,093)
9
49

(645)
7
1

(661)
11
39

Net cash flow from investing activities

(6,252)

(17,680)

(3,914)

(1,035)

(637)

(611)

1,925
-

19,367
(7,500)
-

(1,250)
-

3,000
(3,417)
(300)

6,600
(5,796)
(1,050)

2,150
750
(2,998)
-

94
(199)
3,000
(1,891)
(1,337)
(185)

(999)
(1,241)
(840)

5,365
(638)
(1,242)

(607)
(261)

(877)
-

(995)
-

1,407

8,787

2,235

(1,585)

(1,123)

(1,093)

Cash flows from customers
Cash payments to suppliers and others

Proceeds from long-term borrowings
Proceeds from short term borrowings
Repayments of long-term borrowings
Repayments of short-term borrowings
Proceeds from loan under Diminishing
Musharaka Agreement
Shares issuance cost paid
Issuance of preference shares
Issue of share capital
Finance costs
Rentals paid
Dividend
Net cash flow from financing activities
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

6,347
8,024

(1,136)
9,160

8,237
923

(163)
1,086

2,224
(1,138)

(1,901)
763

14,371

8,024

9,160

923

1,086

(1,138)

Investing activities

10,000

10,000

5,000

(5,000)

3,984

2,457

9,916

7,757

11,192

0

(197)

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

(5,000)

(10,000)

(15,000)

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

(611)

(637)

(1,035)

(3,914)

(17,680)

(6,252)

Rs. in Mn.

15,000

0

(amounts in million)
2020
Net cash generated from operating activities
Net cash used in investing activities
Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities
Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

(5,000)

2018

2017

2016

2015

7,757
(17,680)
8,787
(1,136)
8,024

9,916
(3,914)
2,235
8,237
9,160

2,457
(1,035)
(1,585)
(163)
923

3,984
(637)
(1,123)
2,224
1,086

(197)
(611)
(1,093)
(1,901)
(1,138)

Free cash flows to equity shareholders represent the cash a company can generate after required investment to maintain or
expand its asset base and net repayment of debt. It is a measurement of a company’s financial performance and health.

(amounts in million)
2020
Net cash generated from operating activities
Capital expenditures - net

2019

11,192
(7,318)

7,679
(13,111)

Free cash flows
Long term borrowings - net

3,874
2,019

(5,432)
11,867

Free cash flow available to equity shareholders

5,893

6,435

The cashflows generated from operations have increased mainly owing improved operation and efficient working capital management.
Further the CAPEX incurred during the period have decreased because of halting capital projects owing to COVID.
The proceeds received during year as borrowings were on account of availing LTFF facility. Whereas, last year the Company had
obtained as a result of sukuks issuance and IFC agreement.

consolidated economic value added
Economic value added (EVA) is a measure of a company’s financial performance based on the residual wealth calculated by
deducting its cost of capital from its operating profit, adjusted for taxes on cash basis (NOPAT).

(amounts in million)
2020

NOPAT
Less: cost of capital

5,000

0

11,192
(6,252)
1,407
6,347
14,371

2019

consolidated free cash flows

Financing activities

15,000

Rs. in Mn.

Rs. in Mn.

Operating activities

summary of consolidated statement of
cash flows - indirect method

(1,093)

(1,123)

(1,585)

2015

2016

2017

2,235

8,787

1,407

2018

2019

2020

Economic value added

2019

7,154
(6,795)

4,209
(5,391)

359

(1,182)

The asset base of the Company has continued to expand on account of expansion and diversification projects being undertaken, the
positive impact will be reflected in the Company’s performance in the coming years, along with short term investment and stock in trade
because of improved operations.
During the period, the equity to debt structure has also changed primarily due to preference shares issuance and increased profitability
coupled with favourable changes in economic variables.

(20,000)
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quarterly analysis

Third Quarter
Profit and loss – Rs in Mn

(Based on consolidated financial statements)

First Quarter
Profit and loss – Rs in Mn

Q1-20

Q1-19

Balance sheet – Rs in Mn

Mar-20

Dec-19

Operating profit

972

1,790

Total assets

61,186

57,519

Profit before tax

205

1,522

Total equity

17,969

17,776

Net profit

193

1,094

Total liabilities

43,217

39,743

Due to prolonged plant turnaround, production loss due
to gas leakage incident and suspension of the operations
because of COVID-19 lockdown, the number of
production days during the quarter remained very low and
heavily affected operational profitablity.
Further, the exchange rate increased sharply during this
quarter as a result the Company incurred foreign
exchange loss on outstanding foreign currency liabilities
including lease liabilities.

The total liabilities from dec-19 were increased because
of increase in trade payables owing to increase in
supplier credit, further utilization of short term facilities and
revaluation of foreign currency loans. Correspondingly,
the asset base has increased mainly due to capital
expenditures being carried out on PVC-III and VCM DBN
and H2O2.

Resultantly, the overall performance for the quarter was
significantly impacted from the corresponding quarter.

Second Quarter
Profit and loss – Rs in Mn

Q2-20

Q2-19

Balance sheet – Rs in Mn

Jun-20

Dec-19

Operating profit

620

1,013

Total assets

61,988

57,519

Profit before tax

21

554

Total equity

17,817

17,776

Net profit

30

452

Total liabilities

44,171

39,743

The profitability of the Company in this quarter
considerably declined due to crash of international
commodity market and weakened demand due to
COVID lockdown. Then, the exchange rates continued
to increase, as a result the Company incurred a
significant exchange loss amounted Rs. 606 Mn.
However, the business began pace when the COVID
lock down restrictions were eased toward the end of
the quarter, as a result the products demand was
restored.
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The assets and liabilities of the Company increased
owing to resumption of operations along with expansion
projects which were temporarily suspended during ther
period due to lockdown restrictions.

Q3-20

Q3-19

Balance sheet – Rs in Mn

Sep-20

Dec-19

Operating profit

3,148

2,203

Total assets

63,908

57,519

Profit before tax

2,694

1,731

Total equity

22,323

17,776

Net profit

1,881

1,270

Total liabilities

41,585

39,743

The net profit for the quarter was higher than the profits
reported in the prior quarters and also the comparative
quarter. Owing to surge in international prices and
demand post easing of lockdown.

In addition to the improved profitability, the Company
received advance against preference shares issuance
of Rs. 2,625 Mn and availed Islamic long term financing
facility of Rs. 1,936 Mn to finance PVC-III expansion
project.

Fourth Quarter
Profit and loss – Rs in Mn

Q4-20

Q4-19

Operating profit

5,685

1,827

Profit before tax

5,314

1,232

Net profit

3,626

880

Balance sheet – Rs in Mn

Dec-20

Dec-19

Total assets

69,094

57,519

Total equity

26,126

17,776

Total liabilities

42,968

39,743

The profitability continued to increase due to highest
level of international PVC prices and increased demand
as the economic activity resumed considerably.
Additionally during the period, the Company also
recorded a post-tax gain on remeasurement of GIDC
provision of Rs. 450 Mn.

The financial position has got strengthened by the end
of the year as the cash position of the Company has
increased by Rs. 4,194 Mn. owing the recoverability in
the operations. Then the management also resumed
Hydrogen Peroxide project during the quarter. The
issuance and listing of preference shares were also
concluded in this quarter and the Company received
Rs. 3,000 Mn.

analysis of variation
in interim accounts with
final accounts

it intra-vires to the Constitution and directed its payment
in equal monthly installments. As a result, the Company
remeasured the provision of GIDC and recorded a
post-tax gain of Rs. 450 Mn and ceased its ongoing
application starting from August-20

The revenue and gross profit reported in Q1-20 and
Q2-20 were significantly low because of volumetric loss
experienced during prlonged plant turnover, shutdown
due to gas incident and COVID lockdown. Whereas
from Q3-20, the circumstances have changed favorably
for the Company as the demand was constantly
increasing along with the core delta. Further, the
Supreme Court finalized decision on GIDC by declaring

The operational profits for Q1 and Q2 2020 were mainly
impacted because of revenue and cost of sales. The
exchange rate movement was in upward trajectory in
Q1 and Q2, however it was stabilized in the second
half. The other components have improved due to
reduction in general overheads, cut-down in interest
rates and higher cashflow generation and it’s effective
utilization resulting to higher interest income.
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Revenue

Assets

12,000

45,000

10,000

40,000

8,000

35,000

6,000

2020

4,000
2,000
0

2019

9,344 7,058

9,257 5,816

Q1

Q2

9,234 10,057

Q3

10,002 12,400

30,000
Rs. in Mn.

Rs. in Mn.

14,000

25,000
20,000
15,000
10,000

Q4

5,000
0

Gross Profit

42,525 18,661

44,058 17,930

43,697 20,211

44,712 24,382

Mar-20

Jun-20

Sep-20

Dec-20

Non-current Assets

39,869 17,650

Dec-19

Current Assets

6,000
Rs. in Mn.

5,000
4,000
3,000

2020

2,000
1,000
0

2019

1,915 1,251

Q1

1,970

571

Q2

2,169 3,217

Q3

2,052 5,910

Liabilities

Q4
30,000

Capital Expenditure
Rs. in Mn.

25,000

4,500

Rs. in Mn.

4,000

15,000
10,000

3,500

5,000

3,000

0

2,500
2,000
1,500

2020

1,000
500
0

157

20,000

24,460 18,757

24,242 19,929

26,686 14,899

27,578 15,390

Mar-20

Jun-20

Sep-20

Dec-20

Non-current Liabilities

23,933 15,810

Dec-19

Current Liabilities

2019

3,372 2,498

3,460 1,752

4,207 1,486

Q1

Q2

Q3
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2,075 1,582

Q4
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segment analysis

PVC - Net profit

PVC - Total assets

The Company is organized into three business segments based on the products as follows:

45,000

polyvinyl chloride (PVC) and allied chemicals

40,000
35,000

During the year, this segment has performed significantly well from prior periods, primarily because of the higher prices
prevailed during the year. The six years production and sales trend are given below:

PVC in kilo tons

2020

2019

2018

2017

2016

2015

Total production
Total sales

153
163

197
193

202
207

187
187

172
170

162
171

Rs. in Mn.

4,000
3,000
2,000

25,000
20,000
15,000
10,000

1,000
0
(1,000)

(1,529)

(2,000)

2015

177

983

2,259

2,156

4,618

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

5,000
0

14,786

14,883

15,100

16,088

31,480

38,321

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

caustic soda and allied chemicals

Further, the segment assets have constantly been increasing since 2018 when the Company kicked-off PVC-III and
VCM debottlenecking projects, which were in progress at period end date.

PVC - Revenue

30,000

5,000

Rs. in Mn.

PVC and allied chemicals segment is formed to manufacture and sell PVC and allied chemicals to various industrial
customers including pipe manufacturers, shoe and packaging industry. The Company supplies domestically as well as
through exports mainly in the Asian region. The operating results and assets of Think PVC (Private) Limited and Engro
Plasticizer (Private) Limited are formed part of this segment because of similar the business characteristics.

Caustic soda and allied chemicals segment is formed to manufacture and sell caustic soda and allied chemicals mostly
to textile and soap industry. The operating results and assets of Engro Peroxide (Private) Limited are included in it
because of homgenous business attributes.
The performance of this segment has declined from the last year primarily because of the volumetric loss experienced,
owing to COVID induced lockdown, extended turnaround and chlorine incident. The six years production and sales
trend are tabulated below:

Caustic soda liquid
in kilo tons
Total production
Total sales

PVC - Gross profit
10,000

2020

2019

2018

2017

2016

2015

77
61

105
83

105
86

105
84

103
83

98
83

2020

2019

2018

2017

2016

2015

2
2

4
1

-

-

-

-

9,000
7,000

30,000

6,000

25,000
20,000

4,000
3,000

10,000

2,000

0

1,000

17,826

18,379

22,794

29,492

31,648

30,573

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020
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Caustic flake
in kilo tons
Total production
Total sales

5,000

15,000

5,000

159

Rs. in Mn.

Rs. in Mn.

8,000
35,000

0

1,749

3,356

4,128

5,998

5,160

9,352

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

The asset base of this segment has been expanding because of the diversification and efficiency capital projects have
been undertaken. Out of all the notable ones are:
• Caustic flakes (completed)
• Hydrochloric acid plant debottlenecking (completed)
• Sodium hypochlorite acid plant debottlenecking (completed)
• Caustic soda membrane replacement (completed)
• Hydrogen Peroxide (in progress)
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power supply
The segment supplies surplus power generated from its power plants to Engro Fertilizers Limited. The performance of
the segment is linked with gas prices and has remained fairly consistent throughtout the presented periods.
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CA - Gross profit
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The segment’s asset base mainly includes operating assets and trade receivables from Engro Fertilizers Limited.
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key financial ratios
(based on consolidated financial statements)
Profitability Ratios

Unit

Formula

2020

2019

2018

2017

2016

2015

Gross profit/
30.99
Total sales
Operating expense/
71.45
Operating income
Net profit/ Total
16.22
sales
Operating profit /
12,190
(loss) - depreciation
and amortization
EBITDA/Total sales
34.50
% change in EBIT/
(6.49)
% change in sales
Net profit /
21.93
Shareholder's equity
EBIT / (average
22.85
debt liabilities + average
shareholder' equity)

21.42

21.57

18.57

13.45

8.42

82.37

80.64

85.88

90.79

96.49

9.77

13.98

7.40

2.89

(2.89)

8,352

8,044

4,879

2,985

2,068

22.07
(0.40)

22.81
2.36

17.59
2.87

13.06
24.14

9.29
(24.68)

20.79

29.35

26.46

10.99

(12.07)

20.70

34.65

25.17

16.62

6.91

Activity/turnover ratios
Gross profit ratio

%

Cost/income ratio

%

Net Profit /(loss) to sales

%

EBITDA

Rs. in M

EBITDA to sales
Operating leverage ratio

%
No. of times

Return on equity

%

Return on capital employed

%

Liquidity ratios
Cash flow from operations
to sales
Cash to current liabilities
Current ratio
Quick ratio

Capital structure
Interest cover ratio
Long term debt to
Equity ratio
Long term debt to equity
ratio at market value

No. of times

Cash flow from
operations/ Sales
No. of times (cash + cash equivalents)
/ Current liabilities
No. of times
Current assets
/ Current liabilities
No. of times
(Current assets inventories) / Current
liabilities
No. of times
%
%

Weighted average cost of debt

%

Financial leverage

%

Price to book ratio

%

Earning assets to total assets

%

Net assets per share
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Rs.

0.35

0.24

0.29

0.10

0.19

0.01

0.93

0.50

0.81

0.12

0.11

(0.08)

1.58

1.12

1.45

1.04

0.80

0.51

1.07

0.74

1.00

0.37

0.32

0.18

EBIT/Finance cost
6.01
Long-term debt /
47:53
shareholders' equity
Long-term debt /
35:65
(Total number of
shares*market value
per share)
Interest on debt /
6.50
weighted average loan
balance
Total debt /
100.75
shareholders' equity
Market value of share /
0.63
(Total assets - intangible
assets)
Earning assets /
99.27
Total assets
Net assets / No. of
shares outstanding
28.74

5.26
57:43

12.45
31:69

5.38
53:47

2.53
59:41

0.82
50:50

44:56

18:82

28:72

42:58

43:57

7.52

6.99

8.01

8.02

9.11

152.33

44.65

112.76

158.16

211.55

0.53

0.94

0.78

0.50

0.29

98.00

95.05

93.69

91.07

89.73

19.56

18.48

11.70

9.06

8.05

Unit

Fixed assets turnover

No. of times

Total assets turnover
Inventory turnover

No. of times
No. of times

Inventory turnover days
Debtor turnover

No. of days
No. of times

Debtor turnover days
Creditor turnover

No. of days
No. of times

Creditor turnover days
Operating cycle

No. of days
No. of days

Investment/market ratios
Earnings per share - basic

Price earning ratio

Rs.

No. of times

Break up value per share

Rs.

Break up value with
investment at market value

Rs.

Dividend payout ratio
Dividend cover ratio
Dividend yield ratio

Earnings per share - diluted

%
No. of times
%

Rs.

Formula

2020

2019

2018

2017

2016

2015

Revenue /
Operating assets
Revenue/Total assets
Cost of goods sold/
Average inventory
365/Inventory turnover
Total sales/ Average
accounts receivable
365/debtor turnover
Raw and packing
materials/Average
accounts payable
365/creditor turnover
Inventory turnover
days + debtor turnover
days - creditor
turnover days

1.83

2.07

2.13

1.85

1.50

1.43

0.51
6.18

0.66
9.21

0.98
8.89

1.14
7.64

0.94
7.91

0.92
7.07

59.03
79.55

39.64
98.27

41.07
87.07

47.79
67.42

46.14
59.44

51.66
48.38

4.59
5.63

3.71
7.17

4.19
8.22

5.41
4.34

6.14
2.57

7.54
2.08

64.88

50.90

44.40

84.19

142.20

175.62

(1.26)

(7.55)

0.86

(30.98)

(89.92)

(116.42)

6.30

4.07

6.22

2.93

0.99

(0.97)

7.54

8.16

5.97

9.75

18.65

(10.76)

28.74

19.56

18.48

11.70

9.06

8.05

28.74

19.56

18.48

11.70

9.06

8.05

19.79

19.66

17.68

42.66

-

-

5.05

5.09

5.65

2.34

-

-

3.00

2.00

3.00

4.00

-

-

-

-

-

-

PAT- dividend on
preference shares/
weighted average no. of
ordinary shares
Market value of
share/Basic EPS
Total shareholders'
equity/total ordinary
share outstanding
(Total shareholders'
equity + increase in the
value of investments in
related parties) / total
ordinary share
outstanding
Dividend per share /
Basic EPS
Basic EPS / Annual
total dividend per share
Annual dividend per
share/market value per
ordinary shares
PAT- dividend on
preference shares/
(weighted average no. of
ordinary shares + diluted
shares)

6.27

-
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financial statements
analysis with graphical
presentation

Trend analysis

Non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Over the period of six years, the non-current assets of
the Company have been continuing to increase owing
to a diversified range of expansion projects being
undertaken to enhance productivity and achieve
efficiency.

Non-current liabilities have raised by Rs. 3,645 Mn. due
to these events took place during the year:

Non-current assets

Current assets

Non-current assets of the Company have marginally
increased by Rs. 4,843 Mn against last year i.e. by
12.1%. The change is mainly attributable to diversified
range of CAPEX being undertaken by the Company
which include PVC-III and VCM debottlenecking, OVR,
HTDC, H2O2 and other operational efficiency and
reliability projects. Last year, the Company recognized a
right-of-use asset on the storage contracts and other
rental arrangements under IFRS 16 amounted to
Rs. 2,845 Mn.

The net increase in current assets amounts to
Rs. 6,732 Mn. over last year is majorly due to sufficient
cash generation from the operations.

2- Deferred tax liability 1,183 Mn. owing to recoupment
of MTOT and ACT.

Current liabilities have remained fairly stable i.e Rs.
15,810 Mn to Rs. 15,390 Mn. The increase has
observed in current maturity of long-term borrowing and
lease liabilities and trade and other payables
aggregating to Rs. 4,848 Mn. On other hand, provision
for GIDC and short-term borrowings have reduced by
Rs. 5,360 Mn.

Trend analysis:

Trend analysis

The increasing movement in non-current liabilities, were
brought down in 2016 through reprofiling the debt
structure. But, these have again increased in 2019
owing to the loans obtained for capital expenditures
being made in its respect. Further, the recognition of
lease liability under IFRS-16 and recognition of
non-current portion of GIDC in last and current years
have contributed to the increase.

On account of liquidity issues in the preceding years,
the current liabilities of the Company were up in 2015.
Thereafter, it began to reduce till 2018 when the
management had prudently handled these crunches.
Since 2018, the increase in current liabilities is observed
due to recorded payable on account of capex related
and raw material procurement, recognition of lease
liabilities and short-term borrowing.

1- Recognition of non-current portion of GIDC provision
from current liabilities of Rs. 2,991 Mn.

Trend analysis:
The current assets have grown up over the period from
Rs. 6,899 Mn. to 24,382 Mn. on account of increase in
cash which will be utilized going forward in various
capital expenditure projects. Further since 2018, when
the PVC-II plant was operationalized, as a result
production capacity enhanced and eventually demand
of all the stock items.
Current assets

Assets

Non-current assets

Current liabilities

Liabilities
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Shareholders’ equity

Trend analysis

Share holders’ equity have increased remarkably during
the year by Rs. 8,350 Mn:
The growth is attributed to the following events:
1. Preference share issuance of Rs. 3,000 Mn. for the
expansion project.
2. Net profit reported for the year was Rs. 5,730 which
is 55% higher than the profit made last year.
3. Profit appropriation made during the year was Rs.
182 Mn. against Rs. 818 Mn in the corresponding year

Equity has been constantly improving from Rs. 5,334
Mn. to Rs. 26,126 Mn. due to right shares issued in
2018 and preference shares issuance in 2020 of Rs.
5,365 Mn. and Rs. 3,000 Mn respectively, coupled with
the improvement in Company’s performance from
2015. However last year, the application of IFRS 16
resulted in the recognition of loss of Rs. 1,898 Mn.
through equity. From 2017, the Company has made
dividend appropriation till 2020 of Rs. 2,375 Mn.
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13,598 5,280
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profitability analysis
Revenue
The top-line of the Company decreased by 6.62% YoY
which was mainly due to volumetric loss experienced
owing to plant turnaround, gas incident and COVID
lockdown. Though the prices prevailed during the year
were favorable. As a result, the decline in revenue was
capped.
Trend analysis
The Company’s revenue has remained upwards except
for the year 2015 when the Company had faced
reduction owing to the sharp decline in PVC prices in
the international market and the volumetric loss
experienced in 2020 owing to COVID lockdown.

Cost of sales
Cost of sales have reduced by Rs. 5,349 Mn mainly
because of the lowered sales volume transacted during
the year so all the ancillary costs of production have
reduced. Further, the Supreme Court finalized decision
on GIDC by declaring it intra-vires to the Constitution
and directed its payment in equal monthly installments,
as a result, the Company remeasured the provision of
GIDC and recorded gain of Rs. 681 Mn.
Trend analysis
Over the period, the fluctuation in raw materials prices,
increase in gas prices, and declining demand have kept
upward pressure on the cost of sales of the Company

Gross profit
The Company’s gross profitability has increased by Rs.
2,843 Mn from last year, despite of experiencing a
turbulence in the external environment.
Trend analysis
The gross profit margin drives by many factors such as
international PVC and ethylene prices, gas prices,
demand in domestic and international markets and
currency fluctuations. Over the period of six years, the
gross profitability has constantly been increasing on
account of various efficiency projects undertaken by the
Company and favourable international market dynamics

Other income
The other income earned from financial assets have
increased from Rs. 857 Mn. in 2019 to Rs. 1,099 Mn.
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in the current year. The increase is mainly attributed to
increase in average cash availability and foreign
currency TDR of USD 35 Mn placed at the end of last
year. However, the returns on investment have dropped
as SBP, as a part of its monetary policy, made
reduction in the interest rates during the year.
Trend analysis
Other income increased considerably in 2018 due to
one off insurance claim recognized of Rs. 841 Mn.
Other than this event, the interest income has been
constantly increasing due to effective utilization of the
funds generated from operations along with favourable
interest rates trend in the last six years.

Finance cost
Finance cost has changed by Rs. 397 Mn. from last
year and it is proportional directly with the loan amount
outstanding and number of days it is outstanding
considering the draw down bilateral loan from DIB were
made in the end of last year, followed by utilization of
ILTFF scheme of SBP and received Rs. 1,950 at
marginal rate of 3%. But there are certain events taken
place during the year which have controlled the
expenditures which include:

ratio analysis
Profitability ratios
The gross and net profitability for the year have
improved from last year by 35% and 55% respectively.
Profitability has improved due to significant rise in
international prices and cost controlling measures
implemented. Further, during the year the Company has
recorded a gain on remeasurement of GIDC provision
amounted to Rs. 450 Mn post tax
Trend analysis
With the increasing profitability of the Company, the
corresponding ratios have performed accordingly.
Though in these six years, the Company has
experienced increase in gas prices, imposition and
elimination of import duties and foreign exchange rates
variation. But the strong costs controlling measures
along with higher prices have assisted in managing the
ratios.

Liquidity analysis

• Reduction in KIBOR and LIBOR during the period.

Liquidity ratios for the year 2020 have shown significant
improvement since 2015, mainly because of the
changes made in the credit cycle of primary raw
material procurement. However, slightly declined from
2018 owing to recognition of current portion of lease
liabilities and draw down of short-term borrowings.

Trend analysis

Trend analysis

Finance cost of the Company have kept on changing
with the change in borrowings and interest rates.

In the year 2015, the Company’s cash position was
tight due to change in economic environment which
impacted the Company’s position severely. However,
the Company managed to recover from such times with
the conscious efforts enhancing overall balance sheet
outlook.

• capitalization of borrowing cost due on the loans
which were obtained for the projects and

Taxation
Tax charge, being a function of profitability, so the PBT
of the Company, subject to taxation, has increased by
63% from the last year, eventually increasing the tax
charge for the year.
Trend analysis
Taxation being the function of profitability, hence tends
to vary accordingly with it.

But in the year 2016, the postion was restored when
the management implemented strong treasury controls
leading to reprofiling of the structure.

Investment / Market Ratios
EPS-basic for the current year is Rs. 6.30 / share as
compared to Rs. 4.07 / share in the previous year.
Average market value per shares has traded in between
from Rs. 22.47 / share (2019: Rs. 29.93 / share) to Rs.
49.17/ share (2019: Rs 41.84 / share) whereas the
closing price was Rs. 47.51 / share (2019: Rs. 33.21 /
share). During the year, the Company made payments
of total dividend of Rs. 0.20 per share, announced for
the year 2019 whereas, in the preceding total
disbursement was made of Rs. 0.9 / share. Further, the
Company has also declared final dividend of approx.
Rs. 1.247 / share leading to a dividend payout ratio of
19.79%.
Trend analysis
These ratios depend on internal performance of the
Company and external market dynamics. Since, these
factors have kept on changing in response the ratios
behaved accordingly.

Activity/Turnover Ratios
The cash operating cycle has changed from 14 days to
24 days:
• Inventory turnover days have increased from 39 to
59 because of the operational capacity was affected
due to turnaround and COVID lockdown.
• Debtor days have remained fairly stable ranged in
between 4 to 5.
• Creditors turnover days have increased from 51 to
65 owing to change in credit term of main raw
material suppliers.

Capital structure ratios

Trend analysis

The Company’s balance sheet presently carrying long
term borrowings which is higher than the equity of the
current year and the borrowings outstanding last year.
This increase has been observed because of the capital
projects being undertaken by the Company.

• The inventory days have continued to improve from
54 to 40 days, except for this year due to the
reason mentioned above.

Trend analysis
The Company’s position seemed “geared” in the year
2015 because of the long-term financial debt drew to
manage operational and capital assets of the Company.

• The debtor turnover days have reduced from 8 to 5
days depicting strong products’ demand and
efficient debtors’ management controls respectively.
• Whereas, the creditor days was 176 in 2015 owing
to liquidity issues faced in that year, however
presently it is in line with operational circumstances
of the Company.
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Profitability analysis

Capital structure
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Operating cycle

share price sensitivity

100

During the year, 836 Mn shares were traded at Pakistan Stock Exchange at an average per share price of Rs 34.38.
Further during the year, low to high stock prices ranged in between Rs. 22.47 – 49.17 per share. The scrip
outperformed the benchmark index returning 41% as compared to KSE100 Index performance of 6%.
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Interest rate

Exchange price

The Company is funding its expansion projects from
external borrowing which carry financial cost which is
benchmarked against prevailing interest rates. During
the year 2020, the interest rates declined as SBP
adopted various measures to support the economy
during COVID crises, affecting Company's profitability
and eventually impacting share price positively.

The Company's operations are energy sensitive and the
energy cost constitutes a sizable proportion of the
overall manufacturing costs, therefore any increase in
gas prices impact product pricing directly. During the
year 2020, the Company experienced incremental ~6%
change in gas price, which accordingly increased the
cost.

Exchange rate sensitivity
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KSE 100 Index
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Dividend cover ratio

2019

2020

EPCL’s revenues and import liabilities are subject to
foreign exchange volatility. PVC revenue is determined
in US Dollars with reference to international PVC pricing.
However, PVC revenue determination mechanism
provides a natural hedge against foreign exchange
fluctuation exposure on USD denominated liabilities.
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dupont analysis

21.93%

Return
on Equity

2.65 times

8.27%
Return
on Assets

Total
Assets
Turnover

Profit
Margin
5,730

Equity
Multiplier

0.51 times

16.22%

35,331

35,331
Profit
After Tax

Sales

35,331

1,180
Other
Income

Total
Assets

Sales

(1,765)

(22,617)

Depreciation
and
Amortization

26,126
Ownership
Equlty

24,382

44,712
Total
Non-Current
Assets

Total
Current
Assets

Total
Costs

1,785

6,195

Cost of
Sales

Stores,
Spares
and Loose
Tools

Stock-inTrade

(2,191)

(294)

586

Interest
Expenses

Distribution
& Marketing
Expenses

Trade Debts
Considered
Good

(2,504)

(550)

159

13,432

Taxes

Administratve
Expenses

Taxes
Recoverabie

Financial
Assets at Fair
Value through
Profit and
Loss

(860)
Other
Expenses

173

69,094

(29,601)

Sales
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Summary of DuPont Analysis

(amounts in million)

315

Loans,
Advances
Prepayments
and Other
Receivables

946
Cash and
Bank
Balances

2020

2019

2018

2017

2016

2015

Profit margin (in %)

16.22

9.77

13.94

7.39

2.87

(3)

Asset turnover (in times)

0.51

0.66

0.98

1.14

0.93

1

Equity multiplier (in times)

2.65

3.24

2.15

3.15

4.1

5

Return on equity (in %)

21.93

20.79

29.37

26.54

10.98

(12)

Over the years, the Company's profitability has improved
significantly and so its financial position. The
management's efforts in the form of cost effecient
measures, rationalization of vendor sourcing, expansion
and diversification coupled with external factors are the
contributors towards the increased profitability.

beginning from 2018 when the Company has started
undertaking expansion, efficiency and diversification
projects such including PVC-III and VCM debottlenecking,
Hydrogen Peroxide, Caustic flake, Oxyvent recycle and
HTDC. The other major increase has observed in the long
and short term investments from Rs. 300 Mn in 2015 to
Rs. 19,057 Mn in 2020.

The topline of the Company has decresed by 7% from
last year, owing to volumetric loss experienced due to
COVID induced lockdown. However the Company has
reported the highest ever PAT of Rs. 5,730 Mn which is
55% higher from the 2019's profitability.

Having the direct relation of the profitability with equity, the
unappropriated profits of the Company has been
progressively moving from negative Rs. 2.253 Mn in 2015
to positive Rs. 10,162 in 2020. Further, the Company has
raised its capital through issuance of right shares in 2018
of Rs. 5,365 Mn and preference shares in 2020 of Rs.
3,000 Mn to finance the PVC expansion projects.

The overall assets base has constantly been increasing
from Rs. 24,212 in 2015 to Rs. 69,094 in 2020 and
correspondingly a decrease in asset turnover ratio

Statement of compliance of
International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs)
The management of the Company strongly believes in
adherence to unreserved compliance with all the
applicable International Accounting Standards (IAS) / IFRS
issued by International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB) and as adopted by SECP vital to fair preparation
and presentation of financial information. Compliance to
IFRS encourages sufficient disclosures of the financial
statements that are beneficial for informed decisions of
stakeholders. Financial statements for the year have been
prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting
standards issued by IASB as are applicable in Pakistan.
IFRS adoption status is in explained in detailed note 2 and
3 of annexed standalone and consolidated financial
statements respectively.

Information about defaults and
reasons

Methods and assumptions used
in compiling the indicators
In light of the business dynamics and factors that effects
the internal and external environment of the Company, the
Management has identified certain indicators which helps
in reflecting the true performance of the Company. These
indicators are continuously monitored, analysed and
discussed by the top Management. Methods and
assumptions used in compiling these indicators normally
include data published by State Bank of Pakistan,
Pakistan bureau of statistics and reports published by
leading research and marketing firms in the business.

Business rationale of major
capital expenditure / projects
during the year and for those
planned for next year
During the year, the Company incurred a capital
expenditure of Rs. 7,318 Mn. where a significant portion
of it was spent on PVC-III / VCM debottlenecking. This
project will enable the company to serve entire domestic
market.

The company fulfilled all its contractual commitments
during the outgoing period.
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statement of compliance with listed companies
(code of corporate governance) regulations, 2019
year ended december 31, 2020

12. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below : -

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner: -

a)

Board Audit Committee
Mr. Feroz Rizvi - Chairman
Mr. Eram Hasan
Mr. Nazoor Ali Baig
Mr. Noriyuki Koga

b)

Board People's Committee i.e. HR and Remuneration Committee
Mr. Feroz Rizvi
Mr. Nadir Salar Qureshi
Mr. Rizwan Masood Raja

1.

The total number of directors are Nine as per the following, a. Male: 8*
b. Female: 1
* including the Chief Executive Officer, who is a Deemed Director

2.

The composition of the Board is as follows:
Category

Name

i.

Independent directors

Mr. Feroz Rizvi
Mr. Nazoor Ali Baig

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the
committee for compliance;

ii.

Non-executive directors

Mr. Ghias Khan
Mr. Nadir Salar Qureshi
Mr. Rizwan Masood Raja
Mr. Noriyuki Koga
Mr. Eram Hasan

14. The frequency of meetings of the committee were as per following: -

Mr. Jahangir Piracha

15. The Board has set up an effective internal audit function who are considered suitably qualified and experienced
for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures of the company;

iii.

Executive directors

iv. Female independent director
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11. Chief financial officer and chief executive officer duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the
Board;

Ms. Ayesha Aziz

3.

The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven (7) listed companies,
including this company;

4.

The company has prepared a code of conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to
disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting policies and procedures;

5.

The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of
the company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of the significant policies along with
their date of approval or updating is maintained by the company;

6.

All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken
by the Board/ shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act)
and these Regulations;

a)
b)

Audit Committee - 7 meetings held during the year
The Board People's Committee - 4 meetings held during the year

16. The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under
the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and registered with
Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in compliance with International Federation
of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan and that they and the partners of the firm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent,
dependent and non-dependent children) of the chief executive officer, chief financial officer, head of internal
audit, company secretary or director of the company;
17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services
except in accordance with the Act, these Regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the auditors
have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard; and
18. We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27,32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations have been
complied with.

7.

The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected
by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of the Act and the Regulations
with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of the Board;

8.

The Board have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in accordance with
the Act and these Regulations;

9.

The Directors' Training Program have been completed by five directors during the preceding years from
recognized institution of Pakistan, approved by the SECP;

Ghias Khan
Chairman

10. The Board had approved appointment of chief financial officer, company secretary and head of internal audit,
including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with relevant requirements
of the Regulations;

Date: February 10, 2021

Jahangir Piracha
Chief Executive
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INDEPENDEDNT AUDITOR'S REVIEW REPORT
To the members of Engro Polymer and Chemicals Limited

statement of compliance with the sukuk
(privately placed) regulations, 2017

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

This Statement is being presented to comply with the requirements under Sukuk (Privately Placed) Regulations,
2017 issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP). This Statement of Compliance (the
Statement) is for the year ended December 31, 2020.

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Engro Polymer and Chemicals Limited
(the Company) for the year ended December 31, 2020 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 36 of the
Regulations.

Engro Polymer & Chemicals Limited (the Company) entered into an arrangement for issue of Sukuk amounting to
Rs.8,750 Million on January 11, 2019 for a period of 7.5 years. We state that the Company is in compliance with
the Sukuk features and Shariah requirements in accordance with the Sukuk (Privately Placed) Regulations, 2017.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our
responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's compliance
with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the
requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company's personnel and review
of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations.

We specifically confirm that:
The Company has established policies and procedures for all Sukuk related transactions to comply with Sukuk
features and Shariah requirements;
The Company has implemented and maintained such internal control and risk management systems that are
necessary to mitigate the risk of non-compliances of the Sukuk features and Shariah requirements, whether
due to fraud or error;
The Company has a process to ensure that the management and where appropriate those charged with
governance, and personnel responsible to ensure the Company's compliance with the Sukuk related features
and Shariah requirements are properly trained and systems are properly updated.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting and
internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required
to consider whether the Board of Directors' statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an
opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company's corporate governance procedures and risks.
The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the Audit
Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party transactions and also
ensure compliance with the requirements of section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017. We are only required and
have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the
Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not carried out procedures to assess
and determine the Company's process for identification of related parties and that whether the related party
transactions were undertaken at arm's length price or not.

The Sukuk features and Shariah requirements in accordance with Sukuk (Privately Placed) Regulations, 2017
comprises of the following:
1.

Sukuk Subscription & Issue Agency Agreement
Trust Deed
Asset Purchase Agreement
Musharaka Agreement
Purchase Undertaking
Sale Undertaking
DSRA Agreement
Payment Agreement
Letter of Hypothecation
Letter of Lien and Right of Set-off

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance
does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the requirements contained
in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended December 31, 2020.

A. F. Ferguson & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Karachi
Date: March 3, 2021
Engagement Partner: Farrukh Rehman

Requirements of Shariah Structure and Transaction Documents as stated in the approval of our Shariah Advisor,
Ehsan Shariah Advisors & Consultants (ESAAC), with respect to Sukuk transactions:

2.

Guidelines of the relevant Shariah Standards, issued by the Accounting and Auditing Organization of the Islamic
Financial Institutions (AAOIFI), as notified by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (the SECP);

3.

Requirements of the relevant Islamic Financial Accounting Standard as notified by the SECP; and

4.

Other compliances specified in the Sukuk (Privately Placed) Regulations, 2017 issued by the SECP.

Jahangir Piracha
Chief Executive
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Ghias Uddin Khan

Chairman
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INDEPENDENT ASSURANCE REPORT TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON THE STATEMENT
OF COMPLIANCE WITH SUKUK (PRIVATELY PLACED) REGULATIONS, 2017
Scope of our Work
We have performed an independent assurance engagement of Engro Polymer and Chemicals Limited (the Company) to express
an opinion on the annexed Statement of Compliance (the Statement) with the requirements of Sukuk (Privately Placed) Regulations,
2017 (the Regulations), as notified by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) as of December 31, 2020.

The procedures selected by us for the engagement depend on our judgment, including an assessment of the risks of material
non-compliances with the Criteria. In making those risk assessments; we have considered internal controls relevant to the
Company's compliance with the Criteria in order to design procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, for gathering
sufficient appropriate evidence to determine that the Company was not materially non-compliant with the Criteria. Our engagement
was not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.
Our procedures applied to the selected data primarily comprised of:
-

Inquiry and evaluation of the systems, procedures and practices in place with respect to the Company's compliance
with the Criteria;

-

Verification of Sukuk related transactions on sample basis to ensure the Company's compliance with the Criteria during
the year;

-

Review of Shariah structure and transaction documents, term sheet and Shariah approval letter issued by the Shariah
Advisor of the Sukuk; and

Responsibility of Company's Management

-

Review of the annexed Statement based on our procedures performed and conclusion reached.

The responsibility for the preparation and fair presentation of the Statement and for compliance with the features and Shariah
requirements of Sukuk in accordance with the requirements of the Regulations is that of the management of the Company. The
management is also responsible for the design, implementation and maintenance of appropriate internal control procedures with
respect to such compliance and maintenance of relevant documentation/records. The management is also responsible to ensure
that the personnel involved are conversant with the Criteria for the purpose of the Company's compliance.

We believe that the evidences we have obtained through performing our procedures were sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Applicable Criteria
The criteria for the assurance engagement against which the underlying subject matter (Statement of Compliance for the year
ended December 31, 2020) is assessed comprises of compliance with the features and Shariah requirements of Sukuk in
accordance with the requirements of the Regulations. Our engagement was carried out as required under Rule 12 of Chapter
V of the Regulations as notified by the SECP.

Our Independence and Quality Control
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
The firm applies International Standard on Quality Control 1 "Quality Control for Firms That Perform Audits and Reviews of
Historical Financial Information, And Other Assurance and Related Services Engagements" and accordingly maintains a
comprehensive system of quality control including documented policies and procedures regarding compliance with ethical
requirements, professional standards and applicable legal and regulatory requirements.

Conclusion
Based on our independent assurance engagement, in our opinion, the annexed Statement for the year ended December 31,
2020 has been prepared, in all material respects, in compliance with the features and Shariah requirements of Sukuk in accordance
with the Regulations.
Restriction on use and distribution
This report is issued in relation to the requirements as stipulated under Rule 12 of Chapter V of the Regulations and is not to
be used or distributed for any other purpose. This report is restricted to the facts stated herein and the attachment.
The engagement partner on the assurance resulting in this independent assurance report is Farrukh Rehman.

Responsibility of Independent Assurance Provider and Summary of Work Performed
Our responsibility is to express our conclusion on the Statement for the year ended December 31, 2020 based on our independent
assurance engagement, performed in accordance with the International Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 'Assurance
Engagements other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information' (ISAE 3000). This standard requires that we plan
and perform the engagement to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the annexed Statement reflects the status of the
Company's compliance with the features and Shariah requirements of Sukuk in accordance with the requirements of the
Regulations and is free from material misstatement.
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A. F. Ferguson & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Karachi
Date: March 12, 2021
Engagement Partner: Farrukh Rehman
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
S.No.

To the members of Engro Polymer and Chemicals Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion
We have audited the annexed financial statements of Engro Polymer and Chemicals Limited (the Company), which comprise
the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2020, and the statement of profit or loss, the statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and
we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary
for the purposes of the audit.
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement of financial position,
the statement of profit or loss, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity
and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards
as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required
and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at December 31, 2020 and of the profit and
other comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section
of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants'
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
Following are the key audit matters:

S.No.
1.

Key audit matters
Operating results

Our audit procedures included the following:

(Refer notes 1.5 and 3 to the financial statements)

-

The business activities of the Company were impacted due to
the COVID-19 pandemic environment and the closure of plant
due to the major turnaround and gas leakage event during the
year.
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

obtained detailed understanding of the background facts
pertaining to significant events happened during the year
through meetings with the management, review of the minutes
of the meetings of those charged with governance and
communication to Pakistan Stock Exchange;

2.

Key audit matters

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Production of the Company declined, prices of major raw materials
were significantly lower in the international market and the prices
of Company's products also witnessed significant variation during
the year. Further, the activities in relation to expansion projects
of the Company remained suspended for few months. State Bank
of Pakistan (SBP) also reduced the policy interest rate significantly.

-

checked gross profit analysis of the Company;

-

checked and compared the trends of international prices with
the Company's Products;

-

As a result of the price variations gross profit of the Company
increased significantly, however, additional energy and other cost
were incurred. The suspension of expansion projects resulted in
discontinuance of borrowing cost capitalisation. However, lower
mark-up rates reduced the borrowings cost of the Company.

checked and compared the trends of international prices for
major raw materials with the prices on which raw material
purchased by the Company;

-

checked the increase in gas prices and also checked the
impact of adverse gas ratio due to gas leakage incident and
closure of plant;

-

Due to significant effect of the events on the financial statements
resulting extensive discussion with management at various stages
and required significant attention to the impacts reflected in the
financial statements, we have considered the above as a key
audit matter.

checked raw material wise inventory reconciliation to
identify period costs (if any) charged to cost of sales directly;

-

examined the borrowings and related finance cost; and

-

assessed the adequacy of the related disclosures made in
the financial statements with respect to the applicable
accounting and reporting standards.

Provision in respect of Gas Infrastructure and Development Cess
(Refer note 20 to the financial statements)
During the year the Honourable Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCP)
through its judgment dated August 13, 2020 has declared that the
Gas Infrastructure Development Cess ("GIDC") Act, 2015 ("the
Act") is valid and in accordance with the provisions of the
Constitution of Pakistan 1973 ("the Constitution").
In this regard, the Company, being aggrieved by the decision,
filed a review petition before the SCP. And at same time also filed
a suit with the Sindh High Court (SHC) against collection of GIDC
instalments, before a factual determination of GIDC pass on is
carried out, and the SHC granted a stay on October 05, 2020
against recovery of GIDC payable from the Company till the
finalisation of matter by the SHC. Later on SCP while deciding
the review petition on November 2, 2020, disposed off the review
petition against the gas consumers and stated that the Government
of Pakistan is agreeable to recover the arrears in 48 monthly
instalments instead of 24 monthly instalments.
Pursuant to the above decisions of the SCP and without prejudice
to the suit filed in SHC, the Company, on prudent basis has remeasured its previously undiscounted GIDC provision at its present
value in 48 monthly instalments commencing from August 2020.
The management has applied the requirements of "Guidance on
Accounting of GIDC" issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) in January 2021, for recognition,
measurement and presentation of the GIDC provision in these
financial statements and applied IAS 8 "Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors" in developing and
applying a change in accounting estimate. The Company has
remeasured its previously undiscounted provision at its present
value to incorporate the effect of time value of money arising from
the expected settlement based on an instalment plan and has
accordingly, recognised remeasurement gain on provision for
GIDC amounting to
Rs. 680,996 thousand in the enclosed financial statements.

Our audit procedures included the following:
-

obtained an understanding of the background facts pertaining
to provision recorded in respect of GIDC through meetings
with the management and review of the minutes of the
meetings of those charged with governance;

-

read the detailed judgement of the SCP and judgement on
review petition by the SCP;

-

read details of suit filed in the SHC and stay order granted by
the SHC;

-

obtained and read the "Guidance on Accounting of GIDC"
issued by ICAP and understood the management's process
for applying judgments in relation to change in accounting
estimate and held discussions with the management regarding
accounting treatment and the related impact thereof, subsequent
to judgements of SCP;

-

checked the requirements of GIDC Act, 2015;

-

obtained confirmation from external legal counsel in respect
of the current developments in the case including their
assessment of the potential outcome of the matter;

-

checked the mathematical accuracy of the management's
working of current / non - current classification of GIDC provision,
its present value and assessed its accuracy and
reasonableness of key estimates used;

-

checked the appropriateness of disclosures made in the financial
statements in relation to the matter in accordance with the
applicable accounting and reporting standards.

Given the nature and significance of the amounts and judgement
involved in the selection of accounting policies and estimation of
present value of remeasurement of the provision, we have
considered this as a key audit matter.
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S.No.
3.

Key audit matters
Income tax and related contingencies

How the matter was addressed in our audit
Our audit procedures included the following:
-

The income tax matters of the Company include
recognising the income tax provision for the year, review
of past years tax position and verification of payments
against the income tax liability. Such matters are also
affected by the income tax law interpretations by appellate
forums and availability of factual evidence. During the
year, the Company has recognised charge relating to
prior year tax position arising out of assessment and
appellate orders. Further in respect of the tax payments
that have not been agreed with the Federal Board of
Revenue (FBR) records, the Company believes that
such difference will be reconciled and related supporting
evidence for the tax payments made will be provided to
the FBR.

obtained and examined details of the pending tax
matters and discussed the same with the Company's
management;

-

circularized confirmations to the Company's external
legal and tax advisors for their views on matters being
handled by them;

-

obtained and examined the Company's current tax,
deferred tax and prior year income tax positions to
check the provision for the year;

Due to significance of amounts involved, inherent
uncertainties with respect to the outcome of these matters
and use of significant estimates to assess the same
including related financial impacts, we have considered
the income tax matters as a key audit matter.

-

checked mathematical accuracy of the calculations
underlying the provisions; and

-

assessed the adequacy of the related disclosures
made in the financial statements with respect to the
applicable accounting and reporting standards.

(Refer notes 25 and 27 to the financial statements)

-

involved internal tax professionals to assess
management's conclusions on contingent tax matters
and evaluated the consistency of such conclusions
with the views of management and external legal and
tax advisors engaged by the Company;

-

checked correspondence of the Company with the
relevant authorities including judgments or orders by
the competent authorities in relation to the issues
involved or matters which have similarities
with the issues involved;

Information Other than the Unconsolidated and Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor's Reports Thereon
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated and unconsolidated financial statements and our auditor's reports thereon.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with the accounting
and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.
- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal
control.
- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.
- Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:
a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);
b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been
drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and
returns;
c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose of the Company's
business; and
d) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was deducted by the Company
and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that Ordinance.
The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Farrukh Rehman.

A. F. Ferguson & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Karachi
Date: March 3, 2021

186

statement of financial position
as at december 31, 2020

statement of profit or loss
for the year ended december 31, 2020

(Amounts in thousand)

Note

2020

Rupees

2019

ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use asset
Intangible assets
Long-term investments
Financial assets at amortised cost
Long-term loans and advances
Deferred tax asset

4
5
6
7
8
9
21

Current Assets
Stores and loose tools
Stock-in-trade
Trade debts - considered good
Loans, advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables
Income tax payments less provision
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Current maturity of financial assets at amortised cost
Cash and bank balances

36,186,640
2,305,604
101,971
1,625,000
4,660,833
29,286
44,909,334

31,064,266
2,747,801
78,966
1,625,000
5,421,150
72,078
114,510
41,123,771

10
11
12
13
25
14
8
15

1,784,734
6,194,509
586,212
310,892
159,818
13,180,573
964,120
940,920
24,121,778

1,678,013
4,350,059
469,613
936,207
88,886
8,037,517
4,557
777,823
16,342,675

69,031,112

57,466,446

(Amounts in thousand except for earnings per share)
Note

TOTAL ASSETS
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Ordinary share capital
Preference shares
Share premium
Unappropriated profits

16
17

Non-Current Liabilities
Long-term borrowings
Lease liabilities
Provisions
Deferred tax liability
Current Liabilities
Current portion of long term borrowings
Current portion of lease liabilities
Provisions
Service benefit obligations
Short-term borrowings
Trade and other payables
Unclaimed dividend
Derivative financial instruments
Accrued interest / mark-up

9,089,233
3,000,000
3,874,953
10,106,711
26,070,897

9,089,233
3,874,953
4,766,837
17,731,023

18
19
20
21

19,790,152
3,614,312
2,991,392
1,199,672
27,595,528

19,388,880
4,543,830
23,932,710

18
19
20
22
23
24

1,836,333
1,080,561
2,456,263
79,539
9,458,730
28,149
425,112
15,364,687
42,960,215

987,487
5,657,765
61,049
2,158,836
6,539,817
31,333
154
366,272
15,802,713
39,735,423

69,031,112

57,466,446

26

Contingencies and Commitments

27

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Rupees

2019

Net revenue

28

35,331,398

37,836,632

Cost of sales

29

(24,382,129)

(29,730,593)

10,949,269

8,106,039

Gross profit
Distribution and marketing expenses

30

(243,269)

(391,624)

Administrative expenses

31

(549,854)

(565,842)

Other expenses

32

(835,788)

(1,214,558)

Other income

33

1,086,872

894,262

10,407,230

6,828,277

(2,191,097)

(1,785,583)

8,216,133

5,042,694

(2,503,888)

(1,339,192)

5,712,245

3,703,502

Operating profit
Finance costs

Equity

2020

34

Profit for the year before taxation
Taxation

35

Profit for the year after taxation
Earnings per share - basic

36

6.28

4.07

Earnings per share - diluted

36

6.21

4.07

The annexed notes 1 to 50 form an integral part of these financial statements.

The annexed notes 1 to 50 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Jahangir Piracha
Chief Executive
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Chief Financial Officer
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statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
for the year ended december 31, 2020

statement of changes in equity
for the year ended december 31, 2020

(Amounts in thousand)

(Amounts in thousand)
2020

Profit for the year after taxation

Rupees

5,712,245

Other comprehensive income

-

Total comprehensive income for the year

5,712,245

The annexed notes 1 to 50 form an integral part of these financial statements.

2019

Ordinary
share
capital

3,703,502
-

3,703,502

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND
PAID-UP CAPITAL

Balance as at January 1, 2019
Effect of change in accounting policy net of deferred tax

9,089,233

Preferance
Share

RESERVES
CAPITAL
REVENUE
Share
premium

Unappropriated
profits

Total

Rupees
-

3,874,953

3,779,400

16,743,586

-

-

-

(1,898,034)

(1,898,034)

-

-

-

3,703,502
3,703,502

3,703,502
3,703,502

Final dividend for the year ended
December 31, 2018 - Re. 0.30 per share

-

-

-

(272,677)

(272,677)

Interim dividend for the year ended
December 31, 2019 - Re. 0.60 per share

-

-

-

(545,354)

(545,354)

(818,031)
4,766,837

(818,031)
17,731,023

Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year
Transactions with owners

Balance as at December 31, 2019

9,089,233

-

3,874,953

Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year

-

-

-

5,712,245

5,712,245

Other comprehensive income for the year

-

-

-

5,712,245

5,712,245

Final dividend for the year ended
December 31, 2019 - Re. 0.20 per share

-

-

-

(181,785)

(181,785)

Preference shares issuance - note 17

-

3,000,000

-

Shares isuance cost

-

-

-

(190,586)

(190,586)

-

3,000,000

-

(372,371)

2,627,629

10,106,711

26,070,897

Transactions with owners

Balance as at December 31, 2020

9,089,233

3,000,000

3,874,953

-

3,000,000

The annexed notes 1 to 50 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Jahangir Piracha
Chief Executive
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statement of cash flows
for the year ended december 31, 2020

notes to and forming part of the financial statements
for the year ended december 31, 2020
Note

(Amounts in thousand)

2020

Rupees

2019

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash generated from operations
Long-term loans and advances
Retirement benefits paid
Income tax paid

39

Net cash generated from operating activities

12,582,720
42,792
(34,528)
(1,260,635)

9,040,561
12,387
(45,428)
(1,278,914)

11,330,349

7,728,606

(Amounts in thousand)
1.

LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS

1.1

Engro Polymer and Chemicals Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan in 1997 under the repealed Companies
Ordinance, 1984 (now the Companies Act, 2017). The Company is listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange.

1.2

The Company is a subsidiary of Engro Corporation Limited (the Holding Company) which is a subsidiary of Dawood
Hercules Corporation Limited (the Ultimate Parent Company). The Companys principal activity is to manufacture, market
and sell Poly Vinyl Chloride (PVC), Vinyl Chloride Monomer (VCM), Caustic soda and other related chemicals. The
Company is also engaged in the supply of surplus power generated from its power plants to Engro Fertilizers Limited
(a related party).

1.3

These financial statements denote the standalone financial statements of the Company. The consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries have been presented separately. Details of investments held by the
Company in its subsidiaries have been provided in note 7.

1.4

The geographical location and addresses of all business units of the Company are as follows:

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of:
- property, plant and equipment
- intangible assets
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Investments in subsidiary companies
Investment in Term Deposit Receipt
Income on short-term investments and bank deposits

(6,091,440)
(167,922)
(6,000)
979,007

(12,478,416)
(266,425)
2,809
(1,575,000)
(5,421,150)
816,760

Net cash used in investing activities

(5,286,355)

(18,921,422)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from long-term borrowings - net of transaction costs
Repayments of long-term borrowings
Shares issuance cost paid
Issuance of preference shares
Proceeds from loan under Diminishing Musharaka Agreement
Finance cost paid
Rentals paid during the year

1,924,867
(190,586)
3,000,000
94,266
(1,891,139)
(1,337,444)

19,366,880
(7,500,000)
(998,523)
(1,241,425)

(184,969)

(839,879)

Net cash generated from financing activities

1,414,995

8,787,053

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

7,458,989

(2,405,763)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

6,656,504

9,062,267

14,115,493

6,656,504

Dividend payment

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

40
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Feroz Rizvi

Geographical location

Head office

12th Floor, Ocean Tower, G-3, Block 9, Clifton, Khayaban -e- Iqbal, Karachi

Manufacturing plant

EZ/I/P-II-I Eastern Zone, Port Bin Qasim Industrial Area, Karachi, Pakistan

Regional sales unit

9th Floor, 301 - R Hally Tower, Phase II, DHA, Lahore

1.5

These significant events have taken place during the year:

1.5.1

During the year, major turnaround maintenance was planned resulting in closure of plant. Further, on March 6, 2020,
the Company's management reported an isolated incident of gas leak occurred at the Engro Polymer & Chemicals Plant,
Port Qasim happened on March 6, 2020, through Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX). On March 9, 2020, the Company's
management reported through PSX that a notice under Section 21(2) of Sindh Environmental Protection Act, 2014 was
received from the Environmental Protection Agency of Government of Sindh directing the Company to stop all production
activities at the plant and fixed a hearing on March 10, 2020. On March 16, 2020, the Company's management reported
through PSX the resumption of production activities in its plant. Due to the incident the production facilities of the Company
were closed from March 9, 2020 to March 16, 2020.

1.5.2

On March 31, 2020, the Company's management reported a foreseeable delay in the Liner Alkyl Benzene Sulphonic
Acid (LABSA) and Hydrogen Peroxide (H2O2) project, through PSX, due to restrictions on mobilization of local and
overseas resources, on account of COVID-19 in Pakistan. However, from October 15, 2020 the Company has resumed
the work of H2O2 project.

1.5.3

During the year prices of basic raw materials and finished goods were low due to sharp decline in global crude prices
mainly due to COVID-19 pandemic. However due to supply shortage for various other reasons the prices of finished
goods recovered rapidly as compared to raw materials at the end of the year.

The annexed notes 1 to 50 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Jahangir Piracha
Chief Executive

Business unit

Director
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(Amounts in thousand)

(Amounts in thousand)

2.

2.1.3.3 Provision for stock-in-trade

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Company regularly reviews the net realizable value of stock-in-trade to assess any diminution in the respective carrying
values. Net realisable value is determined with reference to estimated selling price less estimated expenditure to make the
sales.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all years presented.
2.1

Basis of preparation

2.1.1

Accounting convention
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention unless otherwise mentioned in
accounting policies stated herein.

2.1.2

2.1.3.4 Impairment of financial assets
The amount of Expected Credit Losses (ECL) is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition of the respective financial assets.
2.1.3.5 Current income taxes
In making the estimates for current income taxes payable by the Company, the management looks at the applicable law
and the decisions of appellate authorities on certain issues in the past. Where the final tax outcome is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax provision in the period in which such
final outcome is determined.

Statement of compliance

2.1.2.1 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable
in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

2.1.3.6 Deferred taxation
-

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB)
as notified under the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act); and

-

Provision of and directives issued under the Act.

In assessing the recognition of the deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is probable that some portion
or all of the deferred tax assets will be realised. The ultimate realisation of the deferred tax assets is dependent upon
the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which those temporary differences, become deductible.
Management considers the scheduled reversal of deferred applies tax liabilities, projects future taxable income and tax
planning strategies in making this assessment. The amount of deferred tax assets considered realisable, however, could
change in the near term if future estimates of projected taxable income during the carry forward period are revised.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Act differ from the IFRSs, the provisions of and directives issued
under the Act have been followed.
2.1.3

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

2.1.3.7 Lease accounting
The implementation process to identify and process all relevant data associated with the leases is complex and the
measurement of the right-of-use asset and lease liability is based on assumptions such as discount rates and the lease
terms, including termination and renewal options. Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options
are also included in the measurement of the liability. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in
the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally the case for leases in the Company, the Companys
incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate the Company would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain
an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms, security and
conditions.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the above requirements requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires the management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Companys
accounting policies. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The
accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. Estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year are as follows:
2.1.3.1 Useful lives, depreciation / amortisation methods and residual values of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets
The Company reviews appropriateness of the useful lives and residual values, where applicable, used in the calculation
of depreciation / amortisation of operating fixed assets and intangible assets on an annual basis. Further, where
applicable, an estimate of recoverable amount of assets is made for possible impairment on an annual basis.
2.1.3.2 Provision for slow-moving stores and spares
The Company regularly reviews the provision for slow moving stores and spares which have no movement for at least
three years and the quantity available is in excess to minimum stock level, thereby ensuring that items meeting the
criteria are provided for.
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2.1.3.8 Contingencies and provisions
Significant estimates and judgements are being used by the management in accounting for contingencies and provisions
relating to legal and taxation matters being contested at various forums based on applicable laws and the decisions /
judgements.
2.1.4

Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees which is the Company's functional currency.
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rate prevailing at the date
of the transaction. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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(Amounts in thousand)
2.1.5

(Amounts in thousand)
Assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date. An assets carrying
amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the assets carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount and the resulting impairment loss is recognised in statement of profit or loss. The recoverable amount is
the higher of fair value less expected selling expenses and value in use. An impairment loss recognised in prior periods for
an asset shall be reversed if, and only if, there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the assets recoverable
amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. If this is the case, the carrying amount of the asset shall be increased
to its recoverable amount. The increased carrying amount of an asset attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss shall
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years.

Initial application of a standard, amendment or an interpretation to existing standards

2.1.5.1 Amendments to accounting and reporting standards that became effective during the year
There are certain amendments to published standards that are effective for the first time for the year ended December 31,
2020, however, these are considered not to have a significant impact on the Company's financial reporting and operations
and therefore have not been presented here
2.1.5.2 Amendments to accounting and reporting standards that are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by
the Company
-

Amendment to IFRS 16 'Leases' (for annual reporting periods beginning on or after June 1, 2020)
On May 28, 2020, the IASB published an amendment to IFRS 16 that provides an optional practical expedient for lessees
from assessing whether a rent concession related to COVID-19 is a lease modification. Lessees can elect to account
for such rent concessions in the same way as they would if they were not lease modifications. In many cases, this will
result in accounting for the concession as variable lease payments in the period(s) in which the event or condition that
triggers the reduced payment occurs. The amendment is expected not to have a significant impact on the financial
statements of the Company.

-

Amendment to IAS 1 'Presentation of financial statements' (for annual reporting periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2022)
The amendment clarifies that liabilities are classified as either current or non-current, depending on the rights that exist
at the end of the reporting period. Classification is unaffected by the expectations of the entity or events after the reporting
date. The amendment also clarifies what IAS 1 means when it refers to the settlement of a liability. The amendment is
expected not to have a significant impact on the financial statements of the Company.
There are other standards and amendments to published standards that are not yet effective and have not been early adopted
by the Company. These amendments are expected not to have a significant impact on the financial statements of the Company
in the period of initial recognition.

2.2

Property, plant and equipment
Items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any, except
capital work-in-progress. Cost in relation to fixed assets signifies historical cost. Historical cost includes expenditure that
is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Capital work-in-progress is stated at historical cost less impairment,
if any.
Depreciation on assets is charged to income using the straight line method to allocate their cost less the residual values
over their estimated useful lives at rates given in note 4. Depreciation on additions is charged from the month in which
the asset is available for use and no depreciation is charged in the month of disposal.
Subsequent costs are included in the assets carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are charged to income during the year in which
these are incurred.
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The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an asset represented by the difference between the sale proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset is recognised as an income or expense in the period of disposal or retirement.
2.3

Capital spares
Spare parts and servicing equipment are classified as property, plant and equipment rather than stores, spares and loose
tools when they meet the definition of property, plant and equipment. Upon utilisation, the capital spares and servicing
equipment are depreciated over their useful life, or the remaining life of principal asset, whichever is lower.

2.4

Right-of-use asset and related lease liability
The Company has entered into various rental arrangements, generally ranging in between 5 to 10 years. At inception of
a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is or contains, a lease based on whether the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. Lease terms are negotiated
on an individual basis and contains a wide range of different terms and conditions.
The lease liabilities are initially measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments at the commencement date,
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, or if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company's incremental
borrowing rate.
Lease payments include fixed payments, variable lease payments that are based on an index or a rate, amounts expected to
be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees, the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably
certain to exercise that option, payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising
that option, less any lease incentives receivable. The extension and termination options are incorporated in determination of
lease term only when the Company is reasonably certain to exercise these options.
The lease liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. They are remeasured
when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in fixed lease payments or an index or rate, change
in the Company's estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if the Company changes
its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option. The corresponding adjustment is made
to the carrying amount of the respective right-of-use asset, or is recorded in statement of profit or loss if the carrying amount
of that right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.
Right-of-use assets are initially measured based on the initial amount of the lease liabilities adjusted for any lease payments
made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and
remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentive
received. The right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight line method over the lease term as this method most closely
reflects the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits. The carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is
reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the corresponding lease liability.
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(Amounts in thousand)
2.5

(Amounts in thousand)

Intangible assets - computer software and applications

A financial asset is measured at fair value through profit or loss if it is not measured at amortised cost or at fair value
through other comprehensive income.

Costs associated with developing and maintaining computer software programmes are recognised as an expense as
incurred. Costs that are directly attributable to identifiable software and have probable economic benefits exceeding one
year, are recognised as an intangible asset. Direct costs include the purchase cost of software and related overhead
cost.

All financial assets are recognised at the time when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the settlement-date - the date on which
the asset is delivered to or by an entity. Financial assets at amortised cost are initially recognised at fair value and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment
losses, if any. Interest income and impairment losses are recognised in statement of profit or loss. Financial assets
carried at FVOCI are initially and subsequently measured at fair value, with gains and losses arising from changes in
fair value recognised in other comprehensive income. Financial assets carried at FVPL are initially recorded at fair value
and transaction costs are expensed in the statement of profit or loss. Realised and unrealised gains and losses arising
from changes in the fair value of the financial assets and liabilities held at FVPL are included in the statement of profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.

Expenditure, which enhances or extends the performance of computer software beyond its original specification and
useful life is recognised as a capital improvement and added to the original cost of the software.
Computer software cost treated as intangible assets are amortised from the date the software is available for use on
straight-line basis over a period of 5 to 10 years. The carrying amount of the intangible assets is reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the assets carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount and is charged
in the statement of profit or loss. Reversal of impairment losses are also recognised in statement of profit or loss, however,
is restricted to the original cost of the asset.
2.6

Derecognition
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership. On derecognition of
a financial asset, in its entirety, the difference between the assets carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in statement of profit or loss.

Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries are classified as long-term investments and are stated at cost net of provision for impairment,
if any.

2.7

Financial instruments

2.7.1

Financial assets

Impairment of financial assets
The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its debt instruments carried
at amortised cost and FVOCI. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk. For trade receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by IFRS 9, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

Classification, initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition and subsequently measured at amortised cost, Fair Value through
Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) or Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVPL). The management determines the
classification of financial assets at initial recognition based on the Companys business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

2.7.2

The Company recognises a financial liability in its statement of financial position when, and only when, it becomes party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial liability at its fair
value minus, in the case of a financial liability not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial liability. Subsequently, financial liabilities are stated at amortised
cost.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:
a)

the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

b)

the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if both of the following conditions are met:
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a)

the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets; and

b)

the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired. Where
an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in respective carrying amounts is recognised in
the statement of profit or loss.
2.7.3

Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle either on a net basis,
or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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(Amounts in thousand)

(Amounts in thousand)

2.8

Stores, spares and loose tools

2.14

These are valued at weighted average cost except for items in transit which are stated at invoice value plus other charges
paid thereon till the reporting date. The management assess store items which have no movement for at least three
years and the quantity available is in excess to the minimum stock level. Provision is recognised for such items in the
statement of profit or loss.

2.14.1 Gratuity fund

2.9

The employees of the Company participate in a defined contributory gratuity fund (the Gratuity Fund) operated and
managed by Engro Corporation Limited - the Holding Company. As per the terms of the defined contribution plan, the
Company contributes to the Gratuity Fund at the rate of 8.33% of basic salary. Annual contribution by the Company is
charged to the statement of profit or loss.

Stock-in-trade
These are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost in relation to raw materials represents the weighted
average cost and in relation to finished goods and work-in-process represents weighted average cost comprising direct
materials, labour and related manufacturing overheads.

2.14.2 Provident fund
The employees of the Company participate in defined contributory provident fund (the Provident Fund) operated and
managed by Engro Corporation Limited - the Holding Company. Equal monthly contributions at the rate of 10% of the
basic salary are made both by the Company and the employees to the Provident Fund. Annual contribution by the
Company is charged to the statement of profit or loss.

Cost of stock-in-transit represents the invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon till the reporting date.
Net realisable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less cost of completion and
costs necessarily to be incurred in order to make the sales. Provision is made for slow moving stocks, where considered
necessary.
2.10

2.11

Borrowings
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, and are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional / contractual right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date.
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2.15

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method.
These are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within 12 months or less (or in the normal operating cycle of
the business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current.

2.16

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events,
and it is probable that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted
to reflect current best estimate.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recognised at their face value. Incremental costs, if any, directly attributable
to the issue of new shares or options are recognised in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.13

Provision is made under a service incentive plan for certain category of experienced employees to continue in the
Companys employment. The provision is made on the basis of managements estimates of incentives to be paid to
employees on fulfilment of criteria given in the incentive plan.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows include cash in hand and in transit, balance with banks and
other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less and short-term finances. Shortterm finances on the statement of financial position are shown as part of current liabilities.

2.12

2.14.3 Other benefits - Service Incentive Plan

Trade and other receivables
These are recognised initially at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs, if any and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using effective interest rate method less provision for impairment, if any. A provision for impairment is
established if there is objective evidence that the Company will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the
original terms of receivable. The amount of provision is charged to statement of profit or loss. Trade debts and other
receivable considered irrecoverable are written-off.

Retirement and other service benefits

2.17

Taxation

2.17.1 Current
Provision for current taxation is based on the taxable income for the year, determined in accordance with the prevailing
law for taxation on income, using prevailing tax rates. The charge for current tax also includes tax credits and adjustments,
where considered necessary, for prior years determined during the year or otherwise considered necessary for such
years.
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(Amounts in thousand)

(Amounts in thousand)

2.17.2 Deferred

3.

Deferred income tax is provided using the liability method on all temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits
can be utilised.

During the year, the World Health Organisation (WHO) declared COVID-19 (the Virus) a pandemic. The Virus has
impacted the global economy significantly. Due to the situation, as per the government directives there was a complete
lockdown for a period of approximately 1 month from March 23, 2020 and production facilities of the Company were
closed till the end of April 2020. Further, expansion projects were also impacted as some of the equipment deliveries
and project construction work was also suspended as a precautionary measure. With effect from May 2020, the Company
has resumed its operations with all precautionary measures to prevent the spread of the Virus in the light of the directives
issued by the relevant authorities.

Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date
and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the statement of profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to the
items recognised directly in equity, in which case it is recognised in equity.
2.18

Considering the circumstances, the management has assessed the accounting implications of these developments on
these financial statements, including but not limited to the following areas:

Revenue recognition
The Company recognises revenue when the control of product is transferred to customers. The assessment of transfer
of control depends on the contractual terms, which is considered to be transferred either when the product is directly
uplifted by customer from the Company's premises or when it is delivered by the Company at customer premises.

2.19

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which these are incurred except where such costs are
directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset, in which case, such costs are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Borrowing costs include exchange differences arising from foreign currency
borrowings to the extent these are regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs.

2.20

-

expected credit losses under IFRS 9, 'Financial Instruments';

-

impairment of tangible and intangible assets under IAS 36, 'Impairment of non financial assets';

-

net realisable value of inventory under IAS 2, 'Inventories';

-

deferred tax asset in accordance with IAS 12, 'Income taxes';

-

provisions and contingent liabilities under IAS 37, including onerous contracts; and

-

going concern assumption used for the preparation of these financials statements.

According to the management's assessment, there is no significant accounting impact of the effects of the Virus on these
financial statements.

Earnings per share
i)

IMPACT OF COVID-19 ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the Company, (excluding any
costs of servicing equity other than ordinary shares) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary shares issued during the year and excluding
treasury shares.

ii)

Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into
account the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential ordinary
shares and the weighted average number of additional ordinary shares that would have been outstanding assuming
the conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

2.21

Segment reporting

2020
4.

Rupees

2019

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Operating assets, at net book value - note 4.1

19,285,257

18,304,481

Capital work-in-progress - note 4.4

16,837,591

12,695,993

63,792

63,792

36,186,640

31,064,266

Capital spares

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance
of the operating segments, has been identified as the Board of Directors of the Company that makes strategic decisions.
2.22

Dividend and appropriation to reserves
Dividend and appropriation to reserves are recognised in the financial statements in the period in which these are
approved.
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202

(Amounts in thousand)

(Amounts in thousand)

4.1

4.2

Operating Assets
Leasehold Building on
land
leasehold land Plant and
Machinery
(note 4.2)
(note 4.2)

Pipelines
Water

VCM

Ethylene

As at January 1, 2019

EDC

Furniture,
fixtures and
equipment

Gas

Description of assets
Vehicles

-

Rupees
194,127
(52,686)

552,959
(169,358)

26,398,096
(10,701,284)

398,968
(245,573)

26,122
(25,021)

50,315
(21,866)

-

33,849
(18,242)

313,611
(211,409)

95,636
(35,340)

28,063,683
(11,480,779)

Net book value

141,441

383,601

15,696,812

153,395

1,101

28,449

-

15,607

102,202

60,296

16,582,904

Year ended December 31, 2019
141,441

383,601

15,696,812

153,395

1,101

28,449

-

15,607

102,202

60,296

16,582,904

Additions - note 4.4

939,528

1,980

1,627,267

-

-

-

98,288

-

81,726

3,571

2,752,360

-

(3,379)
596
-

(2,783)

-

-

-

-

-

(3,820)
3,645
(175)

(2,892)
2,243
(649)

(10,091)
6,484
(3,607)

(32,931)

(29,702)

(898,297)

(12,898)

(8)

(2,190)

(253)

(1,472)

(37,040)

(12,385)

(1,027,176)

1,048,038

353,096

16,425,782

140,497

1,093

26,259

98,035

14,135

146,713

50,833

18,304,481

4.4

1,133,655
(85,617)

551,560
(198,464)

28,025,363
(11,599,581)

398,968
(258,471)

26,122
(25,029)

50,315
(24,056)

98,288
(253)

33,849
(19,714)

391,517
(244,804)

96,315
(45,482)

30,805,952
(12,501,471)

Net book value

1,048,038

353,096

16,425,782

140,497

1,093

26,259

98,035

14,135

146,713

50,833

18,304,481

1,048,038

353,096

16,425,782

140,497

1,093

26,259

98,035

14,135

146,713

50,833

18,304,481

18,524

56,538

2,050,956

-

-

-

1,999

-

145,239

4,989

2,278,245

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(107,291)
101,532
(5,759)

(136)
133
(3)

(107,427)
101,665
(5,762)

(38,972)

(23,725)

(1,133,030)

(12,866)

(345)

(1,767)

(3,047)

(1,471)

(66,541)

(9,943)

(1,291,707)

1,027,590

385,909

17,343,708

127,631

748

24,492

96,987

12,664

219,652

45,876

19,285,257

Cost
Accumulated depreciation

1,152,179
(124,589)

608,098
(222,189)

30,076,319
(12,732,611)

398,968
(271,337)

26,122
(25,374)

50,315
(25,823)

100,287
(3,300)

33,849
(21,185)

429,465
(209,813)

101,168
(55,292)

32,976,770
(13,691,513)

Net book value

1,027,590

385,909

17,343,708

127,631

748

24,492

96,987

12,664

219,652

45,876

19,285,257

Annual rate of depreciation (%)

2 to 2.14

2.5 to 10

2.5 to 25

5

5

5

3

5

5 to 33

5 to 25

Year ended December 31, 2020
Opening net book value
Additions - note 4.4

Depreciation charge - notes 4.3
Net book value

Rupees

1,262,101
7,054
22,552
1,291,707

2019

1,003,842
5,750
17,584
1,027,176

Capital work-in-progress

Balance as at January 1, 2020
Additions during the year
- notes 5.4.1 and 5.4.2
Borrowing costs capitalized during the year

As at December 31, 2020
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590,114
15,794
10,705
2,908

Leasehold
land

Building on
leasehold
land

Plant and
machinery and
pipelines

Furniture,
fixtures and
equipments
Rupees

236,695
734,833

2,115
20,359

2,406,094
11,618,569

11,803
101,084

92,699
268,086

1,661
1,910

2,751,067
12,744,841

(939,528)
32,000

(1,980)
20,494

(1,725,555)
12,299,108

(81,726)
31,161

(47,555)
313,230

(3,571)
-

(2,752,360)
(47,555)
12,695,993

32,000

20,494

12,299,108

31,161

313,230

82,005
-

5,730,779
214,679

169,734
-

167,922
-

Software

Advances for
vehicles

Total

Year ended December 31, 2020

Disposals / write-off
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

EZ/I/P-II-I Eastern Zone, Bin Qasim, Karachi
EZ/I/P-II-I Eastern Zone, Bin Qasim, Karachi
EZ/I/P-II-I Eastern Zone, Bin Qasim, Karachi
EZ/I/P-II-I Eastern Zone, Bin Qasim, Karachi

Depreciation charge has been allocated as follows:

Year ended December 31, 2019
Balance as at January 1, 2019
Additions during the year
Transferred to:
- Operating assets - note 5.1
- Intangible assets - note 7
Balance as at December 31, 2019

As at January 1, 2020
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Leasehold land
Production facilities
Storage facilities
Administration facilities

Cost of sales - note 29
Distribution and marketing expenses - note 30
Administrative expenses - note 31

Disposal

Net book value

Total area of
land (square yards)

2020
4.3

Opening net book value

Depreciation charge - note 4.3

Address

Total

Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Cost
Accumulated depreciation

The details of immovable fixed assets (i.e. land and buildings) are as follows:

-

Write-off during the year - note 29
Transferred to:

-

- Operating assets - note 5.1
- Intangible assets - note 7

-

Balance as at December 31, 2020

32,000

-

(6,000)

-

-

108,922
-

12,695,993
6,259,362
214,679
(6,000)

(75,062)
-

(2,052,955)
-

(145,239)
-

(48,198)

(4,989)
-

(2,278,245)
(48,198)

27,437

16,185,611

55,656

432,954

103,933

16,837,591

4.4.1

As of December 31, 2020, major engineering and installation in respect of plant and machinery and pipelines for PVC-III
and VCM debottlenecking have been completed and will be capitalised in next financial year after completion of testing
phase.

4.4.2

Include costs incurred in respect of ONE SAP project initiated by the Holding Company, which is in progress at the year
end date.
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(Amounts in thousand)

(Amounts in thousand)
5.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSET
Storage
tanks at
Engro Vopak
Terminal
Limited
Year ended December 31, 2019

7.
Building

Vehicles

Total

Rupees

7.1

Balance as at January 1, 2019
Addition during the year
Depreciation charge
during the year - note 5.2

2,778,739
318,319

66,704
-

-

2,845,443
318,319

(399,190)

(16,771)

-

(415,961)

Balance as at December 31, 2019

2,697,868

49,933

-

2,747,801

2,697,868

Addition during the year - note 5.1

-

-

-

-

5,849

2,747,801

Engro Peroxide (Private) Limited
157,000,000 (2019: 157,000,000) ordinary shares
of Rs. 10 each paid in cash - note 7.1.2
Engro Plasticizer (Private) Limited
500,000 (2019: 500,000) ordinary shares
of Rs. 10 each paid in cash - note 7.1.3

1,625,000

1,625,000

50,000

50,000

1,570,000

1,570,000

5,000
1,625,000

5,000
1,625,000

5,849
Think PVC (Private) Limited was incorporated in Pakistan in November 6, 1999, under the repealed Companies
Ordinance, 1984 (now the Companies Act, 2017) as a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. The principal activity
of Think PVC (Private) Limited is to purchase, market and sell Poly Vinyl Chloride (PVC), PVC compounds, Caustic
soda and other related chemicals and to develop market for PVC downstream products.

7.1.2

Engro Peroxide (Private) Limited was incorporated in Pakistan on July 22, 2019 under the Act as a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company. The main objective of Engro Peroxide (Private) Limited is to manufacture and market
Hydrogen Peroxide and related chemicals.

2019

7.1.3

431,022
17,024
448,046

399,190
16,771
415,961

Engro Plasticizer (Private) Limited was incorporated in Pakistan on July 22, 2019 under the Act as a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company. The main objective of Engro Plasticizer (Private) Limited is to manufacture and market
Chlorinated Paraffin Wax and other related chemicals.

7.2

Net carrying value
Balance as at beginning of the year
Add: Additions at cost - note 4.4
Less: Amortisation charge for the year - notes 29 and 31

The registered office of the subsidiary companies is situated at 12th Floor, Plot G-3, Block 9, Khayaban-e-Iqbal, Clifton,
Karachi. As at December 31, 2020, the Company continues to hold 100% (2019: 100%) of the share capital of these
companies.

78,966
48,198
(25,193)

106,773
47,555
(75,362)

Balance as at the end of the year

101,971

78,966

Gross carrying value
Cost at the beginning of the year
Less: Accumulated amortisation

316,240
(214,269)

268,042
(189,076)

101,971

78,966

Balance as at December 31, 2020

(431,022)

(16,771)

(253)

(448,046)

2,266,846

33,162

5,596

2,305,604

5.1

During the year, the Company has entered into Diminishing Musharaka agreement, as disclosed in note 18.5.

5.2

Depreciation charge has been allocated as follows:
Cost of sales - note 29
Administrative expenses - note 31

2020

Rupees

INTANGIBLE ASSETS - computer software and applications

Net book value
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49,933

2019

7.1.1

Depreciation charge
during the year - note 5.2

6.1

Subsidiary companies:
- Think PVC (Private) Limited
5,000,000 (2019: 5,000,000) ordinary shares
of Rs. 10 each - note 7.1.1

-

Balance as at January 1, 2020

Rupees

LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS
Subsidiary companies, at cost - notes 7.1 and 7.2

Year ended December 31, 2020

6.

2020

The cost is being amortized over a period of 5 to 10 years.

2020
8.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTIZED COST
Investment in Term Deposit Receipts - note 8.1
Less: current maturity shown under current assets

8.1

Rupees

2019

5,624,953
(964,120)

5,425,707
(4,557)

4,660,833

5,421,150

These denote term deposits receipts aggregating to USD 35 million maintained with Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan Limited.
These carry profit at the rate of six months Libor + 0.89% per annum and are due to mature in six equal semi-annual
installments of USD 5.833 million starting from July 15, 2021 and ending on January 15, 2024.
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(Amounts in thousand)
9.

Balance at end of the year

(Amounts in thousand)
10.3

60,518

107,522

(31,232)

(35,444)

29,286

72,078
11.

Reconciliation of the carrying amount of loans and
advances to executives is as follows:
Balance at beginning of the year
Add: Disbursements
Less: Repayments / amortisations

9.2

Rupees

2019

LONG-TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
- Considered good
Executives - notes 9.1 to 9.4
Less: Current portion shown under
current assets - note 13

9.1

2020

107,522
7,723
(54,727)

125,871
67,375
(85,724)

60,518

107,522

These include interest free loans and advances to executives for house rent, vehicles, home appliances and investments
given in accordance with the terms of employment. Loans for house rent are repayable in 12 to 18 equal monthly
installments and investment are repayable in lump sum amount after 36 months. Loans for home appliances are
repayable in 5 equal annual installments. Advances for vehicles are charged to statement of profit or loss over a period
of 4 years.

9.3

The maximum aggregate amount due from the executives at the end of any month during the year was Rs. 111,585
(2019: Rs. 146,227). These are secured by way of promissory notes.

9.4

The maximum aggregate amount due from related parties at any time during the year with respect to month end balance
was Rs. 3,059 (2019: Rs. 4,898).

9.5

The carrying values of these financial assets are neither past due nor impaired. The credit quality of these financial
assets can be assessed with reference to no material defaults in recent history.

9.6

The Company does not have any loans or advances placed under any arrangements not permissible under Shariah.
2020

10.

2019

STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS
Consumable stores and spares - notes 10.1 and 10.2
Less: Provision for slow moving stores and
spares - note 10.3
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Rupees

2,160,378

2,041,787

(375,644)

(363,774)

1,784,734

1,678,013

10.1

This includes goods in transit amounting to Rs. 48,897 (2019: Rs. 118,506).

10.2

During the year, the Company has written off stores and spares amounting to Rs. 57,302 (2019: Nil).

363,774
20,571
(8,701)

324,130
39,644
-

Balance at end of the year

375,644

363,774

5,402,730
28,354

2,608,770
25,120

763,425

1,716,169

6,194,509

4,350,059

659,703
13,262
578,437
192
17,327

1,284,031
9,306
147,301
3,486
79,048

1,268,921

1,523,172

STOCK-IN-TRADE

This includes stocks held at storage facilities
of the following parties:

11.2

This includes goods in transit amounting to Rs. 1,979,023 (2019: Rs. 679,668).

11.3

During the year, raw materials and finished goods amounting to Rs. 99,704 (2019: Nil) were written off.
2020

12.

2019

Balance at beginning of the year
Add: Recognised during the year - note 29
Less: Write-off during the year

- Engro Vopak Terminal Limited, a related party
- Al-Noor Petroleum (Private) Limited
- Al-Rahim Trading Company (Private) Limited
- Al-Hamd Traders
- Pakistan House International Limited

These include interest free loans to employees for home appliances and investments, given in accordance with the
terms of employment.

Rupees

The movement in the provision for slow moving stores
and spares is as follows:

Raw and packing materials - notes 11.1 to 11.3
Work-in-process
Finished goods - own manufactured product
and trading products - notes 11.1 and 11.3

11.1

2020

Rupees

2019

TRADE DEBTS - Considered good
Related parties (unsecured) - note 12.1
Others
Secured - notes 12.2 and 12.3
Unsecured - note 12.4

15,273

6,775

443,188
127,751

308,697
154,141

Considered doubtful - note 12.5

570,939
-

462,838
7,309

Less: Provision for doubtful debts - note 12.5

586,212
-

476,922
7,309

586,212

469,613
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(Amounts in thousand)
12.1

(Amounts in thousand)
2020

Due from related parties comprise of:
13.
Upto 1 month
2020
Engro Powegen Thar
(Private) Limited
Engro Fertilizers
Limited

2 to 6 months

2019

2020

More than 6 months

2019
Rupees

2020

-

599

-

-

-

15,217

6,120

-

-

15,217

6,719

-

-

Total

2019

2020

-

599

56

56

15,273

6,176

56

56

15,273

6,775

Current portion of long term-loans and
advances to executives- note 9
Advances to employees - note 13.1
Advances to suppliers and others
Deposits
Prepayments
Receivable from Government of Pakistan
- Sales tax and Federal excise duty refundable
- Octroi / duty claims

12.1.1 The maximum aggregate amount due from the related parties at the end of any month during the year was:
2020
- Engro Fertilizers Limited
- Engro Powergen Thar (Private) Limited

Rupees
16,156
1,494
17,650

12.2

These debts are secured by way of bank guarantees and letters of credit from customers.

12.3

Includes outstanding trade debts against export sales amounting to Rs. 52,326 (2019: Nil).

12.4

During the year, the Company has written off trade debt balance of Rs. 331 (2019: Nil).

2019

Due from related parties (unsecured) - note 13.2
Think PVC (Private) Limited
Engro Plasticizer (Private) Limited
Engro Energy Limited
Engro Peroxide (Private) Limited
Sindh Engro Coal Mining Company Limited
FrieslandCampina Engro Pakistan Limited
Engro Corporation Limited
Engro Fertilizers Limited
Engro Powergen Qadirpur Limited

22,556
698
23,254

Other receivables
2020
12.5

The movement in provision during the year
is as follows:
Balance at beginning of the year
Less: Reversal of provision during the year - notes 30
Less: Write-off during the year
Balance at end of the year

Rupees

2019

9,010

-

(1,701)

-

Custom duty claims refundable - note 13.3
Less: Provision for impairment - notes 13.3 and 13.5
Special Excise Duty (SED) refundable - note 13.4
Less: Provision for impairment - notes 13.4 and 13.5

7,309
13.1
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31,232
59,021
111,370
42,015

35,444
525
10,464
218,363
41,943

55,015
152

495,945
152

55,167

496,097

374
65
505
10,995
11,939
148

2,212
3,109
1,531
70,036
53
5
23,725
2,119
9
102,799
30,572

310,892

936,207

18,043
(18,043)
36,687
(36,687)
-

18,043
(18,043)
36,687
(36,687)
-

310,892

936,207

Considered doubtful

7,309
(7,309)

2019

Considered good

2019

-

LOANS, ADVANCES, DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS
AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Rupees

The advances given to the parties are in accordance with the terms of employment. Maximum aggregate amount due
from related parties at any time during the year with respect to month end balance was Rs. 3,018 (2019: Rs. 4,708).
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(Amounts in thousand)

(Amounts in thousand)
2020

13.2

Maximum aggregate amount due from related parties at any time during the year with respect to month end balance
is as follows:
2020
Think PVC (Private) Limited
Engro Plasticizer (Private) Limited
Engro Energy Limited
Engro Peroxide (Private) Limited
Sindh Engro Coal Mining Company Limited
FrieslandCampina Engro Pakistan Limited
Engro Corporation Limited
Engro Fertilizers Limited
Engro Powergen Qadirpur Limited

13.3

Rupees

17,009
3,299
1,531
335,179
53
5
25,450
2,150
9

2,212
3,109
1,982
70,036
53
5
23,725
141,763
9

384,685

242,894

The Customs Appellate Tribunal, Karachi Bench, through its order dated October 31, 2011, disposed of the Company's
appeal filed on April 11, 2008 against the order of Collector of Customs, Port Muhammad Bin Qasim, Karachi, for the
refund of custom duty paid during the period June 16, 2006 to July 24, 2006 on imports of Vinyl Chloride Monomer
(VCM). The Tribunal was informed that all the aforementioned VCM consignments were released after the issuance
of SRO 565(1) / 2006 dated June 6, 2006 and the benefit of five percent duty reduction was also passed onto the
customers. However, as the price of the Companys product was increased which is linked with international market,
the Tribunal inadvertently presumed that the said benefit had not been transferred to the customers and passed an order
against the Company.
The Company has filed an appeal with the High Court of Sindh against the aforesaid order of the Tribunal. However,
the Company is maintaining full provision against the aforementioned custom duty refundable till such time that all
available legal forums are exhausted.
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14.

2019

13.4

During 2007, Special Excise Duty (SED) amounting to Rs. 91,616 was paid on import of certain fixed assets. Out of the
total SED paid, an amount of Rs. 54,299 was adjusted through input claim in sales tax returns. Subsequently, the
remaining amount of Rs. 36,687 could not be adjusted as the said duty was disallowed as adjustment from output tax
under section 7 of Sales Tax Act, 1990. Therefore, the Company has fully provided the said amount. However, the
Company is pursuing recovery of the remaining amount from the tax authorities based on the view that the SED can
be recovered as it was paid prior to the change in the Sales Tax Act.

13.5

As at December 31, 2020, receivables aggregating to Rs. 54,730 (2019: Rs. 54,730) were deemed to be impaired and
have been provided for in full. The remaining balances of loans, deposits, due from related parties and other receivables
are neither past due nor impaired.

Rupees

2019

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT AND LOSS
Treasury bills - note 14.1
Pakistan Investment Bond - note 14.2
Term deposit - note 14.3

1,972,636
11,201,937
6,000

6,342,029
1,695,488
-

13,180,573

8,037,517

14.1

These carry mark-up at rates ranging between 6.9% to 7.2% per annum (2019: 12.74% to 13.50% per annum) and have
been sold till January 14, 2021.

14.2

These carry mark-up at rates ranging between 7.13% to 7.22% per annum (2019: 13.36% per annum) and have been
sold till January 13, 2021.

14.3

This carries mark-up at rates ranging between 6.45% per annum (2019: Nil) and has maturity on June 24, 2021.
2020

15.

Rupees

2019

CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash in hand
Cash at bank - note 15.1
- in current accounts
- in saving accounts - note 15.2

817

647

306,671
633,432

319,077
458,099

940,103

777,176

940,920

777,823

15.1

These include Rs. 231,469 (2019: Rs. 215,905) held in foreign currency bank accounts.

15.2

These carry mark-up at rates ranging between 2.32% to 11.25% per annum (2019: 5.01% to 11.25% per annum).
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(Amounts in thousand)

(Amounts in thousand)
2020

16.

Rupees

2019

18.

LONG-TERM BORROWINGS

ORDINARY SHARE CAPITAL

Title

Mark-up rate
per annum

Authorised capital
1,250,000,000 (2019: 1,250,000,000) ordinary shares
of Rs. 10 each

12,500,000

12,500,000

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital
908,923,333 (2019: 908,923,333) ordinary shares
of Rs. 10 each, fully paid in cash - notes 16.1 and 16.2

9,089,233

16.1

As at December 31, 2020, Engro Corporation Limited (the Holding Company) and Mitsubishi Corporation (an associated
company) held 510,733,450 and 100,053,562 (2019: 510,733,450 and 100,053,562) ordinary shares of Rs.10 each
denoting 56.19% (2019: 56.19%) and 11.01% (2019: 11.01%) of the share capital of the Company.

16.2

There is a shareholders' agreement between Engro Corporation Limited (ECL) and Mitsubishi Corporation (MC) which
includes provisions in respect of board selection, voting rights, rights of first refusal, etc.
2020

17.

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital
300,000,000 (2019: Nil) preference shares
of Rs. 10 each, fully paid in cash - note 17.1
17.1

Rupees

2019

4,000,000

3,000,000

December 31, December 31,
2020
2019
Rupees

3 months KIBOR + 0.9%

5 half yearly

July 10, 2024

8,645,597

8,623,541

6 months LIBOR + 3.25%
6 months KIBOR + 0%
SBP rate + 1.2%

6 half yearly
6 half yearly
32 quarterly

July 15, 2021
July 15, 2021
December 14, 2022

5,539,605
5,421,500
1,925,517

5,343,839
5,421,500
-

Loan under diminishing musharka agreement - note 18.5

6 months KIBOR + 0.8%

Monthly

February 1, 2021

94,266
21,626,485

19,388,880

Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities
- Loan from International Finance Corporation
- Bilateral Loan

(932,750)
(903,583)
(1,836,333)

-

19,790,152

19,388,880

18.1

In 2019, the Company issued sukuk bonds of Rs. 8,750,000 to eligible institutional and other investors by way of private
placement. These are repayable over a period of 7.5 years in five equal annual installments of Rs. 1,750,000 each with
the first repayment commencing in July 2024. These are secured by way of hypothecation charge of present and future
fixed assets of the Company (excluding land and building) which shall rank pari passu with the charges created in favour
of the existing creditors.

18.2

In 2018, the Company had entered into a financing agreement with IFC for a total of US Dollars 35,000 the draw down
of which was been made in December 2019. The principal is repayable in six equal semi-annual installments commencing
from July 2021 and carries markup at the rate of six months LIBOR plus 3.25% payable semi annually.

4,000,000

The borrowing is by way of hypothecation charge of present and future fixed assets of the Company (excluding land
and building) which shall rank pari passu with the charges created in favour of the existing creditors. Further, prior to
Project Physical Completion Date and Financial Completion Date, dividends shall not exceed 20% and 80% respectively
of annual net income of the year to which the annual dividend relates.

-

During the year, the Company has issued perpetual, cumulative, callable and convertible listed preference shares of
Rs. 3,000,000 by way of pre-IPO placements and public offering at a price of Rs. 10 per share in cash, carrying markup
of 6 months KIBOR + 3.5% and the payment of the same shall be at the discretion of Board of Directors. The objective
of the preference share issuance is to finance PVC-III expansion and VCM debottlenecking projects. The Company will
have an option to call and redeem in full or in part after the expiry of twelve months from the issue date. The preference
shares may be convertible into ordinary shares of the Company at the option of the preference shares holder after the
expiry of eighty months from December 31, 2020 based on 1:1 ratio. These shares were listed during the year.

Commencing

Sukuks - note 18.1
Loan from International Finance Corporation
(IFC) - note 18.2
Bilateral Loan - note 18.3
Islamic Long term financing facility (ILTFF) - note 18.4

PREFERENCE SHARES
Authorised capital
400,000,000 (2019: 400,000,000) preference shares
of Rs. 10 each
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9,089,233

Installments
Number

18.3

In 2019, the Company entered into a musharaka agreement with Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan Limited (DIBPL). The
principal is repayable in six equal semi-annual installments commencing from July 2021 and carries a markup at a rate
of six months KIBOR plus 0%, payable semi annually.
The borrowing is secured by way of hypothecation charge of present and future fixed assets of the Company (except
land and building), ranking subordinate and subservient to the charges created in favour of the existing creditors, and
a lien and a right of set-off over the Term Deposit Receipt maintained with DIBPL as referred to in note 8.

18.4

On September 14, 2020, the Company obtained Islamic Long Term Financing Facility (ILTFF) of the State Bank of
Pakistan through Musharaka agreement entered with financial institutions to finance its PVC-III expansion project. The
amount is repayable over 10 years in equal quarterly installments of Rs. 60,938 each with the first payment commencing
from December 2022. These are secured by way of hypothecation charge of present and future fixed assets of the
Company (excluding land and building) which shall rank pari passu with the charges created in favour of the existing
creditors.

18.5

During the year, the Company entered into a Diminishing Musharaka Agreement for procurement of locally assembled
private / imported vehicles under car monetisation policy. The facility amounted to Rs. 200,000 (2019: Nil). The rental
payments are to be made in monthly installments for five year and are calculated at the rate of six months KIBOR plus
0.8% per annum.
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(Amounts in thousand)
18.6

20.1

Following are the changes in the long term borrowings (i.e. for which cash flows have been classified as financing
activities in the statement of cash flows):
2020

Rupees

2019

Balance as at January 1, 2020
Add: Loan received during the year
Add: Amortisation of transaction cost during the year
Add: Exchange loss for the year
Less: Loan repaid during the year

19,388,880
2,019,133
43,822
174,650
-

7,500,000
19,366,880
22,000
(7,500,000)

Balance as at December 31, 2020

21,626,485

19,388,880

18.7

The proceeds from the aforementioned loans are carried net of unamortised balance of transaction cost amounting to
Rs. 160,648 (2019: Rs. 204,470)

19.

LEASE LIABILITIES

On May 22, 2015 the Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC) Act, 2015 was promulgated whereby cess rate of
Rs.100 per MMBTU and Rs. 200 per MMBTU were fixed for industrial and captive power consumption, respectively. The
GIDC Act, 2015 was made applicable with immediate effect superseding the GIDC Act, 2011 and the GIDC Ordinance,
2014.
The Company, based on the advice of its legal counsel, was of the view that as per GIDC Act, 2015, the uncollected
portion of cess levied through GIDC Act, 2011 and GIDC Ordinance 2014, shall not be collected from the industrial sector.
Therefore, the Company reversed the provision relating to industrial portion of GIDC amounting to Rs. 753,664 for the
period prior to promulgation of GIDC Act, 2015 and retained GIDC provision amounting to Rs. 592,125 in respect of
captive power.
On August 13, 2020, the Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCP) announced the decision rendering the GIDC Act 2015 intra
virus to the constitution and directed the Gas supplying companies to recover the dues in 24 monthly installments. A
review petition was filed against the said order which was disposed-off in November 2020. The SCP in review petition,
elaborated that deliberation on any provision of GIDC Act, 2015 can be contested on appropriate forum and mentioned
that the installments period can be extended to 48 months. The Company has obtained ad-interim stay order dated
October 5, 2020 against the GIDC Act, 2015 from the High Court of Sindh (the Court). This stay order has restrained
Sui Southern Gas Company Limited (SSGC) from charging and / or recovering the cess under the GIDC Act, 2015 till
the final decision on this matter. The Company, based on prudence, has recognised a provision of Rs. 452,838 (2019:
Rs. 1,018,938) for the period January 2020 to July 2020.

These include lease liability outstanding under the storage arrangements with Engro Vopak Terminal Limited, a related
party amounted to Rs. 4,644,821 (2019: Rs. 5,468,167).
2020

20.

Rupees

2019

PROVISIONS
Provision for gas development infrastructure
cess - note 20.1
Provision for gas price revision - note 20.2
Less: current portion of provision of GIDC
and gas price revision

4,930,263
517,392

5,140,373
517,392

5,447,655

5,657,765

(2,456,263)

(5,657,765)

2,991,392

Considering the recent events and developments in GIDC case (including the Judgement and the Review petition
decision), the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) released financial reporting guidance on the
"Accounting of GIDC" via Circular No. 1/2021 dated January 19, 2021 (the Circular) which discusses key accounting
considerations for gas consumer companies. Keeping in view the financial reporting guidance of ICAP and giving due
consideration to the latest available information and the expected timing of the settlement (i.e. monthly installment rather
than lump sum amount), the Company has remeasured its previously undiscounted provision at its present value using
risk free discount rate to incorporate the effect of time value of money arising from the expected settlement based on
an installment plan and has accordingly, recognised remeasurement gain on provision for GIDC amounting to Rs. 680,996.

20.2

215

Under the Gas Infrastructure Development Cess Act, 2011, the Government of Pakistan levied Gas Infrastructure
Development Cess (GIDC) on all industrial gas consumers at the rate of Rs. 13 per MMBTU. Subsequently, the GIDC
rates were enhanced through notifications under OGRA Ordinance 2002, Finance Act, 2014 and GIDC Ordinance 2014
against which the Company had obtained ad-interim stay orders from the High Court of Sindh. However, on prudent
basis the Company recognised a provision of Rs. 1,345,789 till May 21, 2015.

In 2017, the Company had filed suits in the Court, against the increase in tariff of natural gas sold to industries and
captive power plants notified by Oil and Gas Regularity Authority (OGRA) vide SRO no. (1)/2016 dated December 30,
2016 whereby the Company cited the increase as illegal and unconstitutional. The SHC has granted an interim order
in favour of the Company which is still operational. However, the Company has recognised a provision of Rs. 517,392
for the period from December 2017 to September 2018.
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(Amounts in thousand)

(Amounts in thousand)
2020

21.

Debit balances arising due to:
- recoupable minimum turnover tax
- recoupable alternative corporate tax
- unpaid liabilities
- leases recognised
- provision for Gas Infrastructure Development
Cess and Special Excise Duty
- provision for slow moving stores and spares
- provision for bad debts
- shares issuance cost, net to equity

3,508,219

3,338,459

145,728
685,820

558,991
369,179
128,170
783,120

1,419,169
57,830

1,451,279
102,345
2,055
57,830

2,308,547

3,452,969

1,199,672

(114,510)

79,539
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Rupees

2019

3,874,950
3,345,855
1,890,998
1,240
30,752
14,520
7,442
149,825
8,841
126,944
7,363

2,844,907
2,637,665
904,882
1,545
34,120
258
73,199
22
35,133
8,086

9,458,730

6,539,817

42,733
32,151
613
139,179

88,305
40,926
613
139,849

214,676

269,693

Includes due to the following related parties:
-

Engro Corporation Limited
Engro Fertilizers Limited
Engro Powergen Thar (Private) Limited
Engro Vopak Terminal Limited

61,049

This represents provision for annual employment benefits payable to eligible employees who have successfully completed
3 years of vesting period with the Company.

24.2

This includes Sindh Infrastructure Development Cess amounting to Rs. 854,698 (2019: Rs. 751,951).

24.3

These represent interest-free deposits from dealers for the performance of their service as defined in the dealership
agreements. The deposits are refundable on termination of dealership agreements and are payable on demand. The
amount is fully utilised in business in accordance with the requirement of written agreements and in terms of section
217 of the Act.

2019

SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS
Running finance utilised under mark-up
arrangements
Export refinance facility
Money market loans

23.1

24.1

Rupees

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Trade and other creditors - note 24.1
Accrued liabilities - notes 24.1 and 24.2
Advances from customers
Retention money
Security deposits - note 24.3
Payable to provident funds
Payable to gratuity funds
Workers' Welfare Fund - note 24.5
Withholding tax payable
Workers' Profits Participation Fund - note 24.4
Others

SERVICE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

2020

23.

2020
24.

Service incentive plan - note 22.1
22.1

2019

DEFERRED TAXATION - NET
Credit balances arising due to:
- accumulated depreciation

22.

Rupees

2020
-

296,836
200,000
1,662,000

-

2,158,836

The aggregate facilities for running finance available from various banks as at December 31, 2020, representing the
sales price of all mark-up arrangements, amounted to Rs. 3,700,000 (2019: Rs. 2,925,000) of which Rs. 3,700,000 (2019:
Rs. 766,164) unutilised as at year end.

24.4

Rupees

2019

The movement in WPPF payable is as follows:
Balance at the beginning of the year
Allocation for the year - note 32
Interest charges on funds utilised
Less: Payments during the year
Balance at the end of the year

35,133
439,389
-

342,876
265,133
4,163

474,522
(347,578)

612,172
(577,039)

126,944

35,133
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(Amounts in thousand)

(Amounts in thousand)
24.5

The movement in WWF payable is as follows:

2020

Rupees

2019

Balance at the beginning of the year
Allocation for the year - note 32
Less: Payments during the year

73,199
132,255
(55,629)

65,871
73,698
(66,370)

Balance at the end of the year

149,825

73,199

25.

TAXES PAYABLE

25.1

Tax year 2008

25.3

Through Finance Act 2015, section 4B of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 was inserted which levied super tax at specified
rates on income for the tax year 2015. This levy was subject to the threshold of taxable income of Rs. 500,000. The levy
was extended uptil tax year 2020 vide subsequent Finance Acts. Through Finance Supplementary Act, 2019, the levy
of super tax has amended the rate of super tax to 0% from tax year 2020 and onwards for companies other than banking
companies. On August 1, 2018, the Company filed petition against the levy of super tax in the Court and based on the
opinion of its legal advisor, the Company has made a provision for full amount of Super tax of Rs. 328,000. During the
year, super tax has been declared intra virus by the Court and has been declared a tax rightly introduced through Finance
Act and vacated all the stays filed in this respect. Consequently, Company received various notices from tax authorities
for recovery of super tax for the tax years 2017 to 2019. The Company filed appeal against the said notices with CIR(A)
whereby the action of Officer has been confirmed by CIR(A) for tax years 2017 and 2018. The Company has now filed
an appeal before Appellate Tribunal against the decision of CIR(A) which is pending adjudication.

The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) through an order dated November 26, 2009, raised a tax demand
of Rs. 213,172 for tax year 2008. The demand arose as a result of additions on account of trading liabilities of Rs. 47,582
under Section 34(5) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (the Ordinance), disallowance of provision for retirement benefits
of Rs. 5,899 addition of imputed interest on loans to employees and executives of Rs. 16,069 to income, disallowance
of finance cost of Rs. 134,414 and disallowance of adjustment of minimum tax paid for tax years 2004 to 2007 against
the above demand.
The Company filed an appeal against the aforesaid order before the Commissioner Inland Revenue Appeals [CIR(A)]
but discharged the entire demand through adjustment against assessed refunds of Rs. 180,768 and payment of the
balance of Rs. 32,404 under protest. Through his appellate order, the CIR(A) maintained certain additions aggregating
Rs. 189,810 including finance cost amounting to Rs. 134,414 and remanded back the issue of imputed interest on loans
to employees and executives and directed the DCIR to allow credit of the minimum tax charged for the period from tax
years 2004 to 2007. An appeal against the said appellate order was filed by the Company before the Appellate Tribunal
Inland Revenue (ATIR). The department also filed an appeal against the said appellate order challenging the actions
of the CIR(A).

In the meanwhile, Company also filed petition in Supreme Court against the order of the Court, which is pending
adjudication. In November 2020, the Supreme Court conditionally granted stay subject to deposit of 50% of super tax
demand. The Company has accordingly discharged 50% of the said liability.
25.4

In 2013, the ATIR issued an order whereby the aforementioned appeal was disposed of by accepting Companys position
on all the disallowances made earlier except for additions on account of trading liabilities to the extent of Rs. 20,280
and minimum turnover tax for tax years 2004 and 2007 to the extent of Rs.19,692 and Rs. 7,300 respectively, which
were maintained.
In 2013, the Company filed a reference with the High Court of Sindh (the Court) against the additions maintained by
ATIR. Likewise, the tax department also filed reference with the Court against the order passed by the ATIR in favor of
the Company. In 2018, the Court disposed of Company's appeal on the ground that the issues raised by the Company
requires factual verification whereas the petition of the tax department are still pending before the Court. During the year,
the Company performed detailed assessment of the facts of the case and based on the advice of its tax consultants,
the Company decided to accept the decision of the Court and accordingly, has recognised the provision of Rs. 108,882
in respect of addition maintained by ATIR in these financial statements.
25.2

The Company had filed refund applications with the Commissioner Inland Revenue (the Commissioner) for the Tax Year
2008 to Tax Year 2016. All refund applications filed are subject to verification by the Commissioner as per section 170
of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (the Ordinance). In previous years, the Company has received orders from the
Commissioner for partial recovery / credit of refunds for certain tax years and furthermore, the Commissioner has also
sought additional information for verification of refunds for remaining tax years amounting to Rs. 204,969 thousand. The
Company believes that such differences will be reconciled and relevant supporting evidence to be provided to the
Commissioner for rectification.
2020

26.

In 2013, the ATIR issued an order whereby the aforementioned appeal was disposed of by accepting Companys position
except for additions on account of SED provision of Rs. 36,687 and imputed interest on loans to employees and executives
to the extent of Rs. 17,430, which were maintained. The Company filed a reference with the Court against the additions
maintained by ATIR. Likewise, the tax department has also filed reference with the Court against the order passed by
the ATIR in favour of the Company. The management of the Company, based on the advice of its tax consultants, is
confident that the ultimate outcome of the aforementioned matters would be favourable and, accordingly, has not
recognised the effects for the same in these financial statements.

Rupees

2019

ACCRUED INTEREST / MARK-UP
Mark-up accrued on:
- long-term borrowings
- short-term borrowings

425,112
425,112

Tax year 2009
The DCIR through his order dated November 30, 2010 raised a tax demand of Rs. 163,206. The demand arose as a
result of disallowance of finance cost of Rs. 457,282, additions to income of trading liabilities of Rs. 21,859 under section
34(5) of the Ordinance, disallowance of provision for retirement benefits of Rs. 14,239, disallowance of provision against
Special Excise Duty refundable of Rs. 36,687, addition of imputed interest on loans to employees and executives of
Rs. 20,599 and not considering net loss.
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Super Tax under section 4B of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001

332,563
33,709
366,272

27.

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

27.1

The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) through order dated January 8, 2016, raised a sales tax demand of
Rs. 524,589 on account of alleged short payment of sales tax due on the finished products that would have been produced
and sold from the excess wastage of raw material. The Company filed an appeal before the Commissioner Inland Revenue
Appeals [CIR(A)] on the grounds that the order passed against the Company was absolutely baseless as the DCIR had
used inappropriate theoretical assumptions for calculating the sales tax liability. The CIR(A) through his order dated
March 10, 2016, has decided the matter in favour of the Company. However, the department has challenged the said
order of CIR(A) before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR). The management of the Company, based on the advice
of its tax consultants, is confident of a favourable outcome of this matter, accordingly, no provision has been made in
this respect.
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(Amounts in thousand)

(Amounts in thousand)
27.2

Through the notice dated January 20, 2020, the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) raised issues inter alia
with respect to the adjustment of carried forward minimum taxes from the tax liability of Tax Year 2019 and required the
Company to pay Rs. 552,331 being the amount short paid with the return. The Company filed a Constitutional Petition in
the Court challenging the notice, which through order dated February 4, 2020, dismissed the case based on the decision
of the Court in respect of another company. However, the Court directed the department to refrain from passing the order
on the bases of the aforesaid notice for a period of thirty days which was then extended for further 30 days to enable the
Company to approach the Supreme Court (SC). The Company has filed Civil Petition for Leave to Appeal against Court
order in Supreme Court, which was heard on March 18, 2020 and an interim stay has been granted to the Company subject
to the submission of Bank Guarantee equivalent to the order amount, which has been duly submitted by the Company.
The Company, based on the advice of legal advisor, is confident of a favourable decision.

27.3

The aggregate facilities for issuance of performance guarantees by the banks on behalf of the Company as at December
31, 2020 amounts to Rs. 3,248,000 (2019: Rs. 3,248,000). The amount utilised there against as at December 31, 2020
is Rs. 3,017,021 (2019: Rs. 2,163,090).

27.4

The facility for opening letters of credit as at December 31, 2020 aggregates to Rs. 23,943,186 (2019: Rs. 24,007,000).
The amount utilised thereagainst as at December 31, 2020 was Rs. 3,247,361 (2019: Rs. 3,120,000).

27.5

The Company has entered into operating lease arrangments with Al-Rahim Trading Company (Private) Limited for the
storage and handling of Ethylene Di Chloride (EDC) in respect of which future lease commitments aggregate to:
2020
Not later than one year
Later than one year but not later than five years

27.6
27.7

Rupees
3,805
-

2020
29.

Raw and packing materials consumed
Salaries, wages and staff welfare - note 29.1
Fuel, power and gas
Repairs and maintenance
Depreciation and amortisation - notes 4.3 and 6
Depreciation on Right-of-use asset - note 5.2
Write-off of capital work-in-progress - note 4.4
Consumable stores
Purchased services
Storage and handling - note 29.2
Training, conveyance and travelling
Communication, stationery and other office expenses
Rent, rates and taxes
Product transportation
Insurance, fees and subscription
Provision for slow moving stores and spares - note 10.3
Write-off stores and spares - note 10.2
Write-off stock in trade net of proceeds - note 11.3
Other expenses

-

Commitments in respect of rentals of storage tanks at EVTL for the handling of Ethylene aggregate to USD 30,456 valid
till 31 March 2026 and Ethylene Di Chloride (EDC) aggregate to USD 2,400 and are valid till 31 December 2028.
Commitments in respect of capital commitments
and other operational items - note 27.7.1

888,048

3,243,097

27.7.1 This includes Rs. 16,388 (2019: Rs. 152,405) in respect of commitments against intangible assets to Engro Corporation
Limited.
28.

Gross local sales - note 28.1
Less:
- Sales tax
- Discounts

Export sales
Supply of electricity - note 28.2
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42,002,709

44,223,191

6,118,942
795,459
6,914,401

6,404,399
523,257
6,927,656

35,088,308

37,295,535

158,059

469,164

85,031

71,933

35,331,398

37,836,632

28.1

Include sales of trading goods Rs. 209,212 (2019: Rs. 75,084).

28.2

This represents revenue against supply of surplus power to Engro Fertilizers Limited - a related party.

25,120

15,856

11,425,736
1,622,575
5,033,762
480,553
1,262,101
431,022
6,000
414,650
613,150
542,584
160,708
8,895
47,320
806,427
284,649
20,571
57,302
91,763
6,026

17,274,480
1,503,316
6,299,932
409,887
1,058,073
399,190
553,077
495,582
491,610
258,024
11,614
28,084
1,134,097
186,727
39,644
21,177

23,315,794

30,164,514

Closing stock of work-in-process
Cost of goods manufactured

(28,354)
23,312,560

(25,120)
30,155,250

Opening stock of finished goods
Closing stock of finished goods

1,622,853
(736,768)

1,125,819
(1,622,853)

886,085
183,484

(497,034)
72,377

24,382,129

29,730,593

Cost of sales - purchased product - note 29.3

NET REVENUE

2019

COST OF SALES
Opening stock of work-in-process

2019

Rupees

29.1

These include Rs. 92,858 (2019: Rs. 89,183) in respect of staff retirement and other service benefits.

29.2

This includes expense relating to variable lease payments not included in lease liabilities amounting to Rs. 136,637
(2019: Rs. 139,718).
2020

29.3

Rupees

2019

Movement of trading goods
Opening trading stock at the beginning of the year
Purchases made during the year
Closing trading stock at the end of the year

93,314
116,827
(26,657)

165,691
(93,314)

Consumption made during the year

183,484

72,377
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(Amounts in thousand)

(Amounts in thousand)
2020

30.

Rupees

2019

DISTRIBUTION AND MARKETING EXPENSES
Salaries, wages and staff welfare - note 30.1
Sales promotion
(Reversal of provision) / provision for
doubtful debts - note 12.5
Write-off of trade debts
Rent, rates and taxes
Purchased services
Depreciation - note 4.3
Training, conveyance and travelling
Communication, stationery and other office expenses
Others

2020
32.

123,814
92,814

175,231
159,219

331
5,653
3,027
7,054
4,046
1,667
4,863

(1,701)
12,308
6,706
5,750
27,649
1,674
4,788

243,269

391,624

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Salaries, wages and staff welfare - note 31.1
Rent, rates and taxes
Purchased services
Depreciation - note 4.3
Amortisation - note 6
Depreciation on right-of-use asset - note 5.2
Training, conveyance and travelling
Communication, stationery and other office expenses
Others

31.1

34,926
4,503
56,759
798
774,578
73,698
269,296

835,788

1,214,558

2020

Rupees

2019

316,490
34,228
106,340
22,552
25,193
17,024
6,579
8,035
13,413

293,717
41,992
88,455
17,584
21,131
16,771
37,838
27,722
20,632

Rupees

2019

Auditors remuneration

549,854

565,842

Fee for:
- Annual statutory audit
- Review of half yearly financials
- Review of compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance

1,055
210
55

960
190
50

Taxation and other advisory services
Reimbursement of expenses

2,640
448

2,940
363

4,408

4,503

32.2

This includes donations made to Engro Foundation, The Citizen Foundation and The Water Foundation of Rs.5,000,
Rs.2,465 and Rs.3,578 respectively. Mr Jahangir Piracha, (the Chief Executive of the Company), and Mr. Ghias Khan,
(the Chairman of the Board of Directors) are the trustees of Engro Foundation.

32.3

This includes Rs.192,020 (2019: Rs.634,818) arising on translation of foreign currency denominated lease liabilities.
2020

These include Rs. 35,546 (2019: Rs. 25,989) in respect of staff retirement and other service benefits.
33.

Rupees

2019

OTHER INCOME
On financial assets
Income on bank deposits
Income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Income from financial assets at amortised cost
On non-financial assets
Scrap sales
Others
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66,867
4,408
11,910
5,762
175,197
132,255
439,389

These include Rs. 10,695 (2019: Rs. 7,062) in respect of staff retirement and other service benefits.

2020
31.

2019

OTHER EXPENSES
Legal and professional charges
Auditors' remuneration - note 32.1
Donations - note 32.2
Loss on disposal of operating assets
Foreign exchange loss (net) - note 32.3
Workers' Welfare Fund - note 24.5
Workers' profits participation fund - note 24.4

32.1
30.1

Rupees

45,251
842,816
118,336

30,657
790,660
-

1,006,403

821,317

43,593
36,876

63,130
9,815

1,086,872

894,262
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(Amounts in thousand)

(Amounts in thousand)
2020

34.

34.1

2020
35.1

Interest / mark-up on - note 34.1
- long-term borrowings
- short-term borrowings and other facilities

1,632,887
102,413

1,190,039
109,845

Interest expense on lease liabilities
Foreign exchange loss on financial asset and liability
Foreign exchange loss on derivative financial liability
Guarantee commission
Amortisation of transaction costs on borrowings
Default surcharge on GIDC
Commitment fees on borrowings
Cash management charges
LC charges
Bank and others charges

1,735,300
302,368
2,800
19,797
43,822
18,048
1,014
46,539
21,409

1,299,884
333,081
8,607
11,007
22,000
73,406
11,693
634
25,271

2,191,097

1,785,583

This includes borrowing costs in relation to qualifying asset amounting to Rs. 57,110, which was not capitalised, as it
relates to period from March 24, 2020 to May 21, 2020 when project expansion activities were temporarily suspended
due to lockdown.
Rupees

Deferred
- for the year
- for prior year

Rupees

2019

Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit
Profit before taxation

8,216,133

5,042,694

Tax calculated at applicable rate of 29% (2019: 29%)
Tax effect of presumptive tax regime and income subject
to lower tax rates
Prior year tax charge - net
Effect of inadmissible expenses / permanent differences
Impact of change in tax rates
Others

2,382,679

1,462,381

(119,947)
217,089
22,237
1,830

(115,141)
(1,157)
12,554
(23,463)
4,018

2,503,888

1,339,192

36.

EARNINGS PER SHARE - basic and diluted

36.1

Basic earnings per share has been calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

36.2

Diluted earnings per share has been calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary shares with
preference shares outstanding for assumed conversion during the year.

36.3

The information necessary to calculate basic and diltuted earnings per share is as follows:

2019

TAXATION
Current
- for the year
- for prior year
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2019

FINANCE COSTS

2020
35.

Rupees

2020
1,094,177
95,526

962,033
138,768

1,189,703

1,100,801

1,192,622
121,563

238,391
-

2,503,888

1,339,192

Profit for the year

Weighted average number of shares outstanding at year
end for determination of basic EPS

Rupees

5,712,245

2019
3,703,502

Number in thousands
908,923

Adjustment for conversion of convertible preference shares

10,656

Weighted average number of potential ordinary shares
outstanding at year end for determination of diluted EPS

919,579

908,923
908,923
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(Amounts in thousand)

(Amounts in thousand)
2020

37.

RETIREMENT AND OTHER SERVICE BENEFITS

37.1

In 2013, the Company replaced its provident fund with the provident fund (the Fund) operated and managed by Engro
Corporation Limited - the Holding Company.

37.2

38.

39.

Provision for staff retirement and other
service benefits
Depreciation - note 4.3
Depreciation on right-of-use asset - note 5.2
Amortisation - note 6
Write-off capital work-in-progress - note 4.4
(Reversal of provision) / provision for
doubtful debts - note 12.5
Write off trade debts - note 30
Write-off stores and spares - note 29
Provision for slow moving stores and spares - note 10.3
Write-off stock-in-trade net of proceeds - note 29
Foreign exchange loss under financial assets and liabilities
Foreign exchange loss under derivative financial asset
Gain on of derviative financial asset
Income on bank deposits and short-term
investments - note 33
Interest expense on lease liabilities - note 34
Amortisation of transaction cost - note 34
Finance costs - note 34
Loss on disposal of operating assets - note 32
Provision against GIDC - note 20.1
Remeasurement gain on provision against GIDC - note 20.1
Default surcharge on GIDC - note 34
Working capital changes - note 39.1

The aggregate amounts for remuneration, including all benefits, to chief executive, directors and executives of the
Company are given below:

Director

Others

Executives

Managerial remuneration - note 38.1
Retirement benefit funds
Bonus
Other benefits
Directors fee

135,072
5,808
30,066
3,797
-

1,617

677,318
109,901
164,301
218,801
-

29,162
6,286
29,985
3,454
-

1,100

667,133
104,289
152,221
166,911
-

Total

174,743

1,617

1,170,321

68,887

1,100

1,090,554

2

5

206

1

2

179

Number of persons including
those who worked part of the year

Chief
Executive
Rupees

2019

Chief
Executive

Others

Executives

38.1

This includes payment of ex-gratia of Rs. 102,830 made to the outgoing Chief Executive Officer.

38.2

The Company also provides certain household items and vehicles for the use of the Chief Executive Officer and certain
executives.

38.3

Expense charged in respect of directors' indemnity insurance policy purchased by the Company amounts to Rs. 49
(2019: Rs. 49).

5,042,694

53,018
1,291,707
448,046
25,193
6,000

51,123
1,027,176
415,961
75,362
-

331
57,302
20,571
91,763
194,820
(154)

(1,701)
39,644
634,818
154
-

(1,006,403)
302,368
43,822
1,735,300
5,762
452,838
(680,996)
18,048
1,307,251

(821,317)
333,081
22,000
1,299,884
798
1,018,938
(98,054)

12,582,720

9,040,561

2020
39.1

Rupees

2019

WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES
(Increase) / decrease in current assets
Stores, spares and loose tools
Stock-in-trade
Trade debts
Loans, advances, deposits, prepayments and
other receivables - net
Increase in current liabilities
Trade and other payables
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8,216,133

Adjustments for non cash-charges and other items:

REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

2020

2019

CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
Profit before taxation

The investments out of the provident funds have been made in accordance with the provisions of Section 218 of the
Act and the conditions specified there under.

Director

Rupees

(175,893)
(1,944,154)
(116,930)

(154,890)
(768,672)
(37,512)

625,315

758,276

(1,611,662)

(202,798)

2,918,913

104,744

1,307,251

(98,054)
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(Amounts in thousand)

(Amounts in thousand)
2020

40.

Rupees

2019

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Cash and bank balances - note 15
Short-term borrowings - note 23

13,174,573
940,920
-

8,037,517
777,823
(2,158,836)

14,115,493

6,656,504

42.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

42.1

Financial risk factors
The Companys activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Companys risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise the
potential adverse effects on the Companys financial performance. The Company uses derivative financial instruments
to hedge certain risk factors, where it deems appropriate. Risk management is carried out by the Companys finance
division under the guidance of the Companys Board of Directors.
a) Market risk

41.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

41.1

Financial assets as per statement of financial position

2020

Rupees

2019

i)

At amortised cost
Long-term loans
Financial assets at amortised cost
Trade debts - considered good
Loans, deposits and other receivable
Cash and bank balances
At fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

41.2

Financial liabilities as per statement
of financial position

29,286
5,624,953
586,212
154,689
940,920

72,078
5,425,707
469,613
387,178
777,823

7,336,060

7,132,399

13,180,573

8,037,517

20,516,633

15,169,916

2020

Rupees

2019

At fair value through profit or loss
Derivative financial instruments

21,626,485
4,694,873
79,539
7,282,122
425,112

19,388,880
5,531,317
61,049
2,158,836
4,774,372
366,272

34,108,131

32,280,726

34,108,131
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Currency risk
Currency risk represents the risk that the fair values of future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign currency rates. The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from
currency exposures primarily with respect to US Dollar. The risk arises from outstanding payments for imports,
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies and future commercial transactions. In the current economic
environment, the Company is significantly exposed to currency risk because of the expected volatility in exchange
rates. The Company, at its discretion, manages the currency risk through forward exchange contracts.
At December 31, 2020, the financial assets and liabilities exposed to foreign exchange risk amount to Rs. 5,593,000
(2019: Rs. 5,637,055) and Rs. 13,113,858 (2019: Rs. 12,560,205) respectively.
At December 31, 2020, if the Pakistan Rupee had weakened / strengthened by 5% against the US Dollar with
all other variables held constant, post-tax profit / loss for the year would have been lower / higher by Rs. 266,990
(2019: Rs. 245,772), mainly as a result of foreign exchange losses / gains on translation of uncovered US Dollardenominated liabilities. However, this change in profits or losses would be partially offset by a corresponding
change in margins as bulk of revenues is linked with movements in exchange rates.

ii) Yield / interest rate risk

At amortised cost
Long-term borrowings
Lease liabilities
Service benefit obligation
Short-term borrowings
Trade and other payables
Accrued interest / mark-up

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in
market prices. It comprises of the following risks:

154

Yield / interest rate risk represents the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of financial instruments will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company is exposed to interest rate risk arising from
investments in government securities, bank balances maintained in saving accounts, borrowings and running
finance facilities and term deposits, utilised under mark-up arrangements. Variable rate financial instruments
expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk, whereas, fixed rate financial instruments expose the Company
to fair value interest rate risk.
As at December 31, 2020, if interest rate on Companys borrowings had been 1% higher / lower with all other
variables held constant, post tax profit for the year would have been lower / higher by approximately Rs. 32,675
(2019: Rs. 20,183) mainly as a result of higher / lower interest charged on variable rate borrowings.

32,280,880
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(Amounts in thousand)

(Amounts in thousand)
iii)Other price risk
Price risk represents the risk that the fair vale of future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate because
of changes in market prices (other than those arising from currency risk or interest rate risk), whether those
changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financials instruments or its issuers or factors affecting
all similar financial instruments traded in the market. The Company is not exposed to price risk as at December
31, 2020 as the Company does not hold any financial instruments which expose it to price risk.

The credit quality of receivables can be assessed with reference to their historical performance with no defaults in recent history.
As at December 31, 2020 the credit quality of the Companys bank balances can be assessed with reference to external credit
ratings assigned to the respective banks as follows:

Bank

Rating agency

2020

2019

Ratings

Ratings

Short-term

Long-term

Short-term

Long-term

b) Credit risk
Credit risk represents the risk of financial loss being caused if counter parties fail to discharge their obligations. Credit
risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, trade debts, loans, deposits, other receivables financial
assets at amortised cost and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. The maximum exposure to credit risk
is equal to the carrying amount of these financial assets.

Allied Bank Limited

PACRA

A-1+

AAA

A-1+

AAA

Askari Bank Limited

PACRA

A-1+

AA+

A-1+

AA+

The Company is not materially exposed to credit risk as unsecured credit is provided to selected parties with no history
of default. Moreover, major part of trade debts are secured by bank guarantees and letters of credit from customers.
Furthermore, credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counter parties are banks with reasonably high credit
ratings, or investments are made in government securities.
The Company monitors the credit quality of its financial assets with reference to historical performance of such assets
and available external credit ratings. The carrying values of financial assets exposed to credit risk, which are neither
past due nor impaired, are as follows:

2020

Long-term loans
Trade debts - considered good
Loans, deposits and other receivables
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at amortised cost
Bank balances
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Rupees

2019

29,286
586,212
154,689
13,180,573
5,624,953
940,103

72,078
469,613
387,178
8,037,517
5,425,707
777,176

20,515,816

15,169,269

Al Baraka Bank (Pakistan) Limited

PACRA

A-1

A

A-1

A

Bank Alfalah Limited

PACRA

A-1+

AA+

A-1+

AA+

Bank Al Habib Limited

PACRA

A-1+

AA+

A-1+

AA+

R&I

A-1

A

A-1

A

Bank of China
Bank Islami Pakistan Limited

PACRA

A1

A+

A1

A+

Citibank N.A.

Moody

P1

Aa3

P1

Aa3

Deutsche Bank A.G

Moody

-

-

P2

Ba3

Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan Limited

JCR-VIS

A-1+

AA

A-1+

AA

Faysal Bank Limited

PACRA

A-1+

AA

A-1+

AA

Habib Bank Limited

JCR-VIS

A-1+

AAA

A-1+

AAA

Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited

PACRA

A-1+

AA+

A-1+

AA+

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China

Moody

P-1

A1

P-1

A1

JS Bank Limited

PACRA

A-1+

AA-

A-1+

AA-

MCB Bank Limited

PACRA

A-1+

AAA

A-1+

AAA

MCB Islamic Bank Limited

PACRA

A-1

A

A-1

A

Meezan Bank Limited

JCR-VIS

A-1+

AA+

A-1+

AA+

National Bank of Pakistan

JCR-VIS

A-1+

AAA

A-1+

AAA

Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) Limited

PACRA

A-1+

AAA

A-1+

AAA

Summit Bank Limited

JCR-VIS

A-3

BBB-

A-3

BBB-

SAMBA Bank Limited

JCR-VIS

A-1

AA

A-1

AA

The Bank of Punjab

PACRA

A-1+

AA

A-1+

AA

United Bank Limited

JCR-VIS

A-1+

AAA

A-1+

AAA
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(Amounts in thousand)
c)

(Amounts in thousand)

Liquidity risk

The Company held the following assets measured at fair Values

Liquidity risk represents the risk that the Company will encounter difficulties in meeting obligations associated with
financial liabilities. The Companys liquidity management involves maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities,
the availability of funds through an adequate amount of credit facilities and through its ability to close out market positions.
Due to the dynamic nature of the business, the Company aims at maintaining flexibility in funding by keeping committed
credit lines available.

As at December 31, 2020
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

The general nature of credit facilities available to the Company under any contract and not availed as at the date of
statement of financial position has been disclosed in notes 18 & 23.

Treasury bills
Pakistan investment bonds
Term deposit

The table below analyses how management monitors net liquidity based on details of the remaining contractual maturities
of financial liabilities. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows:
2020
Maturity

Maturity

Maturity after

upto one

more than one

five years

year

year but less

Total

Maturity

Maturity
upto one

Level 3

Total

Rupees
-

1,972,636
11,201,937
6,000

-

1,972,636
11,201,937
6,000

-

13,180,573

-

13,180,573

year

Total

Maturity

As at December 31, 2020

more than one after five
year but less

Level 1

years

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Treasury bills

than five years
Rupees

Financial liabilities

43.

Level 2

2019

than five years

Long-term borrowings
Lease liabilities
Service benefit obligations
Short term borrowings
Trade and other payables
Derivative financial instruments
Accrued interest / mark-up

Level 1

3,953,611
1,323,477
79,539
6,405,462
425,112

21,201,305
3,735,906
-

4,892,231 30,047,147
262,774
5,322,157
79,539
6,405,462
425,112

1,854,200
1,276,223
61,049
2,158,836
4,774,372
154
366,272

23,373,714
4,435,600
-

3,627,225
707,659
-

28,855,139
6,419,482
61,049
2,158,836
4,774,372
154
366,272

12,187,201

24,937,211

5,155,005

42,279,417 10,491,106

27,809,314

4,334,884

42,635,304

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

Pakistan investment bonds

44.

Fair value hierarchy
International Financial Reporting Standard 13, 'Fair Value Measurement' requires the Company to classify assets using
a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy
has the following levels:
Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability either directly
(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

Level 3

Total

Rupees
-

6,342,029

-

6,342,029

-

1,695,488
8,037,517

-

1,695,488
8,037,517

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The objective of the Company when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to
provide expected returns to its shareholders by maintaining optimum capital structure to minimize the cost of capital.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may issue new equity, manage dividend payouts to its shareholders
or sell assets to reduce debt.
The Company manages capital by maintaining gearing ratio at certain levels. This ratio is calculated as long term
borrowings and lease liabilities divided by total capital. Total capital is calculated as equity as shown in the statement
of financial position plus long-term borrowings and lease liabilities.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. Consequently, differences can arise between carrying values
and the fair value estimates.
Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Company is a going concern without any intention or
requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to undertake a transaction on adverse terms.

Level 2

2020

Rupees

2019

The gearing ratio of the Company is as follows:
Long-term borrowings - note 18
Lease liabilities

Total equity
Total capital
Gearing ratio

21,626,485
4,694,873

19,388,880
5,531,317

26,321,358

24,920,197

26,070,897
52,392,255

17,731,023
42,651,220

0.502

0.584

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e. unobservable inputs).
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46.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

45.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

46.1

45.1

Based on the internal management reporting structure, the Company is organised into three business segments based on the
products produced and sold as follows:

Following are the name of associated companies and related parties with whom the Company had entered into transactions
or had arrangements or agreements in place during the year:

-

Poly Vinyl Chloride (PVC) and allied chemicals: The segment is formed to manufacture and sell PVC and allied chemicals
to various industrial customers including pipe manufacturers, shoe and packaging industry. The Company supplies the
products throughout Pakistan mainly through dealers. Moreover, PVC is also exported to various countries mainly in Asia
Region.

-

Caustic soda and allied chemicals: The segment is formed to manufacture and sell caustic soda and allied chemicals
mostly to textile and soap industry.

-

Power supplies: The segment supplies surplus power generated from its power plants to Engro Fertilizers Limited.

Management monitors the operating results of above-mentioned segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resources to be allocated and of assessing performance. Segment performance is evaluated based on profit / (loss) after
tax for that segment, which in certain respects, as explained in table below, is measured differently from profit or loss in the
financial statements. Items which are directly attributable to a particular segment have been allocated to the respective segment,
while those which are not directly attributable have been allocated on the basis of revenue.
Poly Vinyl Chloride (PVC)
and allied chemicals
2020
2019

Caustic soda and
allied chemicals

Power supply

2020

2020

Segment profit and loss
Revenue
At a point in time
Over time
Less:
Cost of sales
Distribution and marketing
expenses
Administrative expenses
Other expenses
Other income
Finance costs
Profit before tax
Taxation

2019

Total

2019

2019

Rupees
30,573,350
30,573,350

31,647,675
31,647,675

4,463,506
4,463,506

5,995,675
5,995,675

85,032
85,032

71,933
71,933

35,036,856
85,032
35,121,888

37,643,350
71,933
37,715,283

(21,221,205)

(26,488,041)

(3,788,302)

(3,903,637)

(77,486)

(57,030)

(25,086,993)

(30,448,708)

(152,054)
(511,396)
(537,652)
609,471
(1,872,432)

(318,647)
(510,011)
(422,168)
480,131
(1,442,646)

(89,041)
(47,102)
(75,616)
474,990
(16,200)

(72,977)
(63,187)
(164,562)
413,670
(9,740)

(1,066)
2,411
(102)

(1,750)
461
(117)

(241,095)
(558,498)
(614,334)
1,086,872
(1,888,734)

(391,624)
(573,198)
(588,480)
894,262
(1,452,503)

6,888,082

2,946,293

922,235

2,195,242

8,789

13,497

7,819,106

5,155,032

(2,240,450)

(791,223)

(146,011)

(576,405)

(2,268)

(3,854)

(2,388,729)

(1,371,482)

4,647,632

2,155,070

776,224

1,618,837

6,521

9,643

5,430,377

3,783,550

281,749
119

(93,194)
13,146

Impact of ROU and lease liabilities
Others, post tax
Profit for the year

2020

4,647,632

2,155,070

776,224

1,618,837

6,521

9,643

5,712,245

3,703,502

38,375,683

31,534,624

9,202,307

6,068,487

26,766

17,886

47,604,756
21,426,356

37,620,997
19,845,449

69,031,112

57,466,446

23,161,123
19,799,092

18,798,705
20,936,718

42,960,215

39,735,423

Segment assets and liabilities
Total segment assets - note 45.2
Unallocated assets - note 45.2
Total assets
Total segment liabilities - note 45.2
Unallocated liabilities - note 45.2
Total liabilities

45.2

235

19,939,452

15,533,786

3,212,462

3,261,271

9,209

3,648

Segment assets consist primarily of property, plant and equipment, stores and spares, stock in trade and trade debts. Unallocated
assets include long term investment, long term loans and advances, loans, advances, prepayments and other receivables, taxes
recoverable, and cash and bank balances.

Name of related parties
Engro Corporation Limited
Think PVC (Private) Limited
Engro Perxoide (Private) Limited
Engro Plasticizer (Private) Limited
Mitsubishi Corporation
Engro Fertilizers Limited
Sindh Engro Coal Minning Company Limited
Engro Energy Limited
Thar Power Company Limited
Engro Digital Limited
Engro Eximp Agri Products (Private) Limited
FrieslandCampina Engro Pakistan Limited
Engro Infinity (Private) Limited
Engro Foundation
Karachi School of Business Leadership (KSBL)
Engro Elengy Terminal Private Limited
Engro Eximp FZE
Engro Powergen Qadirpur Limited
EFERT Agri Trade (Private) Limited
Engro Vopak Terminal Limited
Pakistan Oxygen Limited
Overseas Investors Chamber of
Commerce & Industry
Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance
Retirement funds
- Provident fund
- Gratuity fund
- Pension fund
Mr. Nadir Salar Qureshi - note 46.1.2
Mr. Feroz Rizvi - note 46.1.2
Ms. Ayesha Aziz - note 46.1.2 & 46.1.3
Mr. Eram Hassan
Mr. Nazoor Baig - note 46.1.2
Mr. Noriyuki Koga - note 46.1.2
Mr. Hasnain Moochhala
Mr. Ghias Uddin Khan - note 46.1.2
Mr. Rizwan Masood Raja - note 46.1.2
Ms. Rahat Kaunain Hassan - notes 46.1.2 & 46.1.3
Mr. Imran Anwer - note 46.1.1
Mr. Jahangir Piracha - note 46.1.1
Mr. Aneeq Ahmed
Mr. Syed Ali Akbar
Mr. Mahmood Siddiqui
Mr. Asghar Ali Khan
Mr. Mazhar Hasnaini
Mr. Jahangir Waheed
Ms. Salima Hasham
Mr. Salman Hafeez
Mr. Kalimuddin A Khan
Mr. Fahd Khawaja
Mr. Syed Abbas Raza

Direct shareholding

Relationship

56.19%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
11.01
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

Parent company
Subsidiary company
Subsidiary company
Subsidiary company
Associated company
Common directorship
Common directorship
Common directorship
Common directorship
Common directorship
Common directorship
Common directorship
Common directorship
Common directorship
Common directorship
Common directorship
Common directorship
Common directorship
Common directorship
Common directorship
Common directorship

N/A
N/A

Common directorship
Common directorship

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

Post employment benefits
Post employment benefits
Post employment benefits
Non-executive Director
Independent Director
Independent Director
Non-executive Director
Independent Director
Non-executive Director
Non-executive Director
Non-executive Director
Non-executive Director
Independent Director
Chief Executive Officer
Chief Executive Officer
Key management personnel
Key management personnel
Key management personnel
Key management personnel
Key management personnel
Key management personnel
Key management personnel
Key management personnel
Key management personnel
Key management personnel
Key management personnel
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(Amounts in thousand)

(Amounts in thousand)

46.1.1 During the year, Mr. Imran Anwer resigned from the post of Chief Executive Officer of the Company and was replaced
by Mr. Jahangir Piracha.

46.3

The related party status of outstanding balances as at December 31, 2020 is disclosed in the respective notes.

47.

GENERAL

47.1

Number of employees

46.1.2 These denote directors elected in the annual general meeting of the Company held on April 23, 2020.
46.1.3 Ms. Ayesha has co-opted as a Director on the Board of Directors of the Company on November 5, 2020 in the place of
Ms. Rahat Kaunain Hassan.
46.2

Transactions with related parties, other than those which have been disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements,
are as follows:
2020
2019
Rupees
Nature of relationship

Holding Company
- Engro Corporation Limited

Subsidiary Company
- Think PVC (Private) Limited
- Engro Peroxide (Private) Limited
- Engro Plasticizer (Private) Limited
Associated Company
- Mitsubishi Corporation
Member of the Group
- Engro Fertilizers Limited

- Engro Vopak Terminal Limited
- Engro Digital Limited
- Engro Energy Limited
- Engro Powergen Thar (Private) Limited
- Engro Foundation
Directors
Contribution to staff
retirement benefits

Key management personnel
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2020

Rupees

2019

- Total number of employees

563

508

- Average number of employees

537

483

Nature of transactions
Reimbursement made
Reimbursement received
Advance for intangible asset
Life insurance contribution
Medical insurance contribution
Expenses paid
Reimbursement received
Expenses paid
Reimbursement received
Expenses paid
Reimbursement received
Purchase of goods
Sale of goods
Sales of utilities
Purchase of services
Reimbursement received
Purchase of land
Reimbursement made
Purchase of services
Reimbursement made
Reimbursement received
Reimbursement received
Reimbursements received
Sale of goods
Donations
Fee
Managed and operated by the
Holding Company
- Provident fund
- Gratuity fund
- Pension fund
Managerial remuneration
Retirement benefit funds
Bonus
Other benefits

374,579
25,173
233,700
-

287,474
2,386
276,595
537
194

37,706
39,543
295,157
354,198
190
3,299

2,212
70,036
3,109
-

93,190

702,673

7,737
132,787
89,807
2,323
22,915
1,644,170
12,598
6,428
1,596
1,277
5,000
1,617

11,305
112,834
13,412
3,771
722,122
12,641
1,477,298
20,119
936
32
4,372
3,987
14,200
1,100

70,719
65,339
3,042
241,041
18,696
50,398
26,500

69,636
48,853
4,629
117,369
20,853
37,351
27,134

Included herein are 480 (2019: 435) employees working at the plant of the Company as at December 31, 2020 and
average number of these employees during the year was 456 (2019: 467).
47.2

Production capacity
Designed
annual capacity
2020

Actual
production

2019

Remarks

2020

2019

153
79
77
2
148

197
110
105
4
184

48

48

Kilo tons
PVC
EDC
Caustic soda
Caustic flakes
VCM

195
127
106
20
204

195
127
106
20
204

Production planned as
per market demand
and in-house
consumption needs

Mega Watts
Power
48.

66

66

NON-ADJUSTING EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
The Board of Directors in its meeting held on February 10, 2021 has proposed a final cash dividend of Rs. 1,133,562
(2019: Rs.181,785) which is approximately Rs. 1.247 (2019: Rs. 0.20) per share. This appropriation will be approved
by the members at the Annual General Meeting to be held on April 8, 2021.
Further, the Board of Directors in the meeting has proposed a final cash dividend for preference shareholders for the
period from December 18, 2020 to December 31, 2020 of Rs. 12,485 which is approximately Rs 0.042 per share. This
appropriation will be approved in the Annual General Meeting to be held on April 8, 2021.
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(Amounts in thousand)
49.

CORRESPONDING FIGURES
Corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified for better presentation, wherever considered necessary,
for the purposes of better comparison. Following are the major reclassifications that have been made during the year:

Description

Reclassified
From

50.

Amount
To

Accrued mark-up

Loans, advances, deposits
prepayments and other receivables

Financial asset at fair value
through profit or loss

73,097

Advances to suppliers

Loans, advances, deposits
prepayments and other receivables

Stock-in-trade

47,218

Advances to suppliers

Loans, advances, deposits
prepayments and other receivables

Stores, spares
and loose tools

109,084

DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE
These financial statements were authorised for issue on February 10, 2020 by the Board of Directors of the Company.

Jahangir Piracha
Chief Executive
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Syed Abbas Raza

Chief Financial Officer

Feroz Rizvi

Director
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

S.No.

Key audit matters
Production of the Company declined, prices of major raw materials
were significantly lower in the international market and the prices
of Company's products also witnessed significant variation during
the year. Further, the activities in relation to expansion projects
of the Company remained suspended for few months. State Bankof
Pakistan (SBP) also reduced the policy interest rate significantly.

To the members of Engro Polymer and Chemicals Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

As a result of the price variations, gross profit of the Company
increased significantly, however, additional energy and other costs
were incurred. The suspension of expansion projects resulted in
discontinuance of borrowing cost capitalisation. However, lower
mark-up rates reduced the borrowings cost of the Company.

Opinion
We have audited the annexed consolidated financial statements of Engro Polymer and Chemicals Limited (the
Company) and its subsidiaries (the Group), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31,
2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity, the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.
In our opinion, consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at December 31, 2020 and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year ended in accordance
with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.

Due to significant effect of the events on the consolidated financial
statements resulting extensive discussion with management at
various stages and required significant attention to the impacts
reflected in the consolidated financial statements, we have
considered the above as a key audit matter.

2.

How the matter was addressed in our audit
-

checked gross profit analysis of the Company;

-

checked and compared the trends of international prices with
the Company's Products;

-

checked and compared the trends of international prices for
major raw materials with the prices on which raw material
purchased by the Company;

-

checked the increase in gas prices and also checked the
impact of adverse gas ratio due to gas leakage incident and
closure of plant;

-

checked raw material wise inventory reconciliation to identify
period costs (if any) charged to cost of sales directly;

-

examined the borrowings and related finance cost; and

-

assessed the adequacy of the related disclosures made in
the consolidated financial statements with respect to the
applicable accounting and reporting standards.

Provision in respect of Gas Infrastructure and Development Cess

Our audit procedures included the following:

(Refer note 20 to the consolidated financial statements)

-

obtained an understanding of the background facts pertaining
to provision recorded in respect of GIDC through meetings
with the management and review of the minutes of the meetings
of those charged with governance;

-

read the detailed judgement of the SCP and judgement on
review petition by the SCP;

-

read details of suit filed in the SHC and stay order granted by
the SHC;

-

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

In this regard, the Company, being aggrieved by the decision,
filed a review petition before the SCP. And at same time also filed
a suit with the Sindh High Court (SHC) against collection of GIDC
instalments, before a factual determination of GIDC pass on is
carried out, and the SHC granted a stay on October 05, 2020
against recovery of GIDC payable from the Company till the
finalisation of matter by the SHC. Later on, SCP while deciding
the review petition on November 2, 2020, disposed off the review
petition against the gas consumers and stated that the Government
of Pakistan is agreeable to recover the arrears in 48 monthly
instalments instead of 24 monthly instalments.

obtained and read the "Guidance on Accounting of GIDC"
issued by ICAP and understood the management's process
for applying judgments in relation to change in accounting
estimate and held discussions with the management regarding
accounting treatment and the related impact thereof,
subsequent to judgements of SCP;

-

checked the requirements of GIDC Act, 2015;

Following are the key audit matters:

Pursuant to the above decisions of the SCP and without prejudice
to the suit filed in SHC, the Company, on prudent basis has remeasured its previously undiscounted GIDC provision at its present
value in 48 monthly instalments commencing from August 2020.

-

obtained confirmation from external legal counsel in respect
of the current developments in the case including their
assessment of the potential outcome of the matter;

-

checked the mathematical accuracy of the management's
working of current / non - current classification of GIDC
provision, its present value and assessed its accuracy and
reasonableness of key estimates used;

-

checked the appropriateness of disclosures made in the
consolidated financial statements in relation to the matter in
accordance with the applicable accounting and reporting
standards.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants'
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Key Audit Matters

S.No.
1.

Key audit matters

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Operating results

Our audit procedures included the following:

(Refer notes 1.5 and 4 to the consolidated financial statements)

-

The business activities of the Company were impacted due to the
COVID-19 pandemic environment and the closure of plant due to
the major turnaround and gas leakage event during the year.

obtained detailed understanding of the background facts
pertaining to significant events happened during the year
through meetings with the management, review of the minutes
of the meetings of those charged with governance and
communication to Pakistan Stock Exchange;

During the year the, the Honourable Supreme Court of Pakistan
(SCP) through its judgment dated August 13, 2020 has declared
that the Gas Infrastructure Development Cess ("GIDC") Act, 2015
("the Act") is valid and in accordance with the provisions of the
Constitution of Pakistan 1973 ("the Constitution").

The management has applied the requirements of "Guidance on
Accounting of GIDC" issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) in January 2021, for recognition,
measurement and presentation of the GIDC provision in these
consolidated financial statements and applied IAS 8 "Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors" in
developing and applying a change in accounting estimate. The
Company has remeasured its previously undiscounted provision
at its present value to incorporate the effect of time value of money
arising from the expected settlement based on an instalment plan
and has accordingly, recognised remeasurement gain on provision
for GIDC amounting to Rs. 680,996 thousand in the enclosed
consolidated financial statements.
Given the nature and significance of the amounts and judgement
involved in the selection of accounting policies and estimation of
present value of remeasurement of the provision, we have
considered this as a key audit matter.
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S.No.
3.

Key audit matters

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Income tax and related contingencies

Our audit procedures included the following:

(Refer notes 25 and 27 to the consolidated financial statements)

-

obtained and examined details of the pending tax matters
and discussed the same with the Company's management;

-

circularized confirmations to the Company's external legal
and tax advisors for their views on matters being handled by
them;

-

obtained and examined the Company's current tax, deferred
tax and prior year income tax positions to check the provision
for the year;

-

involved internal tax professionals to assess management's
conclusions on contingent tax matters and evaluated the
consistency of such conclusions with the views of
management and external legal and tax advisors engaged
by the Company;

The income tax matters of the Company include recognising the
income tax provision for the year, review of past years tax position
and verification of payments against the income tax liability. Such
matters are also affected by the income tax law interpretations by
appellate forums and availability of factual evidence. During the
year, the Company has recognised charge relating to prior year
tax position arising out of assessment and appellate orders. Further
in respect of the tax payments that have not been agreed with the
Federal Board of Revenue (FBR) records, the Company believes
that such difference will be reconciled and related supporting
evidence for the tax payments made will be provided to the FBR.
Due to significance of amounts involved, inherent uncertainties
with respect to the outcome of these matters and use of significant
estimates to assess the same including related financial impacts,
we have considered the income tax matters as a key audit matter.

-

checked correspondence of the Company with the relevant
authorities including judgments or orders by the competent
authorities in relation to the issues involved or matters which
have similarities with the issues involved;

-

checked mathematical accuracy of the calculations underlying
the provisions; and

-

assessed the adequacy of the related disclosures made in
the consolidated financial statements with respect to the
applicable accounting and reporting standards.

Information Other than the Unconsolidated and Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor's Reports Thereon

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in
Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
-

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

-

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

-

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

-

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

-

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

-

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated and unconsolidated financial statements and our auditor's reports thereon.
Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.
Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Consolidated Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with
the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
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We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
We also provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Farrukh Rehman.

A. F. Ferguson & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Karachi
Date: March 3, 2021
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consolidated statement of financial position
as at december 31, 2020
(Amounts in thousand)

consolidated statement of profit or loss
for the year ended december 31, 2020
Note

ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use asset
Intangible assets
Financial assets at amortised cost
Long-term loans and advances
Deferred tax asset

5
6
7
8
9
21

Current Assets
Stores, spares and loose tools
Stock-in-trade
Trade debts - considered good
Loans, advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables
Income tax payments less provision
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Current maturity of financial assets at amortised cost
Cash and bank balances

10
11
12
13
25
14
8
15

TOTAL ASSETS

2020

Rupees

2019

37,614,314
2,305,604
101,971
4,660,833
29,286
44,712,008

31,433,441
2,747,801
78,966
5,421,150
72,078
115,823
39,869,259

1,784,734
6,194,509
586,212
315,244
159,583
13,431,523
964,120
945,728
24,381,653

1,678,013
4,350,059
469,613
879,080
85,522
9,391,057
4,557
792,057
17,649,958

69,093,661

57,519,217

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Ordinary share capital
Preference shares
Share premium
Unappropriated profits

16
17

Non-Current Liabilities
Long-term borrowings
Lease liabilities
Provisions
Deferred tax liability

18
19
20
21

Current Liabilities
Current portion of long term borrowings
Current portion of lease liabilities
Provisions
Service benefit obligations
Short-term borrowings
Trade and other payables
Unclaimed dividend
Derivative financial instruments
Accrued interest / mark-up

18
19
20
22
23
24
26

Contingencies and Commitments

(Amounts in thousand except for earnings per share)

Note

2020

Rupees

2019

Net revenue

28

35,331,398

37,836,632

Cost of sales

29

(24,382,129)

(29,730,593)

10,949,269

8,106,039

Gross profit
Distribution and marketing expenses

30

(294,393)

(396,145)

Administrative expenses

31

(550,307)

(565,866)

Other expenses

32

(859,300)

(1,241,226)

Other income

33

1,179,635

930,269

10,424,904

6,833,071

(2,191,135)

(1,793,776)

8,233,769

5,039,295

(2,503,533)

(1,343,258)

5,730,236

3,696,037

Operating profit

9,089,233
3,000,000
3,874,953
10,161,945
26,126,131

9,089,233
3,874,953
4,811,970
17,776,156

19,790,152
3,614,312
2,991,392
1,183,219
27,579,075

19,388,880
4,543,830
23,932,710

Taxation

Earnings per share - basic

36

6.30

4.07

1,836,333
1,080,561
2,456,263
79,539
9,482,498
28,149
425,112
15,388,455
42,967,530

987,487
5,657,765
61,049
2,158,836
6,547,455
31,333
154
366,272
15,810,351
39,743,061

Earnings per share - diluted

36

6.23

4.07

69,093,661

57,519,217

Finance costs

34

Profit for the year before taxation
35

Profit for the year after taxation

The annexed notes 1 to 50 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

27

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
The annexed notes 1 to 50 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Jahangir Piracha
Chief Executive
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Syed Abbas Raza

Chief Financial Officer

Feroz Rizvi

Director

Jahangir Piracha
Chief Executive

Syed Abbas Raza

Chief Financial Officer

Feroz Rizvi

Director
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consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
for the year ended december 31, 2020

consolidated statement of changes in equity
for the year ended december 31, 2020

(Amounts in thousand)

(Amounts in thousand)
2020

Profit for the year after taxation

Rupees

5,730,236

Other comprehensive income

-

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND
PAID-UP CAPITAL

2019

Ordinary
share capital

3,696,037

5,730,236

3,696,037

Share
premium

Unappropriated
profits

Total

Rupees

Balance as at January 1, 2019

Total comprehensive income for the year

Preference
capital

RESERVES
CAPITAL
REVENUE

Effect of change in accounting policy net of deferred tax

9,089,233

-

3,874,953

3,831,998

16,796,184

-

-

-

(1,898,034)

(1,898,034)

-

-

-

3,696,037
3,696,037

3,696,037
3,696,037

Final dividend for the year ended
December 31, 2018 - Re. 0.30 per share

-

-

-

(272,677)

(272,677)

Interim dividend for the year ended
December 31, 2019 - Re. 0.60 per share

-

-

-

(545,354)

(545,354)

-

-

-

(818,031)

(818,031)

4,811,970

17,776,156

Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year

The annexed notes 1 to 50 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Transactions with owners

Balance as at December 31, 2019

9,089,233

-

3,874,953

Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year

-

-

-

5,730,236

5,730,236

Other comprehensive income for the year

-

-

-

5,730,236

5,730,236

Final dividend for the year ended
December 31, 2019 - Re. 0.20 per share

-

-

-

(181,785)

(181,785)

Preference shares issuance - note 17

-

3,000,000

-

Shares isuance cost

-

-

-

(198,476)

(198,476)

-

3,000,000

-

(380,261)

2,619,739

10,161,945

26,126,131

Transactions with owners

Balance as at December 31, 2020

9,089,233

3,000,000

3,874,953

-

3,000,000

The annexed notes 1 to 50 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Jahangir Piracha
Chief Executive
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Chief Financial Officer

Feroz Rizvi

Director

Jahangir Piracha
Chief Executive

Syed Abbas Raza

Chief Financial Officer

Feroz Rizvi

Director
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consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year ended december 31, 2020

notes to and forming part of the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended december 31, 2020
Note

(Amounts in thousand)

2020

Rupees

2019

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash generated from operations
Long-term loans and advances
Retirement benefits paid
Income tax paid

39

Net cash generated from operating activities

12,462,697
42,792
(34,528)
(1,278,549)

9,070,299
12,387
(45,428)
(1,280,480)

11,192,412

7,756,778

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of:
- property, plant and equipment
- intangible assets
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Investment in Term Deposit Receipt
Income on short-term investments and bank deposits

(7,150,392)
(167,922)
(6,000)
1,071,770

(12,847,615)
(266,425)
2,809
(5,421,150)
852,776

Net cash used in investing activities

(6,252,544)

(17,679,605)

(Amounts in thousand)
1.

LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS

1.1

The "Group" consists of Engro Polymer and Chemicals Limited and its wholly owned subsidiary companies, Think PVC
(Private) Limited, Engro Peroxide (Private) Limited and Engro Plasticizer (Private) Limited.
Engro Polymer and Chemicals Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan in 1997 under the repealed Companies
Ordinance, 1984 (now the Companies Act, 2017). The Company is listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange.

1.2

The Company is a subsidiary of Engro Corporation Limited (the Holding Company) which is a subsidiary of Dawood
Hercules Corporation Limited (the Ultimate Parent Company). The Companys principal activity is to manufacture, market
and sell Poly Vinyl Chloride (PVC), Vinyl Chloride Monomer (VCM), Caustic soda and other related chemicals. The
Company is also engaged in the supply of surplus power generated from its power plants to Engro Fertilizers Limited
(a related party).

1.3

These financial statements denote the consolidated financial statements of the Company. The standalone financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries have been presented separately.

1.4

The geographical location and addresses of all business units of the Company are as follows:

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from long-term borrowings - net of transaction costs
Repayments of long-term borrowings
Issuance of preference shares
Shares issuance cost paid
Proceeds from loan under Diminishing Musharaka Agreement
Finance cost paid
Rentals paid during the year
Dividend payment

1,924,867
3,000,000
(198,476)
94,266
(1,891,139)
(1,337,444)
(184,969)

19,366,880
(7,500,000)
-

Net cash generated from financing activities

1,407,105

8,787,051

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

6,346,973

(1,135,776)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

8,024,278

9,160,054

14,371,251

8,024,278

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

40

(998,525)
(1,241,425)
(839,879)
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Syed Abbas Raza

Chief Financial Officer

Feroz Rizvi

Geographical location

Head office

12th Floor, Ocean Tower, G-3, Block 9, Clifton, Khayaban -e- Iqbal, Karachi

Manufacturing plant

EZ/I/P-II-I Eastern Zone, Port Bin Qasim Industrial Area, Karachi, Pakistan

Regional sales unit

9th Floor, 301 - R Hally Tower, Phase II, DHA, Lahore

1.5

These significant events have taken place during the year :

1.5.1

During the year, major turnaround maintenance was planned resulting in closure of plant. Further, on March 6, 2020,
the Company's management reported an isolated incident of gas leak occurred at the Engro Polymer & Chemicals Plant,
Port Qasim happened on March 6, 2020, through Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX). On March 9, 2020, the Company's
management reported through PSX that a notice under Section 21(2) of Sindh Environmental Protection Act, 2014 was
received from the Environmental Protection Agency of Government of Sindh directing the Company to stop all production
activities at the plant and fixed a hearing on March 10, 2020. On March 16, 2020, the Company's management reported
through PSX the resumption of production activities in its plant. Due to the incident the production facilities of the Company
were closed from March 9, 2020 to March 16, 2020.

1.5.2

On March 31, 2020, the Company's management reported a foreseeable delay in the Liner Alkyl Benzene Sulphonic
Acid (LABSA) and Hydrogen Peroxide (H2O2) project, through PSX, due to restrictions on mobilization of local and
overseas resources, on account of COVID-19 in Pakistan. However, from October 15, 2020 the Company has resumed
the work of H2O2 project.

1.5.3

During the year prices of basic raw materials and finished goods of the Company were low due to sharp decline in global
crude prices mainly due to COVID-19 pandemic. However due to supply shortage for various other reasons the prices
of finished goods recovered rapidly as compared to raw materials at the end of the year.

The annexed notes 1 to 50 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Jahangir Piracha
Chief Executive

Business unit

Director
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(Amounts in thousand)
2.

DETAILS OF INVESTMENTS
Details of investments held by the Company in its subsidiaries are as follows:

- Think PVC (Private) Limited - note 2.1
- Engro Peroxide (Private) Limited - note 2.2
- Engro Plasticizer (Private) Limited - note 2.3
2.1

2.2

(Amounts in thousand)

Percentage of shareholding
2020
2019
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%

Think PVC (Private) Limited was incorporated in Pakistan in November 6, 1999, under the repealed Companies Ordinance,
1984 (now the Companies Act, 2017) as a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. The principal activity of Think PVC
(Private) Limited is to purchase, market and sell Poly Vinyl Chloride (PVC), PVC compounds, Caustic soda and other
related chemicals and to develop market for PVC downstream products. During the year, the Company is still in the
process to set-up its first PVC Products Showroom, a pilot project of downstream marketing which will commence from
the end of first quarter of 2021.
Engro Peroxide (Private) Limited was incorporated in Pakistan on July 22, 2019 under the Act as a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company. The main objective of Engro Peroxide (Private) Limited is to manufacture and market Hydrogen
Peroxide and related chemicals. On March 31, 2020, EPCL's management reported a foreseeable delay in the Hydrogen
Peroxide project, through Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX), due to restrictions on mobilization of local and overseas
resourcres. However, from October 15, 2020, the Company has resumed work and now its completion is expected at
the end of year 2022.

2.3

Engro Plasticizer (Private) Limited was incorporated in Pakistan on July 22, 2019 under the Act as a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company. The main objective of Engro Plasticizer (Private) Limited is to manufacture and market
Chlorinated Paraffin Wax and other related chemicals.

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all years presented.

3.1

Basis of preparation

3.1.1

Accounting convention
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention unless otherwise
mentioned in accounting policies stated herein.

3.1.2

Statement of compliance

3.1.2.1 These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards
as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:
-

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB)
as notified under the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act); and

-

Provision of and directives issued under the Act.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Act differ from the IFRSs, the provisions of and directives issued
under the Act have been followed.
3.1.3

Critical accounting estimates and judgements
The preparation of these consolidated financial statements in conformity with the above requirements requires the use
of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires the management to exercise its judgment in the process of
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applying the Groups accounting policies. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. The accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. Estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are as follows:
3.1.3.1 Useful lives, depreciation / amortisation methods and residual values of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets
The Group reviews appropriateness of the useful lives and residual values, where applicable, used in the calculation of
depreciation / amortisation of operating fixed assets and intangible assets on an annual basis. Further, where applicable,
an estimate of recoverable amount of assets is made for possible impairment on an annual basis.
3.1.3.2 Provisoin for slow-moving stores and spares
The group regurlarly reviewes the provision for slow moving stores and spares which have no movement for at least
three years and the quaintity available in excess to minimum stock level, thereby ensuring that items meeting the criteria
are provided for.
3.1.3.3 Provisoin for stock-in-trade
The Group regularly reviews the net realizable value of stock-in-trade to assess any diminution in the respective carrying
values. Net realisable value is determined with reference to estimated selling price less estimated expenditure to make
the sales.
3.1.3.4 Impairment of financial assets
The amount of Expected Credit Losses (ECL) is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition of the respective financial assets.
3.1.3.5 Current income taxes
In making the estimates for current income taxes payable by the Group, the management looks at the applicable law
and the decisions of appellate authorities on certain issues in the past. Where the final tax outcome is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax provision in the period in which such
final outcome is determined.
3.1.3.6 Deferred taxation
In assessing the recognition of the deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is probable that some portion
or all of the deferred tax assets will be realised. The ultimate realisation of the deferred tax assets is dependent upon
the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which those temporary differences, become deductible.
Management considers the scheduled reversal of deferred applies tax liabilities, projects future taxable income and tax
planning strategies in making this assessment. The amount of deferred tax assets considered realisable, however, could
change in the near term if future estimates of projected taxable income during the carry forward period are revised.
3.1.3.7 Lease accounting
The implementation process to identify and process all relevant data associated with the leases is complex and the
measurement of the right-of-use asset and lease liability is based on assumptions such as discount rates and the lease
terms, including termination and renewal options. Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options
are also included in the measurement of the liability. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally the case for leases in the Company, the
Companys incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate the Company would have to pay to borrow the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar
terms, security and conditions.
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(Amounts in thousand)

(Amounts in thousand)

3.1.3.8 Contingencies and provisions

3.2

Items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any, except
capital work-in-progress. Cost in relation to fixed assets signifies historical cost. Historical cost includes expenditure that
is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Capital work-in-progress is stated at historical cost less impairment,
if any.

Significant estimates and judgements are being used by the management in accounting for contingencies and provisions
relating to legal and taxation matters being contested at various forums based on applicable laws and the decisions /
judgements.
3.1.4

Functional and presentation currency

Depreciation on assets is charged to income using the straight line method to allocate their cost less the residual values
over their estimated useful lives at rates given in note 5. Depreciation on additions is charged from the month in which
the asset is available for use and no depreciation is charged in the month of disposal.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees which is the Group's functional currency.
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rate prevailing at the date
of the transaction. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
3.1.5

Subsequent costs are included in the assets carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are charged to income during the year in which
these are incurred.

Initial application of a standard, amendment or an interpretation to existing standards

Assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date. An assets
carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the assets carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount and the resulting impairment loss is recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss.
The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less expected selling expenses and value in use. An impairment loss
recognised in prior periods for an asset shall be reversed if, and only if, there has been a change in the estimates used
to determine the assets recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. If this is the case, the
carrying amount of the asset shall be increased to its recoverable amount. The increased carrying amount of an asset
attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss shall not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
(net of depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.

3.1.5.1 Amendments to accounting and reporting standards that became effective during the year
There are certain amendments to published standards that are effective for the first time for the year ended December
31, 2020, however, these are considered not to have a significant impact on the Group's financial reporting and operations
and therefore have not been presented here.
3.1.5.2 Amendments to accounting and reporting standards that are not yet effective and have not been early adopted
by the Company
-

Amendment to IFRS 16 'Leases' (for annual reporting periods beginning on or after June 1, 2020)
On May 28, 2020, the IASB published an amendment to IFRS 16 that provides an optional practical expedient for
lessees from assessing whether a rent concession related to COVID-19 is a lease modification. Lessees can elect
to account for such rent concessions in the same way as they would if they were not lease modifications. In many
cases, this will result in accounting for the concession as variable lease payments in the period(s) in which the event
or condition that triggers the reduced payment occurs. The amendment is expected not to have a significant impact
on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

-

Property, plant and equipment

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an asset represented by the difference between the sale proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset is recognised as an income or expense in the period of disposal or retirement.
3.3

Capital spares
Spare parts and servicing equipment are classified as property, plant and equipment rather than stores, spares and loose
tools when they meet the definition of property, plant and equipment. Upon utilisation, the capital spares and servicing
equipment are depreciated over their useful life, or the remaining life of principal asset, whichever is lower.

Amendment to IAS 1 'Presentation of financial statements' (for annual reporting periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2022)
The amendment clarifies that liabilities are classified as either current or non-current, depending on the rights that
exist at the end of the reporting period. Classification is unaffected by the expectations of the entity or events after
the reporting date. The amendment also clarifies what IAS 1 means when it refers to the settlement of a liability.
The amendment is expected not to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

There are other standards and amendments to published standards that are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group. These amendments are expected not to have a significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group in the period of initial recognition.
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3.4

Right-of-use asset and related lease liability

3.6

Financial instrument

The Group has entered into various rental arrangements, generally ranging in between 5 to 10 years. At inception of a
contract, the Group assesses whether a contract is or contains, a lease based on whether the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. Lease terms are negotiated
on an individual basis and contains a wide range of different terms and conditions.

3.6.1

Financial assets

The lease liabilities are initially measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments at the commencement
date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, or if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company's
incremental borrowing rate.
Lease payments include fixed payments, variable lease payments that are based on an index or a rate, amounts expected
to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees, the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is
reasonably certain to exercise that option, payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the
lessee exercising that option, less any lease incentives receivable. The extension and termination options are incorporated
in determination of lease term only when the Group is reasonably certain to exercise these options.
The lease liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. They are
remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in fixed lease payments or an index
or rate, change in the Group's estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if
the Group changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option. The corresponding
adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the respective right-of-use asset, or is recorded in consolidated statement
of profit or loss if the carrying amount of that right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.
Right-of-use assets are initially measured based on the initial amount of the lease liabilities adjusted for any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any
lease incentive received. The right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight line method over the lease term as this
method most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits. The carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset is reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the corresponding
lease liability.
3.5

Intangible assets - computer software and applications
Costs associated with developing and maintaining computer software programmes are recognised as an expense as
incurred. Costs that are directly attributable to identifiable software and have probable economic benefits exceeding one
year, are recognised as an intangible asset. Direct costs include the purchase cost of software and related overhead
cost.
Expenditure, which enhances or extends the performance of computer software beyond its original specification and
useful life is recognised as a capital improvement and added to the original cost of the software.
Computer software cost treated as intangible assets are amortised from the date the software is available for use on
straight-line basis over a period of 5 to 10 years. The carrying amount of the intangible assets is reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the assets carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount and is charged
in the statement of profit or loss. Reversal of impairment losses are also recognised in conoslidated statement of profit
or loss, however, is restricted to the original cost of the asset.
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Classification, initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition and subsequently measured at amortised cost, Fair Value through
Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) or Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVPL). The management determines the
classification of financial assets at initial recognition based on the Groups business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:
a)

the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

b)

the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if both of the following conditions are
met:
a)

the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets; and

b)

the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A financial asset is measured at fair value through profit or loss if it is not measured at amortised cost or at fair value
through other comprehensive income.
All financial assets are recognised at the time when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the settlement-date - the date on which
the asset is delivered to or by an entity. Financial assets at amortised cost are initially recognised at fair value and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment
losses, if any. Interest income and impairment losses are recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss. Financial
assets carried at FVOCI are initially and subsequently measured at fair value, with gains and losses arising from changes
in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income. Financial assets carried at FVPL are initially recorded at fair
value and transaction costs are expensed in the statement of profit or loss. Realised and unrealised gains and losses
arising from changes in the fair value of the financial assets and liabilities held at FVPL are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
Derecognition
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership. On derecognition of a
financial asset, in its entirety, the difference between the assets carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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Impairment of financial assets

(Amounts in thousand)
3.10

Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statement of cash flows include cash in hand and in transit, balance with
banks and other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less and short-term
finances. Short-term finances on the consolidated statement of financial position are shown as part of current liabilities.

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its debt instruments carried
at amortised cost and FVOCI. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk. For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach permitted by IFRS 9, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.
3.6.2

Financial liabilities
The Group recognises a financial liability in its consolidated statement of financial position when, and only when, it
becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
liability at its fair value minus, in the case of a financial liability not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial liability. Subsequently, financial liabilities are stated
at amortised cost.
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired. Where
an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in respective carrying amounts is recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

3.6.3

Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

3.11

Stores, spares and loose tools

3.12

Stock-in-trade
These are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost in relation to raw materials represents the weighted
average cost and in relation to finished goods and work-in-process represents weighted average cost comprising direct
materials, labour and related manufacturing overheads.
Cost of stock-in-transit represents the invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon till the reporting date.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional / contractual right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date.
3.13

The employees of the Group participate in a defined contributory gratuity fund (the Gratuity Fund) operated and managed
by Engro Corporation Limited - the Holding Company. As per the terms of the defined contribution plan, the Group
contributes to the Gratuity Fund at the rate of 8.33% of basic salary. Annual contribution by the Group is charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
3.13.2 Provident fund
The employees of the Group participate in defined contributory provident fund (the Provident Fund) operated and managed
by Engro Corporation Limited - the Holding Company. Equal monthly contributions at the rate of 10% of the basic salary
are made both by the Group and the employees to the Provident Fund. Annual contribution by the Group is charged to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
3.13.3 Other benefits - Service Incentive Plan
Provision is made under a service incentive plan for certain category of experienced employees to continue in the Groups
employment. The provision is made on the basis of managements estimates of incentives to be paid to employees on
fulfilment of criteria given in the incentive plan.
3.14
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Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method.
These are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within 12 months or less (or in the normal operating cycle of
the business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current.

Trade and other receivables
These are recognised initially at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs, if any and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using effective interest rate method less provision for impairment, if any. A provision for impairment is
established if there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able collect all amounts due according to the original
terms of receivable. The amount of provision is charged to consolidated statement of profit or loss. Trade debts and other
receivable considered irrecoverable are written-off.

Retirement and other service benefits

3.13.1 Gratuity fund

Net realisable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less cost of completion and
costs necessarily to be incurred in order to make the sales. Provision is made for slow moving stocks, where considered
necessary.
3.9

Borrowings
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, and are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

These are valued at weighted average cost except for items in transit which are stated at invoice value plus other charges
paid thereon till the reporting date. The management assess store items which have no movement for at least three
years and the quantity available is in excess to the minimum stock level. Provision is recognised for such items in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
3.8

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recognised at their face value. Incremental costs, if any, directly attributable
to the issue of new shares or options are recognised in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated statement of financial position
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle either on a
net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
3.7

Cash and cash equivalents

3.15

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, and
it is probable that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect
current best estimate.
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3.16

3.20

Taxation

3.16.1 Current
Provision for current taxation is based on the taxable income for the year, determined in accordance with the prevailing
law for taxation on income, using prevailing tax rates. The charge for current tax also includes tax credits and adjustments,
where considered necessary, for prior years determined during the year or otherwise considered necessary for such
years.

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance
of the operating segments, has been identified as the Board of Directors of the Company that makes strategic decisions.

3.21

3.16.2 Deferred
Deferred income tax is provided using the liability method on all temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits
can be utilised.

4.

Revenue recognition

Considering the circumstances, the management has assessed the accounting implications of these developments on
these consolidated financial statements, including but not limited to the following areas:

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which these are incurred except where such costs are
directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset, in which case, such costs are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Borrowing costs include exchange differences arising from foreign currency
borrowings to the extent these are regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs.

3.19

Earnings per share
i) Basic earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into
account the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential ordinary
shares and the weighted average number of additional ordinary shares that would have been outstanding assuming
the conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.
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-

expected credit losses under IFRS 9, 'Financial Instruments';

-

impairment of tangible and intangible assets under IAS 36, 'Impairment of non financial assets';

-

net realisable value of inventory under IAS 2, 'Inventories';

-

deferred tax asset in accordance with IAS 12, 'Income taxes';

-

provisions and contingent liabilities under IAS 37, including onerous contracts; and

-

going concern assumption used for the preparation of these consolidated financials statements.

According to the management's assessment, there is no significant accounting impact of the effects of the Virus on these
consolidated financial statements.

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the Group, (excluding any costs
of servicing equity other than ordinary shares) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during
the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary shares issued during the year and excluding treasury
shares.
ii) Diluted earnings per share

IMPACT OF COVID-19 ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
During the year, the World Health Organisation (WHO) declared COVID-19 (the Virus) a pandemic. The Virus has
impacted the global economy significantly. Due to the situation, as per the government directives there was a complete
lockdown for a period of approximately 1 month from March 23, 2020 and production facilities of the Company were
closed till the end of April 2020. Further, expansion projects were also impacted as some of the equipment deliveries
and project construction work was also suspended as a precautionary measure. With effect from May 2020, the Company
has resumed its operations with all precautionary measures to prevent the spread of the Virus in the light of the directives
issued by the relevant authorities.

The Group recognises revenue when the control of product is transferred to customers. The assessment of transfer of
control depends on the contractual terms, which is considered to be transferred either when the product is directly uplifted
by customer from the Group's premises or when it is delivered by the Group at customer premises.
3.18

Dividend and appropriation to reserves
Dividend and appropriation to reserves are recognised in the consolidated financial statements in the period in which
these are approved.

Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date
and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the consolidated statement of profit or loss except to the extent that it
relates to the items recognised directly in equity, in which case it is recognised in equity.
3.17

Segment reporting

2020
5.

Rupees

2019

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Operating assets, at net book value - note 5.1
Capital work-in-progress - note 5.4
Capital spares

19,286,318
18,264,204
63,792
37,614,314

18,305,349
13,064,300
63,792
31,433,441
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(Amounts in thousand)

(Amounts in thousand)
5.1

5.2

Operating Assets
Leasehold Building on
land
leasehold land
(note5.2)
(note 5.2)

Plant and
machinery

Pipelines
Water

VCM

Ethylene

EDC

Gas

Furniture,
fixtures and
equipment

Vehicles

Total

Description of assets

Rupees

As at January 1, 2019

The details of immovable fixed assets (i.e. land and buildings) are as follows:

Total area of

Address

land (square yards)

Cost
Accumulated depreciation

194,127
(52,686)

552,959
(169,358)

26,398,096
(10,701,284)

398,968
(245,573)

26,122
(25,021)

50,315
(21,866)

-

33,849
(18,242)

313,611
(211,409)

95,636
(35,340)

28,063,683
(11,480,779)

Net book value

141,441

383,601

15,696,812

153,395

1,101

28,449

-

15,607

102,202

60,296

16,582,904

- Leasehold land

EZ/I/P-II-I Eastern Zone, Bin Qasim, Karachi

590,114

Opening net book value

141,441

383,601

15,696,812

153,395

1,101

28,449

-

15,607

102,202

60,296

16,582,904

- Production facilities

EZ/I/P-II-I Eastern Zone, Bin Qasim, Karachi

15,794

Additions - note 5.4

939,528

1,980

1,627,267

-

-

-

98,288

-

82,618

3,571

2,753,252

- Storage facilities

EZ/I/P-II-I Eastern Zone, Bin Qasim, Karachi

10,705

- Administration facilities

EZ/I/P-II-I Eastern Zone, Bin Qasim, Karachi

2,908

Year ended December 31, 2019

Disposal
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

-

(3,379)
596
(2,783)

-

-

-

-

-

-

(3,820)
3,645
(175)

(2,892)
2,243
(649)

(10,091)
6,484
(3,607)

(32,931)

(29,702)

(898,297)

(12,898)

(8)

(2,190)

(253)

(1,472)

(37,064)

(12,385)

(1,027,200)

1,048,038

353,096

16,425,782

140,497

1,093

26,259

98,035

14,135

147,581

50,833

18,305,349

Cost
Accumulated depreciation

1,133,655
(85,617)

551,560
(198,464)

28,025,363
(11,599,581)

398,968
(258,471)

26,122
(25,029)

50,315
(24,056)

98,288
(253)

33,849
(19,714)

392,409
(244,828)

96,315
(45,482)

30,806,844
(12,501,495)

Net book value

1,048,038

353,096

16,425,782

140,497

1,093

26,259

98,035

14,135

147,581

50,833

18,305,349

1,048,038

353,096

16,425,782

140,497

1,093

26,259

98,035

14,135

147,581

50,833

18,305,349

18,524

56,538

2,050,956

-

-

-

1,999

-

145,885

4,989

2,278,891

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(107,291)
101,532
(5,759)

(136)
133
(3)

(107,427)
101,665
(5,762)

(38,972)

(23,725)

(1,133,030)

(12,866)

(345)

(1,767)

(3,047)

(1,471)

(66,994)

(9,943)

(1,292,160)

1,027,590

385,909

17,343,708

127,631

748

24,492

96,987

12,664

220,713

45,876

19,286,318

Cost
Accumulated depreciation

1,152,179
(124,589)

608,098
(222,189)

30,076,319
(12,732,611)

398,968
(271,337)

26,122
(25,374)

50,315
(25,823)

100,287
(3,300)

33,849
(21,185)

431,003
(210,290)

101,168
(55,292)

32,978,308
(13,691,990)

Net book value

1,027,590

385,909

17,343,708

127,631

748

24,492

96,987

12,664

220,713

45,876

19,286,318

2 to 2.14

2.5 to 10

2.5 to 25

5

5

5

3

5

5 to 33

5 to 25

Depreciation charge - note 5.3
Net book value
As at January 1, 2020

2020
5.3

Rupees

2019

Depreciation charge has been allocated as follows:
Cost of sales - note 29
Distribution and marketing expenses - note 30
Administrative expenses - note 31

1,262,101
7,054
23,005

1,003,842
5,750
17,608

1,292,160

1,027,200

Year ended December 31, 2020
Opening net book value
Additions - note 5.4
Disposals / write-off
Cost
Accumulated depreciation
Depreciation charge - notes 5.3
Net book value
As at December 31, 2020

Annual rate of depreciation (%)
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(Amounts in thousand)

(Amounts in thousand)
6.

5.4

Capital work-in-prgress

Leasehold
land

Year ended December 31, 2019
Balance as at January 1, 2019
Additions during the year
Transferred to:
- Operating assets - note 5.1
- Intangible assets - note 7
Balance as at December 31, 2019
Year ended December 31, 2020
Balance as at January 1, 2020
Additions during the year
- notes 5.4.1 and 5.4.2
Borrowing costs capitalized during the year
Write-off during the year - note 29
Transferred to:
- Operating assets - note 5.1
- Intangible assets - note 7
Balance as at December 31, 2020
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RIGHT-OF-USE ASSET

Building on
leasehold
land

Plant and
machinery and
pipelines

Furniture,
fixtures and
equipments
Rupees

Software

Advances for
vehicles

Storage
tanks at
Engro Vopak
Terminal
Limited

Total

Year ended December 31, 2019
Balance as at January 1, 2019
Addition during the year
Depreciation charge
during the year - note 6.2

236,695

2,115

2,406,094

11,803

92,699

1,661

2,751,067

734,833

20,359

11,987,768

101,084

268,086

1,910

13,114,040

(939,528)
-

(1,980)
-

(1,726,447)
-

(81,726)
-

(47,555)

(3,571)
-

(2,753,252)
(47,555)

Balance as at December 31, 2019

32,000

20,494

12,667,415

31,161

313,230

13,064,300

Year ended December 31, 2020

-

Balance as at January 1, 2020
32,000

20,494

12,667,415

31,161

313,230

-

13,064,300

-

82,005
-

6,789,085
214,679
(6,000)

170,380
-

167,922
-

108,922
-

7,318,314
214,679
(6,000)

-

(75,062)
-

(2,052,955)
-

(145,885)
-

(48,198)

(4,989)
-

(2,278,891)
(48,198)

27,437

17,612,224

55,656

432,954

103,933

18,264,204

Addition during the year - note 6.1
Depreciation charge
during the year - note 6.2
Balance as at December 31, 2020

32,000

5.4.1

As of December 31, 2020, major engineering and installation in respect of plant and machinery and pipelines for PVCIII and VCM debottlenecking have been completed and will be capitalised in next financial year after completion of testing
phase.

5.4.2

Include costs incurred in respect of ONE SAP project initiated by the Holding Company, which is in progress at the year
end date.

Building

Total

Vehicles

Rupees

2,778,739
318,319

66,704
-

-

2,845,443
318,319

(399,190)

(16,771)

-

(415,961)

2,697,868

49,933

-

2,747,801

2,697,868

49,933

-

2,747,801

-

-

5,849

5,849

(431,022)

(16,771)

(253)

(448,046)

2,266,846

33,162

5,596

2,305,604

6.1

During the year, the Company has entered into Diminishing Musharaka agreement, as disclosed in note 18.5.

6.2

Depreciation charge has been allocated as follows:
Cost of sales - note 29
Administrative expenses - note 31

2020

Rupees

431,022
17,024
448,046

2019
399,190
16,771
415,961
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(Amounts in thousand)

(Amounts in thousand)
2020

7.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS computer software and applications

Rupees

2019

2020
9.1

Net carrying value
Balance as at beginning of the year
Add: Additions at cost - note 5.4
Less: Amortisation charge for the year - notes 29 and 31

78,966
48,198
(25,193)

106,773
47,555
(75,362)

Balance as at the end of the year

101,971

78,966

316,240
(214,269)

268,042
(189,076)

101,971

78,966

Gross carrying value
Cost at the beginning of the year
Less: Accumulated amortisation
Net book value
7.1

The cost is being amortised over a period of 5 to 10 years.

8.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED COST
Investment in Term Deposit Receipts - note 8.1
Less: current maturity shown under current assets

8.1

5,624,953

5,425,707

(964,120)

(4,557)

4,660,833

5,421,150

These denote term deposits receipts aggregating to USD 35 million maintained with Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan Limited.
These carry profit at the rate of six months Libor + 0.89% per annum and are due to mature in six equal semi-annual
installments of USD 5.833 million starting from July 15, 2021 and ending on January 15, 2024.
Rupees

Less: Current portion shown under
current assets - note 13

60,518

107,522

These include interest free loans and advances to executives for house rent, vehicles, home appliances and investments
given in accordance with the terms of employment. Loans for house rent are repayable in 12 to 18 equal monthly
installments and investment are repayable in lump sum amount after 36 months. Loans for home appliances are repayable
in 5 equal annual instalments. Advances for vehicles are charged to consolidated statement of profit or loss over a period
of 4 years.

9.3

The maximum aggregate amount due from the executives at the end of any month during the year was Rs. 111,585
(2019: Rs. 146,227). These are secured by way of promissory notes.

9.4

The maximum aggregate amount due from related parties at any time during the year with respect to month end balance
was Rs. 3,059 (2019: Rs. 4,898).

9.5

The carrying values of these financial assets are neither past due nor impaired. The credit quality of these financial
assets can be assessed with reference to no material defaults in recent history.

9.6

The Group does not have any loans or advances placed under any arrangements not permissible under Shariah.

2020
60,518

107,522

10.

Consumable stores and spares - notes 10.1 and 10.2
(31,232)

(35,444)

29,286

72,078

Rupees

2019

STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS
2,160,378

2,041,787

(375,644)
1,784,734

(363,774)
1,678,013

Less: Provision for slow moving stores and
spares - note 10.3
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125,871
67,375
(85,724)

2019

LONG-TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES- Considered good
Executives - notes 9.1 to 9.4

Balance at end of the year

107,522
7,723
(54,727)

These include interest free loans to employees for home appliances and investments, given in accordance with the terms
of employment.

2020
9.

2019

Reconciliation of the carrying amount of loans and
advances to executives is as follows:
Balance at beginning of the year
Add: Disbursements
Less: Repayments / amortisations

9.2

Rupees

10.1

This includes goods in transit amounting to Rs. 48,897 (2019: Rs. 118,506).

10.2

During the year, the Group has written off stores and spares amounting to Rs. 57,302 (2019: Nil).
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(Amounts in thousand)

(Amounts in thousand)
2020

10.3

Balance at end of the year

363,774
20,571

11.3

(8,701)
375,644

Engro Powergen Thar
(Private) Limited

363,774

2,608,770
25,120

763,425

1,716,169

6,194,509

4,350,059

2020

2020

2020

-

-

-

-

-

599

15,217

6,120

-

-

56

56

15,273

6,176

15,217

6,719

-

-

56

56

15,273

6,775

12.1.1 The maximum aggregate amount due from the related parties at the end of any month during the year was:
2020

12.2

These debts are secured by way of bank guarantees and letters of credit from customers.

12.3

Includes outstanding trade debts against export sales amounting to Rs. 52,326 (2019: Nil).

1,268,921

1,523,172

12.4

During the year, the Group has written off trade debt balance of Rs. 331 (2019: Nil).
2020

12.5

TRADE DEBTS - Considered good
15,273

6,775

443,188
127,751

308,697
154,141

Considered doubtful - note 12.5

570,939
-

462,838
7,309

Less: Provision for doubtful debts - note 12.5

586,212
-

476,922
7,309

586,212

469,613

Rupees

16,156
1,494
17,650

1,284,031
9,306
147,301
3,486
79,048

2019

2019

599

659,703
13,262
578,437
192
17,327

Rupees

Total

2019

- Engro Fertilizers Limited
- Engro Powergen Thar (Private) Limited

During the year, raw materials and finished goods amounting to Rs. 99,704 (2019: Nil) were written off.

Secured - notes 12.2 and 12.3
Unsecured - note 12.4

More than 6 months

2019

-

This includes goods in transit amounting to Rs. 1,979,023 (2019: Rs. 679,668).

Related parties (unsecured) - note 12.1
Others
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-

5,402,730
28,354

2 to 6 months

2019

Rupees

Engro Fertilizers
Limited

2020
12.

324,130
39,644

This includes stocks held at storage facilities
of the following parties:
- Engro Vopak Terminal Limited, a related party
- Al-Noor Petroleum (Private) Limited
- Al-Rahim Trading Company (Private) Limited
- Al-Hamd Traders
- Pakistan House International Limited

Due from related parties comprise of:

2020

STOCK-IN-TRADE
Raw and packing materials - notes 11.1 to 11.3
Work-in-process
Finished goods - own manufactured product
and trading products - notes 11.1 and 11.3

11.2

12.1

Upto 1 month

Less: Write-off during the year

11.1

2019

The movement in the provision for slow moving stores
and spares is as follows:
Balance at beginning of the year
Add: Recognised during the year - note 29

11.

Rupees

Rupees

2019
22,556
698
23,254

2019

The movement in provision during the year
is as follows:
Balance at beginning of the year
Less: Reversal of provision during the year - note 30
Less: Write-off during the year
Balance at end of the year

7,309
(7,309)
-

9,010
(1,701)
7,309
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(Amounts in thousand)

(Amounts in thousand)
2020

13.

LOANS, ADVANCES, DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS
AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Rupees

2019

13.2

2020

Considered good
Current portion of long term-loans and
advances to executives- note 9
Advances to employees - note 13.1
Advances to suppliers and others
Deposits
Prepayments
Receivable from Government of Pakistan
- Sales tax and Federal excise duty refundable
- Octroi / duty claims
Due from related parties (unsecured) - note 13.2
Engro Energy Limited
Sindh Engro Coal Mining Company Limited
FrieslandCampina Engro Pakistan Limited
Engro Corporation Limited
Engro Fertilizers Limited
Engro Powergen Qadirpur Limited
Other receivables

31,232
59,021
114,870
49,268

35,444
525
10,464
221,863
51,487

60,048
152
60,200

500,978
152
501,130

505
505

1,531
53
5
23,725
2,119
9
27,442

148

30,725

315,244

879,080

Considered doubtful
Custom duty claims refundable - note 13.3
Less: Provision for impairment - notes 13.3 and 13.5
Special Excise Duty (SED) refundable - note 13.4
Less: Provision for impairment - notes 13.4 and 13.5

13.1
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Maximum aggregate amount due from related parties at any time during the year with respect to month end balance is
as follows:

18,043
(18,043)
36,687
(36,687)
315,244

18,043
(18,043)
36,687
(36,687)
879,080

Engro Energy Limited
Sindh Engro Coal Mining Company Limited
FrieslandCampina Engro Pakistan Limited
Engro Corporation Limited
Engro Fertilizers Limited
Engro Powergen Qadirpur Limited

13.3

Rupees

2019

1,531
53
5
25,450
2,150
9

1,982
53
5
23,725
141,763
9

29,198

167,537

The Customs Appellate Tribunal, Karachi Bench, through its order dated October 31, 2011, disposed of the Company's
appeal filed on April 11, 2008 against the order of Collector of Customs, Port Muhammad Bin Qasim, Karachi, for the
refund of custom duty paid during the period June 16, 2006 to July 24, 2006 on imports of Vinyl Chloride Monomer
(VCM). The Tribunal was informed that all the aforementioned VCM consignments were released after the issuance of
SRO 565(1) / 2006 dated June 6, 2006 and the benefit of five percent duty reduction was also passed onto the customers.
However, as the price of the Companys product was increased which is linked with international market, the Tribunal
inadvertently presumed that the said benefit had not been transferred to the customers and passed an order against
the Company.
The Company has filed an appeal with the High Court of Sindh against the aforesaid order of the Tribunal. However,
the Company is maintaining full provision against the aforementioned custom duty refundable till such time that all
available legal forums are exhausted.

13.4

During 2007, Special Excise Duty (SED) amounting to Rs. 91,616 was paid on import of certain fixed assets. Out of the
total SED paid, an amount of Rs. 54,299 was adjusted through input claim in sales tax returns. Subsequently, the
remaining amount of Rs. 36,687 could not be adjusted as the said duty was disallowed as adjustment from output tax
under section 7 of Sales Tax Act, 1990. Therefore, the Company has fully provided the said amount. However, the
Company is pursuing recovery of the remaining amount from the tax authorities based on the view that the SED can
be recovered as it was paid prior to the change in the Sales Tax Act.

13.5

As at December 31, 2020, receivables aggregating to Rs. 54,730 (2019: Rs. 54,730) were deemed to be impaired and
have been provided for in full. The remaining balances of loans, deposits, due from related parties and other receivables
are neither past due nor impaired.

The advances given to the parties are in accordance with the terms of employment. Maximum aggregate amount due
from related parties at any time during the year with respect to month end balance was Rs. 3,018 (2019: Rs. 4,708).
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(Amounts in thousand)

(Amounts in thousand)
2020

14.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
Treasury bills - note 14.1
Pakistan Investment Bond - note 14.2
Term deposit - note 14.3

2,024,761
11,400,762
6,000

7,695,569
1,695,488
-

13,431,523

9,391,057

14.1

These carry mark-up at rates ranging between 6.9% to 7.2% per annum (2019: 12.74% to 13.50% per annum) and have
been sold till January 14, 2021.

14.2

These carry mark-up at rates ranging between 7.13% to 7.57% per annum (2019: 13.36% per annum) and have been
sold till January 13, 2021.

14.3

This carries mark-up at rates ranging between 6.45% per annum (2019: Nil) and has maturity on June 24, 2021.

15.

16.

2020

ORDINARY SHARE CAPITAL

Rupees

2019

Authorized capital

2020

Rupees

1,250,000,000 (2019: 1,250,000,000) ordinary shares
of Rs. 10 each

12,500,000

12,500,000

9,089,233

9,089,233

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital
908,923,333 (2019: 908,923,333) ordinary shares
of Rs. 10 each, fully paid in cash - notes 16.1 and 16.2
16.1

As at December 31, 2019, Engro Corporation Limited (the Holding Company) and Mitsubishi Corporation (an associated
company) held 510,733,450 and 100,053,562 (2019: 510,733,450 and 100,053,562) ordinary shares of Rs.10 each
denoting 56.19% (2019: 56.19%) and 11.01% (2019: 11.01%) of the share capital of the Company.

16.2

There is a shareholders' agreement between Engro Corporation Limited (ECL) and Mitsubishi Corporation (MC) which
includes provisions in respect of board selection, voting rights, rights of first refusal, etc.

2019
2020

CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash in hand
Cash at bank - note 15.1
- in current accounts
- in saving accounts - note 15.2

271

Rupees

2019

817

647

309,969
634,942

330,334
461,076

944,911

791,410

945,728

792,057

15.1

These include Rs. 231,469 (2019: Rs. 215,905) held in foreign currency bank accounts.

15.2

These carry mark-up at rates ranging between 2.32% to 11.25% per annum (2019: 5.01% to 11.25% per annum).

17.

PREFERENCE SHARES

Rupees

2019

Authorized capital
400,000,000 (2019: 400,000,000) preference shares
of Rs. 10 each

4,000,000

4,000,000

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital
300,000,000 (2019: Nil) preference shares
of Rs. 10 each, fully paid in cash - notes 17.1
17.1

3,000,000

-

During the year, the Company has issued perpetual, cumulative, callable and convertible listed preference shares of
Rs. 3,000,000 by way of pre-IPO placements and public offering at a price of Rs. 10 per share in cash, carrying markup
of 6 months KIBOR + 3.5% and the payment of the same shall be at the discretion of Board of Directors. The objective
of the preference share issuance is to finance PVC-III expansion and VCM debottlenecking projects. The Company will
have an option to call and redeem in full or in part after the expiry of twelve months from the issue date. The preference
shares may be convertible into ordinary shares of the Company at the option of the preference shares holder after the
expiry of eighty months from December 31, 2020 based on 1:1 ratio. These shares were listed on December 31, 2020.
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(Amounts in thousand)

(Amounts in thousand)
18.

LONG-TERM BORROWINGS
Title

Sukuks - note 18.1
Loan from International Finance Corporation
(IFC) - note 18.2
Bilateral Loan - note 18.3
Islamic Long term financing facility (ILTFF)
- note 18.4
Loan under diminishing musharka agreement
- note 18.5

Mark-up rate
per annum

Installments
Number
Commencing

December 31,
2020

5 half yearly

July 10, 2024

8,645,597

8,623,541

6 months LIBOR + 3.25%
6 months KIBOR + 0%

6 half yearly
6 half yearly

July 15, 2021
July 15, 2021

5,539,605
5,421,500

5,343,839
5,421,500

SBP rate + 1.2%

32 quarterly

December 14, 2022

1,925,517

-

Monthly

February 1, 2021

94,266

-

6 months KIBOR + 0.8%

21,626,485
(932,750)
(903,583)
(1,836,333)
19,790,152

18.2

Following are the changes in the long term borrowings (i.e. for which cash flows have been classified as financing
activities in the statement of cash flows):
2020

Rupees

2019

Balance as at January 1, 2020
Add: Loan received during the year
Add: Amortisation of transaction cost during the year
Add: Exchange loss for the year
Less: Loan repaid during the year

19,388,880
2,019,133
43,822
174,650
-

7,500,000
19,366,880
22,000
(7,500,000)

Balance as at December 31, 2020

21,626,485

19,388,880

19,388,880
19,388,880

18.7

The proceeds from the aforementioned loans are carried net of unamortised balance of transaction cost amounting to
Rs. 160,648 (2019: Rs. 204,470)

19.

LEASE LIABILITIES
These include lease liability outstanding under the storage arrangements with Engro Vopak Terminal Limited, a related
party amounted to Rs. 4,644,821 (2019: Rs. 5,468,167).

In 2019, the Company issued sukuk bonds of Rs. 8,750,000 to eligible institutional and other investors by way of private
placement. These are repayable over a period of 7.5 years in five equal annual installments of Rs. 1,750,000 each with
the first repayment commencing in July 2024. These are secured by way of hypothecation charge of present and future
fixed assets of the Company (excluding land and building) which shall rank pari passu with the charges created in favour
of the existing creditors.
In 2018, the Company had entered into a financing agreement with IFC for a total of US Dollars 35,000 the draw down
of which was been made in December 2019. The principal is repayable in six equal semi-annual installments commencing
from July 2021 and carries markup at the rate of six months LIBOR plus 3.25% payable semi annually.
The borrowing is by way of hypothecation charge of present and future fixed assets of the Company (excluding land
and building) which shall rank pari passu with the charges created in favour of the existing creditors. Further, prior to
Project Physical Completion Date and Financial Completion Date, dividends shall not exceed 20% and 80% respectively
of annual net income of the year to which the annual dividend relates."

18.3

18.6

Rupees

3 months KIBOR + 0.9%

Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities
- Loan from International Finance Corporation
- Bilateral Loan

18.1

December 31,
2019

In 2019, the Company entered into a musharaka agreement with Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan Limited (DIBPL). The
principal is repayable in six equal semi-annual installments commencing from July 2021 and carries a markup at a rate
of six months KIBOR plus 0%, payable semi annually.

2020
20.

Rupees

2019

PROVISIONS
Provision for gas development infrastructure
cess - note 20.1
Provision for gas price revision - note 20.2
Less: current portion of provision of GIDC
and gas price revision

4,930,263
517,392

5,140,373
517,392

5,447,655

5,657,765

(2,456,263)

(5,657,765)

2,991,392

-

The borrowing is secured by way of hypothecation charge of present and future fixed assets of the Company (except
land and building), ranking subordinate and subservient to the charges created in favour of the existing creditors, and
a lien and a right of set-off over the Term Deposit Receipt maintained with DIBPL as referred to in note 8.
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18.4

On September 14, 2020, the Company obtained Islamic Long Term Financing Facility (ILTFF) of the State Bank of
Pakistan through Musharaka agreement entered with financial institutions to finance its PVC-III expansion project. The
amount is repayable over 10 years in equal quarterly installments of Rs. 60,938 each with the first payment commencing
from December 2022. These are secured by way of hypothecation charge of present and future fixed assets of the
Company (excluding land and building) which shall rank pari passu with the charges created in favour of the existing
creditors.

18.5

During the year, the Company entered into a Diminishing Musharaka Agreement for procurement of locally assembled
private / imported vehicles under car monetisation policy. The facility amounted to Rs. 200,000 (2019: Nil). The rental
payments are to be made in monthly installments for five year and are calculated at the rate of six months KIBOR plus
0.8% per annum.
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(Amounts in thousand)
20.1

Under the Gas Infrastructure Development Cess Act, 2011, the Government of Pakistan levied Gas Infrastructure
Development Cess (GIDC) on all industrial gas consumers at the rate of Rs. 13 per MMBTU. Subsequently, the GIDC
rates were enhanced through notifications under OGRA Ordinance 2002, Finance Act, 2014 and GIDC Ordinance 2014
against which the Company had obtained ad-interim stay orders from the High Court of Sindh. However, on prudent
basis the Company recognised a provision of Rs. 1,345,789 till May 21, 2015.

(Amounts in thousand)
2020
21.

Credit balances arising due to:
- accumulated depreciation

On May 22, 2015 the Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC) Act, 2015 was promulgated whereby cess rate of
Rs.100 per MMBTU and Rs. 200 per MMBTU were fixed for industrial and captive power consumption, respectively. The
GIDC Act, 2015 was made applicable with immediate effect superseding the GIDC Act, 2011 and the GIDC Ordinance,
2014.

Debit balances arising due to:
- recoupable minimum turnover tax
- recoupable alternative corporate tax
- recoupable carried forward tax losses
- unpaid liabilities
- leases recognised
- provision for Gas Infrastructure Development
Cess and Special Excise Duty
- provision for slow moving stores and spares
- provision for bad debts
- shares issuance cost, net to equity

The Company, based on the advice of its legal counsel, was of the view that as per GIDC Act, 2015, the uncollected
portion of cess levied through GIDC Act, 2011 and GIDC Ordinance 2014, shall not be collected from the industrial sector.
Therefore, the Company reversed the provision relating to industrial portion of GIDC amounting to Rs. 753,664 for the
period prior to promulgation of GIDC Act, 2015 and retained GIDC provision amounting to Rs. 592,125 in respect of
captive power.
On August 13, 2020, the Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCP) announced the decision rendering the GIDC Act 2015 intra
virus to the constitution and directed the Gas supplying companies to recover the dues in 24 monthly installments. A
review petition was filed against the said order which was disposed-off in November 2020. The SCP in review petition,
elaborated that deliberation on any provision of GIDC Act, 2015 can be contested on appropriate forum and mentioned
that the installments period can be extended to 48 months. The Company has obtained ad-interim stay order dated
October 5, 2020 against the GIDC Act, 2015 from the High Court of Sindh (the Court). This stay order has restrained
Sui Southern Gas Company Limited (SSGC) from charging and / or recovering the cess under the GIDC Act, 2015 till
the final decision on this matter. The Company, based on prudence, has recognised a provision of Rs. 452,838 (2019:
Rs. 1,018,938) for the period January 2020 to July 2020. "
Considering the recent events and developments in GIDC case (including the Judgement and the Review petition
decision), the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) released financial reporting guidance on the
"Accounting of GIDC" via Circular No. 1/2021 dated January 19, 2021 (the Circular) which discusses key accounting
considerations for gas consumer companies. Keeping in view the financial reporting guidance of ICAP and giving due
consideration to the latest available information and the expected timing of the settlement (i.e. monthly instalment rather
than lump sum amount), the Company has remeasured its previously undiscounted provision at its present value using
risk free discount rate to incorporate the effect of time value of money arising from the expected settlement based on
an installment plan and has accordingly, recognised remeasurement gain on provision for GIDC amounting to Rs. 680,996.

20.2
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In 2017, the Company had filed suits in the Court, against the increase in tariff of natural gas sold to industries and
captive power plants notified by Oil and Gas Regularity Authority (OGRA) vide SRO no. (1)/2016 dated December 30,
2016 whereby the Company cited the increase as illegal and unconstitutional. The SHC has granted an interim order
in favour of the Company which is still operational. However, the Company has recognised a provision of Rs. 517,392
for the period from December 2017 to September 2018.

DEFERRED TAXATION - NET

22.

3,508,219

3,338,459

45
16,408
145,728
685,820

558,991
369,224
1,267
128,170
783,120

1,419,169
57,830

1,451,280
102,345
2,055
57,830

2,325,000

3,454,282

1,183,219

(115,823)

79,539

SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS
Running finance utilised under mark-up
arrangements
Export refinance facility
Money market loans

23.1

61,049

This represents provision for annual employment benefits payable to eligible employees who have successfully completed
3 years of vesting period with the Company.
2020

23.

2019

SERVICE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS
Service incentive plan - note 22.1

22.1

Rupees

Rupees

2019

-

296,836
200,000
1,662,000

-

2,158,836

The aggregate facilities for running finance available from various banks as at December 31, 2020, representing the
sales price of all mark-up arrangements, amounted to Rs. 3,700,000 (2019: Rs. 2,925,000) of which Rs. 3,700,000
(2019: Rs. 766,164) unutilised as at year end.
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(Amounts in thousand)

(Amounts in thousand)
2020

24.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Trade and other creditors - note 24.1
Accrued liabilities - notes 24.1 and 24.2
Advances from customers
Retention money
Security deposits - note 24.3
Payable to provident funds
Payable to gratuity funds
Workers' Welfare Fund - note 24.5
Withholding tax payable
Workers' Profits Participation Fund - note 24.4
Others

24.1

2019

3,876,083
3,368,490
1,890,998
1,240
30,752
14,520
7,442
149,825
8,841
126,944
7,363

2,844,907
2,645,303
904,882
1,545
34,120
258
73,199
22
35,133
8,086

9,482,498

6,547,455

43,866
32,151
613
139,179

88,305
40,926
613
139,849

215,809

269,693

Includes due to the following related parties:
-

Engro Corporation Limited
Engro Fertilizers Limited
Engro Powergen Thar (Private) Limited
Engro Vopak Terminal Limited

24.2

This includes Sindh Infrastructure Development Cess amounting to Rs. 854,698 (2019: Rs. 751,951).

24.3

These represent interest-free deposits from dealers for the performance of their service as defined in the dealership
agreements. The deposits are refundable on termination of dealership agreements and are payable on demand. The
amount is fully utilised in business in accordance with the requirement of written agreements and in terms of section
217 of the Act.
2020

24.1

The movement in WPPF payable is as follows:
Balance at the beginning of the year
Allocation for the year - note 32
Interest charges on funds utilised
Less: Payments during the year
Balance at the end of the year
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Rupees

Rupees

2019

35,133
439,389
-

342,876
265,133
4,163

474,522
(347,578)

612,172
(577,039)

126,944

35,133

2020
24.5

Rupees

2019

The movement in WWF payable is as follows:
Balance at the beginning of the year
Allocation for the year - note 32
Less: Payments during the year

73,199
132,255
(55,629)

65,871
73,698
(66,370)

Balance at the end of the year

149,825

73,199

25.

TAXES PAYABLE

25.1

Tax year 2008
The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) through an order dated November 26, 2009, raised a tax demand
of Rs. 213,172 for tax year 2008. The demand arose as a result of additions on account of trading liabilities of Rs. 47,582
under Section 34(5) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (the Ordinance), disallowance of provision for retirement benefits
of Rs. 5,899 addition of imputed interest on loans to employees and executives of Rs. 16,069 to income, disallowance
of finance cost of Rs. 134,414 and disallowance of adjustment of minimum tax paid for tax years 2004 to 2007 against
the above demand.
The Company filed an appeal against the aforesaid order before the Commissioner Inland Revenue Appeals [CIR(A)]
but discharged the entire demand through adjustment against assessed refunds of Rs. 180,768 and payment of the
balance of Rs. 32,404 under protest. Through his appellate order, the CIR(A) maintained certain additions aggregating
Rs. 189,810 including finance cost amounting to Rs. 134,414 and remanded back the issue of imputed interest on loans
to employees and executives and directed the DCIR to allow credit of the minimum tax charged for the period from tax
years 2004 to 2007. An appeal against the said appellate order was filed by the Company before the Appellate Tribunal
Inland Revenue (ATIR). The department also filed an appeal against the said appellate order challenging the actions of
the CIR(A).
In 2013, the ATIR issued an order whereby the aforementioned appeal was disposed of by accepting Companys position
on all the disallowances made earlier except for additions on account of trading liabilities to the extent of Rs. 20,280 and
minimum turnover tax for tax years 2004 and 2007 to the extent of Rs.19,692 and Rs. 7,300 respectively, which were
maintained.
In 2013, the Company filed a reference with the High Court of Sindh (the Court) against the additions maintained by
ATIR. Likewise, the tax department also filed reference with the Court against the order passed by the ATIR in favor of
the Company. In 2018, the Court disposed of Company's appeal on the ground that the issues raised by the Company
requires factual verification whereas the petition of the tax department are still pending before the Court. During the year,
the Company performed detailed assessment of the facts of the case and based on the advice of its tax consultants,
the Company decided to accept the decision of the Court and accordingly, has recognised the provision of Rs. 108,882
in respect of addition maintained by ATIR in these financial statements.
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(Amounts in thousand)
25.2

Tax year 2009

(Amounts in thousand)
2020
26.

The DCIR through his order dated November 30, 2010 raised a tax demand of Rs.163,206. The demand arose as a
result of disallowance of finance cost of Rs.457,282, additions to income of trading liabilities of Rs.21,859 under section
34(5) of the Ordinance, disallowance of provision for retirement benefits of Rs.14,239, disallowance of provision against
Special Excise Duty refundable of Rs.36,687, addition of imputed interest on loans to employees and executives of
Rs. 20,599 and not considering net loss.
In 2013, the ATIR issued an order whereby the aforementioned appeal was disposed of by accepting Companys position
except for additions on account of SED provision of Rs.36,687 and imputed interest on loans to employees and executives
to the extent of Rs.17,430, which were maintained. The Company filed a reference with the Court against the additions
maintained by ATIR. Likewise, the tax department has also filed reference with the Court against the order passed by
the ATIR in favour of the Company. The management of the Company, based on the advice of its tax consultants, is
confident that the ultimate outcome of the aforementioned matters would be favourable and, accordingly, has not
recognised the effects for the same in these financial statements.
25.3

In the meanwhile, the Company also filed petition in Supreme Court against the order of the Court, which is pending
adjudication. In November 2020, the Supreme Court conditionally granted stay subject to deposit of 50% of super tax
demand. The Company has accordingly discharged 50% of the said liability.
25.4

Mark-up accrued on:
- long-term borrowings
- short-term borrowings

The Company had filed refund applications with the Commissioner Inland Revenue (the Commissioner) for the Tax Year
2008 to Tax Year 2016. All refund applications filed are subject to verification by the Commissioner as per section 170
of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (the Ordinance). In previous years, the Company has received orders from the
Commissioner for partial recovery / credit of refunds for certain tax years and furthermore, the Commissioner has also
sought additional information for verification of refunds for remaining tax years amounting to Rs. 204,969 thousand. The
Company believes that such differences will be reconciled and relevant supporting evidence to be provided to the
Commissioner for rectification.

425,112
-

332,563
33,709

425,112

366,272

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

27.1

The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) through order dated January 8, 2016, raised a sales tax demand of
Rs. 524,589 on account of alleged short payment of sales tax due on the finished products that would have been produced
and sold from the excess wastage of raw material. The Company filed an appeal before the Commissioner Inland Revenue
Appeals [CIR(A)] on the grounds that the order passed against the Company was absolutely baseless as the DCIR had
used inappropriate theoretical assumptions for calculating the sales tax liability. The CIR(A) through his order dated
March 10, 2016, has decided the matter in favour of the Company. However, the department has challenged the said
order of CIR(A) before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR). The management of the Company, based on the advice
of its tax consultants, is confident of a favourable outcome of this matter, accordingly, no provision has been made in
this respect.

27.2

Through the notice dated January 20, 2020, the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) raised issues inter
alia with respect to the adjustment of carried forward minimum taxes from the tax liability of Tax Year 2019 and required
the Company to pay Rs. 552,331 being the amount short paid with the return. The Company filed a Constitutional Petition
in the Court challenging the notice, which through order dated February 4, 2020, dismissed the case based on the
decision of the Court in respect of another company. However, the Court directed the department to refrain from passing
the order on the bases of the aforesaid notice for a period of thirty days which was then extended for further 30 days to
enable the Company to approach the Supreme Court (SC). The Company has filed Civil Petition for Leave to Appeal
against Court order in Supreme Court, which was heard on March 18, 2020 and an interim stay has been granted to
the Company subject to the submission of Bank Guarantee equivalent to the order amount, which has been duly submitted
by the Company. The Company, based on the advice of legal advisor, is confident of a favourable decision.

27.3

The aggregate facilities for issuance of performance guarantees by the banks on behalf of the Company as at December
31, 2020 amounts to Rs. 3,248,000 (2019: Rs. 3,248,000). The amount utilised there against as at December 31, 2020
is Rs. 3,017,021 (2019: Rs. 2,163,090).

27.4

The facility for opening letters of credit as at December 31, 2020 aggregates to Rs. 28,463,787 (2019: Rs. 29,607,000).
The amount utilised thereagainst as at December 31, 2020 was Rs. 3,547,197 (2019: Rs. 4,336,000).

27.5

The Company has entered into operating lease arrangments with Al-Rahim Trading Company (Private) Limited for the
storage and handling of Ethylene Di Chloride (EDC) in respect of which future lease commitments aggregate to:
2020
Not later than one year
Later than one year but not later than five years

279

2019

27.

Super Tax under section 4B of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001
Through Finance Act 2015, section 4B of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 was inserted which levied super tax at specified
rates on income for the tax year 2015. This levy was subject to the threshold of taxable income of Rs. 500,000. The levy
was extended uptil tax year 2020 vide subsequent Finance Acts. Through Finance Supplementary Act, 2019, the levy
of super tax has amended the rate of super tax to 0% from tax year 2020 and onwards for companies other than banking
companies. On August 1, 2018, the Company filed petition against the levy of super tax in the Court and based on the
opinion of its legal advisor, the Company has made a provision for full amount of Super tax of Rs. 328,000. During the
year, super tax has been declared intra virus by the Court and has been declared a tax rightly introduced through Finance
Act and vacated all the stays filed in this respect. Consequently, Company received various notices from tax authorities
for recovery of super tax for the tax years 2017 to 2019. The Company filed appeal against the said notices with CIR(A)
whereby the action of Officer has been confirmed by CIR(A) for tax years 2017 and 2018. The Company has now filed
an appeal before Appellate Tribunal against the decision of CIR(A) which is pending adjudication.

ACCRUED INTEREST / MARK-UP

Rupees

3,805
-

Rupees

2019
-
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(Amounts in thousand)
27.6
27.7

27.8

(Amounts in thousand)

Commitments in respect of rentals of storage tanks at EVTL for the handling of Ethylene aggregate to USD 30,456 valid
till 31 March 2026 and Ethylene Di Chloride (EDC) aggregate to USD 2,400 and are valid till 31 December 2028.

29.

In 2019, Engro Peroxide (Private) Limited entered into a contract with Chematur Engineering AB to establish a plant of
Hydrogen Peroxide at a consideration of EUR 6,993. As at December 31, 2020 commitment for civil works and equipment
procurement amounts to EUR 1,090 (2019: EUR 5,140).

Commitments in respect of capital commitments
and other operational items - note 27.9.1

Rupees

Raw and packing materials consumed
Salaries, wages and staff welfare - note 29.1
Fuel, power and gas
Repairs and maintenance
Depreciation and amortisation - notes 5.3 and 7
Depreciation on Right-of-use asset - note 6.2
Write-off of capital work-in-progress - note 5.4
Consumable stores
Purchased services
Storage and handling - note 29.2
Training, conveyance and travelling
Communication, stationery and other office expenses
Rent, rates and taxes
Product transportation
Insurance, fees and subscription
Provision for slow moving stores and spares - note 10.3
Write-off stores and spares - note 10.2
Write-off stock in trade net of proceeds - note 11.3
Other expenses

888,048

2019

3,243,097

27.9.1 This includes Rs. 16,388 (2019: Rs. 152,405) in respect of commitments against intangible assets to Engro Corporation
Limited.
2020
28.

NET REVENUE
Gross local sales - note 28.1
Less:
- Sales tax
- Discounts

Export sales
Supply of electricity - note 28.2
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Rupees

2019

Rupees

2019

COST OF SALES
Opening stock of work-in-process

Engro Peroxide (Private) Limited has issued bank guarantee in favor of Excise and Taxation, amounts to Rs. 3,500
(2019: Rs.3,500). The aggregate facilities amounting to Rs. 50,000 (2019: Rs. 50,000) has been issued collectively in
favor of the Company and Engro Plasticizer (Private) Limited (its wholly owned subsidiary).

2020
27.9

2020

Closing stock of work-in-process

25,120

15,856

11,425,736
1,622,575
5,033,762
480,553
1,262,101
431,022
6,000
414,650
613,150
542,584
160,708
8,895
47,320
806,427
284,649
20,571
57,302
91,763
6,026

17,274,480
1,503,316
6,299,932
409,887
1,058,073
399,190
553,077
495,582
491,610
258,024
11,614
28,084
1,134,097
186,727
39,644
21,177

23,315,794

30,164,514

(28,354)

(25,120)

23,312,560

30,155,250

1,622,853
(736,768)

1,125,819
(1,622,853)

886,085
183,484

(497,034)
72,377

24,382,129

29,730,593

42,002,709

44,223,191

6,118,942
795,459

6,404,399
523,257

6,914,401

6,927,656

35,088,308

37,295,535

158,059

469,164

29.1

These include Rs. 92,858 (2019: Rs. 89,183) in respect of staff retirement and other service benefits.

85,031

71,933

29.2

This includes expense relating to variable lease payments not included in lease liabilities amounting to Rs. 136,637
(2019: Rs. 139,718).

35,331,398

37,836,632

28.1

Include sales of trading goods Rs. 209,212 (2019: Rs.75,084).

28.2

This represents revenue against supply of surplus power to Engro Fertilizers Limited - a related party.

Cost of goods manufactured
Opening stock of finished goods
Closing stock of finished goods
Cost of sales - purchased product - note 29.3

2020

29.3

Rupees

2019

Movement of trading goods
Opening trading stock at the beginning of the year
Purchases made during the year
Closing trading stock at the end of the year

93,314
116,827
(26,657)

165,691
(93,314)

Consumption made during the year

183,484

72,377
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(Amounts in thousand)

(Amounts in thousand)
2020

30.

31.1

2020
32.

123,814
143,938

175,231
163,740

331
5,653
3,027
7,054
4,046
1,667
4,863

(1,701)
12,308
6,706
5,750
27,649
1,674
4,788

294,393

396,145

Rupees

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Salaries, wages and staff welfare - note 31.1
Rent, rates and taxes
Purchased services
Depreciation - note 5.3
Amortisation - note 7
Depreciation on right-of-use asset - note 6.2
Training, conveyance and travelling
Communication, stationery and other office expenses

316,490
34,228
106,340
23,005
25,193
17,024
6,579
8,035

293,717
41,992
88,455
17,608
21,131
16,771
37,838
27,722

Others

13,413
550,307

20,632
565,866

60,721
5,376
56,759
798
774,578
73,698
269,296

859,300

1,241,226

Auditors remuneration
Fee for:
- Annual statutory audit
- Review of half yearly financials
- Review of compliance with the Code of
Corporate Governance

2019

2019

77,328
6,188
9,671
11,910
5,762
176,797
132,255
439,389

2020
32.1

Rupees

OTHER EXPENSES
Legal and professional charges
Auditors' remuneration - note 32.1
Demurrage and penalty
Donations - note 32.2
Loss on disposal of operating assets
Foreign exchange loss (net) - note 32.3
Workers' Welfare Fund - note 24.5
Workers' profits participation fund - note 24.4

These include Rs. 10,695 (2019: Rs. 7,062) in respect of staff retirement and other service benefits.
2020

31.

2019

DISTRIBUTION AND MARKETING EXPENSES
Salaries, wages and staff welfare - note 30.1
Sales promotion
(Reversal of provision) / provision for
doubtful debts - note 12.5
Write-off of trade debts
Rent, rates and taxes
Purchased services
Depreciation - note 5.3
Training, conveyance and travelling
Communication, stationery and other office expenses
Others

30.1

Rupees

Taxation and other advisory services
Reimbursement of expenses

Rupees

2019

1,850
475

1,289
218

55

50

3,242
566

3,374
445

6,188

5,376

32.2

This includes donations made to Engro Foundation, The Citizen Foundation and The Water Foundation of Rs.5,000,
Rs.2,465 and Rs.3,578 respectively. Mr Jahangir Piracha, (the Chief Executive of the Company), and Mr. Ghias Khan,
(the Chairman of the Board of Directors) are the trustees of Engro Foundation.

32.3

This includes Rs. 192,020 (2019: Rs. 634,818) arising on translation of foreign currency denominated lease liabilities.

These include Rs. 35,546 (2019: Rs. 25,989) in respect of staff retirement and other service benefits.

2020
33.

OTHER INCOME

Rupees

2019

On financial assets
Income on bank deposits
Income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Income from financial assets at amortised cost
On non-financial assets
Scrap sales
Others
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45,432
935,398
118,336

31,109
826,215
-

1,099,166

857,324

43,593
36,876

63,130
9,815

1,179,635

930,269
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(Amounts in thousand)

(Amounts in thousand)
2020

34.

Interest expense on lease liabilities
Foreign exchange loss on financial asset and liability
Foreign exchange loss on derivative financial liability
Guarantee commission
Amortisation of transaction costs on borrowings
Default surcharge on GIDC
Commitment fees on borrowings
Cash management charges
LC charges
Bank and others charges

35.

2019

FINANCE COSTS
Interest / mark-up on - note 34.1
- long-term borrowings
- short-term borrowings and other facilities

34.1

Rupees

1,632,887
102,413
1,735,300
302,368
2,800
19,797
43,822
18,048
1,014
46,539
21,447

1,190,039
109,845
1,299,884
333,081
8,607
11,007
22,000
73,406
11,693
634
33,464

2,191,135

1,793,776

This includes borrowing costs in relation to qualifying asset amounting to Rs. 57,110, which was not capitalised, as it
relates to period from March 24, 2020 to May 21, 2020 when project expansion activities were temporarily suspended
due to lockdown.
2020
2019
Rupees
TAXATION
Current
- for the year
- for prior year

1,108,962
95,526
1,204,488

967,412
138,768
1,106,180

36.

EARNINGS PER SHARE - basic and diluted

36.1

Basic earnings per share has been calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

36.2

Diluted earnings per share has been calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary shares with
preference shares outstanding for assumed conversion during the year.

36.3

The information necessary to calculate basic and diltuted earnings per share is as follows:
2020
Profit for the year

5,730,236

35.1

Adjustment for conversion of convertible preference shares

10,656

Weighted average number of potential ordinary shares
outstanding at year end for determination of diluted EPS

919,579
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Profit before taxation

8,233,769

5,039,296

Tax calculated at applicable rate of 29% (2019: 29%)
Tax effect of presumptive tax regime and income subject
to lower tax rates
Prior year tax charge - net
Effect of inadmissible expenses / permanent differences
Impact of change in tax rates
Others

2,387,793

1,461,396

(125,416)
217,089
22,237
1,830
2,503,533

(110,089)
(1,157)
12,554
(23,463)
4,017
1,343,258

908,923
908,923

37.

RETIREMENT AND OTHER SERVICE BENEFITS

37.1

In 2013, the Company replaced its provident fund with the provident fund (the Fund) operated and managed by Engro
Corporation Limited - the Holding Company.

37.2

The investments out of the provident funds have been made in accordance with the provisions of Section 218 of the
Act and the conditions specified there under.

38.

REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES
The aggregate amounts for remuneration, including all benefits, to chief executive, directors and executives of the
Company are given below:
2019

Director
Chief
Others
Executives

237,078
1,343,258

Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit

3,696,037

908,923

2020
1,177,482
121,563
2,503,533

2019

Number in thousands

Weighted average number of shares outstanding at year
end for determination of basic EPS

Deferred
- for the year
- for prior year

Rupees

Executives

Director
Chief
Others
Executives

Executives

Rupees
Managerial remuneration - note 38.1
Retirement benefit funds
Bonus
Other benefits
Directors fee

135,072
5,808
30,066
3,797
-

1,617

677,318
109,901
164,301
218,801
-

29,162
6,286
29,985
3,454
-

1,100

667,133
104,289
152,221
166,911
-

Total

174,743

1,617

1,170,321

68,887

1,100

1,090,554

2

5

206

1

2

179

Number of persons including those
who worked part of the year
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(Amounts in thousand)

(Amounts in thousand)
2020

38.1

This includes payment of ex-gratia of Rs. 102,830 made to the outgoing Chief Executive Officer.

38.2

The Company also provides certain household items and vehicles for the use of the Chief Executive Officer and certain
executives.

38.3

Expense charged in respect of directors' indemnity insurance policy purchased by the Company amounts to Rs. 49
(2019: Rs. 49).
2020
2019
Rupees
CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

39.

Profit before taxation

8,233,769

5,039,295

40.

Provision for staff retirement and other
service benefits
Depreciation - note 5.3
Depreciation on right-of-use asset - note 6.2
Amortisation - note 7
Write-off capital work-in-progress - note 5.4
(Reversal of provision) / provision for
doubtful debts - note 12.5
Write off trade debts - note 30
Write-off stores and spares - note 29
Provision for slow moving stores and spares - note 10.3
Write-off stock-in-trade net of proceeds - note 29
Foreign exchange loss under financial assets and liabilities
Foreign exchange loss under derivative financial asset
Gain on of derviative financial asset
Income on bank deposits and short-term
investments - note 33
Interest expense on lease liabilities - note 34
Amortisation of transaction cost - note 34
Finance costs - note 34
Loss on disposal of operating assets - note 32
Provision against GIDC - note 20.1
Remeasurement gain on provision against GIDC - note 20.1
Default surcharge on GIDC - note 34
Working capital changes - note 39.1
39.1

51,123
1,027,200
415,961
75,362
-

331
57,302
20,571
91,763
194,820
(154)

(1,701)
39,644
634,818
154
-

(1,099,166)
302,368
43,822
1,735,300
5,762
452,838
(680,996)
18,048
1,261,902
12,462,697

(857,324)
333,081
22,000
1,299,886
798
1,018,938
(28,936)
9,070,299

WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES
(Increase) / decrease in current assets
Stores, spares and loose tools
Stock-in-trade
Trade debts
Loans, advances, deposits, prepayments and
other receivables - net
Increase in current liabilities
Trade and other payables
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53,018
1,292,160
448,046
25,193
6,000

41.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

41.1

Financial assets as per statement of financial position

(175,893)
(1,944,154)
(116,930)

(154,890)
(768,672)
(37,512)

563,836
(1,673,141)

820,589
(140,485)

2,935,043
1,261,902

111,549
(28,936)

At amortised cost
Long-term loans
Financial assets at amortised cost
Trade debts - considered good
Loans, deposits and other receivable
Cash and bank balances
At fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
41.2

2019

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Cash and bank balances - note 15
Short-term borrowings - note 23

Adjustments for non cash-charges and other items:

Rupees

Financial liabilities as per statement of financial position

13,425,523
945,728
14,371,251

9,391,057
792,057
(2,158,836)
8,024,278

29,286
5,624,953
586,212
146,755
945,728
7,332,934

72,078
5,425,707
469,613
393,079
777,823
7,138,300

13,431,523
20,764,457

9,391,057
16,529,357

21,626,485
4,694,873
79,539
7,305,890
425,112
34,131,899

19,388,880
5,531,317
61,049
2,158,836
4,774,372
366,272
32,280,726

34,131,899

154
32,280,880

At amortised cost
Long-term borrowings
Lease liabilities
Service benefit obligation
Short-term borrowings
Trade and other payables
Accrued interest / mark-up
At fair value through profit or loss
Derivative financial instruments

42.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

42.1

Financial risk factors
The Groups activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Groups risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise the
potential adverse effects on the Groups financial performance. The Group uses derivative financial instruments to
hedge certain risk factors, where it deems appropriate. Risk management is carried out by the Groups finance
division under the guidance of the Groups Board of Directors.
a) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in
market prices. It comprises of the following risks:
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(Amounts in thousand)

(Amounts in thousand)

2020

Rupees

2019

i) Currency risk
Currency risk represents the risk that the fair values of future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign currency rates. The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from currency
exposures primarily with respect to US Dollar. The risk arises from outstanding payments for imports, assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies and future commercial transactions. In the current economic environment,
the Group is significantly exposed to currency risk because of the expected volatility in exchange rates. The Group,
at its discretion, manages the currency risk through forward exchange contracts.
At December 31, 2020, the financial assets and liabilities exposed to foreign exchange risk amount to Rs. 5,593,000
(2019: Rs. 5,637,055) and Rs. 13,113,858 (2019: Rs. 12,560,205) respectively.
At December 31, 2020, if the Pakistan Rupee had weakened / strengthened by 5% against the US Dollar with all
other variables held constant, post-tax profit / loss for the year would have been lower / higher by Rs. 266,990
(2019: Rs. 245,772), mainly as a result of foreign exchange losses / gains on translation of uncovered US Dollardenominated liabilities. However, this change in profits or losses would be partially offset by a corresponding change
in margins as bulk of revenues is linked with movements in exchange rates.

Long-term loans
Trade debts - considered good
Loans, deposits and other receivables
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at amortised cost
Bank balances

29,286
586,212
146,755
13,431,523
5,624,953
944,911
20,763,640

72,078
469,613
393,079
9,391,057
5,425,707
777,176
16,528,710

The credit quality of receivables can be assessed with reference to their historical performance with no defaults
in recent history. As at December 31, 2020 the credit quality of the Groups bank balances can be assessed with
reference to external credit ratings assigned to the respective banks as follows:
Bank

2019
Ratings

2020
Ratings

Rating agency

Short-term

Long-term

Short-term

Long-term

ii) Yield / interest rate risk
Yield / interest rate risk represents the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The Group is exposed to interest rate risk arising from investments
in government securities, bank balances maintained in saving accounts, borrowings and running finance facilities
and term deposits, utilised under mark-up arrangements. Variable rate financial instruments expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk, whereas, fixed rate financial instruments expose the Group to fair value interest rate
risk.
As at December 31, 2020, if interest rate on Groups borrowings had been 1% higher / lower with all other variables
held constant, post tax profit for the year would have been lower / higher by approximately Rs. 32,730 (2019: Rs.
21,418) mainly as a result of higher / lower interest charged on variable rate borrowings.
iii) Other price risk
Price risk represents the risk that the fair vale of future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate because
of changes in market prices (other than those arising from currency risk or interest rate risk), whether those changes
are caused by factors specific to the individual financials instruments or its issuers or factors affecting all similar
financial instruments traded in the market. The Group is not exposed to price risk as at December 31, 2020 as the
Group does not hold any financial instruments which expose it to price risk.
b) Credit risk
Credit risk represents the risk of financial loss being caused if counter parties fail to discharge their obligations.
Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, trade debts, loans, deposits, other receivables
financial assets at amortised cost and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. The maximum exposure
to credit risk is equal to the carrying amount of these financial assets.
The Group is not materially exposed to credit risk as unsecured credit is provided to selected parties with no history
of default. Moreover, major part of trade debts are secured by bank guarantees and letters of credit from customers.
Furthermore, credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counter parties are banks with reasonably high credit
ratings, or investments are made in government securities.
The Group monitors the credit quality of its financial assets with reference to historical performance of such assets
and available external credit ratings. The carrying values of financial assets exposed to credit risk, which are neither
past due nor impaired, are as follows:
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Allied Bank Limited

PACRA

A-1+

AAA

A-1+

AAA

Askari Bank Limited

PACRA

A-1+

AA+

A-1+

AA+

Al Baraka Bank (Pakistan) Limited

PACRA

A-1

A

A-1

A

Bank Alfalah Limited

PACRA

A-1+

AA+

A-1+

AA+

Bank Al Habib Limited

PACRA

A-1+

AA+

A-1+

AA+

Bank of China

R&I

A-1

A

A-1

A

Bank Islami Pakistan Limited

PACRA

A1

A+

A1

A+

Citibank N.A.

Moody

P1

Aa3

P1

Aa3

Deutsche Bank A.G

Moody

-

-

P2

Ba3

Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan Limited

JCR-VIS

A-1+

AA

A-1+

AA

Faysal Bank Limited

PACRA

A-1+

AA

A-1+

AA

Habib Bank Limited

JCR-VIS

A-1+

AAA

A-1+

AAA

Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited

PACRA

A-1+

AA+

A-1+

AA+

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China

Moody

P-1

A1

P-1

A1

JS Bank Limited

PACRA

A-1+

AA-

A-1+

AA-

MCB Bank Limited

PACRA

A-1+

AAA

A-1+

AAA

MCB Islamic Bank Limited

PACRA

A-1

A

A-1

A

Meezan Bank Limited

JCR-VIS

A-1+

AA+

A-1+

AA+

National Bank of Pakistan

JCR-VIS

A-1+

AAA

A-1+

AAA

Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) Limited

PACRA

A-1+

AAA

A-1+

AAA

Summit Bank Limited

JCR-VIS

A-3

BBB-

A-3

BBB-

SAMBA Bank Limited

JCR-VIS

A-1

AA

A-1

AA

The Bank of Punjab

PACRA

A-1+

AA

A-1+

AA

United Bank Limited

JCR-VIS

A-1+

AAA

A-1+

AAA
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(Amounts in thousand)
c)

(Amounts in thousand)

Liquidity risk

The Group held the following assets measured at fair values:
As at December 31, 2020

Liquidity risk represents the risk that the Group will encounter difficulties in meeting obligations associated with
financial liabilities. The Groups liquidity management involves maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities,
the availability of funds through an adequate amount of credit facilities and through its ability to close out market
positions. Due to the dynamic nature of the business, the Group aims at maintaining flexibility in funding by keeping
committed credit lines available.

Level 1
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Treasury bills
Pakistan investment bonds
Term deposit

The general nature of credit facilities available to the Company under any contract and not availed as at the date
of consolidated statement of financial position has been disclosed in notes 18 and 23.
The table below analyses how management monitors net liquidity based on details of the remaining contractual
maturities of financial liabilities. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows:
2020
Maturity
upto one
year

Maturity
more than one
year but less
than five years

Total

Long-term borrowings

3,953,611

21,201,305

4,892,231

30,047,147

Lease liabilities

1,323,477

3,735,906

262,774

5,322,157

1,276,223

79,539

-

-

79,539

-

-

-

6,429,230

-

-

Service benefit obligations

Accrued interest / mark-up

2,024,761
11,400,762
6,000
13,431,523

Level 2

Level 3

Total

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
28,855,139

4,435,600

707,659

6,419,482

61,049

-

-

61,049

-

2,158,836

-

-

2,158,836

-

6,429,230

4,782,010

-

-

4,774,372

-

-

-

154

-

-

154

425,112

-

-

425,112

366,272

-

-

366,272

12,210,969

24,937,211

5,155,005

42,303,185

10,498,744 27,809,314

4,334,884

42,635,304

Derivative financial instruments

1,854,200 23,373,714

-

Rupees

Total

3,627,225

Short term borrowings
Trade and other payables

Level 1
Maturity
after five
years

Rupees

Financial liabilities

43.

Maturity
Maturity
upto one more than one
year
year but less
than five years

2,024,761
11,400,762
6,000
13,431,523

Total

As at December 31, 2019

2019
Maturity
after five
years

-

Level 2
Level 3
Rupees

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. Consequently, differences can arise between carrying values
and the fair value estimates.
Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Group is a going concern without any intention or
requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to undertake a transaction on adverse terms.
Fair value hierarchy

Treasury bills
Pakistan investment bonds

-

7,695,569
1,695,488
9,391,057

-

7,695,569
1,695,488
9,391,057

The carrying values of all other assets and liabilities reflected in these financial statements approximate their fair
values.
44.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The objective of the Company when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and
to provide expected returns to its shareholders by maintaining optimum capital structure to minimize the cost of
capital. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may issue new equity, manage dividend payouts to
its shareholders or sell assets to reduce debt.
The Company manages capital by maintaining gearing ratio at certain levels. This ratio is calculated as long term
borrowings and lease liabilities divided by total capital. Total capital is calculated as equity as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position plus long-term borrowings and lease liabilities.
2020

Rupees

2019

The gearing ratio of the Company is as follows:
Long-term borrowings - note 18
Lease liabilities

21,626,485
4,694,873
26,321,358

19,388,880
5,531,317
24,920,197

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Total equity

26,126,131

17,776,156

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability either directly
(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

Total capital

52,447,489

42,696,353

Gearing ratio

0.502

0.584

International Financial Reporting Standard 13, 'Fair Value Measurement' requires the Group to classify assets using a
fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy
has the following levels:

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e. unobservable inputs).
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(Amounts in thousand)
45.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

46.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

45.1

Based on the internal management reporting structure, the Group is organised into three business segments based on
the products produced and sold as follows:

46.1

Following are the name of associated companies and related parties with whom the Group had entered into transactions
or had arrangements or agreements in place during the year:

-

Poly Vinyl Chloride (PVC) and allied chemicals: The segment is formed to manufacture and sell PVC and allied
chemicals to various industrial customers including pipe manufacturers, shoe and packaging industry. The Company
supplies the products throughout Pakistan mainly through dealers. Moreover, PVC is also exported to various
countries mainly in Asia Region.

-

Caustic soda and allied chemicals: The segment is formed to manufacture and sell caustic soda and allied chemicals
mostly to textile and soap industry.

-

Power supplies: The segment supplies surplus power generated from its power plants to Engro Fertilizers Limited.

Management monitors the operating results of above-mentioned segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resources to be allocated and of assessing performance. Segment performance is evaluated based on profit /
(loss) after tax for that segment, which in certain respects, as explained in table below, is measured differently from profit
or loss in the financial statements. Items which are directly attributable to a particular segment have been allocated to
the respective segment, while those which are not directly attributable have been allocated on the basis of revenue.
Poly Vinyl Chloride (PVC)
and allied chemicals
Segment profit and loss
Revenue
At a point in time
Over time
Less:
Cost of sales
Distribution and marketing
expenses
Administrative expenses
Other expenses
Other income
Finance costs

2020
30,573,350
30,573,350

2019

Caustic soda and
allied chemicals

2020

2019

Power
supply

2020

Rupees

31,647,675
31,647,675

4,463,506
4,463,506

5,995,675
5,995,675

85,032
85,032

(21,221,205) (26,488,041)

(3,788,302)

(3,903,637)

(77,486)

Total

2019
71,933
71,933

2020
35,036,856
85,032
35,121,888

2019
37,643,350
71,933
37,715,283

(57,030) (25,086,993) (30,448,708)

(203,178)
(511,396)
(539,242)
618,927
(1,872,429)

(323,168)
(510,011)
(427,087)
492,021
(1,443,328)

(89,041)
(47,555)
(97,543)
558,297
(16,236)

(72,977)
(63,211)
(186,311)
437,787
(17,251)

(1,066)
2,411
(102)

(1,750)
461
(117)

(292,219)
(558,951)
(637,851)
1,179,635
(1,888,767)

(396,145)
(573,222)
(615,148)
930,269
(1,460,696)

6,844,827

2,948,061

983,126

2,190,075

8,789

13,497

7,836,742

5,151,633

(2,226,701)

(791,671)

(159,405)

(580,023)

(2,268)

(3,854)

(2,388,374)

(1,375,548)

4,618,126

2,156,390

823,721

1,610,052

6,521

9,643

4,618,126

2,156,390

823,721

1,610,052

6,521

9,643

5,448,368
281,749
119
5,730,236

3,776,085
(93,194)
13,146
3,696,037

Total segment assets - note 45.2
Unallocated assets - note 45.2
Total assets

38,320,683

31,479,624

9,059,981

4,867,662

26,766

17,886

47,407,430
21,686,231
69,093,661

36,365,172
21,154,045
57,519,217

Total segment liabilities - note 45.2
Unallocated liabilities - note 45.2
Total liabilities

19,939,452

15,533,786

3,212,463

3,261,271

9,209

3,648

23,161,124
19,806,406
42,967,530

18,798,705
20,944,356
39,743,061

Profit before tax
Taxation
Impact of ROU and lease liabilities
Others, post tax
Profit for the year
Segment assets and liabilities

45.2
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Segment assets consist primarily of property, plant and equipment, stores and spares, stock in trade and trade debts.
Unallocated assets include long term investment, long term loans and advances, loans, advances, prepayments and
other receivables, taxes recoverable, and cash and bank balances.

Name of related parties
Engro Corporation Limited
Mitsubishi Corporation
Engro Fertilizers Limited
Sindh Engro Coal Minning Company Limited
Engro Energy Limited
Thar Power Company Limited
Engro Digital Limited
Engro Eximp Agri Products (Private) Limited
FrieslandCampina Engro Pakistan Limited
Engro Infinity (Private) Limited
Engro Foundation
Karachi School of Business Leadership (KSBL)
Engro Elengy Terminal Private Limited
Engro Eximp FZE
Engro Powergen Qadirpur Limited
EFERT Agri Trade (Private) Limited
Engro Vopak Terminal Limited
Pakistan Oxygen Ltd
Overseas Investors Chamber of
Commerce & Industry
Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance
Retirement funds
- Provident fund
- Gratuity fund
- Pension fund
Mr. Nadir Salar Qureshi - note 46.1.2
Mr. Feroz Rizvi - note 46.1.2
Ms. Ayesha Aziz - note 46.1.2 & 46.1.3
Mr. Eram Hassan
Mr. Nazoor Baig - note 46.1.2
Mr. Noriyuki Koga - note 46.1.2
Mr. Hasnain Moochhala
Mr. Ghias Uddin Khan - note 46.1.2
Mr. Rizwan Masood Raja - note 46.1.2
Ms. Rahat Kaunain Hassan - notes 46.1.2 & 46.1.3
Mr. Imran Anwer - note 46.1.1
Mr. Jahangir Piracha - note 46.1.1
Mr. Aneeq Ahmed
Mr. Syed Ali Akbar
Mr. Mahmood Siddiqui
Mr. Asghar Ali Khan
Mr. Mazhar Hasnaini
Mr. Jahangir Waheed
Ms. Salima Hasham
Mr. Salman Hafeez
Mr. Kalimuddin A Khan
Mr. Fahd Khawaja
Mr. Syed Abbas Raza

Direct shareholding

Relationship

56.19%
11.01%
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

Parent company
Associated company
Common directorship
Common directorship
Common directorship
Common directorship
Common directorship
Common directorship
Common directorship
Common directorship
Common directorship
Common directorship
Common directorship
Common directorship
Common directorship
Common directorship
Common directorship
Common directorship

N/A
N/A

Common directorship
Common directorship

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

Post employment benefits
Post employment benefits
Post employment benefits
Non-executive Director
Independent Director
Independent Director
Non-executive Director
Independent Director
Non-executive Director
Non-executive Director
Non-executive Director
Non-executive Director
Independent Director
Chief Executive Officer
Chief Executive Officer
Key management personnel
Key management personnel
Key management personnel
Key management personnel
Key management personnel
Key management personnel
Key management personnel
Key management personnel
Key management personnel
Key management personnel
Key management personnel
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(Amounts in thousand)

(Amounts in thousand)

46.1.1 During the year, Mr. Imran Anwer resigned from the post of Chief Executive Officer of the Company and was replaced
by Mr. Jahangir Piracha.
46.1.2 These denote directors elected in the annual general meeting of the Company held on April 23, 2020.
46.1.3 Ms. Ayesha has co-opted as a Director on the Board of Directors of the Company on November 5, 2020 in the place
of Ms. Rahat Kaunain Hassan.
46.2

2020
47.

GENERAL

47.1

Number of employees

Transactions with related parties, other than those which have been disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements,
are as follows:
2020
2019
Rupees
Nature of relationship

Nature of transactions

Reimbursement made
Reimbursement received
Advance for intangible asset
Life insurance contribution
Medical insurance contribution

563

508

- Average number of employees

537

483

Included herein are 480 (2019: 435) employees working at the plant of the Company as at December 31, 2020 and
average number of these employees during the year was 456 (2019: 467).
47.2

375,712
25,173
233,700
-

287,474
2,386
276,595
537
194

Production capacity
Designed
annual capacity
2020
2019

Purchase of goods

93,190

702,673

7,737

11,305

Member of the Group
- Engro Fertilizers Limited

Sale of goods
Sales of utilities
Purchase of services
Reimbursement received
Purchase of land
Reimbursement made

132,787
89,807
2,323
22,915

112,834
13,412
3,771
722,122
12,641

- Engro Digital Limited

Purchase of services
Reimbursement made
Reimbursement received
Reimbursement received

1,644,170
12,598
6,428

1,477,298
20,119
936
32

- Engro Energy Limited

Reimbursements received

1,596

4,372

- Engro Powergen Thar (Private) Limited

Sale of goods

1,277

3,987

- Engro Foundation

Donations

5,000

14,200

Directors

Fee

1,617

1,100

Contribution to staff

Managed and operated by the

- Engro Vopak Terminal Limited

retirement benefits

Key management personnel

46.3
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48.

Managerial remuneration
Retirement benefit funds
Bonus
Other benefits

70,719
65,339
3,042

69,636
48,853
4,629

241,041
18,696
50,398
26,500

117,369
20,853
37,351
27,134

The related party status of outstanding balances as at December 31, 2020 is disclosed in the respective notes.

Remarks

PVC
EDC
Caustic soda
Caustic flakes
VCM

195
127
106
20
204

Power

66

195
127
106
20
204
Mega Watts
66

153
79
77
2
148

197
110
105
4
184

48

48

Production planned as
per market demand
and in-house
consumption needs

NON-ADJUSTING EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
The Board of Directors in its meeting held on February 10, 2021 has proposed a final cash dividend of Rs. 1,133,562
(2019: Rs.181,785) which is approximately Rs. 1.247 (2019: Rs. 0.20) per share. This appropriation will be approved
by the members at the Annual General Meeting to be held on April 8, 2021
Further, the Board of Directors in the meeting has proposed a final cash dividend for preference shareholders for the
period from December 18, 2020 to December 31, 2020 of Rs. 12,485 which is approximately Rs 0.042 per
share. This appropriation will be approved in the Annual General Meeting to be held on April 8, 2021.

49.

CORRESPONDING FIGURES
Corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified for better presentation, wherever considered necessary,
for the purposes of better comparison. Following are the major reclassifications that have been made during the year:
Reclassifie
From

Description

Holding Company
- Provident fund
- Gratuity fund
- Pension fund

Actual
production
2020
2019
Kilo tons

Associated Company
- Mitsubishi Corporation

2019

- Total number of employees

Holding Company
- Engro Corporation Limited

Rupees

50.

To

Amount

Accrued mark-up

Loans, advances, deposits
prepayments and other receivables

Financial asset at fair value
through profit or loss

73,097

Advances to suppliers

Loans, advances, deposits
prepayments and other receivables

Stock-in-trade

47,218

Advances to suppliers

Loans, advances, deposits
prepayments and other receivables

Stores, spares
and loose tools

109,084

DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE
These consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue on February 10, 2020 by the Board of Directors of
the Company.
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notice of annual general meeting

N.B.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Twenty Third Annual General Meeting of Engro Polymer & Chemicals Limited (the “Company”)
will be held at Karachi via video conferencing on Thursday, April 8, 2021 at 10:00 a.m. to transact the following business:

1)

Participation in the AGM proceeding via the video conference facility:
Due to current COVID-19 situation, the AGM proceedings shall be held via video conference facility only.

Due to the current situation caused by COVID-19 pandemic, shareholders are requested to attend the meeting through video
conference facility managed by the Company as per the instructions given in the notes section.

Shareholders interested to participate in the meeting are requested to email their Name, Folio Number / participant’s ID
number, Cell Number, CNIC / Passport Number with subject “Registration for Engro Polymer & Chemicals Limited AGM” along
with valid copy of both sides of Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) at agm.epcl@engro.com, video link and login
credentials will be shared with only those members whose emails, containing all the required particulars, are received at least
48 hours before the time of AGM.

A) Ordinary Business
1)

To receive, consider and adopt the standalone and consolidated Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year
ended December 31, 2020 along with the Directors' and Auditors' Reports, thereon and the Chairman’s Review Report.

2)

To declare, as recommended by the Directors, the payment of a final dividend of PKR 1,146,047,200/- for the year ended
December 31, 2020 which shall be distributed as follows:

Shareholders can also provide their comments and questions for the agenda items of the AGM at the email address
agm.epcl@engro.com
2)

The Share Transfer Books of the Company will be closed from Sunday, April 4, 2021 to Thursday, April 8, 2021 (both days
inclusive). The transfers received in order at the office of the Company’s share registrar, M/s. FAMCO Associates (Private)
Limited, 8-F, near hotel Faran, Block 6, PECHS, Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi PABX Nos. (92-21) 34380101-5 and email
info.shares@famco.com.pk by the close of business (5:00 p.m.) on Friday, April 2, 2021 will be treated to have been in time for
the purposes of payment of final dividend to the transferees and to attend and vote at the meeting.

3)

A member entitled to attend and vote at this meeting shall be entitled to appoint another person as his/her proxy to attend,
speak and vote instead of him/her, and a proxy so appointed shall have all such rights, (in respect of) attending, speaking and
voting at the meeting as are available to a member. Proxy forms, in order to be effective, must be received by the Company
not less than forty-eight (48) hours before the meeting. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

4)

Pursuant to Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations, 2018, for the purpose of any agenda item subject to the requirements of
sections 143 and 144 of the Companies Act, 2017, members will be allowed to exercise their right of vote through postal
ballot, that is voting by post or through an electronic mode, in accordance with the requirements and procedures contained in
the aforesaid regulations.

5)

In accordance with the provisions of section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017, a listed Company is required to pay cash
dividend only through electronic mode directly into the bank account designated by the entitled shareholders. Accordingly, the
shareholders not receiving credit of their dividend are requested to provide the information mentioned on an E-Dividend
Mandate Form available at the website of the Company to the share registrar. The CDC account holders must submit their
information directly to their broker (participant) / Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited.

6)

In accordance with the directives of the SECP, the dividends of shareholders whose CNIC copies have not been received by
the Company shall not be electronically credited until receipt thereof. Therefore, the individual shareholders who have not
submitted their CNIC copies are requested to send the same at the earliest to the share registrar of the Company. Corporate
entities are requested to provide their NTN. While providing their CNIC/NTN, shareholders must quote their respective folio
numbers. The physical shareholders are requested to notify any change in their addresses to the share registrar of the
Company and in case of CDC shareholders to their broker (participant) or Investor Account Services of CDC, where their
shares are kept.

• Final Cash Dividend for ordinary shareholders for the year ended December 31, 2020 Rs. 1,133,562,268/ which is
approximately Rs.1.247 per share i.e. 12.47%.
• Cash Dividend for preference shareholders for the period from December 18, 2020 to December 31, 2020 Rs.
12,484,932/ which is approximately Rs. 0.042 per share i.e. 0.42%.
3)

To appoint Auditors for the year 2021 and fix their remuneration. The Members are hereby notified that the Board Audit
Committee and the Board of Directors have recommended the name of retiring Auditors M/s. A.F. Ferguson & Co., Chartered
Accountants for re-appointment as Auditors of the Company.

By the order of the Board

Karachi
February 10, 2021
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7)

8)

In compliance with section 150 read with Division I of Part III of the First Schedule of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001
withholding tax on dividend income will be deducted for shareholders appearing in Active Taxpayers List (ATL) at 15%. For
shareholders whose name is not appearing in ATL, section 100BA read with the Tenth schedule of the Income Tax Ordinance,
2001 requires withholding tax on dividend income to be increased to 30%. To enable the Company to withhold tax at 15%, all
shareholders are advised to ensure that their names appear in the latest available ATL on FBR website, otherwise tax on their
cash dividend will be deducted at 30%. Withholding tax exemption from the dividend income shall only be allowed to a
corporate shareholder if a copy of valid tax exemption certificate is made available to the share registrar of the Company by the
first day of book closure.
The FBR has clarified that in case of joint account, each holder is to be treated individually as either a filer or non-filer and tax
will be deducted on the basis of shareholding of each joint holder as may be notified by the shareholder, in writing as follows,
to the Company’s share registrar, otherwise it will be assumed that the shares are equally held by the joint shareholders:

standard request form
Circulation of Annual Audited Accounts
The Share Registrar
Engro Polymer & Chemicals Ltd.

Dated: _________________

FAMCO Associates (Pvt.) Ltd.
8-F, Near Hotel Faran
Nursery, Block-6, P.E.C.H.S., Shahra-e-Faisal
KARACHI.
E-mail: info.shares@famco.com.pk
Telephone No. (9221) 3438 0101-5, 3438 4621-3
Dear Sirs,
Subject: Request for Hard Copy of Annual Report of Engro Polymer & Chemicals Limited.

Company Secretary

Folio / CDS Account No.

Total Shares

Principal Shareholder
Name &
CNIC No.

Shareholding
Proportion
No. of shares

Joint Shareholder
Name &
CNIC No.

Shareholding
Proportion
No. of shares

As notified by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) vide S.R.O. 470(I)/2016 dated May 21, 2016 and
approved by the Shareholders in the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on April 14, 2017, the Company is circulating
its annual balance sheet, and profit and loss account, auditor’s report and directors report etc. (“Annual Audited Accounts”) to its
members through CD/DVD/USB at their registered addresses, save for those who opt for a hardcopy of the Annual Audited
Accounts by filling out the details below and sending it to the Company’s share registrar and Company Secretary.
I, ________________________________ S/o, D/o, W/o ________________________ being a registered shareholder of Engro
Polymer & Chemicals Ltd. with the particulars as mentioned below would request that my name be added to the list of
Shareholders of the Company who opt for delivery of a hardcopy of the Annual Audited Accounts of the Company and hereby
request you send me the Annual Audited Accounts in hard copy form at my registered address as contained in the member
register instead of providing the same through CD/DVD/USB.

Particulars
Name of Shareholder
Folio No. / CDC ID No.
CNIC / NICOP / Passport No.
Land Line Telephone No. (if any)
Cell No. (if any)

Yours truly,

___________________________
Shareholder’s Signature
Copy to:

Company Secretary
Engro Polymer & Chemicals Ltd.
16th Floor, The Harbour Front, Dolmen City
HC-3, Block 4, Clifton, Karachi-75600.
E-mail: skamil@engro.com
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proxy form
I/We
of
being a member of
ENGRO POLYMER AND CHEMICALS and holder of
ordinary shares as
per share(Number of Shares)Register Folio No.
and/or
CDC Participant I.D. No.
and Sub Account No.
, hereby appoint
of
or failing him/her
of
as my / our proxy to vote for me /
us and on my / our behalf at the 23rd Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on
the 8th day of April, 2021 and any adjournment thereof.
Signed this

day of

2021.

Witnesses:
(1)

(2)

Signature
Name
Address
CNIC or

:
:
:
:
:

Passport No.

:

Signature
Name
Address
CNIC or

:
:
:
:
:

Passport No.

:

Signature

(Signature should agree
with the specimen registered
with the Company)

Notes:
Proxies in order to be effective, must be received by the Company not less than 48 hours before the
meeting. A Proxy need not be a member of the Company.
CDC Shareholders and their proxies are each requested to attach an attested photocopy of their
Computerized National Identity Card or Passport with this proxy form before submission to the Company.
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compliance with ICAP’s BCR
No.
1

Framework for Annual Reporting
ORGANIZATIONAL OVERVIEW AND EXTERNAL ENVIRONMENT

1.01

Principal business activities and markets

1.02
1.03

No.

Page No.

Framework for Annual Reporting

4

GOVERNANCE

7 / 11 - 14

4.09

BoD remuneration policies

98

Geographical location and address of all business

15 - 16

4.10

Policy for security clearance of foreign directors

99

Mission, vision, code of conduct, culture, ethics and values

3 - 6 / 23 / 76 / 93

4.11

How the organization’s implemented governance practices exceeding legal requirements

93

1.04

Ownership, operating structure and relationship with group companies

18

4.12

1.05

Organization chart indicating functional and administrative reporting

17

Board’s policy on diversity, (including gender), any measurable objectives that it has set
for implementing the policy, and progress on achieving the objectives

102

1.06

Key Figures (Number of persons employed)

152

4.13

No. of companies in which the executive director of the reporting organization is serving
as non-executive director

97

1.07

Position of the reporting organization within the value chain

115 - 116

4.14

Related parties and board policy on RP transactions

99

1.08

Significant factors effecting the external environment and the organization’s response

118 - 119

4.15

Details of Board meetings held outside Pakistan during the year

98

1.09

Significant changes from prior years

124

4.16

Disclosure of Policy for actual and perceived conflicts of interest

99

1.10

Composition of local versus imported material and FX sensitivity

124

4.17

Investors’ grievance policy

100

1.11

Competitive landscape and market positioning

120

4.18

Policy for safety records of the company

100

4.19

Disclosure of IT Governance Policy

101

2

STRATEGY AND RESOURCE ALLOCATION

2.01

Short, medium and long term strategic objectives

25 - 26

4.20

Disclosure of Whistle blowing policy

101

2.02

Strategies in place to achieve those strategic objectives

25 - 26

4.21

Human resource management policies including preparation of a succession plan

101

2.03

Resource allocation plans to implement the strategy and financial capital structure

32

4.22

Social and environmental responsibility policy

102

2.04

Key performance indicators (KPIs)

27 - 31

4.23

Review by the Board of the organization’s business continuity plan

108 - 109

2.05

Strategy to overcome liquidity problem

32

4.24

Disclosure of beneficial ownership and flow chart of group shareholding and relationship

98

2.06

Significant plans and decisions

32

4.25

Compliance with the Best Practices of Code of Corporate Governance

177 - 179

2.07

Significant changes in objectives and strategies from prior years

32

4.26

A brief description about role of the Chairman and the CEO

96

4.27

Shares held by Sponsors / Directors / Executives

85

4.28

Salient features of TOR and attendance in meetings of the Board Committees
(Audit, Human Resource, Nomination and Risk management)

97 - 98
N/A

3

RISKS AND OPPORTUNITIES

3.01

Key risks and opportunities effecting availability, quality and affordability of Capitals

121 - 124

3.02

Sources of risks and opportunities (internal and external)

121 - 124

3.03

Assessment of the ‘likelihood’ that the risk or opportunity will come to fruition and the
‘magnitude’ of its effect if it does

4.29

Timely Communication

121 - 124

4.30

Audit Committee Report

105 - 106

Presence of the chairman of the audit committee at the AGM

96

3.04

Specific steps being taken to mitigate or manage key risks

121 - 124

4.31

3.05

Board’s risk management policies

124

4.32

3.06

Board of Directors robust assessment of the principal risks facing the company

124

Where an external search consultancy has been used in the appointment of the Chairman or a
non-Executive Director, it should be disclosed if it has any other connection with the company

96

3.07

Inadequacy in the capital structure and plans to address such inadequacy

124

4.33

Chairman’s significant commitments and any changes thereto

97

4.34

Pandemic Recovery Plan by the Management and policy statement

109

4

307

Page No.

GOVERNANCE

5

4.01

Name and profile of board of directors

43 - 46

4.02

Review Report by the Chairman of the Company

55 - 56

4.03

A statement of how the Board operates

92

4.04

Shariah Advisor Report and Profile of the Shariah Advisor

104

4.05

Annual evaluation of performance, along with description of criteria used for the
members of the Board and its committees, CEO and the Chairman

95

4.06

Disclosure if the Board's Performance evaluation is carried out by an external
consultant once in three years

95

4.07

Details of formal orientation courses for Directors

95

4.08

Directors' Training Program (DTP) attended by Directors

96
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PERFORMANCE AND POSITION

5.01

Analysis of the financial and non-financial performance using both qualitative
and quantitative indicators

5.02

Analysis of financial statements, Ratios, DuPont, Cash Flow & EVA

5.03

Combined analysis both vertical and horizontal of the Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss
Account for last 6 years
Summary of Cash Flow Statement for last 6 years

5.04

149 - 174
149 - 154
163 - 164
173 - 174
149 - 151
154

5.05

Graphical presentation of the Balance Sheet, Profit & Loss Account and analysis in
5.02, 5.03 and 5.04 above

5.06

Explanation of negative change in the performance against prior year, analysis of variation in
interim accounts with final accounts

165 - 171
156
165 - 168
(trend analysis)
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5

Page No.

88.01

PERFORMANCE AND POSITION

5.07

Information about defaults in payment of any debts and reasons thereof period

174

5.08

Methods and assumptions used in compiling the indicators

174

5.09

Cash Flow Statement based on Direct Method

153

5.10

Segmental review of business performance

159 - 162

5.11

Market share information preferably from an independent source including share
price sensitivity analysis

172

5.12

History of major events during the year

19 - 20

5.13

Business rationale of major capital expenditure /projects during the year and for those
planned for next year

174

5.14

Brief description and reasons for not declaring dvidend and overdue regulatory dues

N/A

5.15

CEO presentation video on the organization’s website

58

6

OUTLOOK

6.01

Forward looking statement

145

6.02

Analysis of last year forward looking statement

145

6.03

Status of the projects disclosed in the forward-looking statement in the previous year

145

6.04

Sources of information and assumptions used for projections / forecasts

146

6.05

How the organization is currently equipped in responding to the critical challenges

146

7

No.

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP AND ENGAGEMENT

7.01

Stakeholders’ engagement process and the frequency of such engagements

35 - 36

7.02

Measures to encourage the minority shareholders to attend the general meetings

37

7.03

Investors' Relations section on the corporate website

37

7.04

Issues raised in the last AGM, decisions taken and their implementation status

7.05

Statement of value added and its distribution with graphical presentation

7.06

Stakeholders engagement policy

35 - 36
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SPECIFIC DISCLOSURES OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Particulars of major foreign shareholders, other than natural person, holding more than
5% of paid up capital in the company in Pattern of Shareholding

213 / 272

12

Particulars where company has given loans or advances or has made investments
in foreign companies or undertakings

N/A

13

Details in respect of Export Sales - Name of company or undertaking in case of related
party and in case of default brief description of any legal action

209 / 268

14

Treasury shares in respect of issued share capital of a company

N/A

15

Details of legal proceedings

219 - 221 /
278 - 280

16

Management assessment of sufficiency of tax provision made in the company’s
financial statements

193 - 194 /
251 - 252

17

Income tax reconciliation as required by IFRS and applicable tax regime for the year

226 / 285

18

In respect of loans and advances, other than those to the suppliers of goods or services,
the name of the borrower and terms of repayment

210 / 269

19

Financial statements issued after public offering(s) of securities or issuance of debt
instrument(s) implementation of plans as disclosed in the prospectus

213 / 272

20

Where any property or asset acquired with the funds of the company and is not held
in the name of the company or is not in the possession and control of the company

N/A

21

Standards, amendments and interpretations adopted during the current year along
with their impact on the company's financial statements

195 / 253

22

Standards, amendments and interpretations, not yet effective and not adopted
along with their impact on the company's financial statements

195 / 253

9

SUSTAINABILITY AND CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

9.01

Highlights of the entity's performance, policies, initiatives and plans in place relating to
the various aspects of sustainability and corporate social responsibility

127 - 142

37

9.02

Certifications acquired and international standards adopted for bestsustainability and CSR practices

21 - 22

38 / 135

10

SPECIFIC DISCLOSURES OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1

Fair value of Property, Plant and Equipment

N/A

2

Segment analysis of gross income and profit before tax

235 / 293

3

Reconciliation of weighted average number of shares for calculating EPS and diluted EPS

226 / 286

4

Particulars of significant / material assets and immovable property including location
and area of land

204 / 262

5

Disclosure of discounts on revenue

221 / 281

6

Sector wise analysis of deposits and advances

N/A

7

Complete set of financial statements (Balance sheet, Income statement & Cash flow)
for Islamic banking operations

N/A

8

Status for adoption of Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the ICAP

N/A

9

Summary of significant transactions and events that have affected the company‘s financial
position and performance during the year

192 / 250

10

Forced sale value in case of revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment or
investment property

N/A

evolve | adapt | grow

Page No.

11

10.01

8

Framework for Annual Reporting

11

BUSINESS MODEL
Business model including inputs, business activities, outputs and outcomes

113

STRIVING FOR EXCELLENCE IN CORPORATE REPORTING

11.1

Statement by management of unreserved compliance of International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB)

174

11.2

Adoption and statement of adherence with the International Integrated Reporting Framework (IR)

142

11.3

Disclosures beyond BCR criteria

310

11.3
1
2
3
4
5

DISCLOSURES BEYOND BCR CRITERIA
Functional objectives and strategies
Management & Functional committees
Governane framework
SWOT analysis
Compliance with ICAP’s BCR Criteria

27 - 31
48
94
117
307 - 310
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